AGENDA [REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

June 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM
Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street

The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first

Town Council and Administration

Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert | Mayor Pro-Tempore: Audra Killingsworth
Council Members: Brett D. Gantt; Terry Mahaffey; Edward Gray; Arno Zegerman
Town Manager: Catherine Crosby | Deputy Town Manager: Shawn Purvis
Assistant Town Managers: Demetria John and Marty Stone
Town Clerk: Allen Coleman | Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe

COMMENCEMENT

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance

CN1

CN2

CN3

CN4

CN5

CONSENT AGENDA

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,
and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the
Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda
to be set prior to taking action on the following items:

Annexation No. 752 - Castleberry Assemblage - 89.90 acres

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 19 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No.
2023-15 - Reedy Branch Greenway

Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Res. Dept.
Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 21 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No.
2023-16 - Capital Project Grant Allocations and Annual Shop-With-A-Cop Program
Allocation

Amanda Grogan, Director, Budget and Performance Management Department

Contract Multi-Year - Flock Safety Inc. - License Plate Reader Technology - July 1, 2023
through June 30, 2025

Deputy Chief Mitch McKinney, Apex Police Department (APD)

Contract Multi-Year - HT Stormwater Management - Monthly Maintenance All Town-
Owned Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) - July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026

Jessica Bolin, P.E., Environmental Stormwater Manager, Water Resources Department



CNé6

CN7

CN8

CN9

CN10

CN11

CN12

CN13

CN14

CN15

PR1

Contract Multi-Year - IPKeys Power Partners Inc. - Meter Data Management System
(MDMS) - July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028

Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager, Development and Operations Portfolio

Council Meeting Minutes - Multiple

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk

Debt Service Fund Ordinances - General, Electric, and Water & Sewer

Antwan Morrison, Director, Finance Department

Encroachment Agreement - 1251 Burma Drive

Steve Adams, Real Estate/Utilities Acquisition Specialist, Transportation and Infra. Dev. Dept.
Encroachment Agreement - 2210 Winston Circle, Lot 3

Chris Johnson, P.E., MPA, Director, Transportation & Infrastructure Development Dept.
Humie Olive Place - Fee-In-Lieu (FIL)

Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Res. Dept.
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between Central Pines Regional Council (formerly
Triangle J Council of Governments (TJCOG) - Solid Waste Consortium - Fiscal-Year
2023-24

John Mullis, Director, Public Works Department

Ordinance Amendment - Incorporating Local Acts into Charter

Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney, Legal Department

Position Authorization List Update - Fiscal Year 2024

Mary Beth Manville, Director, Human Resources Department

Resolution - Public Utility Easement Abandonment

Steve Adams, Real Estate/Utilities Acquisition Specialist, Transportation and Infra. Dev. Dept.

PRESENTATIONS

Proclamation - Parks and Recreation Month - July 2023
Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the
Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions.



PUBLIC FORUM

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council. The speaker is requested not to address items

that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda. The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the

PH1

PH2

AND
PH3

PH4

PH5

PHé6

NB1

NB2

NB3

appropriate time. Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group.
Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Annexation No. 757 - Alderwood Pond - 0.67 acres
Dianne Khin, Director, Planning Department
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 - Annual Operating Budget and Fee Schedule Adoption

Amanda Grogan, Director, Budget and Performance Management Department

Fiscal Year 2023-2024/2027-2028 - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
Amanda Grogan, Director, Budget and Performance Management Department
Rezoning Case No. 23CZ07 - 940 Tingen Rd

Liz Loftin, Senior Planner, Planning Department

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ09 - Hatcher Property Revision

Shelly Mayo, Planner Il, Planning Department

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ11 - Smith Farm Phase 5 PUD Amendment

Shelly Mayo, Planner Il, Planning Department

OLD BUSINESS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

Affordable Housing Zoning Incentive Policy Procedures Manual

Demetria John, Assistant Town Manager, Community and Safety Portfolio

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 23 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No.
2023-17 - Cemetery Improvements - Columbarium

Shawn Purvis, Deputy Town Manager, Performance and Strategy Portfolio

Utility Customer Assistance Program (CAP) Update

Antwan Morrison, Director, Finance Department



UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER

CLOSED SESSION

Council will enter into closed session pursuant to:

CS1 Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney, Legal Department

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3):
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order
to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body.”

ADJOURNMENT



|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk
Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office

Requested Motion

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the
Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing
for August 8, 2023, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 90.24 acres
Castleberry Assemblage, Annexation No. 752 into the Town Corporate limits.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
ltem Details
The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.

Attachments

e CN1-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition
» Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk
» Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing

CN1-A2: Legal Description - Satellite Annexation No. 752

CN1-A3: Aerial Map - Satellite Annexation No. 752

CN1-A4: Plat Map - Satellite Annexation No. 752

CN1-A5: Annexation Petition - Satellite Annexation No. 752

- Page 5 -




RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-58.1

Satellite Annexation Petition No. 752
Castleberry Assemblage — 90.24 acres

WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 58.2 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may
take place; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to
proceed in response to this request for annexation;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his
investigation.

This the 27t day of June, 2023.

Jacques K. Gilbert
Mayor

ATTEST:

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

- Page 6 -




CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK

Satellite Annexation Petition No. 752
Castleberry Assemblage — 90.24 acres

To: The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina

|, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that | have investigated the
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the noncontiguous area described
therein, in accordance with G.S5.§ 160A-58.1(b), as amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 27t day of June, 2023.

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

- Page 7 -




RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-58.2 AS AMENDED

Satellite Annexation Petition No. 752
Castleberry Assemblage — 90.24 acres

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the non-contiguous area
described herein has been received; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and

WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition
has been made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex,
North Carolina that:

Section 1. A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’'clock p.m. on the 8" day of
August, 2023.

Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as attached.

Section 3. Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date

of said public hearing.

This the 27th day of June, 2023.

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

ATTEST:

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk

Attachment: Legal Description

- Page 8 -



http://www.apexnc.org/

Annexation Legal Description
Castleberry Reserve

BEING THE OUTER BOUNDARY OF 8 PARCELS, NOW OR FORMERLY OF THOMAS R MARCOM AS
DESCRIBED IN DB 3292, PG 222 (PIN 0723023450), THOMAS R MARCOM AND NANCY MARCOM AS
DESCRIBED IN DB 16865, PG 2012 (PIN 0723024085), TEMPIE M MARCOM AS DESCRIBED IN DB 3676, PG
382 (PIN 0723111191) AND DB 5048, PG 325 (PIN 0723026951), THOMAS R MARCOM AND NANCY
MARCOM AS DESCRIBED IN DB 16865, PG 2012 (PIN 0723024085), SONIA B MARCOM AS DESCRIBED IN
DB 2392, PG 220 (PIN 0723120194), DEBORAH M K STRICKLAND AS DESCRIBED IN DB 2284, PG 124 (PIN
0723125145), BRIDGET COTRUFO & PAUL A COTRUFO AS DESCRIBED IN DB 9017, PG 1189 (PIN
0723115892), AND TEMPIE M MARCOM & DEBORAH M STRICKLAND AS DESCRIBED IN DB 18975, PG
1401 (PIN 0723113507) SAID PARCELS BEING LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF APEX, WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP,
WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND ON THE NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF THE PROPERTY NOW OR
FORMERLY OF THOMAS R MARCOM AS DESCRIBED IN DB 3292, PG 222 (PIN 0723023450) AND THE
SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY OF CASTLEBERRY ROAD (NCSR 1604), SAID IRON BEING THE TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING AND HAVING NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLAIN COORDINATES OF N=732,695.45" AND E=
2,020,274.89’; THENCE, FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY,
N06°20°52”W A DISTANCE OF 36.42 FEET TO A MAG NAIL FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF CASTLEBERRY
ROAD; THENCE, LEAVING SAID CENTERLINE, NO7°01’11"”W A DISTANCE OF 33.52 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON
PIPE FOUND ON THE NORTHERN RIGHT OF WAY OF CASTLEBERRY ROAD ; THENCE, WITH SAID RIGHT OF
WAY, N57°59’32”E A DISTANCE OF 120.57 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT; THENCE, CONTINUING WITH
SAID RIGHT OF WAY, N56°35’23”E A DISTANCE OF 92.62 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT; THENCE,
CONTINUING WITH SAID RIGHT OF WAY, N56°35’06”E A DISTANCE OF 235.75 FEET TO A COMPUTED
POINT; THENCE, CONTINUING WITH SAID RIGHT OF WAY, N56°01’30”E A DISTANCE OF 25.69 FEET TO A
COMPUTED POINT; THENCE, LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY, S33°58’30”E A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO
A COMPUTED POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF CASTLEBERRY ROAD; THENCE, CONTINUING WITH SAID
CENTERLINE, N56°01’30”E A DISTANCE OF 62.20 FEET TO A MAG NAIL SET; THENCE, CONTINUING WITH
SAID CENTERLINE, N53°38°28”E A DISTANCE OF 93.37 FEET TO A MAG NAIL SET; THENCE, CONTINUING
WITH SAID CENTERLINE, N50°18'13”E A DISTANCE OF 93.98 FEET TO A MAG NAIL SET; THENCE,
CONTINUING WITH SAID CENTERLINE, N47°13’51”E A DISTANCE OF 88.14 FEET TO A MAG NAIL SET;
THENCE, CONTINUING WITH SAID CENTERLINE, N42°57°56”E A DISTANCE OF 133.67 FEET TO A MAG
NAIL SET; THENCE, CONTINUING WITH SAID CENTERLINE, N39°28'11”E A DISTANCE OF 158.12 FEET TO A
MAG NAIL SET; THENCE, CONTINUING WITH SAID CENTERLINE, N38°24'24”E A DISTANCE OF 132.10
FEET TO A MAG NAIL SET; THENCE, LEAVING SAID CENTERLINE, S07°45’19”E A DISTANCE OF 199.36 FEET
TO A BENT IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S65°45’19”E A DISTANCE OF 662.66 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE
FOUND; THENCE, S10°27°53”E A DISTANCE OF 804.30 FEET TO AN AXLE FOUND; THENCE, S70°27'14”E A
DISTANCE OF 178.50 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S32°45’20”E A DISTANCE OF 181.93
FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S17°53’43”W A DISTANCE OF 387.15 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON
PIPE SET; THENCE, S88°59’08”W A DISTANCE OF 236.49 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE,
$89°34’36”W A DISTANCE OF 57.19 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S89°28'25”W A
DISTANCE OF 409.63 FEET TO AN AXLE FOUND; THENCE, S00°45’40”E A DISTANCE OF 396.14 FEETTO A
3/4” IRON PIPE SET; THENCE, S00°45’40”E A DISTANCE OF 503.45 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND;
THENCE, S80°51’33”W A DISTANCE OF 380.41 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND; THENCE,

- Page 9 -




$61°40’30”W A DISTANCE OF 470.42 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND; THENCE, N77°05’52”W
A DISTANCE OF 415.10 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, NO0°33’05”E A DISTANCE OF 457.27
FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, NO0O°33’05”E A DISTANCE OF 92.75 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON
PIPE SET; THENCE, N87°03’17”W A DISTANCE OF 124.95 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT AT A 40” POPLAR;
THENCE, N02°34’18”E A DISTANCE OF 394.62 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, N02°34’18"E
A DISTANCE OF 394.37 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, N02°25’20”E A DISTANCE OF 71.14
FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, N02°25’20”E A DISTANCE OF 186.74 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON
PIPE FOUND; THENCE, N02°36’05”E A DISTANCE OF 325.84 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON PIPE SET; THENCE,
N83°37°40”E A DISTANCE OF 94.32 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, N06°20’52"W A
DISTANCE OF 166.26 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID OUTER BOUNDARY CONTAINING 3,930,700 SQUARE FEET OR 90.24 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

- Page 10 -







® N/F :
¥ DON SCOTT SUTTON JR A7)
£ EXISTING EXISTING BOLLARD PIN: 0723136582 < o
(6" 18" RCP\ (TYP OF 6) REID: 0073546 w
© PKS DB 12187 PG 1721 al =
N/F BM 1993 PG 785
QS) o WILLIAM R JOHNSON lii E Z9 ©
_\ ~/ SHERRY W JOHNSON O 5 QS
07 Prs/\ /7 \ PIN: 0723134513 G
») ¢ - REID: 0196471
& & o ~
e, ((;é,/ &OQ%!?’ 4 ~ DB 6445 PG 532 O O =
S o / BM 1993 PG 785 e Z —~9
S & O \)Q Q . ~ o
x S N ' /« ABENT EIP < = >
QE;\ Ov ‘bgq;\' PKS S 8650 N/F LIJ U) E =~ g 2
CANMNG Y44 ABEL L FIGUEROA S 0 S EQ
N o %, N~/ PN N JESSICA FIGUEROA < > 0
S Q 62 & O - »n O
Q) .58 30" PKs/ ./ -66 AN PIN: 0723230271 C w o
3 $33° 58' 30"E ) N > a n
DIESEL PATH < 30.00" N \ N REID: 0440404 - D __Ss
SITE 0 N56° 01" 30"E ' PKSY \ \ \ N DB 16154 PG 548 W =5
o 25.69" a - <N\ \\ BM 2016 PG 1572 (7)) > gJ Szu
[ -
m ADDITIONAL R/W AREA PKSY / v N N I oz ~ = 3
OO(/ b 14,489 SF/0.33 AC PKS AN ‘ \ \ \ 172" EIP " - w r »u—J %
% s PKSY D > N OWw<O
« = N56° 35' 06"E P \ v N\ -
0,9 — ' e \ \ \ \ Z o’ @
2 235.75 2 7—62.20' IS PORTION OF RW N APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF 50° -_— 0 < —
: TH N U o0
WASDELL Z NS6° 35' 23 N56° 35' 06"E ’ L10 (T) CALCULATED FROM EXISTING \ COLONIAL PIPELINE EASEMENT O — 2 0L
o X ; 25.84 EXISTING ROAD ¢ \ \ GRAVESTONE  \ TRACED FROM DB 8099 PG 2495 )} E ii £
92.62 23590 L9 (TYP OF 49) NN Z sz
N57o 59' 32"E EPK // ©1/2" EIP N \ LIJ <t O
. & \ \ APPROXIMATE < W S T
120.57 N K EP CEMETERY N N
/8' @ \ \ AREA ~ = Z
ICINITY MAP 1/ z E'PQ N\ TEMPIE M MARCOM APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF 50' N/F 9
vic - L6 ) TOLL SOUTHLEAST LP COMPANY LLC - Z
NOT TO SCALE EPK@~ ) EPK PIN: 0723026951 \ \ CARDINAL PIPELINE EASEMENT oM. 0723021515 T
'-3 b L5 @ REID: 0100137 PER DB 8099 PG 2495 e ot <
CONTROL CORNER ‘ o\% DB 5048 PG 325 " DB 17681 PG 2768 m
LEGEND 172" IRON PIPE @ ALY \ \ TEMPIE M MARCO A oo 0 10
(NAD B3/NSRS 2011/5PC) - ®, o\ o TOTAL AREA: 8,209 SF / 0.19 AC PIN: 0723111191
2 S)(()IS;I[’)‘JERE%%NRD&?YS%QFRNER FOUND N: 732,695.45' N CAW QAN AREA IN R/W: 5,590 SF /0.13 AC REID: 0047517
E: 2,020,274.89' w\C O NET AREA: 2,619 SF / 0.06 AC \ DB 3676 PG 382 »
% COMPUTED POINT o\ = D 19.E PG 0000 "
CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND L1 A o ??‘\ w2 .
RCOM " o RN N
PROPERTY LINE SURVEYED T aanoaas 12" ElP \ \ TOTAL AREA: 2,998,013 SF / 68.82 AC =\2 PR N
e Eigg&gz}r SL|NE NOT SURVEYED REID: 0133684 AREA IN BNV: 23,615 S’f / 0.524 ACC a\g .‘} .. . L) \,
DB 3292 PG 222 \ D1/2" EIP \ \ NET AREA: 2,974,398 SF/68.28 A m ;"‘. ‘ . N .p
BM 1984 PG 679 e le®e L)
w 1/2" EIP BENT \‘ ;" Y . /
P “; TOTAL AREA: 127,109 SF / 2.92 AC N/F i 34" EIP \\! .. /.
; . TOWN OF APEX CORPORATE LIMITS AREA IN R/W: 4,255 SF /0.10 HOWARD L CRIST  © 8 i BE.'.‘IT L24 \3 "
* . (PER WAKE COUNTY GIS) NET AREA: 122,854 SF/2.82AC  pATRICIAECRIST 23 _l‘,\N 1/2" EIP 34" EIP S
' PIN: 0723001857 &, | & oA\ A AXLEOX70° 5.,
o , o g 5 SONIA B MARCOM 1/2" EIP 14~
EIP  EXISTING IRON PIPE REID: 0015863 9 2265 2 PIN: 0723120194 178 55 12" EIP
EIR EXISTING IRON REBAR DB 2009 PG 131?2" Epe o\ S’ RE.ID‘ 0133683 DEBORAH M K STRICKLAND -0 >
BM < . . ° v U] -
DB DEED SS&APS LINE TABLE w THOMAS R MARCOM a\g - DB 3292 PG 220 PIN: 0723125145 $32° 45' 20"E ﬁ ~
PG PAGE al. NANCY MARCOM wl BM 1984 PG 679 DRBE'zzhgoggg . & 181.93" o §
RW  RIGHT OF WAY LINE# | DIRECTION | LENGTH :: g PIN: 0723024085 - ;‘“ ~ < = s o
—— : ~N|o REID: 0288699 AREA: 130,711 SF / 3.00 AC _ o 98
L1 | N83°37'40E | 94.32 al® DB 16865 PG 2012 BENT AREA: 103,531 SF /2.38 AC Lo7 > w & 8 5 <
o " ”" o
L2 | No6°20'52°W | 166.26 I3 BM 2001 PG 1985 112" EIP EIP 3/4" EIP L26 2 O = 5 a2
CLASSOF SURVEV.A 3 | N0 2052w | 3642 TOTAL AREA: 317,455 SF / 7.29 AC L22(M e 314" EIP Pl / g g s 9
POSITIONAL ACCURACY: 0.06' o) NO02° 25' 20"E AREA IN R/W: 3,846 SF /0.09 ) BRIDGET COTRUFO S/ N/F N ™ n <
TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: NC REAL TIME NETWORK g 14 | No7°01T 11w | 3352 71 14" NET AREA: 313,609 SF / 7.20 AC PAUL A COTRUFO R/&® JILL L SANSOUCY O 8 QA o
DATES OF SURVEY: OCTOBER 2022 c — - 112" ElP—~ ~ > 112" EIP PIN: 0723115892 & / SCOTT OLSON N o = =
DATUM/EPOCH: NAD83/NSRS2011/SPC § LS | NS7"49'S0E | 13510 = Ns, é . REID: 282616 5 P;“;g?égg)g%“ we w 3 %
GEOID MODEL: 18 4 L6 | N56°35'23"E | 9298 o S oS DB 9017 PG 1189 » / 0330220 I3 _~4 2
2 @ S I6 v/ BM 2001 PG 855 DB 11370 PG 2312 FIsog .
COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S);_0.999902094 Z  Tnesaoe | 57 % 39 P> W o/8 % S89° 34" 36"W BM 2005 PG 880 Xgatd >
UNITS: US SURVEY FEET 8 NI & o AREA: 146,816 SF / 3.37 AC 57.19' 63.66' (TIE) % § § = 5 R 4
< L8 | N76°0208E | 147.61 wie ' ' R® &3 23
z @3 AXLE L29 12" EIP 236.49' “% 1" EIP L o g 0 m & 9
L9 | NO1°34'15"W | 81.30 % 12" EIP©® pp Q3320 @
NOTES 3  — < £ sq 3y
L10 | N56°01'30"E | 88.04' —a 83
1. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BY BATEMAN CIVIL SURVEY COMPANY ?C\; TEMPIE M MARCOM S88° 59' 08"W = § @R @ g
UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEVEN P. CARSON, PLS. L11 | N53°38'28°F | 9337 z DEBORAH M STRICKLAND 300.15' (T) EXISTING % ErtQ@wa
2. ALL DISTANCE ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCE AND ALL BEARINGS o 1gr 1 : 112" EIP PIN: 0723113507 , S5 3 T
ARE BASED ON GPS OBSERVATIONS, NAD83 / NSRS 2011/ SPC, UNLESS L12 ] NSO*18'13°E | 93.98 ¢ REID: 0043931 STSE‘S;\AD/‘;'CS:YHN\;\NA g‘é:g;ﬁ%ﬁfﬁgﬁgggT = N o g @
OTHERWISE SHOWN. o 12t £ . DB 18975 PG 1401
L13 | N47°13'S1"E | 88.14 OIN. 0993910562 S ?‘3 @ © c;>
3. PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE "X" PER NATIONAL INSURANCE PROGRAM e e mm . : REID: 0150652 - @
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP #3720072300K, DATED 07/19/2022. L14 | N42°57'56°E | 13367 AREA: 84,367 SF / 1.94 AC D 0180652 f 2 g 8 F
o ogt 11 : . . ~ o
4. SITE ZONED "R-80W" FOR WAKE COUNTY PER COUNTY GIS. L15 | N39"28'11°%E | 158.12 & BM 1986 PG 1052 Z g_ g 35
o Ddl I4M . oy oc w
5. AREAS COMPUTED BY COORDINATE METHOD. L16 | N38°24'24"E | 132.10 a j % 8 8 =
. A5 10" ' ) o T
6. THIS MAP HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY L17 | S07°45°19°E | 199.36 b [ g &J Q =z
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT Q - Q P
REGULATIONS. L18 | N15°24'40"E | 349.74' EXISTING o N/F - 9D m
40" POPLAR AT CORNER TOTAL AREA TO BE ANNEXED TO THE TOWN OF APEX 4} STANLEY R JOHNSON JR w e <3
7. ALL BOUNDARY CORNERS SET ARE 3/4" IRON PIPE SET (3/4" IPS), UNLESS L19 | S74°36'52°E | 431171 (INCLUDING R/W) 2 LOLA C JOHNSON l:( )
OTHERWISE NOTED. 3,930,700 SF / 90.24 AC 2 PIN: 0723117077 <
L20 SO4° 53' OO'W 226.83' g z RE'D: 0020194 w n-
A . o qar S| ® DB 2348 PG 692
L21 N89° 37' 25"W 68.58 N87 0:‘?‘2147;\/5\/' »-..,_________NOOO 33' 05"E a © REVISIONS
° . v : 92.75’ T|la
THIS MAP IS CONSIDERED PRELIMINARY, NOT FOR RECORDATION, CONVEYANCE OR SALES 122 | N89°37'25"W | 420.72 12" EPQ @ 21- 2'133[;253 PARCEL 0100137
UNLESS SIGNED AND SEALED BY THE LICENSED SURVEYOR. 123 | soa° 53 00w | 98.52 =3
2. REVISED PER APEX
I, STEVEN P. CARSON, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN 124 S79° 43' 20"E 363.65' ANNEXATION # COMMENTS (03/07/23)
ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTIONS RECORDED IN DB 2284 PG
124, DB 9017 PG 1189, DB 3292 PG 220, DB 3292 PG 222, DB 16865 PG 2012, DB 18975 PG 1401, DB 125 | S09°40'51"W | 265.35' w 3. REVISED PER APEX
206 P 00 sds P i, AT T BOUNDAPIESNOT SURVEYER A SLEARLY INIOATED |1 8, , ALLEN COLEMAN, VG NGCG, TOWN GLERK APEX NORTH | | Samae P AP
CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS 2~ 38.05' (TIE) CAROLINA CERTIFY THIS A TRUE AND EXACT MAP OF ANNEXATION
AMENDED WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND SEAL THIS_Z O 127 | N89°36'52Ww | 97.96' o |2 i ADOPTED THE DAY OF ,20___,BYTHE 4. REVISED PER APEX
DAY OF _ S AD., 2023. b o et 33W 3/4" EIP TOWN COUNCIL. | SET MY HAND AND SEAL OF THE TOWN OF APEX, COMMENTS (05/01/23)
128 | S11°58'56"E | 332.28' z 580° 51 . DAY/MONTH/YEAR
I, FURTHER THAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30-F-11-C-1; CERTIFY THAT THE SURVEY IS OF AN 50 AT DESIGNED BY: N/A
EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND OR ONE OR MORE EXISTING EASEMENTS AND DOES 129 | Sage 28' 25w | 409,65 -
NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS ALLEN COLEMAN. CMC. NCece. | | orawney: ELs
SUBSECTION, AN "EXISTING PARCEL” OR "EXISTING EASEMENT" IS AN AREA OF LAND DESCRIBED 130 | N20° 49 26°W | 234.46° CONTROL CORNER — , CMC, .
IN A SINGLE, LEGAL DESCRIPTION CONVEYED TO A NEW OWNER BY DEED IN ITS EXISTING : 3/4" Elpe 1/2" IRON PIPE TOWN CLERK CHECKED BY: SPC
CONFIGURATION. ‘.t . 'Clx v, L31 N39° 26' 23"W | 146.49 -~ - (NAD 83/NSRS 2011/SPC)
RN (\.........RO ‘e, - N: 730,782.9%' SCALE: 1" = 200"
:;o‘}'_./-:f,. £S5, ,,;:,;/%:,. L32 | S89°28'25"W | 335.00' 112" €l E:2,021,452.32 GRAPHIC SCALE OATE. 1110972022
: y ..'.Q‘\J 4 ‘.. '- o . " . 415 ; :
POfT seaL 7Y % || 133 | SOTI¥E | 155.00 - 10 200 0 100 200 400 800
= i 4% of 3 S88° 58' 34"E | 170.00° N77° 08 04'W NIF JOB NUMBER: 220679
R | - 193.45'(TIE) UNITED STATES OF AMERICA e —— -
{ [4 6/ 2¢/23 a »@) L O 135 | S06°13'34"E | 235.00' PIN: 0722090422
%o L e 0P O i REID: 0103325
STEVEN P. CARSON, PLS DATE Ce, gt PQ‘ * - ; IN FEET
NC LICENSE NO. L-4752 e .iv. p Co v L36 | S88°58'34"E | 128.00 DB 1984 PG 321 1(inch =200)ﬂ SHEET 1 OF 1

- Page 12 -




Annexation # 752

PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY. ANNEXATION

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties.

Application #: 200% =005 Submittal Date: J=3/-202>
Fee Paid $:.20022 Check # ccC

To THE TOWN COUNCIL APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 below be annexed
to the Town of Apex, [4 Wake County, [0 Chatham County, North Carolina.

2. The area to be annexed is H contiguous, [ non-contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Apex, North Carolina and the
boundaries are as contained in the metes and bounds description attached hereto.

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads, and other areas as stated in
G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.

OWNER INFORMATION

See attached

Owner Name (Please Print) Property PIN or Deed Book & Page #
Phone E-mail Address
Owner Name (Please Print) Property PIN or Deed Book & Page #
Phone E-mail Address
Owner Name (Please Print) Property PIN or Deed Book & Page #
Phone E-mail Address

SURVEYOR INFORMATION
Surveyor: Bateman Civil Survey Company; Steven P. Carson
Phone: 919-577-1080 Fax: 919-577-1081

E-mail Address: info@batemancivilsurvey.com

ANNEXATION SUMMARY. CHART

Property Information Reason(s) for annexation (select all that apply)
Total Acreage to be annexed: 89.90 Need water service due to well failure O
Population of acreage to be annexed: TBD Need sewer service due to septic system failure O
Existing # of housing units: 7 Water service (new construction)
Proposed # of housing units: 180 Sewer service (new construction)
Zoning District*: PUD-CZ Receive Town Services

*Pending rezoning application
*If the property to be annexed is not within the Town of Apex’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, the applicant must also submit
a rezoning application with the petition for voluntary annexation to establish an Apex zoning designation. Please contact
the Department of Planning and Community Development with questions.

Page 2 of 5 Petition for Vol Last Updated: June 8, 2022
8 - Page 13 - P




AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP.

Application #: 2023 - 005 Submittal Date: |—3/-2023

The undersigned, Matthew J. Carpenter (the "Affiant") first being duly sworn, hereby swears or affirms
as follows:

1. Affiant is over eighteen (18) years of age and authorized to make this Affidavit. The Affiaor is
the authorized agent of all owners, of the property legally
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property").

2. This Affidavit of Ownership is made for the purpose of filing an application for development approval with
the Town of Apex.

3. Affiant possesses documentation indicating the agency relationship granting the Affiant the
authority to apply for development approval on behalf of the owner(s).

4,

To Affiant’s actual knowledge, no claim or action has been brought against owners which questions title
or right to possession of the property, nor is any claim or action pending against Affiant or
owners in court regarding possession of the Property.

This the Z Z day of ‘Zdﬁz‘f:# ,2023.

(seal)

Hattilly © 7 Lagpend'e

ype or print name

STATE OF NORT ROLINA
COUNTY OF

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County of l/\/ﬁ/@ﬂ , hereby certify that
mlrﬁ}\é,,q) J&ﬂféﬂmﬁﬂﬁiant, personally known to me or known to me by said Affiant’s presentation of

said Affiant’'s _ V£ Dz/f/é/g CLL‘&‘(L&/ , personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the

due and voluntary execution of the foregoing Affidavit. /
\\\\\\HIII/// 7

sULL/ [ / —7) e
N -:; ( Notary Public L(/ nn ﬂ7 /114
= NOTARY = VV/St/ate of North Carolina
;-; PUBLIC = My Commission Expires: // L /0?@,2:?;
Z  [NOTARYSEAL] §
%% % "
// E N
7 COU“ N\
i
Page 11 of 18 Planned Unit Developr] Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019

- Page 14 -




PETITION FOR VVOLUNTARY. ANNEXATION

Application #: 2423005 Submittal Date: =3/-2023

COMPLETE IF SIGNED'BY INDIVIDUALS:

Matthew J. Carpenter, Authorized Agent M

Please Print / e /J&é/atur‘e’

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WAKE

Sworn and subscribed before me, [/1/1 nA \(21 //I \/M , a Ngtary Public for the above State and County,

this the \./M VA/ "l/ ; ZOL;-

[ ——
(o
QU
<
o
h

" / vNotaryPublic

NOTARY
PUBLIC

Wity
¥
4 7,
AN
W

My Commission Expires: ///// b //Zp )—7

(I

/y ke "* \\\\
IR

7

I
\

N
N

|

‘l

!
e

Page 3 of 5 Petition for Vol Last Updated: June 8, 2022
- Page 15 -




AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Application #: 2023 “00S Submittal Date: P=3=2023

Sonya Ammons and Steve Ammons

is the owner* of the property for which the attached

application is being submitted:

B O& &

The property address is:

Land Use Amendment <Z8ndl san nsmacee 4= M ¢

Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the
Agent which will apply if the application is approved.

Site Plan
Subdivision

Variance
Other: Annexation Petition

0723113507, 0723120194, 0723026951, and 0723111191 (0723111191 inherited, ownership not shown in Wake County Registry)

Agent Names:
Address:

Telephone Number:

O | am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent

Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400; Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

E-Mail Address: matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com

Signature(s) of Owner(s)*

J«fla/t- /J'WW-—\—D

Sonya Ammons So,\\!& A’IHMOVIS 19.415/;23~

Type or print name Date

Steve Ammons ]
A

Type or print name Date

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners.

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized
signatures in accordance with the Town'’s Electronic Signature Palicy and intend to be bound by the application and any
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

17 of 20

- Page 16 -
Planned Unit Develoment-Condrtionarl Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Application #: Submittal Date:
Bridget Cotrufo-.and Paul Cotrufo

is the owner* of the property for which the attached

application is being submitted:

Land Use Amendment R 2hetin /0 f‘/of"‘j‘lf/ “”7[’/ e A (

Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the
Agent which will apply if the application is approved.

Site Plan

Subdivision

O Variance

Other: Annexation Petition

The property address is: 8635 Castleberry Road; PIN 0723115892

The agents for this project are:  Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

O Iam the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent
Agent Names: Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

Address: 301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400, Raleigh, NC 27601

TEIEphOne Number: (919) 835-4032

E-Mail Address: matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com

Signature(s) of Owner(s)*

Brudagh Cebrodo

Bridget (Jdotrufo DQC.. 15 y 20398,

Type or print name Date
J
//ﬂ/‘f// /;///1’:4(//

Paul Cotrufo Dec., 3 03

Type or print name Date

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners.

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Palicy and intend to be bound by the application and any
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

- Page 17 -
17 of 20 Planned Unit DevelonTent-cConamionar Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Application #: Submittal Date:

Deborah Strickland and Ronald Strickland

is the owner* of the property for which the attached

application is being submitted:

O H

The property address is:

Land Use Amendment Land bass remacs s M

Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the
Agent which will apply if the application is approved.

Site Plan
Subdivision

Variance
Other: Annexation Petition

PINs 0723125145, 0723113507, 0723026951 and 0723111191 (0723111191 inherited, ownership not shown in Wake County Registry)

The agents for this project are:  Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

Agent Names:

O | am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent

Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

Address: 301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400; Raleigh, NC 27601
Telephone Number: (919) 835-4032
E-Mail Address: matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com

Signature(s) of Owner(s)*

Deborah Strickland /=13~ 202

Type or print name Date

Ronald Strickland p

Type or print name Date

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners.

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized
signatures in accordance with the Town'’s Electronic Signature Palicy and intend to be bound by the application and any
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

17 of 20

- Page 18 -
Planned Unit Develorm— oning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019




AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM |

Application #: Submittal Date:

Thomas Marcom and Nancy Marcom is the owner* of the property for which the attached

application is being submitted:

Land Use Amendmentgow& uae v\_e/vwwv\/ VA %o’\w% UV\IZ.Q/ M

Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the
Agent which will apply if the application is approved.

<

Site Plan

Subdivision

O Variance

Other: Annexation Petition

0723113507, 0723024085, 0723023450, 0723026951 and 0723111191 (0723111191 inherited, ownership not shown in Wake County Registry)

The property address is:

The agents for this project are;  Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

O lam the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent
Agent Names: Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

Address: 301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400, Raleigh, NC 27601

Telephone Number:  (919) 835-4032

E-Mail Address: matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com

Signature(s) of Owner(s)*

/)/42274441) ,%/0/2//)7/'-7
Thomas Marcorm \ ’L\ Bl PPN

Type or print name Date

owweny, (O\oN lovw
Nancy Marcgn \Z\‘E)J A+

Type or print name Date

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners.

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Palicy and intend to be bound by the application and any
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

- Page 19 -
17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Condrtionarl Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Application #:

Bridget Cotrufo-and Paul Cotrufo

Submittal Date:

application is being submitted:
, - . ’ i

Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this

Is the owner* of the property for which the attached

authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the
Agent which will apply if the application is approved.

{7 Site Plan
) Subdivision
] Variance
Other: Annexation Petition
The property address Is: 8635 Castleberry Road; PIN 0723115892

The agents for this project are: Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpenter

O 1am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent

Agent Names:
Address:
Telephone Number:

E-Mail Address:

Jeff Roach and Matthew Carpanter

301 Fayetteville Street, Sulte 1400; Ralsigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com

Signature(s) of Owner(s)*

Brdag Cetiole

Bridget (,ootrufo

Dec. /3/ 204,

Type or print name

Lt 2N

Paul Cotrufo /

Date

Type or print name

Attach additional sheets If there are additional owners,

DQC, /3// QO&&

Date

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An optlon to purchase does not
constitute ownership, If ownership has heen recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorlzatlon.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes {the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The partles hereby consent to use electronic or digitized
sighatures In acecordance with the Town's Electronic Signature Pallcy and intend to be bound by the application and any
related documents, if electronlic signatures are used the application shall be dellvered in an electronic record capable of
retentlon by the recipient at the time of receipt. i

170120

Planned Unit Develom{ - Page 20 - InIng Application

Last Updated: August 30, 2019




EXHIBIT B
Property Ownership

*Owner names and deed references below are accurate (and have been confirmed by a title
attorney) but may differ from what is shown on Wake County GIS. Some property owner
names have changed due to marriage.

Parcel 1

Site Address: 8633 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723125145

Deed Reference (book/page): 2284/124

Acreage: 2.38

Owner: Deborah Kay Marcom Strickland (a/k/a Deborah M. Strickland and Deborah Kay
Marcom) and spouse, Ronald M. Strickland (a/k/a Ronnie Strickland)

Owner Address: 8633 Castleberry Road, Apex, NC 27523-9695

Parcel 2

Site Address: 8635 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723115892

Deed Reference (book/page): 9017/1189

Acreage: 3.37

Owner: Bridget Cotrufo and Paul Anthony Cotrufo

Owner Address: 8635 Castleberry Road, Apex, NC 27523-9695

Parcel 3

Site Address: 8637 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723113507

Deed Reference (book/page): Wake County Estate File Number 22-E-2448 for Tempie Grace
Mills Marcom

Acreage: 2.18

Owner: Deborah Kay Marcom Strickland {a/k/a Deborah M. Strickland and Deborah Kay
Marcom); Thomas Russell Marcom (a/k/a Thomas R. Marcom); and Sonya Beth Marcom
Ammons (a/k/a Sonya Ammons and Sonya Jones)

Owner Address: 8637 Castleberry Road, Apex, NC 27523-9695

Parcel 4

Site Address: 8639 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723111191

Deed Reference (book/page): Wake County Estate File Number 22-E-2448 for Tempie Grace
Mills Marcom

Acreage: 70.54

Owner: Deborah Kay Marcom Strickland (a/k/a Deborah M. Strickland and Deborah Kay
Marcom); Thomas Russell Marcom (a/k/a Thomas R. Marcom); and Sonya Beth Marcom
Ammons (a/k/a Sonya Ammons and Sonya Jones)

PPAB 8523856v1

- Page 21 -




Owner Address: 8637 Castleberry Road, Apex, NC 27523-9695

Parcel 5

Site Address: 8649 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723120194

Deed Reference (book/page): 3292/220

Acreage: 3.0

Owner: Sonya Beth Marcom Ammons (a/k/a Sonya Beth Marcom, Sonya Ammons; Sonya Beth
Marcom Biddy and Sonya Jones), and spouse, Steve Ammons

Owner Address: 8649 Castleberry Road, Apex, NC 27523-9695

Parcel 6

Site Address: 8709 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723024085

Deed Reference (book/page): 16865/2012

Acreage: 7.20

Owner: Thomas Russell Marcom (a/k/a Thomas R. Marcom); and spouse, Nancy Marcom (a/k/a
Nancy L. Marcom)

Owner Address: 2309 7 Lakes S., West End, NC 27376-9601

Parcel 7

Site Address: 8717 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723023450

Deed Reference (book/page): 16865/2012

Acreage: 2.92

Owner: Thomas Russell Marcom (a/k/a Thomas R. Marcom); and spouse, Nancy Marcom (a/k/a
Nancy L. Marcom)

Owner Address: 2309 7 Lakes S., West End, NC 27376-9601

Parcel 8

Site Address: 8705 Castleberry Road

PIN: 0723026951

Deed Reference (book/page): Wake County Estate File Number 22-E-2448 for Tempie Grace
Mills Marcom

Acreage: 0.26

Owner: Deborah Kay Marcom Strickland (a/k/a Deborah M. Strickland and Deborah Kay
Marcom); Thomas Russell Marcom (a/k/a Thomas R. Marcom); and Sonya Beth Marcom
Ammons (a/k/a Sonya Ammons and Sonya Jones)

Owner Address: 2309 7 Lakes S., West End, NC 27376-9601

PPAB 8523856v1 2

- Page 22 -




O AFTIVA AITTS

WASDELL

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

DbB moaw PG 325

/ TOTAL AREA: 8,209 SF/0.19AC
4 5,500 SF/0.13AC
Zm>mm> m_wmm\oumzu /

/ ;:N,m_v s
Eq_mvllo( -

LEGEND

©  EXISTING BOUNDARY CORNER FOUND
@  BOUNDARY CORNER SET

CCOMPUTED POINT
m CCONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND

PROPERTY LINE SURVEYED
————— PROPERTY LINE NOT SURVEYED
—————— EASEMENTS

BM 1984 PG 679

CONTROL CORNER-
1/2" IRON PIPE
(NAD 83/NSRS 201 :MVQ\
N; 732,605.45'
2,020,274.89"
. -

TOTAL AREA: 127,109 SF/2.92AC NIF I
TOWN OF APEX CORPORATE LIMITS AREAINRW:4,255SF/0.10  HOWARDLCRIST ©
(PER WAKE COUNTY GIS) NET AREA: 122,854 SF/2.82AC  PATRICIAECRIST &
s PIN: 0723001857 2, .
EIP EXISTING IRON PIPE ( REID: 0015863 m 12" EIP
EIR EXISTING IRON REBAR U DB 2009 PG _JWN. EIPO DEBORAH M K STRICKLAND
'S . -
Db DeenEoOk LINE TABLE w THOMAS R MARCOM DB 3292 PG 220 PIN: oﬁw_mw@m < 5 ,
PG PAGE 5. NANCY MARCOM BM 1984 PG 679 < REID- 00317 0 8 ”
RW  RIGHT OF WAY LNE# | DIRECTION | LENGTH e PIN: 0723024085 Q] DB 2284 PG 124 @
- &g REID: 0288599 AREA: 120,711 SF /3.00 AC o= g9 o
T | erarare | waz Mk b R 0. R AREA: 103,531 SF / 2,38 AC A< 87 o
12 | Noe*20'52W | 166.25° e BM2001 PG 1985 EP dywep 2 we g9 =
CLASS OF SURVEYLA B e aw| ez TOTAL AREA: 317,455 SF / 7.20 AC L22M e 121 - ElP RIS === 8 89 o
POSITIONAL ACCURACY: 0,06 & NO2° 25 20°E AREA IN RW: 3,846 SF / 0.09 4 BRIDSETEOTRED &2 N =g 8]
TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: NC REAL TIME NETWORK 3 L4 | NO7°0T'03'W | 3351 71.14" NET AREA: 313,609 SF/7.20 AC - PAUL A COTRUFO A .Wv JILL L SANSOUCY W 2 a : !
DATES OF SURVEY; OCTOBER 2022 = e : 12" ElP 112" EIP PIN: 0723115892 S \ SCOTT OLSON N .
DATUM/EPOCH; NADRNSRS2011/SP( 5 L5 | N57°49'S0"E | 135.10 £ REID: 282616 - PIN: 0723216874 (@) o 8 3 m
P = 5 =
GEOID MODEL: 18 2 L6 | Ns6°35'23°E | o208 2 o irre s \:3 \ e e 8 _ o c 2
COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S);_0.996602004 W T} N76°53 27 5708 M ﬂb S80% 34 36W BM 2005 PG Wmc E m % o W 0
UNITS; US SURVEY FEET < i ~ ° AREA: 146,816 SF /3.37 AC 57.19' 63.66' (TIE) T 28 549 m
m L8 | N76°02'08"E | 147.61 w : . j— NEe] = & =]
z 132 AXLE 129 12" EIP 23649 (GVUEP_ . SSomal
L9 [Norraer1sw | srao P ¢ rscols9
NoTES 3 ) wZEP L == 01&4yz,w_m_
L10 [ N56"01'30°E | 88.04' . § Q-3¢
Lo was SURVEY COMPANY g TEMPIE M MARCOM $88° 59' 08"W ! LE§258as
UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEVEN P. CARSON, PLS. L11 | N5a-38'28°E | 9337 = A .5 300.15' (T) o m =Y B w i
F N\-EXISTING 5= o
2, ALL DISTANCE ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCE AND ALL BEARINGS * 18° 13"} 9 12*EIPQ PIN: 0723113507 I . N . > ™
'ARE BASED ON GPS OBSERVATIONS, NADEI /NSRS 2011 / SPC, UNLESS. L1z || NS0mIB*I3E | 308 128 oS STANSLAVLISCHYNA - 30 ACGESS EASEMENT < SR m -
OTHERWISE SHOWN. 13 | Na7 1357 | ssaa DB 18975 PG 1401 I wr_mzm.\ L mo L‘% / =273 8 £
3, PROPERTY LIES. _z ~ozm “X* PER NATIONAL INSURANCE PROGRAM 14 | N4z 57 56°E | 13367 AREA: 84,367 SF/1.94 AC REID: 0150652 i = m W M m
FLOOD | b8 14879 PG 2502 ! O S Bt ¥
4. SITE ZONED "R-80W" FOR WAKE COUNTY PER COUNTY GIS. L15 | N39"28°11°E | 15812 b L. BM1986PG 1052 = S & 8§ 5
1 24" 24" . > 4 0w
5. AREAS COMPUTED BY COORDINATE METHOD. L16 | N38"24'24°E | 13210 3 m = 59 M
45 107 9 8 E
6. THIS MAP HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY L17 | S07°45'19°E | 199.36 2 8 o8 W
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT = - L36 <2 w g oy
REGULATIONS. L18 | N15°24'40°E | 349.74 EXISTING = NIF ’ N 74
40" POPLAR AT CORNER TOTAL AREA TO BE ANNEXED TO THE TOWN OF APEX a STANLEY R JOHNSON JR i Z35 <2
7. ALL BOUNDARY CORNERS SET ARE 4" IRON PIPE SET (34" IPS), UNLESS 119 | s74°36'52€ | 43111 (INCLUDING RMW) & LOLA C JOHNSON ] Z 3
OTHERWISE NOTED. e e 3,916,211 SF/89.90 AC < PIN: 0723117077 ; < 2
o 4 2l e REID: 0020194
121 | NBo*37725'W | 6858 | \N87° ou_mdn le__NO0O" 33' 05"E Nk nRBerase \” REVISIONS
124,95 3 ala
THIS MAP I .NOT FOR OR SALES L22 | NB9*37'25°W | 42072 172" EIP 92.75 il ,m m__u%umhu PARCEL 0100137
UNLESS SIGNED AND SEALED BY THE LICENSED SURVEYOR. 123 | S04 53 00w | 98.52 3 / ( )
1, STEVEN P. CARSON, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN 124 | S79"43'20°E | 363.65' ANNEXATION #
ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY DB 2284 PG . —_—
124, DB 9017 PG 1189, DB 3262 PG 220, DB 3292 PG 222, DB ADWNMWHMMGMM UrmM,_Muwwm ﬂﬂ{—ﬂh—. UW,«MD L2s S09° 40'51"W | 265.35' \ w
3676 PG 382, & DB 5048 PG 325), THAT THE BOUNDARIES N( Al LEARLY INDICA® n ° 49 18]
'AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND AS SHOWN HERE ON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS 126 | NB9* 36'52W | 340.90" S|k NBO® 42 18°E 1, ALLEN COLEMAN, CMC, NCCCC, TOWN CLERK, APEX, NORTH 4
CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN WITH G.S. 47-30 AS \ 2= 38.05' (TIE) CAROLINA CERTIFY THIS A TRUE AND EXACT MAP o_n ANNEXATION
AMENDED WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND SEAL THIS, 127 | N89* 36 52W | 97.96° s 5 2 T ADOPTED THE DAY OF. . BY THE 5.
F . AD.,2022. 2 TOWN COUNCIL. AND AND SEAL F TFE TN OF APEX,
oe 128 | S11°58'56°E | 33228’ \ =z 5133w 4 ~ i) RN,\.nzozizm% o ©
1, FURTHER THAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30-F-11-C-1; CERTIFY THAT THE SURVEY IS OF AN 2l DESIGNED BY: N/A
EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND OR ONE OR MORE EXISTING EASEMENTS AND DOES 20 | seo-2825W | 40063 \ "
NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS 4 e ALLEN COLEMAN, CMC, NCCCC, DRAWN BY: ELS
'SUBSECTION, AN "EXISTING PARCEL" OR "EXISTING EASEMENT" IS AN AREA OF LAND DESCRIBED 130 | N20° 49'26"W | 234.46' . CONTROL CORNER— % L CMC, .
IN A SINGLE, LEGAL DESCRIPTION CONVEYED TO A NEW OWNER BY DEED IN ITS EXISTING & 34" EIP, 3 1/2* IRON PIPE .|| TOWN CLERK CHECKED BY: SPC.
CONFIGURATION: 131 [ N39°26'23'W | 146.49" = (NAD B3INSRS 2011/SPC)
~ ¢ N: 730,782.91" SCALE: 1" = 200"
L32 | S89°28'25'W | 335,00 \ 12" EIP E:2,021,452.32' GRAPHIC SCALE =
o 19 247} 9 B ATE: 11/09/2022
PRELIMINARY FaC 1 R o W  p wmm w
9 VI : 221
L35 | S06°13'34'E | 235.00° st ﬂz w&nﬁw\.w
STEVEN P. CARSON, PLS DATE — " 3 32! IN FEET
NC LICENSE NO. L4752 136 | S88"58'34°E | 128,00 DB 1984 PG 321 Am_,_n: umoov? SHEET 1 OF 1

EXISTING:

THIS PORTION OF RW
CALCULATED FROM
EXISTING ROAD ¢

Amz_u_m M MARCOM

DB 3676 PG 382
DB 19-E PG 0000

AREA IN R/W: 23,615 SF /0,54

TOTAL AREA: 2,998,013 SF / 68.82 AC

NET AREA: 2,974,398 SF / 68.28 AC

/,

NF
g [ s
EXISTING BOLLARD \ / quu%waNMMz R
(TYPOF6) \ \ REID: 0073546
1 DB 12187 PG 1721
8 NF BM 1993 PG 785
/ WILLIAMRJOHNSON It {
SHERRY W JOHNSON

PIN: 0723134513
REID: 0196471
DB 6445 PG 532
BM 1993 PG 785

DB 16154 PG 548
/, BU2016 PG 1572

12 E1p

QEER Lo L

AC

y NIF /
4 ", TOLL SOUTHLEAST LP COMPANY LLC,

PIN: 0723221515
REID: 0492486,
DB 17681 PG 2768

BM 2022 PG, :ﬁw

(919) 577-1080 FAX: (919) 577-1081
NCBELS FIRM# C-2378

INFO@BATEMANCIVILSURVEY.COM

2524 RELIANCE AVENUE, APEX, NC 27539

ENGINEERS e SURVEYORS e PLANNERS
PHONE

BATEMAN CIVIL SURVEY COMPANY




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager
Department(s): Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a Master Agreement for On-Call Professional Services for Reedy Branch Greenway Project
(Sweetwater), and to approve corresponding Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 19 and Capital Project
Ordinance Amendment 2023-15, and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf
of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
ltem Details

The Reedy Branch Greenway project is the completion of a segment of trail and boardwalk within the
Sweetwater development that was not constructed with the rest of the greenway due to timing for FEMA
approval of a Certified Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR). The developer has paid fees-in-lieu of dedication as
well as received credit for construction of greenway within the project as defined in the Sweetwater PUD
approval. A cost estimate for $137,821.25 was approved and these funds have been held by the Town to
use for the installation of this segment of trail. This budget amendment moves those dedicated funds into a
Capital Project Fund to enable staff to update Construction Drawings based on the FEMA approval and to

assemble the documents for the bid manual in order to advertise for construction bid.

Attachments
e CN2-A1: Master Agreement for On-Call Professional Services - Reedy Branch Greenway
e (CN2-A2: Scope of Services (Task Order) - Reedy Branch Greenway
e C(CN2-A3: Budget Amendment No. 19 - Reedy Branch Greenway
e CN2-A4: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2023-15 - Reedy Branch Greenway

- Page 24 -




Master Agreement No.:2022-116

TASK ORDER No. _002-2023

UNDER
MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Task Order (“Task Order”), made as of the day of June, 2023, by and between
the Town of Apex (hereafter, “Town”) and WithersRavenel (“Professional”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Town and Professional entered into a Master Agreement for On-Call Professional
Services dated_October 2, 2021 (“Master Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Town has determined it is in need of Services for On-Call Professional Services
for_Stormwater, Greenway Design, Surveying, Environmental, Geotech and CMT (“Project”), and
Professional desires to provide such Services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the parties agree as follows.

1. Recitals, Purpose and Effective Date. The Recitals and the Master Agreement are
incorporated into this Task Order. Each party represents and warrants that it has in its
possession and is familiar with the Master Agreement, and agrees that such does not
need to be attached to this Task Order. The purpose of this Task Order is to set forth
specific terms and conditions pursuant to which Professional shall provide Services for
the Project. The Project is_Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater) and is further
identified on Attachment 1 Scope of Work attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference. The Effective Date of this Task Order is the date on which it is executed by the
last to execute this Task Order.

2. Commencement and Termination.
A. Professional’s services on Project shall commence upon a Notice to Proceed issued by
Town or as otherwise provided in Attachment 1.
B. If the Master Agreement terminates before the Services provided hereunder are
completed, then and in that event the Master Agreement shall continue as to Project
until such time as Project is satisfactorily completed.

3. Schedule, Milestone Dates. Project schedule, including date by which Services shall be
completed, and all deliverables to be delivered is provided in Attachment1.

4. Fee for Services.
A. The fixed fee total compensation for Basic Services is provided in Attachment
1.

B. The fee for Additional Services, if any, shall be determined as provided in Attachment
1, or, if not so provided, as provided in Agreement.

- Page 25 -




5. Key Personnel and Use of Subcontractors.
A. Professional’s key personnel are provided in Attachment 1.
B. If Professional is to use subcontractors for a portion of its Services, then the following
applies to such subcontractor(s):

No changes in Professional’'s key personnel or subcontractors
designated in this Task Order as those who will provide Services shall
be permitted except with the prior written consent of Town, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

6. Insurance. Professional represents and warrants that all insurance requirements set forth
in Agreement continue to be met.

7. Amendment. This Task Order may be amended only by written amendment of the parties.

In witness thereof, the contracting parties, by their authorized agents, affix their
signatures and seals this day of June, 2023.

Professional Town of Apex
Name:
Name of Professional (type or print) Catherine Crosby, Town Manager
By:
(Signature)
Title:
Attest: Attest:
(Secretary, if a corporation) Allen Coleman,Town Clerk

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Antwan Morrison, Finance Director

- Page 26 -




See Scope of Service Task Order

- Page 27 -




Scope of Services (Task Order)

6/2/2023

The following Task Order is subject to the terms and conditions of the MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2022-116, dated October 2, 2021, by and between WithersRavanel, Inc. and the
Town of Apex.

Task 1 - Plan Design Revision

WithersRavenel will compare the as built record drawing for the greenway with the approved
CLOMR permit and boardwalk elevations. WR will make design adjustments to the approved
greenway plan and re-issue sheet 4.0 of the Reedy Branch Greenway Plan and Profile to be used for
bidding purposes.

Task 2 — Town of Apex CD Revision

WithersRavenel will prepare a CD Revision to submit to the Town for review of the changes to Sheet
4.0 of the Approved Reedy Branch Greenway Plans. This will include a coversheet and Sheet 4.0 to
be uploaded to IDT. This task includes up to 1 revision due to comments.

No additional permitting with any agency is included in this task.

Task 3 — Bid Administration

WithersRavenel will perform a formal public bid phase service, including the following:

e Conduct pre-bid meeting (if desired);
e Prepare bid documents including:
o Bid Advertisement (to be posted by Client);
o Bid Form
o Front end documents (to be provided by the Client);
o Special Provisions/Technical Specifications;
e Furnish construction documents to informal bidders via an electronic bidding service;
* Answer contractor/client questions during bidding (estimated 4 hours);
e Prepare and issue addenda (estimated 2 addenda);
e Assist on-site with bid opening (estimated two bid openings);
e Evaluate bids and prepare bid tabulation;
* Provide award recommendation to the Client.

The above services apply to two (2) bidding cycles only. The second bid cycle will include responding to
contractor questions and issuance of addenda if necessary.

Schedule

WithersRavenel will adhere to the following schedule:

Prepare design revisions by July 3, 2023 to submit to Apex for review.

- Page 28 -




e Review cycle from town — estimated 2 weeks.

e Respond to comments or issue final plan for approval — 1 week after receipt of notice or comments.
e Prepare Project Manual for bidding completed by August 1, 2023.

e Work with client to determine bid dates and bid opening.

Deliverables
The following deliverables will be provided:

e Coversheet and Sheet 4.0 Revision
e Project Manual with the above items.

Additional Services

All services provided that are not specifically stated in the “Scope of Services” and are not of sufficient size to
warrant an additional amendment will be performed on an hourly basis, plus expenses at our standard
hourly rates (attached). These services may include, but are not limited to, attendance at Town, NCDOT, or
agency meetings, permitting or further field studies. Additional services will not be performed without the
prior consent of the Town.

Fees:
Task 1-$1,100
Task 2 - $1,500

Task 3 - $8,000

Signed: WMM

7’

(WithefsRavenel) Joseph Turner, PE Director of Construction Administration

Signed:

(Town of Apex) Catherine Crosby, Town Manager

This Instrument has been pre-audited in the matter required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act.

Antwan Morrison Finance Director

- Page 29 -




Town of Apex
Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 19

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the Fiscal
Year 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

Recreation Capital Reserve Fund

Section 1. Revenues:

77-0000-39902: Appropriated Fund Balance $137,820
Total Revenues $137,820

Section 2. Expenditures:

77-0000-49667: Transfer to Recreation Project Fund $137,820
Total Expenditures $137,820

Section 7. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance
Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

- Page 30 -




Town of Apex
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2023-15

=

S A T
&GN N

N
)77 CNRO

67 - Recreation Capital Project Fund

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the Capital Project Ordinance previously
entitled "Recreation Capital Project Fund" be amended as follows:

Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

39777: Transfer from Recreation Reserve 137,820
Total Revenues $137,820

Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:

9200.006 - 44600 Reedy Branch Boardwalk 137,820
Total Expenditures $137,820

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance
Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.
Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

- Page 31 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Amanda Grogan, Director
Department(s): Budget & Performance Management

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 21 for Grant Allocations and Capital Project
Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-16 for Shop-With-A-Cop Program.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

[tem Details
Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-16 captures grant funds awared through previously
approved agreements (including supplemental and amended amounts) not previously recorded across 3
capital project funds totaling $2,580,485. Additionally, the amendment allocates $49 million in authorized
but unissued bonds allowing funding to be captured in the financial software and eliminating manual work

of tracking authorizations separately.

Budget Amendment No. 21 allocates additional revenues and expenditures in the Police Donations fund.

These funds are used for the annual Shop with a Cop program during the holidays.

Attachments

e CN3-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 21 - Shop-With-A-Cop Program
e CN3-A2: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-16 - Capital Project Grant Allocations

- Page 32 -




Town of Apex
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2023-16

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the Capital Project Ordinances below be amended as

follows:

61 - General Capital Project Fund

Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

33240: State Grants 427,000
Total Revenues $427,000
Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:
9225-0101 GoApex Bus Stop 427,000
Total Expenditures $427,000
63 - Street Improvement Capital Project Fund
Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:
99102: Bonds authorized. Not issued 49,000,000
33250: Federal Grants 263,485
33240: State Grants 200,000
Total Revenues $49,463,485
Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:
9250-1004 Lake Pine Improvements 200,000
9250-1008 James Street to Downtown Ped. 56,292
9250-1112 Laura Duncan Pedestrian Improvements 207,193
9250-1006 Peakway SW Connector 21,650,000
9250-1010 Pavement Management Backlog 5,000,000
9250-1111 Jessie Drive 8,000,000
9250-1114 Safe Routes to School 6,000,000
9250-1124 Center St RR Crossing & Sidewalk 800,000
9250-1125 Chatham St RR Crossing & Sidewalk 1,300,000
9250-1126 Apex Peakway N Widening 5,400,000
9250-1127 West Williams St. Sidewalk 850,000

Total Expenditures

67

$49,463,485

- Recreation Capital Project Fund

Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

33230: Wake County Grants 1,690,000

Total Revenues $1,690,000
Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:

92000-003 Middle Creek Greenway 1,540,000

92000-008 Apex West Greenway 150,000

Total Expenditures $1,690,000

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance Officer

and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

Attest:

- Page 33 -

rrmerr———odleman, CMC, NCCCC Town Clerk



Town of Apex

\ A/ AR AN
NN
N\

N —

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 21

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

14 - Police-Donations

Section 1. Revenues:

14-0000-36100: Interest Earned 1,175
14-0000-37704: Police Contributions 1,665
14-0000-39902: Appropriated Fund Balance 1,020
Total Revenues $3,860

Section 2. Expenditures:

14-5100-43300: Departmental Supplies $3,860
Total Expenditures $3,860

Section 7. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance
Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

- Page 34 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Deputy Chief Mitch McKinney
Department(s): Police

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a Master Services Agreement (MSA), effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2025, with
Flock Safety Inc. for technology and software support for the following in the Apex Police Department (APD):
FlockOS, Flock Safety Falcon, Flock Safety Falcon Flex, Flock Safety Advanced Search and authorize the Town

Manager to execute the agreement(s) on behalf of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
[tem Details
Apex Police Department is requesting to significantly improve our operational investigative capabilities
by purchasing and implementing License Plate Readers (LPR's) License plate reader technology can
significantly enhance our departments ability to gather and analyze data. This will greatly improve our ability
to analyze data sets that include traffic volume, traffic patterns, and vehicle speeds. Additionally, APD will be

much more efficient in closing investigations and identifying and impacting criminal activity.

Attachments
e CN4-A1: Flock Safety and NC - Apex PD - Law Enforcement Agreement
e CN4-A2: Contract Routing Control Sheet - Flock Safety Inc. - License Plate Reader Technology

- Page 35 -




Flock Safety + NC - Apex PD

Flock Group Inc.
1170 Howell Mill Rd, Suite 210
Atlanta, GA 30318

MAIN CONTACT:

Taylor Ellison
taylor.ellison@flocksafety.com
7049426362

fYock safet



Company Overview

At Flock Safety, technology unites law enforcement and the communities they serve to eliminate crime and shape a safer future,
together. We created the first public safety operating system to enable neighborhoods, schools, businesses, and law
enforcement to work together to collect visual, audio, and situational evidence across an entire city to solve and prevent crime.

Our connected platform, comprised of License Plate Recognition (LPR), live video, audio detection, and a suite of integrations
(AVL, CAD & more), alerts law enforcement when an incident occurs and turns unbiased data into objective answers that
increase case clearance, maximize resources, and reduce crime -- all without compromising transparency or human privacy.

Join thousands of agencies reducing crime with Flock Safety’s public safety operating system

2000+ 120 1B+ <60%*
communities with private- incident alerts / minute 1B+ vehicles detected / <60% local crime reduction
public partnerships month in Flock cities

*According to a 2019 study conducted by Cobb County Police Department

Introduction

Layer Intelligence to Solve More Crime

The pathway to a safer future looks different for every community. As such, this proposal presents a combination of products
that specifically addresses your public safety needs, geographical layout, sworn officer count, and budget. These components
make up your custom public safety operating system, a connected device network and software platform designed to transform
real-time data into a panoramic view of your jurisdiction and help you zero in on the leads that solve more cases, prevent future
crimes, and foster trust in the communities you serve.

Software Platform

Flock Safety's out-of-box software platform collects and makes sense of visual, audio, and situational evidence across your entire
network of devices.

- Page 37 -




Out-of-Box Software Features

Simplified Search

Get a complete view of all activity tied to one vehicle in your
network of privately and publicly owned cameras.

The user-friendly search experience allows officers to filter
hours of footage in seconds based on time, location, and
detailed vehicle criteria using patented Vehicle Fingerprint ™
technology. Search filters include:

Vehicle make
Body type
Color
License plates
o  Partial tags
O  Missing tags
O  Temporary tags
O  State recognition
Decals
Bumper stickers
Back racks
Top racks

National and Local Sharing

Access 1B+ additional plate reads each month without
purchasing more cameras. Solve cross-jurisdiction crimes by
opting into Flock Safety's sharing networks, including one-to-
one, national, and statewide search networks. Users can also
receive alerts from several external LPR databases:

California SVS

FDLE

FL Expired Licenses
FL Expired Tags

FL Sanctioned Drivers
FL Sex Offenders
Georgia DOR

IL SOS

llinois Leads

NCIC

NCMEC Amber Alert
REJIS

ccic

FBI

Real-time Alerts

Receive SMS, email, and in-app notifications for custom Hot
Lists, NCIC wanted lists, AMBER alerts, Silver alerts, Vehicle
Fingerprint matches, and more.

Interactive ESRI Map

View your AVL, CAD, traffic, and LPR alerts alongside live on-
scene video from a single interactive map for a birdseye view
of activity in your jurisdiction.

Vehicle Location Analysis

Visualize sequential Hot List alerts and the direction of travel
to guide officers to find suspect vehicles faster.

- Page 38 -




Transparency Portal

Out-of-Box Software Features (Continued)

Establish community trust with a public-facing dashboard
that shares policies, usage, and public safety outcomes
related to your policing technology.

Insights Dashboard

Access at-a-glance reporting to easily prove ROI, discover
crime and traffic patterns and prioritize changes to your
public safety strategy by using data to determine the most
significant impact.

Native MDT Application

Download FlockOS to your MDTs to ensure officers never
miss a Hot List alert while out on patrol.

Hot List Attachments

Attach relevant information to Custom Hot List alerts. Give
simple, digestible context to Dispatchers and Patrol Officers
responding to Hot List alerts so they can act confidently and
drive better outcomes. When you create a custom Hot List
Alert, add case notes, photos, reports, and other relevant
case information.

Single Sign On (SSO)

Increase your login speed and information security with Okta
or Azure Single Sign On (SSO). Quickly access critical
information you need to do your job by eliminating the need
for password resets and steps in the log-in process.

- Page 39 -




License Plate Recognition

The Flock Safety Falcon® LPR camera uses Vehicle Fingerprint™ technology to transform hours of footage into actionable
evidence, even when a license plate isn't visible, and sends Hot List alerts to law enforcement users when a suspect vehicle is
detected. The Falcon has fixed and location-flexible deployment options with 30% more accurate reads than leading LPR.*

*Results from the 2019 side-by-side comparison test conducted by LA County Sheriff's Department

Flock Safety Falcon®LPR Camera

Flock Safety Falcon® Flex

Flock Safety Falcon® LR

Fixed, infrastructure-free LPR camera
designed for permanent placement.

Vv 1 Standard LPR Camera

V Unlimited LTE data service + Flock OS

platform licenses

Vv 1 DOT breakaway pole

V Dual solar panels

V Permitting, installation, and ongoing

maintenance

Location-flexible LPR camera designed
for fast, easy self-installation, which is
ideal for your ever-changing
investigative needs.

V 1LPR Camera

Vv Unlimited LTE data service + software

licenses

V 1 portable mount with varying-sized

band clamps

V 1 Charger for internal battery

V 1 hardshell carrying case

Long-range, high-speed LPR camera
that captures license plates and Vehicle
Fingerprint data for increasing
investigative leads on high-volume
roadways like highways and interstates.

V 1 Long-Rage LPR Camera

Vv Computing device in protective poly

case

VvV AC Power

V Permitting, installation, and ongoing

maintenance

- Page 40 -




Your Flock Safety Team

Flock Safety is more than a technology vendor; we are a partner in your mission to build a safer future. We work with
thousands of law enforcement agencies across the US to build stronger, safer communities that celebrate the hard work of
those who serve and protect. We don’t disappear after contracts are signed; we pride ourselves on becoming an extension of
your hard-working team as part of our subscription service.

Implementation Meet with a Solutions Consultant (former LEO) to build a
deployment plan based on your needs. Our Permitting Team
and Installation Technicians will work to get your device
network approved, installed, and activated.

User Training + Support Your designated Customer Success Manager will help train
your power users and ensure you maximize the platform,
while our customer support team will assist with needs as
they arise.

Maintenance We proactively monitor the health of your device network. If
we detect that a device is offline, a full-time technician will
service your device for no extra charge.

Note: Ongoing maintenance does not apply to Falcon Flex
devices.

Public Relations Government Affairs

Get support educating your stakeholders, including city
councils and other governing bodies.

Media Relations

Share crimes solved in the local media with the help of our
Public Relations team.

- Page 41 -




fifock safety

EXHIBIT A
ORDER FORM
Customer:  NC - Apex PD Initial Term: 24 Months
Legal Entity Name:  NC - Apex PD Renewal Term: 24 Months
Address: 205 Saunders St Apex, North Carolina 27502 Payment Terms:  Net 30

Billing Frequency: ~ Annual Plan - First Year Invoiced at Signing.
Retention Period: 30 Days

Hardware and Software Products
Annual recurring amounts over subscription term

Item Cost Quantity Total

Flock Safety Flock OS

FlockOS ™ Included 1 Included
Flock Safety LPR Products

Flock Safety Falcon ® Included 5 Included

Flock Safety Falcon ® Flex Included 5 Included
Flock Safety FlockOS Add Ons

Flock Safety Advanced Search $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00

Professional Services and One Time Purchases

Item Cost Quantity Total

Flock Safety Professional Services

Professional Services - Standard Implementation Fee $350.00 5 $1,750.00
Subtotal Year 1: $36,750.00

Annual Recurring Subtotal: $35,000.00

Discounts: $1,500.00

Estimated Tax: $5,201.88

Contract Total: $71,750.00

Taxes shown above are provided as an estimate. Actual taxes are the responsibility of the Customer. This Agreement may be renewed for successive
renewal terms of the greater of one year or the length set forth on the Order Form (each, a “Renewal Term”) .

- Page 42 -




Billing Schedule

Billing Schedule Amount (USD)

Year 1

At Contract Signing $36,750.00
Annual Recurring after Year 1 $35,000.00
Contract Total $71,750.00

*Tax not included
Discounts

Flock Safety Platform $0.00
Flock Safety Add-ons $0.00
Flock Safety Professional Services $1,500.00

- Page 43 -




Product and Services Description

Flock Safety Platform Items Product Description Terms
An infrastructure-free license plate reader camera that utilizes Vehicle The Term shall commence upon first installation and validation of Flock
Flock Safety Falcon ® Fingerprint® technology to capture vehicular attributes. Hardware.

An infrastructure-free, location-flexible license plate reader camera that The Term shall commence upon execution of this Statement of Work.
Flock Safety Falcon® Flex enables the Customer to self-install.

One-Time Fees Service Description
Installation on existing One-time Professional Services engagement. Includes site & safety assessment, camera setup & testing, and shipping & handling in accordance with
infrastructure the Flock Safety Advanced Implementation Service Brief.
Professional Services - Standard One-time Professional Services engagement. Includes site and safety assessment, camera setup and testing, and shipping and handling in accordance
Implementation Fee with the Flock Safety Standard Implementation Service Brief.
Professional Services - One-time Professional Services engagement. Includes site & safety assessment, camera setup & testing, and shipping & handling in accordance with
Advanced Implementation Fee the Flock Safety Advanced Implementation Service Brief.

- Page 44 -




By executing this Order Form, Customer represents and warrants that it has read and agrees to all of the

terms and conditions contained in the Master Services Agreement attached. The Parties have executed this

Agreement as of the dates set forth below.

FLOCK GROUP, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Customer: Town of Apex

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

PO Number:

This instrument has been preaudited in the
manner required by the Local Government Fiscal
Control Act.

Antwan Morrison, Finance Director

- Page 45 -




Master Services Agreement

This Master Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Flock
Group, Inc. with a place of business at 1170 Howell Mill Road NW Suite 210, Atlanta, GA 30318
(“Flock”) and the entity identified in the signature block (“Customer”) (each a “Party,” and
together, the “Parties”) on this the __ day of 2023. This Agreement is effective on
the date of mutual execution (“Effective Date”). Parties will sign an Order Form (“Order Form”)
which will describe the Flock Services to be performed and the period for performance, attached

hereto as Exhibit A. The Parties agree as follows:

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Flock offers a software and hardware situational awareness solution through
Flock’s technology platform that upon detection is capable of capturing audio, video, image, and

recording data and provide notifications to Customer (“Notifications”);

WHEREAS, Customer desires access to the Flock Services (defined below) on existing
devices, provided by Customer, or Flock provided Flock Hardware (as defined below) in order to

create, view, search and archive Footage and receive Notifications, via the Flock Services;

WHEREAS, Customer shall have access to the Footage in Flock Services. Pursuant to
Flock’s standard Retention Period (defined below) Flock deletes all Footage on a rolling thirty
(30) day basis, except as otherwise stated on the Order Form. Customer shall be responsible for
extracting, downloading and archiving Footage from the Flock Services on its own storage

devices; and

WHEREAS, Flock desires to provide Customer the Flock Services and any access
thereto, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, solely for the awareness,
prevention, and prosecution of crime, bona fide investigations and evidence gathering for law

enforcement purposes, (“Permitted Purpose”™).

- Page 46 -




AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, Flock and Customer agree that this Agreement, and any Order
Form, purchase orders, statements of work, product addenda, or the like, attached hereto as
exhibits and incorporated by reference, constitute the complete and exclusive statement of the
Agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and replace and
supersede all prior agreements, term sheets, purchase orders, correspondence, oral or written

communications and negotiations by and between the Parties.

1. DEFINITIONS

Certain capitalized terms, not otherwise defined herein, have the meanings set forth or cross-
referenced in this Section 1.

1.1 “Anonymized Data” means Customer Data permanently stripped of identifying details and
any potential personally identifiable information, by commercially available standards which
irreversibly alters data in such a way that a data subject (i.e., individual person or entity) can no
longer be identified directly or indirectly.

1.2 “Authorized End User(s)” means any individual employees, agents, or contractors of
Customer accessing or using the Services, under the rights granted to Customer pursuant to this
Agreement.

1.3 “Customer Data” means the data, media and content provided by Customer through the
Services. For the avoidance of doubt, the Customer Data will include the Footage.

1.4. “Customer Hardware” means the third-party camera owned or provided by Customer and
any other physical elements that interact with the Embedded Software and the Web Interface to
provide the Services.

1.5 “Embedded Software” means the Flock proprietary software and/or firmware integrated with
or installed on the Flock Hardware or Customer Hardware.

1.6 “Flock Hardware” means the Flock device(s), which may include the pole, clamps, solar
panel, installation components, and any other physical elements that interact with the Embedded
Software and the Web Interface, to provide the Flock Services as specifically set forth in the

applicable product addenda.

- Page 47 -




1.7 “Flock IP” means the Services, the Embedded Software, and any intellectual property or
proprietary information therein or otherwise provided to Customer and/or its Authorized End
Users. Flock IP does not include Footage (as defined below).

1.8 “Flock Network End User(s)” means any user of the Flock Services that Customer authorizes
access to or receives data from, pursuant to the licenses granted herein.

1.9 “Flock Services” means the provision of Flock’s software and hardware situational awareness
solution, via the Web Interface, for automatic license plate detection, alerts, audio detection,
searching image records, video and sharing Footage.

1.10 “Footage” means still images, video, audio and other data captured by the Flock Hardware
or Customer Hardware in the course of and provided via the Flock Services.

1.11 “Hotlist(s)” means a digital file containing alphanumeric license plate related information
pertaining to vehicles of interest, which may include stolen vehicles, stolen vehicle license plates,
vehicles owned or associated with wanted or missing person(s), vehicles suspected of being
involved with criminal or terrorist activities, and other legitimate law enforcement purposes.
Hotlist also includes, but is not limited to, national data (i.e., NCIC) for similar categories, license
plates associated with AMBER Alerts or Missing Persons/Vulnerable Adult Alerts, and includes
manually entered license plate information associated with crimes that have occurred in any local
jurisdiction.

1.12 “Installation Services” means the services provided by Flock for installation of Flock
Services.

1.13 “Retention Period” means the time period that the Customer Data is stored within the cloud
storage, as specified in the product addenda.

1.14 “Vehicle Fingerprinf™ means the unique vehicular attributes captured through Services
such as: type, make, color, state registration, missing/covered plates, bumper stickers, decals, roof
racks, and bike racks.

1.15 “Web Interface” means the website(s) or application(s) through which Customer and its

Authorized End Users can access the Services.

- Page 48 -




2. SERVICES AND SUPPORT

2.1 Provision of Access. Flock hereby grants to Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable right
to access the features and functions of the Flock Services via the Web Interface during the Term,
solely for the Authorized End Users. The Footage will be available for Authorized End Users to
access and download via the Web Interface for the data retention time defined on the Order Form
(“Retention Period”). Authorized End Users will be required to sign up for an account and select
a password and username (“User 1D”). Customer shall be responsible for all acts and omissions of
Authorized End Users, and any act or omission by an Authorized End User which, including any
acts or omissions of authorized End user which would constitute a breach of this agreement if
undertaken by customer. Customer shall undertake reasonable efforts to make all Authorized End
Users aware of all applicable provisions of this Agreement and shall cause Authorized End Users
to comply with such provisions. Flock may use the services of one or more third parties to deliver
any part of the Flock Services, (such as using a third party to host the Web Interface for cloud
storage or a cell phone provider for wireless cellular coverage).

2.2 Embedded Software License. Flock grants Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-
transferable, non-sublicensable (except to the Authorized End Users), revocable right to use the
Embedded Software as it pertains to Flock Services, solely as necessary for Customer to use the

Flock Services.

2.3 Support Services. Flock shall monitor the Flock Services, and any applicable device health,
in order to improve performance and functionality. Flock will use commercially reasonable
efforts to respond to requests for support within seventy-two (72) hours. Flock will provide
Customer with reasonable technical and on-site support and maintenance services in-person, via

phone or by email at support@flocksafety.com (such services collectively referred to as “Support

Services”).

2.4 Upgrades to Platform. Flock may make any upgrades to system or platform that it deems
necessary or useful to (1) maintain or enhance the quality or delivery of Flock’s products or
services to its agencies; the competitive strength of, or market for, Flock’s products or services;
such platform or system’s cost efficiency or performance, or (ii) to comply with applicable law.
Parties understand that such upgrades are necessary from time to time and will not diminish the

quality of the services or materially change any terms or conditions within this Agreement.

- Page 49 -



mailto:hello@flocksafety.com

2.5 Service Interruption. Services may be interrupted in the event that: (a) Flock’s provision of
the Services to Customer or any Authorized End User is prohibited by applicable law; (b) any
third-party services required for Services are interrupted; (c) if Flock reasonably believe Services
are being used for malicious, unlawful, or otherwise unauthorized use; (d) there is a threat or
attack on any of the Flock IP by a third party; or (e) scheduled or emergency maintenance
(“Service Interruption”). Flock will make commercially reasonable efforts to provide written
notice of any Service Interruption to Customer, to provide updates, and to resume providing
access to Flock Services as soon as reasonably possible after the event giving rise to the Service
Interruption is cured. Flock will have no liability for any damage, liabilities, losses (including any
loss of data or profits), or any other consequences that Customer or any Authorized End User may
incur as a result of a Service Interruption. To the extent that the Service Interruption is not caused
by Customer’s direct actions or by the actions of parties associated with the Customer, the time
will be tolled by the duration of the Service Interruption (for any continuous suspension lasting at
least one full day). For example, in the event of a Service Interruption lasting five (5) continuous
days, Customer will receive a credit for five (5) free days at the end of the Term.

2.6 Service Suspension. Flock may temporarily suspend Customer’s and any Authorized End
User’s access to any portion or all of the Flock IP or Flock Service if (a) there is a threat or attack
on any of the Flock IP by Customer; (b) Customer’s or any Authorized End User’s use of the
Flock IP disrupts or poses a security risk to the Flock IP or any other customer or vendor of
Flock; (c) Customer or any Authorized End User is/are using the Flock IP for fraudulent or illegal
activities; (d) Customer has violated any term of this provision, including, but not limited to,
utilizing Flock Services for anything other than the Permitted Purpose; or (e) any unauthorized
access to Flock Services through Customer’s account (“Service Suspension”). Customer shall not
be entitled to any remedy for the Service Suspension period, including any reimbursement,
tolling, or credit. If the Service Suspension was not caused by Customer, the Term will be tolled
by the duration of the Service Suspension.

2.7 Hazardous Conditions. Flock Services do not contemplate hazardous materials, or other
hazardous conditions, including, without limit, asbestos, lead, toxic or flammable substances. In
the event any such hazardous materials are discovered in the designated locations in which Flock
is to perform services under this Agreement, Flock shall have the right to cease work
immediately.

- Page 50 -




3. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS

3.1 Customer Obligations. Flock will assist Customer Authorized End Users in the creation of a
User ID. Authorized End Users agree to provide Flock with accurate, complete, and updated
registration information. Authorized End Users may not select as their User 1D, a name that they
do not have the right to use, or any other name with the intent of impersonation. Customer and
Authorized End Users may not transfer their account to anyone else without prior written
permission of Flock. Authorized End Users shall not share their account username or password
information and must protect the security of the username and password. Unless otherwise stated
and defined in this Agreement, Customer shall not designate Authorized End Users for persons
who are not officers, employees, or agents of Customer. Authorized End Users shall only use
Customer-issued email addresses for the creation of their User ID. Customer is responsible for
any Authorized End User activity associated with its account. Customer shall ensure that
Customer provides Flock with up to date contact information at all times during the Term of this
agreement. Customer shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining any equipment and
ancillary services needed to connect to, access or otherwise use the Flock Services. Customer
shall (at its own expense) provide Flock with reasonable access and use of Customer facilities and
Customer personnel in order to enable Flock to perform Services (such obligations of Customer
are collectively defined as “Customer Obligations”).
3.2 Customer Representations and Warranties. Customer represents, covenants, and warrants
that Customer shall use Flock Services only in compliance with this Agreement and all applicable
laws and regulations, including but not limited to any laws relating to the recording or sharing of
data, video, photo, or audio content.

4. DATA USE AND LICENSING
4.1 Customer Data. As between Flock and Customer, all right, title and interest in the Customer
Data, belong to and are retained solely by Customer. Customer hereby grants to Flock a limited,
non-exclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable, worldwide license to use the Customer Data and perform
all acts as may be necessary for Flock to provide the Flock Services to Customer. Flock does not

own and shall not sell Customer Data.

4.2 Customer Generated Data. Flock may provide Customer with the opportunity to post,

upload, display, publish, distribute, transmit, broadcast, or otherwise make available, messages,

- Page 51 -




text, illustrations, files, images, graphics, photos, comments, sounds, music, videos, information,
content, ratings, reviews, data, questions, suggestions, or other information or materials produced
by Customer (“Customer Generated Data”). Customer shall retain whatever legally cognizable
right, title, and interest in Customer Generated Data. Customer understands and acknowledges
that Flock has no obligation to monitor or enforce Customer’s intellectual property rights of
Customer Generated Data. Customer grants Flock a non-exclusive, irrevocable, worldwide,
royalty-free, license to use the Customer Generated Data for the purpose of providing Flock

Services. Flock does not own and shall not sell Customer Generated Data.

4.3 Anonymized Data. Flock shall have the right to collect, analyze, and anonymize Customer
Data and Customer Generated Data to the extent such anonymization renders the data non-
identifiable to create Anonymized Data to use and perform the Services and related systems and
technologies, including the training of machine learning algorithms. Customer hereby grants
Flock a non-exclusive, worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free right to use and distribute such
Anonymized Data to improve and enhance the Services and for other development, diagnostic and
corrective purposes, and other Flock offerings. Parties understand that the aforementioned license

is required for continuity of Services. Flock does not own and shall not sell Anonymized Data.

5. CONFIDENTIALITY; DISCLOSURES

5.1 Confidentiality. To the extent required by any applicable public records requests, each Party
(the “Receiving Party”) understands that the other Party (the “Disclosing Party”) has disclosed or
may disclose business, technical or financial information relating to the Disclosing Party’s
business (hereinafter referred to as “Proprietary Information” of the Disclosing Party).
Proprietary Information of Flock includes non-public information regarding features, functionality
and performance of the Services. Proprietary Information of Customer includes non-public data
provided by Customer to Flock or collected by Flock via Flock Services, which includes but is not
limited to geolocation information and environmental data collected by sensors. The Receiving
Party agrees: (i) to take the same security precautions to protect against disclosure or unauthorized
use of such Proprietary Information that the Party takes with its own proprietary information, but
in no event less than commercially reasonable precautions, and (ii) not to use (except in

performance of the Services or as otherwise permitted herein) or divulge to any third person any

- Page 52 -




such Proprietary Information. The Disclosing Party agrees that the foregoing shall not apply with
respect to any information that the Receiving Party can document (a) is or becomes generally
available to the public; or (b) was in its possession or known by it prior to receipt from the
Disclosing Party; or (c) was rightfully disclosed to it without restriction by a third party; or (d)
was independently developed without use of any Proprietary Information of the Disclosing Party.
Nothing in this Agreement will prevent the Receiving Party from disclosing the Proprietary
Information pursuant to any judicial or governmental order, provided that the Receiving Party
gives the Disclosing Party reasonable prior notice of such disclosure to contest such order. At the
termination of this Agreement, all Proprietary Information will be returned to the Disclosing
Party, destroyed or erased (if recorded on an erasable storage medium), together with any copies
thereof, when no longer needed for the purposes above, or upon request from the Disclosing
Party, and in any case upon termination of the Agreement. Notwithstanding any termination, all
confidentiality obligations of Proprietary Information that is trade secret shall continue in
perpetuity or until such information is no longer trade secret.

5.2 Usage Restrictions on Flock IP. Flock and its licensors retain all right, title and interest in
and to the Flock IP and its components, and Customer acknowledges that it neither owns nor
acquires any additional rights in and to the foregoing not expressly granted by this Agreement.
Customer further acknowledges that Flock retains the right to use the foregoing for any purpose in
Flock’s sole discretion. Customer and Authorized End Users shall not: (i) copy or duplicate any of
the Flock IP; (ii) decompile, disassemble, reverse engineer, or otherwise attempt to obtain or
perceive the source code from which any software component of any of the Flock IP is compiled
or interpreted, or apply any other process or procedure to derive the source code of any software
included in the Flock IP; (iii) attempt to modify, alter, tamper with or repair any of the Flock IP,
or attempt to create any derivative product from any of the foregoing; (iv) interfere or attempt to
interfere in any manner with the functionality or proper working of any of the Flock IP; (v)
remove, obscure, or alter any notice of any intellectual property or proprietary right appearing on
or contained within the Flock Services or Flock IP; (vi) use the Flock Services for anything other
than the Permitted Purpose; or (vii) assign, sublicense, sell, resell, lease, rent, or otherwise
transfer, convey, pledge as security, or otherwise encumber, Customer’s rights. There are no

implied rights.

- Page 53 -




5.3 Disclosure of Footage. Subject to and during the Retention Period, Flock may access, use,
preserve and/or disclose the Footage to law enforcement authorities, government officials, and/or
third parties, if legally required to do so or if Flock has a good faith belief that such access, use,
preservation or disclosure is reasonably necessary to comply with a legal process, enforce this
Agreement, or detect, prevent or otherwise address security, privacy, fraud or technical issues, or

emergency situations.
6. PAYMENT OF FEES

6.1 Billing and Payment of Fees. Customer shall pay the fees set forth in the applicable Order
Form based on the billing structure and payment terms as indicated in the Order Form. If
Customer believes that Flock has billed Customer incorrectly, Customer must contact Flock no
later than thirty (30) days after the closing date on the first invoice in which the error or problem
appeared to receive an adjustment or credit. Customer acknowledges and agrees that a failure to
contact Flock within this period will serve as a waiver of any claim. If any undisputed fee is more
than thirty (30) days overdue, Flock may, without limiting its other rights and remedies, suspend
delivery of its service until such undisputed invoice is paid in full. Flock shall provide at least
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Customer of the payment delinquency before exercising
any suspension right.

6.2 Notice of Changes to Fees. Flock reserves the right to change the fees for subsequent
Renewal Terms by providing sixty (60) days’ notice (which may be sent by email) prior to the
end of the Initial Term or Renewal Term (as applicable).

6.3 Late Fees. If payment is not issued to Flock by the due date of the invoice, an interest penalty
of 1.0% of any unpaid amount may be added for each month or fraction thereafter, until final
payment is made.

6.4 Taxes. Customer is responsible for all taxes, levies, or duties, excluding only taxes based on
Flock’s net income, imposed by taxing authorities associated with the order. If Flock has the
legal obligation to pay or collect taxes, including amount subsequently assessed by a taxing
authority, for which Customer is responsible, the appropriate amount shall be invoice to and paid
by Customer unless Customer provides Flock a legally sufficient tax exemption certificate and

Flock shall not charge customer any taxes from which it is exempt. If any deduction or

- Page 54 -




withholding is required by law, Customer shall notify Flock and shall pay Flock any additional
amounts necessary to ensure that the net amount that Flock receives, after any deduction and
withholding, equals the amount Flock would have received if no deduction or withholding had

been required.
7. TERM AND TERMINATION

7.1 Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for the period of time set forth on the Order
Form (the “Term”). Following the Term, unless otherwise indicated on the Order Form, this
Agreement may be renewed for successive renewal terms of the greater of one year or the length
set forth on the Order Form (each, a “Renewal Term”).

7.2 Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Flock will remove any
applicable Flock Hardware at a commercially reasonable time period. In the event of any material
breach of this Agreement, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement prior to the end
of the Term by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the breaching Party; provided,
however, that this Agreement will not terminate if the breaching Party has cured the breach prior
to the expiration of such thirty (30) day period (“Cure Period”). Either Party may terminate this
Agreement (i) upon the institution by or against the other Party of insolvency, receivership or
bankruptcy proceedings, (ii) upon the other Party's making an assignment for the benefit of
creditors, or (iii) upon the other Party's dissolution or ceasing to do business. In the event of a
material breach by Flock, and Flock is unable to cure within the Cure Period, Flock will refund
Customer a pro-rata portion of the pre-paid fees for Services not received due to such termination.
7.3 Survival. The following Sections will survive termination: 1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8.3, 8.4, 9, 10.1 and
10.6.

- Page 55 -




8. REMEDY FOR DEFECT; WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER

8.1 Manufacturer Defect. Upon a malfunction or failure of Flock Hardware or Embedded
Software (a “Defect”), Customer must notify Flock’s technical support team. In the event of a
Defect, Flock shall make a commercially reasonable attempt to repair or replace the defective
Flock Hardware at no additional cost to the Customer. Flock reserves the right, in its sole
discretion, to repair or replace such Defect, provided that Flock shall conduct inspection or testing
within a commercially reasonable time, but no longer than seven (7) business days after Customer
gives notice to Flock.

8.2 Replacements. In the event that Flock Hardware is lost, stolen, or damaged, Customer may
request a replacement of Flock Hardware at a fee according to the reinstall fee schedule

(https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule). In the event that Customer chooses not to

replace lost, damaged, or stolen Flock Hardware, Customer understands and agrees that (1) Flock
Services will be materially affected, and (2) that Flock shall have no liability to Customer
regarding such affected Flock Services, nor shall Customer receive a refund for the lost, damaged,
or stolen Flock Hardware.

8.3 Warranty. Flock shall use reasonable efforts consistent with prevailing industry standards to
maintain the Services in a manner which minimizes errors and interruptions in the Services and
shall perform the Installation Services in a professional and workmanlike manner. Services may
be temporarily unavailable for scheduled maintenance or for unscheduled emergency
maintenance, either by Flock or by third-party providers, or because of other causes beyond
Flock’s reasonable control, but Flock shall use reasonable efforts to provide advance notice in
writing or by e-mail of any scheduled service disruption.

8.4 Disclaimer. THE REMEDY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 8.1 ABOVE IS CUSTOMER’S
SOLE REMEDY, AND FLOCK’S SOLE LIABILITY, WITH RESPECT TO DEFECTS.
FLOCK DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR
ERROR FREE; NOR DOES IT MAKE ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS THAT
MAY BE OBTAINED FROM USE OF THE SERVICES. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND FLOCK
DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A

- Page 56 -



https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule

PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. THIS DISCLAIMER ONLY
APPLIES TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY THE GOVERNING LAW OF THE STATE
MENTIONED IN SECTION 11.6.

8.5 Insurance. Flock will maintain commercial general liability policies as stated in Exhibit B.
8.6 Force Majeure. Parties are not responsible or liable for any delays or failures in performance
from any cause beyond their control, including, but not limited to natural hazards outside of
human control for which no person or persons can be held responsible, changes to law or
regulations, embargoes, war, terrorist acts, pandemics (including the spread of variants), issues of
national security, acts or omissions of third-party technology providers, riots, fires, earthquakes,
floods, power blackouts, strikes, supply chain shortages of equipment or supplies, financial
institution crisis, weather conditions or acts of hackers, internet service providers or any other

third party acts or omissions.
9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNITY

9.1 Limitation of Liability. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY,
FLOCK, ITS OFFICERS, AFFILIATES, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS AND
EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WITH RESPECT TO ANY
SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATED
THERETO UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, PRODUCT
LIABILITY, OR OTHER THEORY: (A) FOR LOSS OF REVENUE, BUSINESS OR
BUSINESS INTERRUPTION; (B) INCOMPLETE, CORRUPT, OR INACCURATE DATA; (C)
COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES OR TECHNOLOGY; (D)
FOR ANY INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES; (E) FOR ANY MATTER BEYOND FLOCK’S ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OR
REASONABLE CONTROL INCLUDING REPEAT CRIMINAL ACTIVITY OR INABILITY
TO CAPTURE FOOTAGE; OR (F) FOR ANY AMOUNTS THAT, TOGETHER WITH
AMOUNTS ASSOCIATED WITH ALL OTHER CLAIMS, EXCEED THE FEES PAID
AND/OR PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER TO FLOCK FOR THE SERVICES UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT IN THE TWELVE (12) MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ACT OR OMISSION THAT
GAVE RISE TO THE LIABILITY, IN EACH CASE, WHETHER OR NOT FLOCK HAS

- Page 57 -




BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THIS LIMITATION OF
LIABILITY OF SECTION ONLY APPLIES TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY THE
GOVERNING LAW OF THE STATE REFERENCED IN SECTION 11.6.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, THE FOREGOING
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY (I) IN THE EVENT OF GROSS
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, OR (II) INDEMNIFICATION
OBLIGATIONS.

9.2 Responsibility. Each Party to this Agreement shall assume the responsibility and liability for
the acts and omissions of its own employees, officers, or agents, in connection with the
performance of their official duties under this Agreement. Each Party to this Agreement shall be
liable for the torts of its own officers, agents, or employees.

9.3 Flock Indemnity. Flock shall indemnify and hold harmless Customer, its agents and
employees, from liability of any kind, including claims, costs (including defense) and expenses,
on account of: (i) any copyrighted material, patented or unpatented invention, articles, device or
appliance manufactured or used in the performance of this Agreement; or (ii) any damage or
injury to property or person directly caused by Flock’s installation of Flock Hardware, except for
where such damage or injury was caused solely by the negligence of the Customer or its agents,
officers or employees. Flock’s performance of this indemnity obligation shall not exceed the fees
paid and/or payable for the services rendered under this Agreement in the preceding twelve (12)

months.

10. INSTALLATION SERVICES AND OBLIGATIONS

10.1 Ownership of Hardware. Flock Hardware is owned and shall remain the exclusive
property of Flock. Title to any Flock Hardware shall not pass to Customer upon execution of this
Agreement, except as otherwise specifically set forth in this Agreement. Except as otherwise
expressly stated in this Agreement, Customer is not permitted to remove, reposition, re-install,
tamper with, alter, adjust or otherwise take possession or control of Flock Hardware. Customer
agrees and understands that in the event Customer is found to engage in any of the foregoing
restricted actions, all warranties herein shall be null and void, and this Agreement shall be subject
to immediate termination for material breach by Customer. Customer shall not perform any acts

which would interfere with the retention of title of the Flock Hardware by Flock. Should

- Page 58 -




Customer default on any payment of the Flock Services, Flock may remove Flock Hardware at
Flock’s discretion. Such removal, if made by Flock, shall not be deemed a waiver of Flock’s
rights to any damages Flock may sustain as a result of Customer’s default and Flock shall have

the right to enforce any other legal remedy or right.

10.2 Deployment Plan. Flock shall advise Customer on the location and positioning of the Flock
Hardware for optimal product functionality, as conditions and locations allow. Flock will
collaborate with Customer to design the strategic geographic mapping of the location(s) and
implementation of Flock Hardware to create a deployment plan (“Deployment Plan”). In the
event that Flock determines that Flock Hardware will not achieve optimal functionality at a
designated location, Flock shall have final discretion to veto a specific location, and will provide

alternative options to Customer.

10.3 Changes to Deployment Plan. After installation of Flock Hardware, any subsequent
requested changes to the Deployment Plan, including, but not limited to, relocating, re-
positioning, adjusting of the mounting, removing foliage, replacement, changes to heights of poles
will incur a fee according to the reinstall fee schedule located at

(https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule). Customer will receive prior notice and

confirm approval of any such fees.

10.4 Customer Installation Obligations. Customer is responsible for any applicable
supplementary cost as described in the Customer Implementation Guide, attached hereto as
Exhibit C (“Customer Obligations”). Customer represents and warrants that it has, or shall
lawfully obtain, all necessary right title and authority and hereby authorizes Flock to install the
Flock Hardware at the designated locations and to make any necessary inspections or

maintenance in connection with such installation.

10.5 Flock’s Obligations. Installation of any Flock Hardware shall be installed in a professional
manner within a commercially reasonable time from the Effective Date of this Agreement. Upon
removal of Flock Hardware, Flock shall restore the location to its original condition, ordinary
wear and tear excepted. Flock will continue to monitor the performance of Flock Hardware for the
length of the Term. Flock may use a subcontractor or third party to perform certain obligations
under this agreement, provided that Flock’s use of such subcontractor or third party shall not

release Flock from any duty or liability to fulfill Flock’s obligations under this Agreement.

- Page 59 -



https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule

11. MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Compliance With Laws. Parties shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal
laws, regulations, policies and ordinances and their associated record retention schedules,
including responding to any subpoena request(s).

11.2 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or invalid, that
provision will be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement
will otherwise remain in full force and effect.

11.3 Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable, transferable or sublicensable by either Party,
without prior consent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may assign this Agreement,
without the other Party's consent, (i) to any parent, subsidiary, or affiliate entity, or (ii) to any
purchaser of all or substantially all of such Party's assets or to any successor by way of merger,
consolidation or similar transaction.

11.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Order Form(s), the reinstall fee
schedule (https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule), and any attached exhibits are the

complete and exclusive statement of the mutual understanding of the Parties and supersedes and
cancels all previous or contemporaneous negotiations, discussions or agreements, whether written
and oral , communications and other understandings relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement, and that all waivers and modifications must be in a writing signed by both Parties,
except as otherwise provided herein. None of Customer’s purchase orders, authorizations or
similar documents will alter the terms of this Agreement, and any such conflicting terms are
expressly rejected. Any mutually agreed upon purchase order is subject to these terms. In the
event of any conflict of terms found in this Agreement or any other terms and conditions, the
terms of this Agreement shall prevail. Customer agrees that Customer’s purchase is neither
contingent upon the delivery of any future functionality or features nor dependent upon any oral
or written comments made by Flock with respect to future functionality or feature.

11.5 Relationship. No agency, partnership, joint venture, or employment is created as a result of
this Agreement and Parties do not have any authority of any kind to bind each other in any respect
whatsoever. Flock shall at all times be and act as an independent contractor to Customer.

11.6 Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state in

which the Customer is located. The Parties hereto agree that venue would be proper in the chosen

- Page 60 -



https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule

courts of the State of which the Customer is located. The Parties agree that the United Nations
Convention for the International Sale of Goods is excluded in its entirety from this Agreement.
11.7 Special Terms. Flock may offer certain special terms which are indicated in the proposal

and will become part of this Agreement, upon Customer’s prior written consent and the mutual

execution by authorized representatives (“Special Terms”). To the extent that any terms of this

Agreement are inconsistent or conflict with the Special Terms, the Special Terms shall control.
11.8 Publicity. Flock has the right to reference and use Customer’s name and trademarks and
disclose the nature of the Services in business and development and marketing efforts.

11.9 Feedback. If Agency or Authorized End User provides any suggestions, ideas, enhancement
requests, feedback, recommendations or other information relating to the subject matter
hereunder, Agency or Authorized End User hereby assigns to Flock all right, title and interest
(including intellectual property rights) with respect to or resulting from any of the foregoing.
11.10 Export. Customer may not remove or export from the United States or allow the export or
re-export of the Flock IP or anything related thereto, or any direct product thereof in violation of
any restrictions, laws or regulations of the United States Department of Commerce, the United
States Department of Treasury Office of Foreign Assets Control, or any other United States or
foreign Customer or authority. As defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (“FAR”), section
2.101, the Services, the Flock Hardware and Documentation are “commercial items” and
according to the Department of Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation (“DFAR”) section
252.2277014(a)(1) and are deemed to be “commercial computer software” and “commercial
computer software documentation.” Flock is compliant with FAR Section 889 and does not
contract or do business with, use any equipment, system, or service that uses the enumerated
banned Chinese telecommunication companies, equipment or services as a substantial or essential
component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any Flock system. Consistent with
DFAR section 227.7202 and FAR section 12.212, any use, modification, reproduction, release,
performance, display, or disclosure of such commercial software or commercial software
documentation by the U.S. Government will be governed solely by the terms of this Agreement
and will be prohibited except to the extent expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement.
11.11 Headings. The headings are merely for organization and should not be construed as adding
meaning to the Agreement or interpreting the associated sections.

- Page 61 -




11.12 Authority. Each of the below signers of this Agreement represent that they understand this
Agreement and have the authority to sign on behalf of and bind the Parties they are representing.
11.13 Conflict. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and any applicable statement
of work, or Customer purchase order, this Agreement controls unless explicitly stated otherwise.
11.14 Public Disrepute. In the event Customer or its employees become the subject of an indictment,
arrest, public disrepute, contempt, scandal or behaves in a manner that, in the reasonable judgment of
Flock, reflects unfavorably upon Flock, and/or their officers or principals, licensees, such act(s) or
omission(s) shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and Flock shall, in addition to any
other rights and remedies available to it hereunder, whether at law or in equity, have the right to elect
to terminate this Agreement.

11.15 Notices. All notices under this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have
been duly given when received, if personally delivered; when receipt is electronically confirmed,
if transmitted by email; the day after it is sent, if sent for next day delivery by recognized
overnight delivery service; and upon receipt, if sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested.

11.16. E-Verify. Flock shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify). Flock shall require all of Flock’s subcontractors to comply
with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify).

11.17 Anti-Human Trafficking. Flock warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by Flock or
Flock’s subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by means of
deception, coercion, intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North Carolina law,
specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina General Statutes, Human
Trafficking.

11.18 Nondiscrimination. Pursuant to Section 3-2 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances, Flock
hereby warrants and agrees that Flock will not discriminate against a protected class in employment,
subcontracting practices, or the solicitation or hiring of vendors, suppliers, or commercial customers
in connection with this Agreement. For the purposes of this Agreement “protected class” includes
age, race, religious belief or non-belief, ethnicity, color, national origin, creed, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, marital status, natural hair style, genetic information, pregnancy,
familial status, disability, veteran or military status, or disabled veteran status.

11.19 Non-appropriation. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the parties
agree that payments due hereunder from the Customer are from appropriations and monies from
the Town of Apex Town Council and any other governmental entities. In the event sufficient
appropriations or monies are not made available to the Customer to pay the terms of this Agreement
for any fiscal year, this Agreement shall terminate immediately without further obligation of the
Customer.

- Page 62 -




FLOCK NOTICES ADDRESS:
1170 HOWELL MILL ROAD, NW SUITE 210

ATLANTA, GA 30318
ATTN: LEGAL DEPARTMENT
EMALIL.: legal@flocksafety.com

Customer NOTICES ADDRESS:
ADDRESS:

ATTN:

EMAIL:

- Page 63 -




EXHIBIT B
INSURANCE

Required Coverage. Flock shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection
with the performance of the services under this Agreement and the results of that work by Flock
or its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be placed with insurers

with a current A. M. Best rating of no less than “A” and “VII”. Flock shall obtain and, during the term of
this Agreement, shall maintain policies of professional liability (errors and omissions), automobile liability, and
general liability insurance for insurable amounts of not less than the limits listed herein. The insurance policies shall
provide that the policies shall remain in full force during the life of the Agreement.

Types and Amounts Required. Flock shall maintain, at minimum, the following insurance coverage for the duration
of this Agreement:

(i) Commercial General Liability insurance written on an occurrence basis with minimum limits of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate for bodily injury, death,
and property damage, including personal injury, contractual liability, independent contractors, broad-form property
damage, and product and completed operations coverage;

(i) Umbrella or Excess Liability insurance written on an occurrence basis with minimum limits of Ten Million
Dollars ($10,000,000) per occurrence and Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000) in the aggregate;

(iii) Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions insurance with minimum limits of Five Million Dollars
(%5,000,000) per occurrence and Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) in the aggregate;

(iv) Commercial Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit of One Million Dollars
(%$1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, death, and property coverage, including owned and non-owned and
hired automobile coverage; and

(v) Cyber Liability insurance written on an occurrence basis with minimum limits of Five Million Dollars
($5,000,000).

- Page 64 -




CONTRACT ROUTING CONTROL SHEET

Routing Order: (1) Department Director, (2) Legal, (3) Risk Manager, (4) Vendor for Signature
(5) Finance Director, (6) Town Clerk, (7) Town Council/Town Manager

EVERY SECTION MUST BE COMPLETED

DEPARTMENT: Police

Department Contact Person for Contract: P.M. McKinney  Extension: 3445

Contractor/Vendor Name and address: Central Square

Contractor/Vendor Phone: 704-942-6362 Contractor/Vendor Contact Person: Taylor Ellison

Purpose of Contract: Flock License Plate Readers Implementation for Police taylor.ellison

Amount: $36,750.00 Budget Code: 47400

Type of Contract: X New [1 Renew 1 Amendment Exhibits/Attachments included: X Yes [1 N/A

Department Director’s Signature: P.M. McKinney for Chief J. Armstrong Date:5/17/2023

LEGAL

Reviewed by: Choose an item.  Chris Welch Date: 5/18/2023
Comments:contract terms negotiated with contractor; 2 year contract term requires council approval

Town Council approval required 1 Town Manager authorized to approve

[0 Other Approvals required/permitted: Click here to enter text.

RISK MANAGER

Reviewed by and approved: Amber Bobbitt Date: //2023

[J Insurance specifications meet requirements.

U1 Insurance specifications have been revised.

[] A pre-project safety review between the contractor and contracting department is required.

Return to Department Contact Person to have contract signed by Contractor prior to forwarding to Finance Director

FINANCE DIRECTOR

[ Sufficient funds are available in the proper category to pay for this expenditure.

L1 This contract is conditioned upon appropriation by the Town Council of sufficient funds.
1 A budget amendment is necessary before this agreement is approved.

[ A budget amendment is attached as required for approval of this agreement.

Finance Director: Date: Click here to enter a date.

TOWN CLERK

Date Received: Click here to enter a date. Signed by Contractor: [J YES [J NO--Return to Department
Council Action Required: [J YES [0 NO — forward to Town Manager Agenda Date: Click here to enter a date.
Approved by Council: [J YES [J NO

TOWN MANAGER

This document has been reviewed and approval is recommended by the Town Manager. [1 YES [ NO

Town Manager: Date: Click here to enter a date.

After approval and signatures contract will be returned to Department Contact Person for Department to administer.
[J Scan signed contract to Department contracts folder
Department Contact who scanned fully executed document into contracts folder Click here to enter text.

- Page 65 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Jessica Bolin, P.E., Environmental Stormwater Manager
Department(s): Water Resources

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a Master Services Agreement (MSA) between the Town of Apex and HT Stormwater
Management for monthly maintenance of all Town-owned Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) for a three-
year period, effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026, with the option to approve two additional one-
year contact extensions after that date and authorize the Town Manager to execute on behalf of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
The contractor, HT Stormwater Management, was selected through the request for proposals (RFP)
process. The proposed Fiscal Year 2023-2024 budget has adequate funds to cover the cost of the first year

of this contract.

Attachments

e CN5-A1: Master Services Agreement with HT Stormwater Management - July 1, 2023 through June
30, 2026
e (CN5-A2: HT Stormwater Management Proposal - July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026

- Page 66 -




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA Contract Identification #

COUNTY OF WAKE MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT is entered into this the _ day of
, 2023, by and between, HT Stormwater Management, a North Carolina
Corporation with its principal business offices located at P.O. Box 32056; Raleigh, NC 27622
(the *“Contractor”), and the Town of Apex, a municipal corporation of the State of North
Carolina, (the “Town”). Town and Contractor may collectively be referred to as “Parties”
hereinafter.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Town, is engaged in the operation and maintenance of Town-owned
Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs); and

WHEREAS, the professional services of outside firms or consultants and/or others will
from time to time in the future be needed by the Town for the services as described above; and

WHEREAS, Contractor provides professional services of the nature required by the
Town and employs trained and experienced technical personnel possessing adequate knowledge,
skills, and experience to provide such professional services to the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Parties contemplate that the services of the Contractor will be performed
in various stages in accordance with separate authorizations to be issued by the Town, and the
Parties desire to set forth the basic terms of their agreement in this Master Services Agreement
rather than in the separate authorizations issued by the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall act as a base
agreement under which the Parties can enter into multiple specific transactions by executing a
Purchase Order and written confirmation to proceed pursuant to a Scope of Services and/or rate
sheet; and

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that this Agreement is non-exclusive and does not require
or commit the Contractor to being available to perform services until a Scope of Services is
submitted, and does not preclude the Town from hiring other vendors or contractors to perform
the same or similar work.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the premises and
mutual covenants herein contained, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged,
the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereto do contract and agree as follows:

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 67 -




1. SCOPE OF SERVICES.

The Contractor agrees to perform for the Town the following general services as requested by
the Town: Routine maintenance services for Town-owned Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs)
as described in the Proposal to provide these services signed by Steven Sartorio and dated April
28, 2023.

When service is requested by the Town, Contractor shall provide a detailed Scope of Services
and quote that shall be governed by the terms of this Agreement. If a rate sheet is provided and
attached to this Agreement then the quote shall be consistent with the rate sheet. The quote and
Scope of Services shall reference this Agreement and this Agreement shall be incorporated into
and made a part of the Scope of Services and quote whether or not expressly incorporated by
reference in the Scope of Services and quote.

In the event of a conflict between the terms of a Scope of Services, quote, or estimate and this
Agreement, this Agreement shall control.

2. SPECIFICATIONS.

Upon request by the Town, Contractor will provide plans and specifications prior to engaging in
any services under this Agreement. Contractor hereby acknowledges that it is fully licensed to
perform the work contemplated by this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the
provided plans and specifications and this Agreement, this Agreement shall control.

3. TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION.

This Agreement shall remain in effect and binding for a period of three years with the option to
extend the contract for two additional one-year periods upon mutual agreement of both parties
unless terminated sooner in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Contractor shall
commence and complete the work required by this Agreement in accordance with the dates
provided in the Scope of Services as agreed upon by the Parties. Contractor shall immediately
notify the Town of any event or circumstance that may, immediately or in the future, impede the
proper and timely execution of any work so that remedial action may be taken. Contractor shall
not begin any work pursuant to this Agreement or a Scope of Services until written confirmation
has been provided by the Town. The Parties hereby agree that written confirmation may be
provided through electronic communication from the Town’s representative identified in Section
13 of this Agreement. If Contractor has not satisfactorily commenced or completed the work
within the times specified, the Town may declare such delay a material breach of contract and
may pursue all available legal and equitable remedies. Any changes to the schedule(s) provided
in the Scope of Services must be agreed to in writing by the Town and the Contractor.

4. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT OF SERVICES.

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 68 -




In consideration of the above services, the Town will pay the Contractor the amount authorized
by the issued Purchase Order corresponding to the agreed upon Scope of Services. As services
are agreed upon pursuant to this Agreement and the associated Scopes of Service, Contractor
will invoice the Town for work performed. Town has the right to require the Contractor to
produce for inspection all of Contractor’s records and charges to verify the accuracy of all
invoices. Town shall pay Contractor’s invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt unless a bona
fide dispute exists between Town and Contractor concerning the accuracy of said invoice or the
services covered thereby.

5. INDEMNIFICATION.

To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and
hold-harmless the Town of Apex, its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents, and
volunteers against any and all claims, demands, suits or losses, including all costs connected
therewith, for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the
Town of Apex its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents, and volunteers by reason of
personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property damage, including loss of use
thereof resulting from the negligence of the Contractor.

6. APPLICABILITY OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS.

The Contractor shall adhere to all laws, ordinances, and regulations of the United States, the
State of North Carolina, the County of Wake, and the Town of Apex in the performance of the
services outlined in this contract and any attached specifications.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. Any and all suits
or actions to enforce, interpret or seek damages with respect to any provision of, or the
performance or nonperformance of, this Agreement shall be brought in the General Court of
Justice of North Carolina sitting in Wake County, North Carolina, or the United States District
Court sitting in Wake County, North Carolina, and it is agreed by the Parties that no other court
shall have jurisdiction or venue with respect to such suits or actions.

7. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE.

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify). Contractor shall require all of the Contractor’s
subcontractors to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina
General Statutes (E-Verify).

8. QUALITY AND WORKMANSHIP,

All work shall be performed to the satisfaction of the Town. The work shall not be considered
complete nor applicable payments rendered until the Town is satisfied with the services
provided. Contractor shall provide services in accordance with all federal, state and local law

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 69 -




and in accordance with all governing agency regulations and shall be held to the same standard
and shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and judgment in the performance of services for
the Town as is ordinarily provided by a similar professional under the same or similar
circumstances at the time in North Carolina.

9. INSURANCE.

The Contractor shall maintain valid general liability insurance in the minimum amount of
$1,000,000, commercial automobile liability insurance in the minimum amount of $2,000,000,
and provide certificates of such insurance naming the Town of Apex as an additional insured by
endorsement to the policies. If the policy has a blanket additional insured provision, the
contractor’s insurance shall be primary and non-contributory to other insurance. Additionally,
the contractor shall maintain and show proof of workers’ compensation and employer’s liability
insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000. The Contractor shall provide notice of
cancellation, non-renewal or material change in coverage to the Town of Apex within 10 days of
their receipt of notice from the insurance company.

All required certificates of insurance, endorsements, and blanket additional insured policy
provisions are attached and considered part of this document. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
neither the requirement of Contractor to have sufficient insurance nor the requirement that Town
is named as an additional insured, shall constitute waiver of the Town’s governmental immunity
in any respect, under North Carolina law.

10. PRE-PROJECT SAFETY REVIEW MEETING.

If requested by the Town, the Contractor shall attend a pre-project safety review meeting with
the contacting Department Head and Supervisors and Safety and Risk Manager prior to the start
of work.

11. DEFAULT.

In the event of substantial failure by Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, Town shall have the right to terminate Contractor upon seven (7) days written notice
in which event Contractor shall have neither the obligation nor the right to perform further
services under this Agreement.

12. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.

Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for the Town’s convenience upon thirty
(30) days written notice to Contractor. Contractor shall terminate performance of services on a
schedule acceptable to the Town. In the event of termination for convenience, the Town shall
pay Contractor for all services satisfactorily performed.

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 70 -




13. NOTICE.

Any formal notice, demand, or request required by or made in connection with this Agreement
shall be deemed properly made if delivered in writing or deposited in the United States mail,
postage prepaid, to the address specified below.

TO CONTRACTOR: HT Stormwater
Attn: Steven Sartorio
P.O. Box 32056
Raleigh, NC 27622
steve@htstormwater.com

TO TOWN: Town of Apex
Attn: Jessica Bolin
P.O. Box 250
Apex, NC 27502

jessica.bolin@apexnc.org

14. DELAY BEYOND THE CONTROL OF THE PARTIES.

Neither Contractor nor Town, having taken commercially reasonable precautions, shall be in
default of the provisions of this Agreement for delays in performance due to forces beyond the
control of the parties. “Forces beyond the control of the parties” shall mean, but is not limited to,
delay caused by natural disaster, fire, flood, earthquakes, storms, lightning, epidemic, pandemic,
war, riot, civil disobedience, or other event reasonably outside of the parties’ control. Due to the
ever-changing circumstances surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, situations may arise during
the performance of this Agreement that affect availability of resources and staff of Contractor or
the Town. There could be changes in anticipated performance times and service costs. Contractor
will exercise reasonable efforts to overcome the challenges presented by current circumstances.
In the event of changes in performance times or service costs caused by the COVID-19
pandemic the Town reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with its terms.
The Parties agree that they shall not be liable to each other for any delays, expenses, losses, or
damages of any kind arising out of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

15. NONWAIVER FOR BREACH.

No breach or non-performance of any term of this Agreement shall be deemed to be waived by
either party unless said breach or non-performance is waived in writing and signed by the parties.
No waiver of any breach or non-performance under this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute
a waiver of any subsequent breach or non-performance and for any such breach or non-
performance each party shall be relegated to such remedies as provided by law.

16. CONSTRUCTION.

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 71 -




Should any portion of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the Court or
Tribunal construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms hereof shall be more
strictly construed against any one party by reason of the rule of construction that a document is
to be more strictly construed against the party who prepared the documents.

17. NO REPRESENTATIONS.

The parties hereby warrant that no representations about the nature or extent of any claims,
demands, damages, or rights that they have, or may have, against one another have been made to
them, or to anyone acting on their behalf, to induce them to execute this Agreement, and they
rely on no such representations; that they have fully read and understood this Agreement before
signing their names; and that they act voluntarily and with full advice of counsel.

18. SEVERABILITY.

In the event for any reason that any provision or portion of this Agreement shall be found to be
void or invalid, then such provision or portion shall be deemed to be severable from the
remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement, and it shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions, which portions shall be given full effect as if the void or invalid provision or
portion had not been included herein.

19. COUNTERPARTS.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

20. MODIFICATION.

This Agreement contains the full understanding of the parties. Any modifications or addendums
to this Agreement must be in writing and executed with the same formality as this Agreement.

21. BINDING EFFECT.
The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties' heirs, successors, and assigns.
22. ASSIGNMENT.

Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest in (including, but
without limitation, monies that may become due or monies that are due) this Agreement without
the written consent of the Town. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent Contractor
from employing such independent consultants, associates, and sub-contractors as it may deem
appropriate to assist Contractor in the performance of services rendered.

23. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 72 -




Contractor is an independent contractor and shall undertake performance of the services pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement as an independent contractor. Contractor shall be wholly
responsible for the methods, means and techniques of performance.

24. NON-APPROPRIATION.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the parties agree that payments due
hereunder from the Town are from appropriations and monies from the Town Council and any
other governmental entities. In the event sufficient appropriations or monies are not made
available to the Town to pay the terms of this Agreement for any fiscal year, this Agreement
shall terminate immediately without further obligation of the Town.

25. IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT CERTIFICATION.

N.C.G.S. 147-86.60 prohibits the State of North Carolina, a North Carolina local government, or
any other political subdivision of the State of North Carolina from contracting with any entity
that is listed on the Final Divestment List created by the North Carolina State Treasurer pursuant
to N.C.G.S. 147-86.58. N.C.G.S. 147-86.59 further requires that contractors with the State, a
North Carolina local government, or any other political subdivision of the State of North
Carolina must not utilize any subcontractor found on the State Treasurer’s Final Divestment List.
As of the date of execution of this Agreement the Contractor hereby certifies that the Contractor
is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the North Carolina State Treasurer and that
the Contractor will not utilize any subcontractors found on the Final Divestment List.

26. ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING.

The Contractor warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by the Contractor or the Contractor’s
subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by means of deception,
coercion, intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North Carolina law, specifically
Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina General Statutes, Human
Trafficking.

27. NONDISCRIMINATION.

Pursuant to Section 3-2 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances, Contractor hereby warrants
and agrees that Contractor will not discriminate against a protected class in employment,
subcontracting practices, or the solicitation or hiring of vendors, suppliers, or commercial
customers in connection with this Agreement. For the purposes of this Agreement “protected
class” includes age, race, religious belief or non-belief, ethnicity, color, national origin, creed,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, natural hair style, genetic information,
pregnancy, familial status, disability, veteran or military status, or disabled veteran status.

28. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE.

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 73 -




Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform
Electronic Transactions Act) this Agreement and all documents related hereto containing an
electronic or digitized signaturc are legally binding in the same manner as are hard copy
documents executed by hand signaturc. The Partics hereby consent to usc electronic or digitized
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by
the Agreement and any related documents. If electronic signatures are used the Agreement shall
be delivered in an electronic record capable of retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

In witness thereof, the contracting parties, by their authorized agents, affix their signatures and
seals this day of , 2023,

Contractor Town of Apex

Name: HT Slroxfm\mﬂv Mu\r\mj{,mm%)lnu

sy /Wum 1) Malbus

(Signature)

Catherine Crosby, Town Manager

Title: CfO
Altest: Adttest:
Lo . B
(Sfc'retaiy. if a corporation) Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Antwan Morrison, Finance Director

Revision date 5/31/2023

- Page 74 -




HT STORMWATER
— MANAGEMENT

Town of Apex

105-B Upchurch Street (Water Resources Administration Building)
Apex, North Carolina 27502

Attention: Jessica Bolin, Stormwater Engineering Manager

RE: Town of Apex - Request for Proposals
SCM Maintenance Services
RFP Number SE2301

Dear Jessica:

We appreciate the opportunity to submit a proposal to perform SCM Maintenance Services for
the Town of Apex-owned stormwater control measures. Enclosed are three hard copies of our
proposal and a certificate of insurance for your review.

At HT Stormwater, we have a proactive and proven approach to stormwater management and
we are confident our SCM maintenance program combined with our team’s field experience
and first-hand knowledge of the Town of Apex-owned SCMs will ensure its systems are
continuously maintained in a stable condition and steadily improving. Additionally, our
aggressive approach to identifying and addressing early signs of minor issues is a major part of
our maintenance program and will lead to long-term savings for the Town.

Please note our pricing includes mowing services every month the grass height requires cutting
and in a typical cycle that is a minimum of six times annually with up to eight total mowings,
pending weather and conditions. While we did not want to deviate from the RFP’s outlined
scope, we felt we would be doing the Town a disservice given the profile / visibility of several
systems to not include our full services.

Numerous SCMs are currently under construction and have not been completed. We used the
provided plans to scale several SCM sizes and we feel our pricing for those systems is an
accurate reflection of the scaled drawing. Pricing can be difficult without seeing the finished
product and there is potential for a nominal increase or decrease to pricing once the systems
are completed. We have opted to delay an estimate for the Saunders Street Parking Lot until
plans are provided and or the system is delivered.

We maintain all permits, certifications and licenses required by the Town and the State of North
Carolina.

- Page 75 -

803.640.2034 | HTSTORMWATER.COM | P.O. BOX 32056, RALEIGH, NC 27622



We greatly appreciate your time and look forward to potentially working with you and your
team. If you have any questions, please let us know.

Sincerely,

Steven M. Sartorio

- Page 76 -




Town of Apex - HT Stormwater Management, Inc - SCM Maintenance Services

Annual
Item Facility SCM Type Quantity | Price per SCM if Maintenance
No. multiples Price
Wet Pond 1 $175.00 $2,100.00
1 |Apex Town Hall -
UDS (Pipe ! $100.00 $1,200.00
Storage]
$250.00 (Bio E)
. | Bioretention $50.00 (Bio H)
2 |Apex Public Works Area 4 $50.00 (Bio J) $6,600.00
$200.00 (Bio K)
$100.00 (LS1)
$100.00 (LS2)
3 |Apex Peakway' Level Spreader 5 $100.00 (LS3) $6,300.00
$75.00 (LS B)
$150.00 (LS C)
4 |Apex Public Safety Station #4 Wet Pond 1 $150.00 $1,800.00
1 $50.00 (LS A)
5 [Seagroves Farm Park Level Spreader 2 $50.00 (LS B) $1,200.00
$200.00 (LS1)
Wet Pond 3 $300.00 (LS2) $9,000.00
6 |Apex Nature Park' $250.00 (LS3)
Level Spreader 1 $50.00 $600.00
7 |Apex Public Safety Station #5 B'“:ﬁ‘;“"“ 1 [5250.00 $3,000.00
. . Stormwater
2
8 |Apex Public Safety Station #36 Wetland 1 $275.00 $3,300.00
$275.00 (WP1)
Wet Pond 3 $225.00 (WP2) $9,000.00
9 |Pleasant Park $250.00 (WP3)
Permeable
Pavement 8 $200.00 (per srvc) [$2,400.00
Biorstention I $TBD $TBD
10 [Saunders Street Parking Lot?
UDS 1 $TBD $TBD
. . ot ge Stormwater
2
11 [Mason St Municipal Building Wetland 1 $200.00 $2,400.00
TOTAL PRICE $48,900.00

- Page 77 -




$75.00 installed CY

Mulch Replacement (@ Apex Town Hall per
Seed & Straw Bare Areas - small bare arcas are inclusive with -
maintenance, larger areas are to be done on as-needed basis. $TBD per SF

Vegetated Shelf Plantings @ Apex Town Hall $3.00 installed per plant

All interested parties are required to provide the following information:

Prices will remain firm until: Prices will remain firm for the duration of the three year contract;
however, if extreme inflationary conditions cause dramatic rise in materials, increasing overall cost to
perform maintenance, a dialogue between parties would be prudent to ensure solvency.

Company Name: HT Stormwater Management, Inc.

Signature: % m /MW% Date: April 28, 2023

Printed Name: Steven M Sartorio Address: PO Box 32056, Raleigh, NC 27622
Title: CEO
Phone No: 803-640-2034 cell Email: steve@htstormater.com

- Page 78 -




HT STORMWATER
— MANAGEMENT

Town of Apex

105-B Upchurch Street (Water Resources Administration Building}
Apex, North Carolina 27502

Attention: Jessica Bolin, Stormwater Engineering Manager

RE:

Town of Apex - Request for Proposals
SCM Maintenance Services

RFP Number SE2301

List of References

Please find below a list of local property managers with whom we work in a similar capacity
performing maintenance and repair services to manage stormwater systems.

Karen Bayless, Elite Management Professionals, karenbavless@elite-mgmt.com, 4112 Blue Ridge
Road, Suite 100, Raleigh, NC 27612, 919-233-7660 '

Lena Deptolla, Omega Association Management, lena@omegamgmt.com, 160 NE Maynard
Road, Suite 210, Cary, NC 27513, 919-461-0102

Anna Sullivan, Professional Properties Management, asullivan@ppmrat.com, 11010 Raven Ridge
Road, Raleigh, NC 27614, 919-848-4911

Nicole Clift, Professional Properties Management, nclift@ppmral.com, 11010 Raven Ridge Road,
Raleigh, NC 27614, 919-848-4911

Henry Falkner, Barnett Properties, LLC, jhf@barnetiprop.com, 1775 Graham Avenue, Suite 201,
Henderson, NC 27536, 252-492-7551

Gerald Seibert, City of Creedmoor, gseibert@cityofcreedmoor.org, 211 N Main Street,
Creedmoor, NC 27522, 919-764-1060

Mark Tutor, innovative Development Solutions, Inc., marktutor@idsplanning.com, 7283 NC Hwy
42, Suite 102, #324, Raleigh, NC 27603, 919-819-0671

- Page 79 -

803.640.2034 [ HTSTORMWATER.COM | P.O. BOX 32056, RALEIGH, NC 27622




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager - Development and Operations Portfolio
Department(s): Town Manager's Office

Requested Motion

Motion to approve an Agreement for IPKEYS Meter Data Management System (MDMS) between the Town of
Apex and IPKeys Power Partners, Inc., effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028 for professional services
with the meter data management system (MDMS) that supports the meter system upgrade (MSU), and to
authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
The Town is preparing for the installation of a meter system upgrade (MSU) that will increase the level of
service to its customers. A new data management software is needed to support the MSU. This agreement
is for professional services and the meter data management system (MDMS) that will support the MSU. The

MDMS will be integrated into the new enterprise resources planning system that the Town is installing.

Attachments

e CN6-A1: Agreement for IPKeys Meter Data Management System (MDMS)
(provided under a separate cover)

- Page 80 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk
Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office

Requested Motion

Motion to approve, as submitted or amended, Meeting Minutes from the following meetings:
e June 13,2023 - Town Council Regular Meeting
e June 20, 2023 - Town Council Work Session

Approval Recommended?

The Town Clerk recommends the Town Council approve the meeting minutes as presented or amended.

ltem Details
In accordance with 160A-72 of North Carolina General Statutes (NCGS), the Governing Board has the legal

duty to approve all minutes that are entered into the official journal of the Board's proceedings.

Attachments

e CN7-A1: DRAFT Minutes - June 13, 2023 - Town Council Regular Meeting
CN7-A2: DRAFT Minutes - June 20, 2023 - Town Council Work Session

- Page 81 -




O NOUTDhh WN —

A A DM DPDWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNNDN-_2 2 2 2
A OWON =20 00N WN 200V O0ONODUUOPNWN-—-00VONO~~O0CTPdWN-—=O-0

DRAFT MINUTES
TOWN OF APEX
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2023
6:00 PM

The Apex Town Council met for a Regular Town Council Meeting on Tuesday, June 13, 2023 at 6:00
PM in the Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina.

This meeting was open to the public. Members of the public were able to attend this meeting in-
person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The recording of this
meeting can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0V1FIh78elL0

[ATTENDANCE]

Elected Body
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)

Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth
Councilmember Brett Gantt
Councilmember Ed Gray
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey
Councilmember Arno Zegerman
Absent: None

Town Staff

Town Manager Catherine Crosby

Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis

Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone

Town Attorney Laurie Hohe

Town Clerk Allen Coleman

Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below

[COMMENCEMENT]

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order, and thanked all in attendance for engaging in the
town business as a community.

Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth then offered a statement acknowledging the importance
of diversity and tolerance, and recognized that there are many different faiths represented in Apex.
She invited everyone to take a personal moment of silence.

Mayor Gilbert then invited Elder Creason from the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day
Saints to offer the invocation.

Elder Creason offered words of thanks, and asked for strength to be given to Council as they
work to make decisions that can better the lives of those in the community.

Mayor Gilbert then led those in attendance in the pledge of allegiance.

- Page 82 -



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=OV1FIh78eL0

DRAFT MINUTES
[CONSENT AGENDA]

Mayor Gilbert announced that Old Business Items 1 and 2 would be continued to the June
27" Regular Town Council Meeting. He said Council would be holding an additional Public Hearing
on June 27%, in order to receive additional input from the community on the Annual Operating
Budget and Capital Investment Plan.

Mayor Gilbert asked if there were any requested alterations to the Consent Agenda.
Councilmember Zegerman requested that Consent Item 10 be moved to New Business.

A motion was made by Councilmember Arno Zegerman, seconded by Mayor Pro
Tempore Audra Killingsworth, to approve the Consent Agenda, with the removal of Consent Item
10 to New Business One (1).

VOTE: 5-0 (UNANIMOUS)

CN1 Agreement Amendment - Renewal of ADA Paratransit Service Agreement with Wake
County - FY2023-24 (REF: CONT-2023-142)

Council voted to approve an Amendment to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Paratransit
Services Agreement with Wake County, effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024; and to
authorize the Town Manager to execute on behalf of the Town.

CN2 Annexation No. 757 - Alderwood Pond - 0.67 acres (REF: RES-2023-033, RES-2023-

034, and OTHER-2023-051)

Council voted to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to
accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of
a Public Hearing for June 27, 2023, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to
annex 0.67 acres Alderwood Pond, Annexation No. 757 into the Town Corporate limits.

CN3 Annual Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan FY 2023-2024 - Schedule 2nd

Public Hearing

Council voted to schedule a second budget public hearing for June 27, 2023 on the Annual
Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for fiscal year 2023-2024.
CN4 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 18 - Electric System Expansion (REF: ORD-2023-

044)

Council voted to adopt Budget Ordinance Amendment 18 to appropriate funds for electric system
expansion.
CN5 Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-08 - Town Wayfinding Project and

Hunter Street Bike Track Project (REF: ORD-2023-045)

Council voted to approve a Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-08 to transfer
appropriate funds for the Town Wayfinding Project and Hunter Street Bike Track Project.

- Page 83 -




DRAFT MINUTES
CN6 Contract Amendment Multi-Year - CDM Smith, Inc. - leadCAST - July 1, 2023 through

June 30, 2026 (REF: CONT-2023-143)

Council voted to approve an Amendment to Task Order No. 2, effective July 1, 2023 through June
30, 2026, with CDM Smith, Inc. under a Master Services Agreement for On-Call Professional Services
(No. 2019-0025) approved on September 4, 2018, for implementation of the data management
solution, leadCAST, and migration of the Lead Service Line (LSL) data into an inventory file within the
leadCAST platform; and authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the
Town.

CN7 Contract Multi-Year - Axon Enterprises Inc. - Technology and Software Support - July 1,

2023 through June 30, 2026 (REF: CONT-2023-144)

Council voted to approve a Master Services Agreement (MSA), effective July 1, 2023 through June
30, 2026, with Axon Enterprises Inc. for technology and software support for the following in the
Apex Police Department (APD): Body Worn Cameras (BWC), Mobile Video Recorders (MVR), and
Taster 7 Electronic Control Weapons (ECW); and authorize the Town Manager to execute the
agreement(s) on behalf of the Town.

CN8 Council Meeting Minutes - Various

Council voted to approve, as submitted or amended, Meeting Minutes from the following meetings:
May 16, 2023 - Town Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

May 23, 2023 - Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes

CN9 Encroachment Right-of-Way (ROW) Agreement - NCDOT - GoApex Bus Stop Sidewalk

Art Project (REF: CONT-2023-145)

Council voted to approve a right-of-way (ROW) encroachment agreement with North Carolina
Department of Transportation (NCDOT) to allow the Town to paint art on the public right-of-way at
select GoApex bus stops (Attachment No.2) as part of the GoApex Bus Stop Sidewalk Art Project;
and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the Town.

Consent Item 10 was pulled from consent and moved to New Business 1, by request of
Councilmember Zegerman.
CN11 Resolution to Collect Taxes - Chatham County (REF: RES-2023-035)

Council voted to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Chatham County Tax Administrator to collect
taxes on behalf of the Town of Apex.
CN12 Resolution to Collect Taxes - Wake County (REF: RES-2023-036)

Council voted to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Wake County Revenue Director to collect taxes
on behalf of the Town of Apex.
CN13 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ05 - Pleasant Park - Statement and Ordinance (REF: ORD-

2023-046)

- Page 84 -




—_—
O VO N U MW IN -

—_ s
A wWw N -

N m = a a A
O 0 00N O~ 1

N
—_

W W W W W wWwWwWwMNDNDNDNDDNDDNDDNDDN
o~ U A WIN = O V00NNl W

A D W W W
— O 0V 00

DRAFT MINUTES
Council voted to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning
Application No. 23CZ05, Town of Apex, petitioner, for Pleasant Park, property located at 3400
Pleasant Plains Road (PIN 0731407544).
CN14 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ06 - Hunter Street Park Addition - Statement and Ordinance

(REF: ORD-2023-047)

Council voted to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning
Application No. 23CZ06, Town of Apex, petitioner, for Hunter Street Park Addition, located at 1250
Ambergate Station (portion of PIN 0742531455).

CN15 Tax Report - April 2023 (REF: OTHER-2023-052)

Council voted to approve the Apex Tax Report dated May 18, 2023.

CN16 Town Standard Specifications & Standard Details - Revisions (REF: OTHER-2023-053)

Council voted to approve revisions to the Town Standard Specifications and Standard Details.

CN17 Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - May 2023 - Statement (REF:
OTHER-2023-054)

Council voted to approve the Statement of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160D-605(a)
addressing action on the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments of May 23, 2023.

[PRESENTATIONS]

PR1 Proclamation - Apex High School “Lady Cougars” Softball Team - NCHSAA 4A State
Champions (REF: PRO-2023-020)

Mayor Gilbert and the rest of Town Council read the proclamation honoring the Apex High
School Softball State Champions in unity.

Each member of the team then received individual recognition from Mayor Gilbert and
Council, and were each given a copy of the proclamation.

Mayor Gilbert shared a story from Game 2 of the Championship series, when an opposing
fan asked him which one of the players was his daughter. Mayor Gilbert said he replied that the
whole team was his family. He thanked the team for bringing the championship back to the Peak,
and said it was a big thing for the community. He said the championship convoy through Salem
Street reminded him of a scene from Remember the Titans, and thanked the team for representing
Apex so well.

After taking a group picture, Mayor Gilbert once again congratulated the team on their
accomplishment, and thanked Town Clerk Allen Coleman, Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis, and
all other staff members involved in putting together the celebration.

PR2 Proclamation - Apex Public Works Week 2023 (REF: PRO-2023-021)

Mayor Gilbert and the rest of Town Council read the Public Works Week 2023 Proclamation
in unity.

John Mullis, Public Works Director, and other Public Works employees, accepted the
proclamation and took a picture with the Mayor and Council.

- Page 85 -




DRAFT MINUTES
PR3 Proclamation - Year of the Trail 2023 (REF: PRO-2023-022)

Mayor Gilbert and the rest of Town Council read the Year of the Trail 2023 Proclamation in
unity,

Craig Setzer, Director of Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources, and other Parks staff
members, accepted the proclamation and took a picture with the Mayor and Council.

[REGULAR MEETING AGENDA]

Mayor Gilbert noted that Old Business ltems 1 and 2 were requested to be continued to
June 27%, 2023, and Consent Item 10 was requested to be moved to New Business 1.

A motion was made by Councilmember Brett Gantt, seconded by Councilmember Terry
Mahaffey, to approved the Regular Meeting Agenda, with the continuance of Old Business 1 and 2,
and the adoption of Consent Item 10 as New Business 1.

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0)
[PUBLIC FORUM] (To view Public Forum sign-up sheets, see OTHER-2023-055)

Mayor Gilbert opened Public Forum, and invited the first person signed up to speak, William
Gentry.

First to speak was William Gentry of 8528 Raegan Road. (To view Mr. Gentry's handout, see
OTHER-2023-056)

“Good evening, ladies and gentlemen of the Town Council. My name is William Gentry, and | live at
8528 Raegan Road, west of Apex out on the Lake Jordan game lands. First. | want to thank you for
the hard work you guys are doing in helping shepherd Apex into becoming a progressive and
dynamic city, and at the same time, protecting private property owner’s rights. | know that can get
kind of sticky sometimes, and that's one of the things | wanted to talk about. In front of you, you'll see
a little map | drew. There’s a project the planning department is working on to extend the greenway.
When the development of Stillwater was developed a year or so ago, the developers promised
residents access to the American Tobacco Trail. Well, the developers are long gone, but the
residents still don't have access. So they petitioned the town Planning Board to give them access,
and from the Planning Board, there is an existing pathway this far up into Stillwater, Planning Board
wants to continue down Raegan Road, and go right through the middle of my property. That is the
old roadhead for Raegan Road, but when the corps of engineers bought all that land, they closed off
the secondary roads, and the DOT gave me documents that said we are abandoning the roadway at
the edge of your property. So that's the end of Raegan Road right there, so now the town planners
feel like they're going to go through my property again, and through the corps of engineer’s
property, to connect to the trail. That's marked in green, they've got two routes. One over on Richard
Jenks' property off of Richardson Road, and the other one coming through my property. | proposed
to the planners a couple of alternate routes that won't have that kind of impact, and there’s even a
third one that they can consider, which is go along the present course, along the property lines of

F - Page 86 - p




O NO~NU1 W N -

A DA DDA WWWWWWWWWWNDNDDNDNDNDNNDNDNDNDDN-=2 =22 23 2 a a aa
A WOMN - O VONOTULP,WN-—~OVVONOCCUPANWON-—_~OVONOC~UGG P>wWwN-—~O0

DRAFT MINUTES
Stillwater. And that will connect them to the trail. And | forgot to mention that we're a historic
property, and we can’t make changes to the property or the house without the historic commission’s
permission, so I'd like to ask the Town Council to really take a serious look at this, and try to help me
maintain my property in the form that it's in. If this trail were to go through it, it would probably cost
about a half million dollars in property valuation to me, so thank you for your time.”

William Gentry's wife Kathy added a few comments: “We just feel very passionately that, we
came her 30 years ago, and we restored an 1890’s farmhouse, it's on the state, local, and national
registries, and it has protections against this kind of invasion. It's just a group of people who would
like access to the trail, that live up the road from us. 3 years, we've been longtime residents and | find
this very disheartening, and | hope you will do the right thing. Thank you.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked them for their comments.

Next to speak was Darren Hoch of 1931 Gray Meadow Drive. (To view Mr. Hoch’s handout,
see OTHER-2023-057)

“City Council, Mayor Gilbert, residents of Apex, thanks for allowing us to speak, we're here
representing Woodall Estates Community and would like to share some ideas on how we could
make Woodall Crest Drive safer after the unfortunate death of Ayan, which you can imagine has
been very difficult for the parents, for any parent who has children and likes the spaces of Apex. I'll
be the first of 4 speakers, and I'd like to spend my time sharing our history of concerns about the
safety of Woodall Crest Drive. As our subdivision filled from 2017 to 2020, and more cars exited the
subdivision, it became clear that we started to see some safety risks then. Never mind the future, we
saw it a couple years ago. The first thing we noticed, as we all know, is that Woodall Crest Drive is a
1,000 yard straightaway collector road, and despite everyone’s best intentions, no matter what we
do, it's a 1,000 yard road, and people are going to want to go fast on it. The other thing we noticed
as a community of having a lot of children is that there were no crosswalks between Gray Meadow or
Meadow Mill, which are the two streets that are adjacent to the sidewalk that leads to Scott’s Ridge
Elementary. We noticed there's not a well-marked across Apex Barbecue, and there's really no safe
way to get over to Scott's Mill from our side. The other thing we noticed is that on the street there is
no real rules there about parking, so people can park there creating blind spots, and as we all know,
all these conditions culminated in what happened a few weeks ago. We attended a bunch of public
hearings in 2020 with Lennar, and we learned about mixed-use development, and our takeaway
from that was that there wasn't anything that could be done. There was no way to do speed bumps,
there was no way to do stop signs, roundabouts, and | think we as a community kind of left
disheartened, and since then, I've shared with you some packets of some correspondence, members
of the board and certain residents have had with the town and with Lennar. We did a traffic study, it
did result in a reduction of the speed limit, it went down to 25. | think there’s still some concern that
we haven't done enough yet, so | think really, the others will give some solutions here, so in
conclusion, we're not trying to point fingers or assign blame, | think none of use were surprised that
this happened, we saw it in the making over the years, and it's extremely unfortunate. Since that
happened, no kids are out playing. Everyone is scared to death now. So, we just want to see if we
can figure out here and over the next couple months, we talk about it, right, we've gotta figure out a
way to make that stretch safe for the 30 kids that are inevitably going to spill there, and then

F - Page 87 - p




O NONO0O1DWN -

A A DD DWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNNDNDNDNDNDN-=2 =22 2 2
A OWON 20 V0V0O NP WN ~O0OVONOTOAOPWDN-—~OVONOCUOPWN-—OVO

DRAFT MINUTES

inevitably for the couple hundred or thousands behind us that are also going to use that road. So
thank you for the time.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Hoch for his comments.

Next to speak was Chris Chandler of 1936 Gray Meadow Drive: (To view Mr. Chandler’s handout,
see OTHER-2023-058)

“Thank y'all again very much, we just want to touch base on some things. One of the things |
want to bring up is through studies from the national highway association and federal transportation,
roads in the past have been designed to move cars down the road, move them fast. That has been
changing for the last decade, according to national transportation. There's a lot of studies, a lot of
groups, some of the handouts | handed you will show you some of that, I'm not going to go through
that we don't have the time. They are now trying to redesign for the pedestrians and the people
moving around in the communities like we do in Apex. It's not about the traffic anymore, because
deathsin ‘21, 7,388 pedestrians were killed. That's one every 71 minutes. Some of the other people
that this is affecting is also the drivers, we're all pedestrians at some point. A child’s brain is not
always developed. They're still growing. One thing | gave you, in ‘23 the average height of a car or
small SUVis 5 to 6 foot. I'm 6 foot. You'll see on that paper, an 8-year-old is 47 inches to 54 inches.
For a full-size truck or SUV, 6 to 7 foot. You've still got an 8-year-old that's at 48 inches. Cargo vans,
Amazon, FedEx, they're 9 foot plus. With cars on the side, kids travelling, kids playing, they're much
smaller than the traffic passing each other, creates a lot of blind spots. One of the things is about
speed reductions in all neighborhoods, one of these studies is showing as you're slowing speed
down, which is not always everything, you're going to hear about a lot of electric vehicles now for
kids at play. So if you've got a car that's driving 25 miles an hour or 30, and one of these electric
vehicles, scooters or bikes at 15 or 20, that impact now is higher. And you'll see in the study from the
national transportation, it will talk about the speed and impact the rate of death at 30 miles an hour
impact, 40% are going to die. 40 miles an hour, here's an electric scooter at 15, now you're even
higher than that, 73% are going to die. So we've got to change form where we used to be to accept
a lot of new things kids are doing, and adults ride. We have been travelling places, and we'll get on
those electric scooters and bikes that will get you around at 15 miles an hour. 18 in some places. But
that now has created an impact that is at a higher speed and runs the death rate up. Plus, in the
study, you'll also see in one of them | handed you, the demographic, a lot of them, the Black,
American Indian, Alaskan Native children and adults are even at some of the greater risk, so this
impacts all of us in all aspects. And there’s a walkability checklist | handed you that comes from the
national transportation, there's things that we can do as a community for all of Apex, not just ours,
but all of Apex, and we want to see our kids and all the rest of the kids growing up to be the next
Apex High School State Champions, or Friendship, where our 20-year-old had went. | want to see all
those go up and do that, and make Apex even bigger and brighter, and | thank y'all for y'alls time.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Chandler for his comments.

Next to speak was Karen Davis of 1914 Woodall Crest Drive:

- Page 88 -




O NON 01 B~ WDN —

A BADMDEDWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNNDNDNDNDDN-=22 =22 2 2
A OWON -2 00V NOCULPWN-—-0V0VONOCTUPS,WN-—-OVONOC~UTdDPWN-—-OO

DRAFT MINUTES

“We moved from Cary to Apex in 2018 because of how Apex was developing into a walkable,
bikeable community with so much to offer. We enjoyed the location of our home, where we can walk
to Wake Zone at Publix Pointe on a Saturday morning for coffee, or bike to downtown for the
sculpture walk, lunch, shopping. But we had to strategize in order to do this safely, in order to go out
of our way in some case to safely reach a place to cross the street to get to a greenway trail. We're
healthy adults, and we can easily go out of our way to reach a crosswalk to cross the street safely, but
this isn't the case for everyone. I'm excited about the future plans for Apex, but with our small part of
town slated to be anchored by two elementary schools, additional greenway trails, potential
commercial space on Salam Street between Apex Barbecue and the 540 interchange, and additional
housing, we're sure to see an uptick in all kinds of traffic. Drivers, walkers, bikers alike all want to
have safe access to all the things that are being offered to us in Apex. So we're asking that the Town
Council take some serious consideration into making proactive decisions for moving around our
town efficiently and safely on foot or by car. One step to this end is to add designated and marked
crosswalks with stripes, specifically across Woodall Crest Drive at Apex Barbecue, Gray Meadow,
and Aspen River Drives, there are already curbside cutouts at these intersections, and ideally these
crosswalks could be raised. We would love to limit parking on Woodall Crest Drive’s non-residential
section by adding bike lanes, and see a three-way stop at one intersection on Woodall Crest Drive,
but for now our priority is to have clearly designated crosswalks and bike lanes to provide visual cues
to drivers to be mindful of pedestrians, bikes, and scooters. | should say that | have addressed this
Council at two meetings in 2020 about safety concerns, and | thank engineers and all of you for
reevaluating and reducing the speed limit to 25 miles an hour on Woodall Crest Drive in the past.
We hope safety is at the forefront of your minds when you are contemplating decisions about
continued growth and development in our town. The engineers have done a remarkable job at
planning a road system that efficiently gets cars from one place to another, but communities are
changing, people are moving towards other priorities when it comes to getting around. To promote
walkability, pedestrian safety cannot end at the curb. Pedestrians of all ages need to be able to cross
the street safely. Thank you.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Davis for her comments.

Next to speak was Tabitha Smith of 1936 Gray Meadow Drive: (To view Ms. Smith’s handout, see
OTHER-2023-059)

“So, I'm the final speaker here today. In summary, we're here to represent our neighborhood,
we have other neighborhoods that are represented who will speak as well. We are advocating for
our neighborhood, and some safety that involved our children. While we understand the accident
that occurred in our neighborhood, our aim is to figure out how to keep our kids safe as we move
forward. We are asking to put in a raised crosswalk that would be marked, there's a map on the map
that I've indicated there's only one marked crosswalk that our kids can use to safely get to school.
Everybody in the Woodall Estates neighborhood is not allowed to be bussed, they do have to walk.
We would like to see a marked crosswalk that they have in place that, like Karen said, will draw
attention to the fact that there are parents, kids, adults, we all use that and walk. We would like to ask
for a bike lane to be put on Woodall Crest Drive to help with traffic, with parking. We do find that
parking does aid in blocking and creating blind sights for both people who are walking/biking, and

F - Page 89 - p




O NO~N U1 WN -

A DA DAEDWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDDNDNDNNDNDNDNDN-=2 =22 2
A WOMN -2 0 0VONJOUl PN WN —-20V0VONOTUOOPPWN-—OVONOCUODS WN-—-O-0

DRAFT MINUTES
the cars who are using the roads. lon regards to safe neighborhoods, we're just respectfully asking
for a review of the 25 mile an hour speed limit that is currently in neighborhoods. We are
appreciative of it being brought down from 35 to 25, but we are also recognizing that there is a lot of
electric bike use, scooters, skateboards, other speed propelling devices that kids and adults are
using that are now evident on our streets. The combined speeds, coupled with 25 miles an hour,
does increase injury and death rates. So, we are asking for just consideration for all neighborhoods
here in Apex to reconsider whether 25 is actually safe. Thank you for your time.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Smith for her comments.
Next to speak was Tanya Jeter of 2775 Jordan Pointe:

“Before | get started | have to say this because it's Pride, my first time getting in front of a
Town Council was 1997, in Colorado Springs, Colorado. And my high school had, someone had
written an article for the school about being gay, and they didn't put their name on it but the whole
town was upset about it. Like “they shouldn’t be in our school”, so | came out in front of a whole
room of angry people that | was gay and | appreciated the article. So anyways, since it's Pride it just
made me think of that and | just wanted to bring that up. Moving on. It's funny, our neighborhood
has the same concerns, and has gone through the same process where we have reached out to
engineering, I'm in Jordan Pointe, we were given a study about traffic and where we are right now
it's a 35 mile an hour zone, and just an example, 35 miles an hour goes through, and then in Jordan
Pointe there's a two-sided sidewalk, double sidewalk, that the whole community uses to ride bikes,
to walk their dogs, and when it gets to this Horton Ridge Road it goes to a single, and there’s no sign
telling you when you're coming into the neighborhood or that you're about to cross a very busy
street. And even for myself, I've seen my 5-year-old just take off in his little ride-about thing without
looking both ways. I've seen my dog cross there, and as we're talking about solutions, really just
having a sign of kids playing, that would be an easy thing to do that would make an immediate
impact to get people to slow down. Also, | love the idea of the crosswalk. You know, our community
on our Facebook we're talking about it too, we're worried as well, and | wanted to show my support
for this community and also just say that it is a big issue that we're all aware of. Thanks a lot.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Jeter for her comments.
Next to speak was Tim Ruscher of 3457 Barn Road

“My name is Tim Ruscher and | live in the Deer Creek community at 3457 Bar Road, just right
next to the new TMSA building out there. Our community had brought up with the city engineers a
couple different times, and now a third time that we're trying to address with them again in terms of
traffic in our neighborhood, it doesn’t connect to anywhere, there's us, there's the Retreat at Cedar
Crossing, and the TMSA. The first concern we had brought up to them is that when they were
developing The Retreat at Cedar Crossing, they made the entrance to their neighborhood a right-in-
right-out, so that you can't turn left in to their neighborhood, sending all of their traffic down Barn
Road. What we had asked for them to do was, why don’t you make there’s the left team, we'll take
the right-in-right-out because we can always use the other entrance to our neighborhood if that's not

F - Page 90 - p




O NON 01l WDN =

A PR DD D WWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNNDNDNDNDDN-=22 =2 2 2
A OWON - OVONODUDPWN-—-~OVONOCTUUPWN-—_OVONOC~UFdDPWN—-OO

DRAFT MINUTES
convenient for us. And frankly we were actually literally laughed at by the City engineer for making
those suggestions or thinking that our input was important. The second time we conversed with
them was when the development at TSA was starting, and concerns over traffic routing and how that
was going to work. One of the main concerns was we were worried people were going to come
down Barn Road because of the way there's a weird triangle there, and you have to turn in off of 64
and then practically make a U-turn to get around there or whatever, and we were asking can they
make a left cut-across on 64 so that all the people that would invariably be coming from the eastern
direction, would be able to just cut across 64 and go scoot right in and stay off of Barn Road, and
again he said well we have nothing to do with that, that would be NCDOT, but you'll never get them
to approve something like that. Next day, called NCDOT and of course, they had been contacted by
the school that had requested that, and it was already in process, it was literally like the next week
that it was starting to be built and it's great, without that | think it would be a disaster, the disaster is
just over on their side and not really in our neighborhood which is good. But with the candor we
experienced in conversing with the engineers, and that | know our friends over in Woodall Estates
has had, it's condescending, it's smug, and it's dismissive. Every single time that we interact with the
City traffic engineers. Couple that with the fact that the federal highway administration and the
documents you have in front of you have common recommendations that are out there. And a quick
Google search, you don't even need to print that or go into the PDF, it's right on the summary page
that in residential neighborhoods, such as where there is not a center line or where there are houses
on either side, they federally recommend that that be no higher of a speed limit than 20 miles an
hour, and | know you're just operating on the recommendations of the engineers and what they're
telling you is that every residential road nationwide is 25 miles an hour across the country. Well |
moved here from Minneapolis, a lot of people have moved here from other places, and it's
laughable that they would try and insist that that's still the case. | mean there's people from
everywhere in Apex, and that's simply not true. Default speeds where | moved from are 15 miles an
hour in a residential neighborhood, and so like they've been saying, things can be done, more
things can be done, what | would request and what | would recommend is that perhaps it's time for a
change in staffing, because they're not in tune with what's being federally recommended, they're
being dismissive and lying to the media about how much they’re being contacted by the residents,
they're also lying to you by not conveying the concerns we all have, and maybe they're just not the
right people for the job. Thanks.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Ruscher for his comments.
Next to speak was Marvin Hymanson of 2907 Sunflower Road:

"Good evening Mayor and Councilmembers, thank you for the opportunity for me to speak,
my name is Marvin Hymanson, and | live at 2907 Sunflower Road, Apex, North Carolina, 27502. | will
be brief. | am inquiring about the backlog of construction projects that are delayed, such as the
Peakway Bridge, Pleasant Park, and the turn lanes for Friendship Roads. Additionally, the lack of
businesses towards New Hill, and much needed transportation projects for our growing community
haven't been completed. How does the Council plan to address this backlog? | provided my email
on the sign-up sheet for response, and | am also here to support the next speaker, Ms. Ray Stitt.
Thank you very much, Council, for allowing me this opportunity,”

P - Page 91 - 2




O NON 01 WN —

AR DDA DWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNNDNDNDNDNDNDN-_2 =22 2
A WN -2 00V ONODUP,WN 00V O0ONOGDUUPWN-—_OVONOCUGPWN-—-O-0

DRAFT MINUTES

Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Hymanson for his comments.
Next to speak was Elizabeth Ray Stitt of 3113 Friendship Road:

“Mayor, Town Council, good evening. So, you've heard from a lot of speakers tonight about
the needs to improve the safety of our roads. I've been in front of you guys many times saying hey,
your budget survey from January of last year said transportation was the number 2 priority. This
year's budget survey said transportation was the number 1 community priority. The economic
development report that was presented to you in December said transportation was the number 1
concern for economic development. We all know from the truck study done back in 2016 with
Pleasant Park that Friendship Road is rated at a level of service of F, which is the lowest level of
service you can have. | have to thank a couple of people here tonight for helping us get our stop
sign back up and our street sign put back up, and | know there’s been some contact with the DOT.
But our turn lanes are still slated out for 2026, even though you know that we have a level of service
of F. So, when everybody talks about the concerns, we know that transportation needs to be funded
as number 1, currently in the budget last year it wasn't funded as number 1, this year it's budgeted
as number 1 priority, | know there’s not a lot of time between now and June 27 to tweak numbers,
but the turn lanes for Friendship Road are listed at $250,000, and if you look at the general fund
fund balance there are monies there that you could prioritize the safety of adding the street
crossings that they're talking about, putting bumps in the road, putting in our turn lanes, we do need
to prioritize the safety of our people more than bringing more people in, and | feel like the focus in
on the Big Branch. The Big Branch Force Main was listed at $26 million dollars in last year's budget,
and this year it's at 40 million, and | have yet to see any discussion of why it jumped 14 million in one
year. We need to put that on the backburner and prioritize our people who are here, we do not
need anybody else getting hurt, so | ask you to please do what you can in the next two weeks, to try
to accommodate some of the requests we have. Thank you.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Stitt for her comments.

Next to speak was Ashutosh Bahaduk of 1941 Melta Mill Lane

“Good evening House members, I'm the President of Woodall Estates. Just like my fellow
neighbors here, we're shocked by two weeks ago the horrible incident in our community. Ayan was
hit by a car and died, and we were all shocked, | have an 8-year-old who goes to Scott's Ridge, and
we're kind of afraid to cross now, Woodall Crest Drive from Melta Mill Lane. And just like all the
residents here, we request more crosswalks, so we can cross safely from Melta Mill Lane to go to
Scott's Ridge, and maybe a speed bump at the intersection of Woodall Crest Lane, and Melta Mill
Lane and Woodall Crest, and Gray Meadow and Woodall Crest, that would help more people to
slow down when they're crossing. And another thing I've seen is people coming taking a left turn
from Apex Barbecue towards Woodall Crest, and they're trying to beat the oncoming traffic and
make a very fast left turn coming inside the community, so maybe a traffic light would help, you
know that would slow down people coming in and they get their own turn to make a left turn. So, all
in all, I'm in the same sentiment that my neighbors have expressed, that we need some plan to make

P - Page 92 - 2




O N0~ DWN -

A DA PAEDADOWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNNDN-=2 =2 22 2
A OWON -~ OCVONOCCUPNWON - OVDOONO>UUPDdWODN-~OVOVCOONOCOUODDWUDN-—-~OQO

DRAFT MINUTES
Woodall Estates safer for our kids. | thank you very much for your service, | really enjoy staying in
Apex, thanks for that, but | sincerely believe this will help address our concern. Thank you very much,
have a good evening.”

Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Bahaduk for his comments.

With no sign ups remaining, Mayor Gilbert closed public forum. He emphasized that he and
Council is listening, and that he invited several of the speakers tonight in order to hear concerns and
information in front of Council and staff. He said they are taking this seriously. Mayor Gilbert then
invited everyone to join him in a moment of silence for Ayaan Vachery.

After the moment of silence, Mayor Gilbert said they had been listening and taking notes,
and will be communicating with staff throughout the process moving forward. He invited members
of Council to share their thoughts.

Councilmember Gray thanked the community for coming out and talking. He said it helps
provide Council with the necessary details. He said incidents like this necessitate a deep dive into all
of the factors. He said the town has failed in its “Vision Zero” goal. He said the town should look hard
at this incident in order to learn lessons to prevent them in the future. He added that all options are
back on the table. He said that he believes, and all others on Council agree, that the death of one
child is one too many, and the same goes for the injury of one. He said often the strategy the town
uses is looking at traffic safety standards, but Vision Zero enables them to look at how things can be
fixed and move away from status quo. He said community comments and suggestions are important
in putting together the best and safest plan. He said Council would be instructing staff to provide
details and data regarding potential solutions, including ones suggested by community members
tonight, and that it would be discussed in a future Work Session.

Mayor Gilbert noted that there were other requests made tonight, and that staff would be
directed to follow up on those as well.

Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said they were all devastated when they heard the news,
and the biggest thing they can do is to get the right information that can help make decisions that
ensure this doesn’t happen again. She said they will be working hard to achieve this. She said staff is
good at reassessing concerns like this.

Councilmember Gantt said a focus on safety was a priority of this Council. He said the town
has made first of their kind safe routes to school investments in the past several years. He said the
Council has the most control over are the new neighborhoods, and how they are able to direct
developers through rezoning. He said he has noticed that a lot of these traffic and pedestrian safety
concerns have come from developments that preceded everyone on the current Council. He said he
hopes they are able to apply these unfortunate lessons in new neighborhoods moving forward. He
said they will still be looking at ways to invest in traffic safety across town, and that reducing
pedestrian injury and deaths is a quantifiable metric to indicate efficient spending.

Councilmember Zegerman said he spoke to some residents before the meeting, and he
appreciates all of their input. He reiterated the importance of investments in sidewalks and
pedestrian safety. He said it was important to recognize that the usage of town roads are changing,
and alternate forms of personal transportation are becoming more popular. He said a lot of the
roads in town are not built to accommodate that. He said there is work still to be done on filling in
the gaps there. He added that it was important to note that this was a town-wide issue, and would

P - Page 93 - 2




O NO~N 01 W N -

N NN N A
W N =20 000Nl WN-—-O-O0

W W W NN DNDDNDDNDDN
N = O 0 00 N O~ U1 b~

AR DD WWWWWW W
WN =2 O 00OJOo0 bW

DRAFT MINUTES
impact the use of future funds. He said he appreciated all of their comments, and that the death of a
child hits home.

Councilmember Mahaffey thanked his fellow Councilmembers for their comments, and said
Councilmember Gray's description of what needed to be done was on point. He said it was
important to acknowledge that this was a failure, because a child in the community died. He said he
can't explain what he felt when he heard the news, or how he is feeling now. He said he wished there
was an easy solution to this, but that they had to analyze the systems that led to this. He said it
involve retrofitting older communities, designing new communities differently in the future, and
considering new forms of transportation. He said all the speakers were brave for coming out and
speaking about something that hurts and is difficult to talk about, and he promised this wouldn’t be
the last time they discussed this.

Councilmember Gray added that one system that hasn't been discussed is a change in
mindset. He said the town has to change how they think about roads. He said it's shocking that some
people would stop in the street to let geese cross, but not give 4 feet of space when passing a
bicycle. He said the speakers tonight give him hope that there is a potential for mindset change, and
asked them to continue telling their story, and that the Council will shout it.

Mayor Gilbert once again thanked all of those who came out tonight, and moved the
meeting on to public hearings

[PUBLIC HEARINGS] (To view public hearing sign ups, see OTHER-2023-055)

PH1 Right-of-Way (ROW) Road Closure Request - Portion of Burma Drive

Mayor Gilbert noted that the public notice requirements were not fully met for this item, so
staff was requesting it to be moved to the August 8, 2023 Regular Town Council Meeting.

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Audra Killingsworth, seconded by
Councilmember Ed Gray, to be continued to the August 8, 2023 Regular Town Council Meeting.

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0)

PH2 Water and Sewer System Fee Analysis and System Development Fees

Michael Deaton, Water Resources Director, introduced Ms. Elaine Vazquez to give a
presentation.

- Page 94 -




w N

o N O~ U p~

1M
12
13
14
15
16

DRAFT MINUTES

[SLIDE 1]
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
FEE ANALYSIS

[SLIDE 2]

System Development Fee Analysis

» Must be prepared in accordance with Article 8 of GS 162A-8 as amended by HB
436 and modified by HB 344

» The Town’s Analysis was prepared by Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc.
» Served as a consultant to local governments in NC and across the US since 1993

» General Statutes require the Analysis be prepared by a financial or licensed
engineering professional qualified to do so by their experience, training and
education

» The analysis must document the facts and data used, application of the
costing methods to the facts and data, all assumptions and any limiting
conditions

» Use a5 to 20-year time horizon

- Page 95 -




DRAFT MINUTES
1 [SLIDE 3]

System Development Fee Analysis

» Prior to adoption of the Analysis and the Fee, the provider must post the
Analysis to its website for a period of 45 days

» A means for readers to comment to the unit must be provided

» All comments must be shared with the professional who prepared the Analysis

» All comments must be evaluated to determine if a change in the Analysis or Fee is
necessary

» No comments were received

» Also, a public hearing must be held by the unit prior to adoption of the
Analysis and Fee

» The Analysis and Fee must be reviewed and updated at least once every 5
years.

2
3 [SLIDE 4]

System Development Fees

» One time fees charged to new customers, developers or builders to recover a
share of the cost of providing service availability and capacity

» HB 436 creates uniform ability for all public water and sewer providers to
charge system development fees

»  All system development fees charged on and after July 1, 2018 must be
calculated in accordance with HB 436

» The Analysis must document the fee per service unit and include a table for
various level of demand or an equivalent unit costs per unit of demand

» Fees are determined using one of three costing methods, the Buy-In
Approach, the Incremental Cost Approach or the CombinedApproach

4
5 [SLIDE 5]

Water System Development
Fee Cost Method

» The Water Development Fee was determined using the Buy-In Method

» The capacity for current and future customers during the 5- year planning horizon
has already been constructed

» Based upon fixed assets in place on June 30, 2022

» The depreciated value is adjusted to the replacement costs new less depreciation
(RCNLD)

» Adjustments to the RCNLD
» Add construction in progress and developer reimbursements
» Deduct contributed assets and outstanding principal

» Costs per gallon per day are determined based upon treatment capacity and
the adjusted RCNLD

O 0 0 NO

- Page 96 -




1

2
3

4
5

O 00 4O

DRAFT MINUTES
[SLIDE 6]

Water System Development Fee

Buy-n etho

Adjusted RCNLD $90,038,989
Total Treatment 12,880,000
Capacity (gallons)

Costs per Gallon per Day $6.99
(GPD)

GPD per ERU (1) 256
Calculated Fee per ERU $1,788
Existing Fee per ERU $1,783

(1) Based on information provided in the Service Area Planning Forecast Technical
Alemorandum: Long Range Water Resources Plan prepared by HDR in October of 2022.

[SLIDE 7]

Sewer System Development
Fee Cost Method

» The Sewer System Development Fee was determined using the Combined
Method, a combination of the Buy-In and Incremental Cost Methods

» Big Branch 2 pump station and force main is needed over the next 5 years to serve
new sewer customers

» The Buy-In Method calculation was prepared in the same manner as was used
for the Water Development Fee calculation

» The Incremental Costs Method used the costs of assets whose construction
was in progress or would begin during the 5-year planning horizon.

» Incorporate 25% for a debt/revenue credit as required by HB 436

» The costs and capacity are then combined and an average cost per day
calculated.

[SLIDE 8]

Sewer System Development Fee

Cost

Adjusted RCNLD/Cost of Improvements $133,316,000 $36,720,000 $170,036,040

Less: Debt/Revenue Credit -$39,982,689  -$2,526,321 -$42,509,010
Net Cost $93,333,351  $34,193,679 $127,527,030
Treatment Capacity (1) 8,920,000
Weighted Average Cost per Day $14.30
GPD per ERU (2) 300
Calculated Fee $4,290
Current Fee $3,675

(1) The Big Branch 2 pump station vill provide additional pumping capacity of 1.44 MGD but vill not add any additional
treatment capacity.

(2)Reflects the amount of permitted capacity required by the state of North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality
(NCDEQ) for planning and engineering design purposes and the sevrer permitting flovs reduction authorized by NCDEQ.

- Page 97 -




1

O NO~ 01 hWN

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

DRAFT MINUTES

[SLIDE 9]

Apex (proposed) $1,788 $4,290 $6,078
Cary (1) $2,548 $3,581 $6,129
Holly Springs (2) $6,162 $5,538 $11,700
Fuquay-Varina (3) $3,912 $3,891 $7,803
Chatham County $3,431 Not Applicable

Harnett County $2,000 $2,500 $4,500
Hillsborough $3,864 $3,243 $7,107

(1) Source: Tovn of Cary FY 2024 Recommended Budget - Schedule of Fees and Charges \
(2) Source: Tovm of Holly Springs FY 2024 Recommended Budget - Fee Schedule \
(3) Source: Tovm of Fuquay-Varina FY 2024 Recommended Budget - Fee Schedule \

Councilmember Zegerman asked how an average unit could create more sewage than tap
water it takes in.

Ms. Vazquez said one the sewer side of things, state guidelines have a requirement over
what is necessary to avoid overflows. She said it looks at what the system is designed rather than at
overall water use.

Councilmember Zegerman asked if developers understand this distinction.

Ms. Vazquez said that most are familiar with state guidelines, and that they cite the sources
in the report. She added that the standard specifications also mention the 300 gallons per day.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he was assuming they should choose the one that calculates
the highest fee. He was wondering if they didn’t have multiple options in certain circumstances.

Ms. Vazquez said they do have discretion, but in their report, they used what they felt was
most appropriate, factoring in project timelines.

Councilmember Mahaffey wondered if the fees wouldn't be calculated based on the town’s
plan to build a new water tower or something similar.

Ms. Vazquez said yes, they looked at projects planned for the next 5 years, and there were
no water projects with significant capacity planned in that timeframe.

Councilmember Zegerman asked if the planned water tower by Pleasant Park was included.

Director Deaton said that was already funded, so it was not included in the current CIP. He
said they are in the design process for that now.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was an explanation for the water development fees
for Apex being so much lower than the surrounding areas it was compared to.

Ms. Vazquez said it depends on what is in their CIP and the denominators used.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he thought the town used the same system as Cary.

Ms. Vazquez said the treatment system was the same, but all of the other factors are where
the differences are.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the GPD per ERU value was something they could set,
and they could just set it at 300 gallons.

Ms. Vazquez said per the legislation, it needs to be what is used for planning and
engineering purposes.

- Page 98 -




O NO~NU D WN -

A A DA DMDPDWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNNDN-=22 =2 2 2
A OWN -0 V00O NOCCUP»DWN-—-0V0VOONOCCUUP»PWN-—-OVOONOGUULDWDN-—-O-O

DRAFT MINUTES

Councilmember Mahaffey said they could tell everyone to plan and engineer for 300
gallons.

Councilmember Gantt said this would open the town up to potential lawsuits, and that
something like this has happened before.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he just thinks that people should have adequate access to
water.

Ms. Vazquez said engineering studies and state guidelines typically inform what the gallons
per day is set at.

Councilmember Mahaffey wanted to know where the 256 gallons per day came from.

Ms. Vazquez said it was based on the master plan, looking at multiple factors, and these
numbers are the most current for water as the master plan was released in October 2022.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked Director Deaton where the number came from.

Director Deaton said the consultant group who did the study came up with the number
using raw water usage data, number of units, and population. He said on the sewer side, the 300 is a
permitting number. He said new developments have to have sewer capacity for 300 gallons a day.
He said the state requirement is 360 gallons per day, but around 2000, the town got a reduction to
300 based on flow data. He said the number is 250 for condo and apartment units.

Councilmember Zegerman asked if the CIP included the Western Wake Reclamation Plant.

Director Deaton replied that it was outside the 5-year timeframe.

Councilmember Zegerman wondered why this wouldn’t be accounted for now, since it is a
major project in the future and one that would need a lot of funding. He said he was concerned
about this skyrocketing fees on the next revision of this in 5 years, since it would all be accounted for
in a shorter timeframe. He said the town may want to use a 10-year timeframe, since that is allowed
by the legislation, in order to account for this project.

Ms. Vazquez said they could change the timeframe, but they chose to look at a 5-year time
period since projects in the future have a higher likelihood of shifting their timeframes.

Councilmember Zegerman said it would still be prudent to start collecting money for a
major project like this earlier, rather than having to do something like taking out a bond in the future.

Ms. Vazquez said system development fees collected could still go towards projects outside
of the 5-year scope.

Councilmember Zegerman asked if the project was anticipated to be fully covered by the
fees that are collected and saved up, or if debt was anticipated in order to fund it. He said if the plan
was to take on debt, then the current fee proposal was too low.

Ms. Vazquez said customers would continue to connect even after these 5 years, and would
offset any cost of potential debt incurred at the beginning of a project.

Councilmember Zegerman asked if that analysis has been done. He said it feels like it would
be a decision made with incomplete information without it.

Director Deaton said the CPI takes into account the Long-Range Water Resources planning
process.

Councilmember Zegerman said his question was if the future CIP needs were adequately
covered based on the fees recommended.

Director Deaton said he didn't have that answer.

Transportation and Infrastructure Director Johnson said they didn’t know the cost of it yet.

Councilmember Zegerman said they could estimate it, and that it should still be considered.

P - Page 99 - 2




O NO~N01 D WN -

A A D WWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNNNDNDNDNDN-=2 =2 2
N - O 00 NO~U DD WN 200V 0N D WN-—-~O0O0OVONOCUVCMTDWN—- OV

DRAFT MINUTES

Councilmember Gantt said he wondered if the request should be to extend to a 10-year
CIP. He said he usually thinks 5 is too long, but in this case, it makes sense.

Councilmember Zegerman said he feels this analysis should include a 10-year timeframe in
order to capture the Western Wake Reclamation facility, since it is such a large project.

Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said Councilmember Zegerman has a good point, and
that it may be a good idea to plan for that large expansion now rather than in 5 years.

Councilmember Mahaffey said growth in Apex is starting to slow down, and looking at the
projections and the fees over the next 5 years, he believed it would result in lost revenue. He said he
is concerned the homes connecting in 5 years wouldn't be able to compensate for the increase in
the fee, if it was adjusted then to include the Western Wake project.

Councilmember Zegerman said he agreed, and said not accounting for it now may
jeopardize the possibilities of it coming to fruition.

Town Manager Crosby asked if there was a way to do the analysis accounting for 10 years
down the road.

Ms. Vazquez said yes, but there would be questions about the process for advertising and
republishing a new report.

Councilmember Mahaffey wanted to confirm that this could be revised annually, and that a
different analysis could be used for next year's budget.

Ms. Vazquez said yes.

Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said it would be much better to fund it than to take on
new debt.

Mayor Gilbert opened public hearing for this item. With no one signed up, he closed public
hearing and moved discussion back to Council.

Councilmember Gray said that knowing they could change this annually, it would be good
to approve this now, and allow staff a year to do a new report for the next budget. He said he was
concerned about looking as if there was an arbitrary increase in fees simply just to increase revenue.
He said it's important to have a reason for it, which could be found in an analysis including the future
projects farther down the road.

Councilmember Zegerman said he would want this process next year to start earlier, so they
aren't having to discuss these things 2 weeks before passing the budget.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he wanted to have a broader discussion regarding the
slowing growth of the town. He said they need to plan for how to manage that, as fee revenue across
the board will be decreasing. He said he wanted to know if staff could look at the impact on the
budget over the next few years of this projected growth. He said a work session on that topic would
be good. He said he agreed that they should pass this tonight, since staying with last year's fees
would be lower than this.

A motion was made by Councilmember Ed Gray, seconded by Councilmember Terry
Mahaffey, to approve the Water and Sewer System Development Fees.

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0)

F - Page 100 - F




—_

O V0 O N OO0 UM o WDN

N T O
w N =

W W W W W WwWwWwWwWWwWNDNDNDNDNDNNDNDNDDN =22 2
O 00O NONUT D WN =2 O V0VONOM)M P WN—-2O VOO U b

DRAFT MINUTES
OLD BUSINESS
OB1—Fiscal Year 2023-2024 - A O tina-Budaetand Fee Schedule- Adopti
This item was pulled and placed on June 27, 2023 Regular Council Meeting.

This item was pulled and placed on June 27, 2023 Regular Council Meeting.

[NEW BUSINESS]
NB1 Interlocal Agreement with Wake County Board of Education (BOE) - Infrastructure
Provision to Support Public School Facilities - Felton Grove High School Project -

Thriftwood Drive and Derry Down Lane

Councilmember Zegerman said this was the item he requested to be moved to new
business. He said he wanted to pull this from consent mostly for the sake of transparency. He said it
was important to discuss items with costs this high. He said either way they would have to fund this,
because of state law requiring them to fund road improvements near new school developments. He
said the allocations have already been made, and he just wanted to be transparent about 2.25
million dollars, and how they didn't have a choice in spending it.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he would never pass up an opportunity to complain about
this law. He said it's a terrible law, and essentially it means state dollars for school construction
cannot go to surrounding and supporting roads and infrastructure. He said towns have to build the
roads. He said it's the same process as roads being constructed as part of a development, but at the
end the town has to pay for it rather than a developer. He said this isn't the first time it has
happened, and it won't be the last. He said there will likely be improvements needed with any new
school. He added that the state would be incentivized to make better choices if the cost of the
infrastructure was also connected to the cost of the land for the school for them. He said it also
encourages town to avoid new schools, and that some towns can't afford the requirements new
schools bring for this. He said the cost fully falls on the municipality the school is physically in, even if
it serves students from other municipalities.

Councilmember Gantt said he agreed about Councilmember Mahaffey's point regarding
incentives, and led to a divided vote on the Council for the school in 2020. He said he felt the school
was in a poor location, and that he was on the losing side of that vote in voting against in for that
reason.

Councilmember Gray said he didn’t think this was that bad. He said it was good that they
would be able to control the street. He said he trusts the town's traffic engineers more than the
states. He said this was a cost he didn't mind.

Councilmember Zegerman said this was 2.25 million dollars that could have been spent
elsewhere. He said the school is in the very southeast of the municipality, and would mostly support

F - Page 101 - F




O NO~NDWN -

N NN D s s
N = O 000 NO~NUT A WN = O

NN NN
o~ 01 bW

W WN NN
- O 0 00

wWwwwwww
ONO~U1T D~ WN

A bW
- O 90

e o
A w0 N

DRAFT MINUTES
students from Cary and Holly Springs. He reiterated they didn't have a choice here, but wanted to
discuss for transparency.

A motion was made by Councilmember Ed Gray, seconded by Councilmember Terry
Mahaffey, to approve the Interlocal Agreement with Wake County Board of Education for
Infrastructure Provisions for Felton Grove High School

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0)
[UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER]

Town Manager Crosby said Pride Weekend was great, and she enjoys events being at the
town campus. She said she was looking forward to the Juneteenth event this Saturday from 11-6.
She said the town would be closed Monday, June 19" in recognition of Juneteenth. She gave a
shout out to Shannon Cox, who was recognized as a “mover and shaker” in Cary Magazine.

[CLOSED SESSION]

A motion was made by Councilmember Gray, seconded by Councilmember Arno
Zegerman, to enter into Closed Session for the two items as noted below (CS1 and CS2).

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0)

Council moved into closed session at 7:52 p.m.

CS1 Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney, Legal Department

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3):
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order
to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body.”

CS2 Audra Killingsworth, Mayor Pro-Tempore

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3):
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order
to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body.”

Council returned to open session at 8:41 p.m.

Councilmember Gray said he wanted to ask Personnel Committee to look at the process for
how town employees can bring up grievances or concerns to the proper level. He said this may can
include the use of someone like an inspector general. He said he thinks this should also be
something that is available to immediate former employees as well.

F - Page 102 - F




—_—
O VoONOUTDdWN —

—_
A wWN -

DRAFT MINUTES

[ADJOURNEMENT]
Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 8:43 p.m.

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council

Submitted for approval by Town Clerk Allen Coleman and approved on

F - Page 103 - F

Jacques K. Gilbert
Mayor




A W N PR

O 0 J o

10

11

12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32

33

34
35

36
37

DRAFT MINUTES

TOWN OF APEX
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023
3:30 P.M.

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, June 20, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. at the
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.

This meeting was open to the public. Members of the public were able to attend this
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town'’s YouTube Channel:

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PSWZ9vNnsHg

[ATTENDANCE]

Elected Body
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)

Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth

Councilmember Brett Gantt

Councilmember Ed Gray

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey

Councilmember Arno Zegerman (left the meeting early - see note in the minutes)
Absent: None

Town Staff

Town Manager Catherine Crosby

Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis

Assistant Town Manager Demetria John

Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone

Town Attorney Laurie Hohe

Town Clerk Allen Coleman

Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry

Information Technologies Director Erika Sacco

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.

[COMMENCEMENT]

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:36 p.m. and led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Town Manager Crosby said the meeting today was simply a status update for
Council, and all of the projects would need to come back to Council in the future.

Page 1 of 30

- Page 104 -



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PSWZ9vNnsHg

O 00 J a s WN

P = = Y
w N L O

14
15

16
17
18
19
20

21
22

23
24
25

26
27

28
29

30
31

32
33

34
35
36

DRAFT MINUTES

[ITEM NO. 1 - ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE (AMI) UPDATE]

Assistant Town Manager Stone gave updates regarding the AMI upgrade. He said
they hope to have a contract in place within the next month. He said his team has worked
really hard on getting terms that are good for the town. He said once the contract is in place,
they will begin implementing infrastructure improvements and testing the meters to ensure
accuracy, before rolling them out to utility customers.

Councilmember Gantt asked if the new builds in the past two years have had these
installed.

Assistant Town Manager Stone said what has been put on those builds has been
completely different technology from this. He said this new technology will no longer require
the drive by, he said the actual water meters will still be compatible, but they will need to
replace the electronic components in the older models to have them work with the AMI. He
said all components would need to be switched out for electric meters.

Councilmember Mahaffey said this sounds like a big project, and asked if the town
would be able to get 26,000 meters.

Assistant Town Manager Stone said once the contract goes through, it would be
about 12 months before rollout is able to begin to allow time to get the base system running
and have everything get verified. He said after that, it would be a two-year (or less) process to
get all of the units switched out. He said contractually the vendor would have to be done
within that two-year window after system verification.

Councilmember Zegerman asked if that would mean the total time was two years
from when the contract was signed.

Assistant Town Manager Stone said it would be two years from when the system was
accepted by the town, which would mean about three years total from when the contract was
signed.

Councilmember Mahaffey said that didn't sound that bad to him, and that he would
be worried if this was something that could take up to a decade.

Assistant Town Manager Stone said the delay for this project ended up being good
because it allowed time for IT to work out the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system.

Councilmember Mahaffey wanted to clarify that currently the drive by system was
able to read the meter electronically, and that is wasn't a proprietary technology.

Assistant Town Manager Stone said all systems are proprietary, this is just a different
vendor with a different technology.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if these would be compatible with each other as it
was rolling out, or if there would be a need to track which customers had which system and
use different methods for both.

Page 2 of 30

- Page 105 -




(O I~ w N -

O 00 N O

10
11

12

13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20

DRAFT MINUTES

Assistant Town Manager Stone said there will be a meter data management system
on the next Council agenda, and that would help in organizing the data from the different
sources to allow it all to be integrated into the new ERP.

Councilmember Gantt wondered if people would be notified when meter switch outs
would be occurring, so they weren’t scared by someone coming to their home unexpectedly.

Assistant Town Manager Stone said there will be a whole communication plan
before the meter rollout happens with all of that information.

[ITEM NO. 2 - ENTERPRISE RESOURCES PLANNING SYSTEM (ERP) UPDATE]

IT Director Erika Sacco gave an overview presentation regarding the Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) Assessment Project

[ERP - SLIDE 1]

(&)

APEX

NORTH CAROLINA

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Assessment Project
Overview - JUNE 20, 2023

Page 3 of 30

- Page 106 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [ERP - SLIDE 2]

AGENDA

= Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Assessment Project Objectives
= Project Scope

= Major Deliverables

= Request for Proposal (RFP) Vendor Responses and Scores

= Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Vendor Finalist Decision

= Next Steps - Launching the ERP System Implementation

2
3 [ERP-SLIDE 3]

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
OVERALL PROJECT OBJECTIVES

= Develop business & technical requirements
= Define scope of the new ERP system
«  What current systems will be replaced/what systems will be kept
= |dentify feasible vendors
= Develop and Issue Request for Proposal (RFP)
= Short List Desired Vendors and Conduct Demonstrations
= Select Finalist Vendor
= Negotiate and Execute Contract with Finalist Vendor

T
4 l@flAP.Ex 3 F.d.-_‘l r_\.? A—_-MA
5
6
7
Page 4 of 30

- Page 107 -




1

DRAFT MINUTES

[ERP - SLIDE 4]

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
PROJECT SCOPE: MAJOR FUNCTIONAL AREAS

Finance &

Accounting
Cross- i
Functicnal |

Town of Apex
ERP
Project Scope

Utl|rl‘_|.’
Services

Hurman
Resources

OAPEX

Ma.mtenan
Er\glne-erlng
FuamMORAM

= These functional areas
do not map 1:7 with the
Town’s departments

PrﬂturemeQ

'Community
Development

«  Multiple departments
will share the system’s
capabilities in these
areas

= Time to break the silos

Councilmember Zegerman left the meeting at 3:47 PM.

[ERP - SLIDE 5]

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT

PROJECT SCOPE: FINANCE & BUDGET

Finance &

Acoounting
Cross- i
Functional |

Town of Apex "|, -

Procurement .

Functions/Topics

+ Budgeting

Revenue Management
» P-Card Management
+ Accounts Payable

» General Ledger

+ Bank Reconciliations

Hurnan prﬂ_]ECt SCGPE | Community v Internal ﬂud|t|ng
Resources . Development
s
Utiity ] Maint;nanoe
SEuner Engineering
.
}IAPEX FAMNGORAM
B worTH cano SSULTING OR
Page 5 of 30

- Page 108 -




1

[ERP - SLIDE 6]

DRAFT MINUTES

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
PROJECT SCOPE: PROCUREMENT

Cross-

Human
Resources

@ APEX

[ERP - SLIDE 7]

Functonal)

Finance & . .
Accounting FI.I I‘ICtIOI‘IS/TOpICS
+ Contracts

Procurement + Vendor Data Management
+ Purchasing
+ Inventory Planning & Control

Town of Apex ) . + Service Orders
ERP .
Project Scope | community
\ Developmenl

LUtility
Services

)=

Malnlenan
Englneenng

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
PROJECT SCOPE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Cross-

Human
Resources

QAFEX

Functonal)

== Functions/Topics
* Projects & Parcels
Procurement . P|anning
» Permits
- » Inspections
Town of Apex ) + Fee Application & Collection
i |' . GlS
Project Scope | Bc;.:lg;;;n::ynt
\/
4
Utility Maintenance
e Engl'riten'ng
Page 6 of 30

- Page 109 -




[ERP - SLIDE 8}

DRAFT MINUTES

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
PROJECT SCOPE: MAINTENANCE & ENGINEERING

Functional

Human
Resources

@ APEX

[ERP - SLIDE 9]

Cm;s)

Procurement .

Town of Apex \ .
ERP : :
Project Scope | |community
l Deuelopment

Utility
Services

Mantenance)

Engineering

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
PROJECT SCOPE: UTILITY SERVICES

Functions/Topics

Finance &
Accounting
-

Road Maintenance
Infrastructure Maintenance
Facilities Maintenance
Grounds Maintenance
Fleet Management

Cross-

Hurnan
Resources

QAFEX

Fu nctlona)

Finance &
Accounting
.
Procurement *
L]
-
Town of Apex \ .
ERP .
Project Scope | Community
| Development

Utility

Services

Maintenance

Engineering

- 9

Page 7 of 30

- Page 110 -

Functions/Topics

Utilities Maintenance
Connects/Disconnects
Revenue Collection
Meter Services

Asset Maintenance

PAMNOCRAMA
CONEULTING GROUR



1

3

NO

DRAFT MINUTES

[ERP - SLIDE 10]

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
PROJECT SCOPE: HUMAN RESOURCES

=l Procurement » Onboarding/Offboarding
» Employee Maintenance
e » Pay Administration
Town of Apex \ + Benefits/Tax Deduction Management

i ERP [ » Position Control
Human PI'OJeCt Scope | /Community
Resources A 'Development

Utility Malntenance
services Engineering
n
Q APEX

[ERP - SLIDE 11]

Fi & . -
rccaoniing \ Functions/Topics
) » Talent Acquisition
Cross .

© PANORAMA
CONSULTING GROUP

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT

PROJECT SCOPE: CROSS-FUNCTIONAL

Functional (FEEITETIET o .
« System Administration
\ + Integration & Communications

P \ Functions/Topics
+ System Navigation & User Experience
Cross-  Security & Compliance

Town of Apex ) + Workflows, Notifications & Alerts
ERP | » Document Management
Human Project Scope | /community + Queries, Reporting & Dashboards
Resources | /Development
utility [ Maint;nance
Services . .
Engineering

#¥N APEX
'e aall 1 PANORAMA
Y\ or1n caROLING B TS e

Page 8 of 30

- Page 111 -




1

3

NO

DRAFT MINUTES

[ERP - SLIDE 12]

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT
MAJOR DELIVERABLES

<CUSTOMER NAME: ERP REQUIREMENTS
FUNCTIONAL AREA 1

Prioritized System Requirements

Request for Proposal

# APEX

NORTH CAROLINA

[ERP - SLIDE 13]

TOWN OF APEX ERP ASSESSMENT

MAJOR DELIVERABLES - CURRENT STATE PROCESS MAPS

Current State IT Landscape

FPANORAMA

CONSULTING GRGUP

CURRENT STATE: Budget
Tenwn of Apex

pmmna vt || Soatper | o it |Gt D L | e e || i
T = ==
i o LR R [
-
A
Page 9 of 30

- Page 112 -

Current state processes and work steps
were documented along with:

= Work tasks
= Supporting systems
s Document/data flow

= Pain points

PANORAMA
CONBULTING GROUF



1

3

]

N O

DRAFT MINUTES

[ERP - SLIDE 14]

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL VENDOR RESPONSES

@, CENTRALSDUARE

o., ty Ier TrranaLoDIEs

ﬂ rpbconsultants BS&A SMART ENERGY WATER

SOFTWARE,

2 APEX

NORTH GARGLINA 14

PANOGCRAMA
COMNSULTING GRGUP

[ERP - SLIDE 15]

% FIT SCORES BY FUNCTIONAL AREA
ALL PRIORITIES

Infor (RPI |Smart Energy| NewEdge
BS&A Software |OpenGov|Square GovTech | Tyler Tech|Consultants)
78.3%

4

Functional Area

+ Cross Functional

+ Finance & Accounting 87.3% 62.7%

+ Human Resources (HCM) 82.8%
Permits & Inspections

+ Project Management
Supply Chain Management
Utility Billing

+ Work Order Management

Grand Total 62.4% | 90.7% | 95.7%

Identify requirements listed for each section (vendor responses)

2 APEX

15 FPANORAMA
MQRTH GARQLINA N

CONSULTING GROUP

Councilmember Gantt asked if these were all the same as far as importance goes.

Director Sacco said the town wants to keep all of these functionalities, but that they
could use multiple vendors for different functions if the integrations were smooth with each

Page 10 of 30

- Page 113 -




N

W

O 00 o U

10
11

12
13
14

15
16

17

18
19
20
21

22

DRAFT MINUTES

other. She said some of the vendors who could not offer certain functionalities could pair up
with another that does, so the possibilities are broader than just one company.

Councilmember Gantt asked if the 0's meant they couldn’t offer it and couldn't
integrate with another company/software.

Director Sacco said that just mean they didn't offer a functionality themselves, and
that potential integration capabilities weren't assessed at this stage.

Councilmember Gantt said he was surprised these companies didn't all have at least
moderate capabilities in all of these capacities, considering so many municipalities have all of
these services.

Director Sacco said some of these companies are very niche, and have specified
roles. She said there weren’t as many options that broadly covered all government services.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked what consideration was given to training and
integration for staff with these new products, and if the upgrade version of what the town
currently uses would be simpler.

Director Sacco said it was going to be sunset by the company that bought it, so the
new version is going to be different anyway.

Councilmember Mahaffey said this seems like a massive project.

Director Sacco said it is, and the care that has been taken throughout will be
discussed as well. She said they have been working on this for a long time, and are working
to ensure the data can be migrated cleanly when the transition begins. She said whoever they
go with has to be able to provide training and support moving forward.

[ERP - SLIDE 16]

OVERALL DEMONSTRATION SCORES

Option A Option B

Tyler RPI/Infor  SEW Top 2 vendor picks by
General - Vendor Overview 36 33 4.0 Core ERP Team:
Average of RPI/Infor & SEW 3.7
Total Score 3.6 3.7 « Tyler Technologies
Cross Functional 38 34
Finance & Accounting 3.6 3.6 . RPf/fnfO!’/SEW
Planning/Project Management 3.7 3.4
Permits & Inspections 36 37
Supply Chain Management 3.4 33
Human Resources 31 4.3
Total Score 21.2 21.7

Tyler SEW
Utility Billing 38 38
‘Work Order Management 3.5 3.2
Total Score 7.3 7.0

— Overall Score 32.1 324

Page 11 of 30

- Page 114 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [ERP-SLIDE 17]

REFERENCES CONTACTED

Etsinore Valley Municipal Water Disirict R KR N EE 1.

A
|@APEX - PANORAMGA

NORTH CARQLINA CONSULTING GROUP

3 [ERP-SLIDE 18]

ERP FINALIST DECISION — OPTION A — RPI (INFOR) & SEW

Cornerstone infor CS Extended Ce
Mew World Human Resource infor CS Essentials Munis .
e nfor s Eventa unis Core ERP Choices:
Exgcunme infor Cs Extended |Executime
Finance & HR |F|me&m Finance & HR
[Wew World Finance Infor CS Essesntials Munis * Current State
Bu infor €5 Essesntials stica) Munis
Permits & Insp permits & Insg Permits & Inzp New World/Tyler
e Word Permits & Inspection Jinfor ips/ioT [Civic services
epermits infor IPS/IDT [Civic Services
Planning Planning Planning .
[New World Planning infor IPS/IDT |Civic Services RP’/’nfOr/SEW
iDT IDT* AP Integration (Civic Services® No | with 10T
Supply Chain Supply Chain Chain .
eve World Supply Chain nfor C5 Exsesmials unis * Tyler Technologies
Uity Billing Jutiity silling Utlity Billing
[New World utility Billing SEW Munis
esuites SEW Munis.
Tyler Cashiaring SEW Tyler Coshering
Work Order nt Work Order Management rk Order ment
Citywarks * APl tion Enterprise Asset Mar
\DataVoice *No integration, CVS import Only,
'No CVS Import Only "Full API \Reguires two seperate resident focing opps.
LEGEND
Current State
V2 P Tyler Tech Software
I’-\\ A Ex |RPI & SEW software | PANORAMA

N o »a b

Page 12 of 30

- Page 115 -




1

A W N

a U

10

11
12
13

14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21
22

DRAFT MINUTES

[ERP - SLIDE 19]

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING PROJECT UPDATE:

@ ERP Project Status Update:

= Phase 3 of the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Project is on schedule.
= All contracts have been signed and POs are scheduled to be open.

= Estimated completion date: Summer 2024.

= Finance, HR, and Budget to begin initially.

= Planning sessions with RPI, Milsoft, and SEW coming soon

rpDconsuliants SaA/ MILSOFT :

Utility Solutions

N
Councilmember Gantt wanted to hear about how future projects (such as the AMI)
were considered as part of the capabilities for these vendors.

Director Sacco said this was baked in, and that the new systems such as the AMI will
be able to work with this new ERP system.

Councilmember Gantt asked if these would allow updates to come more quickly with
the data.

Director Sacco said yes, it would allow updates to be much more frequent, possibly
coming in every 5-10 minutes for the AMI, rather than once daily.

Councilmember Gray said he was extremely impressed at the progress made for
such a complex project. He asked what the plan was to inform the public about potential
hiccups during the transition period, and what the plan is for how to mitigate issues.

Director Sacco said there will be consultants that help the town throughout the
process, and that support for problems that arise is baked into the contracts in some ways.
She said there will likely be some soft launches, but there will be issues. She said there's data
management people, consultants, and the vendors who will all be able to work with IT to
support this rollover.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked what the transition would be like, and if at some
point in time a task could be done on system or the other. He said he was worried if the
transition occurred and something critically needed to be fixed, would they be able to revert
back to the old system in the meantime.

Page 13 of 30

- Page 116 -




N -

[ B~ w

O 00 N O

10

11
12

13
14
15

16

17
18

19

20
21

22

DRAFT MINUTES

Director Sacco said yes, they will be concurrent, and there will plenty of time to have
both systems working during the transition period.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked how employees felt about this.

Director Sacco said they have been involved since the very beginning, and have been
taking their time to ensure people are ready for the change.

Town Manager Crosby said there will always be people who dont want to change,
as they've been used to one thing for so long. She said there have been some people who
were involved in both the AMI and the ERP process, and will be a part of the CSS process.

Deputy Town Manager Purvis said everybody will be trained on these new systems
to ensure everyone is prepared for the hard changeover date in the future.

Councilmember Mahaffey asked what level of support contracts include for the
beginning of the transition.

Director Sacco said there is 24-hour support for one year after the transition, and the
vendor will be directly taking support calls from residents who are having trouble with the
system during that time period.

[Item No. 3 - CUSTOMER SERVICE SYSTEM (CSS) PROJECT]

Assistant Town Manager Demetria John gave an overview presentation on the upcoming
Customer Service System (CSS) Update.

[CSS - SLIDE 1]

@

APEX

NORTH CAROLINA

Customer Services Standards (CSS) Project Overview
JUNE 20, 2023

Page 14 of 30

- Page 117 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS - SLIDE 2]

= The 3-phased project has been completed to assess the Town of Apex Customer Services
Standards (CSS) Platform focused on service delivery to residents

10,0, @

el
Define Desired
Resident Engagement

=] |

Assess Current State Build CS5 Roadmap

= Understand the Residents current journey and interactions as a baseline
= Assess & identify impacts causing a less than ideal resident experience

= Develop future state pracesses that enables Town of Apex to achieve their Resident Engagement Goals

THE PROJECT'S OBJECTIVES

# APEX

NORTH CAROLINA

3 [CSS - SLIDE 3]

PHASE 1 RECAP - ASSESS CURRENT
STATE

Scope, Activities and Outcomes

@APEX PANORAMA

4 MNORTH CARQLINA - CONSULTING GRSUP
25

Page 15 of 30

- Page 118 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS-SLIDE 4]

FOCUSED ON CURRENT STATE SERVICE DELIVERY IN THE
FOLLOWING AREAS:

SIDEWALKS, ELECTRICAL STORM WATER PuBLIC SAFETY —
‘CURB, STREETS, LoaD Zon-aﬁ (ENGINEERING 8¢ PaRKS & REC PBEANDON BusiNEss
SIGNS, ANIMAL MANAGEMENT CoNTROL VeHice | Car COMPLAINTS
REmovaL CONCERNS MEASURES) SeAT INSPECTIONS.

CARY | :zn.

3 HOLLY
SPRINGS

2 APEX e

2 NORTH CAROLINA s ... coNsuLTING cmour

Additional discussions & benchmarking with other communities:

3 [CSS-SLIDE 4]

= Generated current state business process maps for scoped
service delivery areas

CUBBENT STATE P

PHASE 1 RECAP:
Activities

7 APEX

NORTH GAROLINA

o v b

Page 16 of 30

- Page 119 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS -SLIDE 5]

PHASE 1 RECAP: Inefficiencies & Pain Point Themes

COMMUNICATION & RESIDENT DATA GOVERNANCE
PROCESS EXECUTION

SUPPORT

EXPERIENCE

TecHNoOLOGY/TooLs

& REPORTING

Processes aren't
centralized

—
Time consuming
_—
—
Too much manual

work
-

Lack of 24-hour
monitoring/support

Lack of internal
communication/status

Duplicative work
required by the
resident

Call handling and
dispatch limitations

Lack of clear
instructions

Lack of vendor
support/SLAs

Insufficient
communication to
residents/community

Lack of automation
within tools

_—
GEOform hard to use
—
—
Missing form content

S —

Vendor contract

-

Lack of data controls &
reporting

S

—

Disparate work queues
—not consolidated

e ———————————
———

Data integrity concerns

concerns
\
fn_'\
L0 PANORAMA

[e)]

[CSS - SLIDE 6]

PHASE 2 RECAP - BUILD CSS
ROADMAP

FANORAMA

20 COMSULTING GROUP

Page 17 of 30

- Page 120 -




1

3

NO

DRAFT MINUTES

[CSS - SLIDE 7]

PHASE 2

ACTIVITIES

Generate the strategic roadmap
framework by summarizing and
formalizing the CSS goals and objectives
from our ideation session today

Execute resident survey and analyze

survey results for inputs into resident
Jjourney maps & future state processes

7 APEX

NORTH CARQLINA - CONSULTING GROUP

[CSS - SLIDE 8]

ROADMAP FRAMEWORK — TOWN OF APEX STRATEGIC PLAN

Alignment to Town of Apex strategic plan:

The following goals & objectives of the 2022 Apex Strategic Plan have direct impact on the way employees will
delivery customer/resident services.

= High Performing Government — Deliver exceptional service valuing an engaged workforce with an emphasis on efficiency,
collaboration, innovation, and inclusion.

= A Welcoming Community — Create a safe and welcoming environment fostering community connections and high-quality
recreational and cultural experiences supporting a sense of belonging.

From the 2022 Strategic plan, the following strategic initiatives from the 2022 strategic plan were addressed as part of the
Customer Service Standards journey:

1) Establish Customer Service Standards

2) Align and consolidate operational and business processes with technologies
3) Establish town performance management framework supported by metrics ﬁ:: f::’ﬁgz ztf“’;::u
4) Develop a space use plan to meet current and future needs

# APEX

MORTH CARQLINA

A MNORAMA
N COMSULTING GROUF

Page 18 of 30

- Page 121 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS-SLIDE 9]

ROADMAP FRAMEWORK - ESTABLISH “GUIDING PRINCIPLES”

To ensure the appropriate strategic direction for the Town of Apex Resident Service capability, the following Resident
Service principles & standards were outlined to drive the recommended operating model and roadmap. These were
essential in the decision-making processes and actions should align to any of these principles.

= Generate effective, responsive, respectful, and consistent communication
s Provide prompt and personalized service

= Offer an empathetic ear

« Commit to educating customers

= Hold yourself accountable and be transparent

= Encouraging autonomy for our residents

= Provide accurate and relevant information

= Be thoroughly committed to follow-through, taking ownership and resolution

PANORAMA
CONSULTING GRGUP

@ APEX

MORTH GARQLINA

az

3 [CSS-SLIDE 10]

ROADMAP FRAMEWORK — ESTABLISH STANDARDS

In addition to the guiding principles, the core team identified the following Service Standards. The standards are
designed to build greater resident synergies and make residents feel appreciated while developing a Town of Apex
brand that anticipates resident’s needs and caters to them.

= The four key Standards identified for an excellent customer experience are:
1. Consistency — deliver consistent services with integrity, accountability, and common sense
2. Empowered staff — go above and beyond by taking ownership of issues and delivering positive experiences
for our residents all the way through resolution
3. Responsive - deliver a tailored and responsive service that is inclusive, consistent, and effective and meets
the changing and individual needs of our residents.
4. Information - be a trusted source of reliable and timely advice and information for residents.

The standards also identify the applicable philosophy behind the standards, activities that are required to support the
standard and any tools needed to ensure standards can be adhered to.

N
@APEX PANORAMA

2RTH CARQLINA CONSULTING GRQUR

Page 19 of 30

- Page 122 -




(]

NO

DRAFT MINUTES

[CSS - SLIDE 11]

2022 CUSTOMER SURVEY — RESIDENT FEEDBACK

We conducted a customer service survey with the goal to obtain direct input from Town of Apex
residents regarding their experience, opinions, needs and preferences for customer service
improvements that will guide future state decisions

Overall Objectives
= To capture data from residents that enabled us to:

a. Learn about the resident’s service experiences

b. Gain insight and capture residents wants, needs & improvement opportunities they would like to see from

services/support p—

Determine current level of satisfaction when receiving services
d. Build awareness of the Town of Apex Services ¥
N APEX J
A PANORAMA

[CSS - SLIDE 12]

KEY INPUTS - 2022 RESIDENT SURVEY RESULTS

Overall Survey Learnings that drove future state decisions:

Survey provided volume insight: appeared that typically no more than 5 customer service interactions per
resident. Combined with recent calls volumes this info was used as input into the recommended future
state resource plan

- Survey provided baselines for customer satisfaction in the following:

Overall quality of customer service from employ ilability of opportunities for citizens to Awareness/usage of customer services (called, visited
2017 - 86% provide feedback online or in person)
= 2020-90% = 2017 -61% = 2017 -43%
2022 - 90% (76% satisfied/very satisfied — 14% neutral) = 2020-67% = 2020-40%
= 2022-58% ® 2022-63%

+ Survey confirmed roughly a 50/50 split between phone/live interaction and digital interaction preterences
for residents

A good portion of interactions are related to requests for information which indicates a use for a resident
knowledge based and/or website “clean-up”

Future state training should focus issue acknowledgement, tracking & resolution as well as functional area
knowledge. Also, need to address concerns regarding residents feeling valued as a customer

7 APEX D

MORTH CAROLINA TTYN

Councilmember Gray asked if they had the demographic data on these responses.

Director Sacco said she would get with communications to find out that information.

Page 20 of 30

- Page 123 -




1

3

N o o b

[CSS - SLIDE 13]

DRAFT MINUTES

KEY INPUTS - 2022 RESIDENT SURVEY RESULTS

Overall Quality of Resident Service
from Town of Apex:

0% e

Very dissatisfied
W Dissatisfied
0% Neutral

W Satisfied

WVery satisfied

Overall, 90% of residents are neutral or
satisfied with the guality of customer service
» 76% very satisfied or satisfied
= 14% neutral

@ APEX

NOBETH GAROLINA

[CSS - SLIDE 14]

Key Survey Results

When asked about their most recent interaction with the
Town of Apex staff, residents stated:

timely manner
M don’t recall

e T I
resident/customer
ENo
The town employee did what they said they would do in a _ l Somewhat

| received accurate information

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% B0% O90% 100%

SONSULTING GROUP

ROADMAP ACTIVITIES — INDUSTRY FEEDBACK

Industry Research — we capture of lessons learned from other operational implementations & customer
satisfaction efforts from several high-performing Towns across the nation

Key Recommendations

*  Have a process flow for cross-department and document
policies and procedures and figure out a way to ensure they

are kept current.

s  Plan for daily updates - daily stand-up meetings to address any

real-time changes was beneficial

*  Develop policies that define how to interact with residents
and how to distribute information to residents/community

*  Implement changes in phases, if moving to centralized model,
select a few departments to consolidate initially and iron out

any kinks.

*  Record all calls & implement a monitoring program

+  Think of agents as ambassadors of the Town - look for
candidates that offer quality over experience.

@ APEX

NORTH CARQLINA

Key Learnings
Operating hours & call volumes
+ Ability to measure call volumes across department lines is imperative
to prove & drive behavior
» Most centers do not operate 24/7 — typical 12 hours shifts, 5 to 7 days
a week with coverage based on call volumes
» A mix of “big-bang” vs. phased approach to 311 implementation
+ Across the board, the highest volume of service requests were related
to sanitation/garbage collection

Communications:

= There is constant change within departments, getting info from other
departments was a challenge
Ensure the management of after-hours support is addressed - getting
the “after-hours” call tree implemented effectively was challenging
Recommend the 311-service center be managed separately than the
911-center as conflicting needs and priorities made policy decisions
and definitions difficult
When communicating new 311 capability to residents, a huge
increase in non-specific needs from residents happened. Call volumes
went up significantly for first month or two. PAMNORAMA

CONSULTING GROUF

a7

Assistant Town Manager John said getting the demographic information for these
surveys was important to analyze things such as language barriers, disability impacts, and

accommodation needs in order to see how to go forward with this process.

Page 21 of 30

- Page 124 -




A U b

DRAFT MINUTES

[CSS - SLIDE 15]

PHASE 3 RECAP - DEFINE DESIRED
RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT

7 APEX

NORTH GARQLINA CONSULTING GROUR

[CSS - SLIDE 16]

Conduct future state resident Prioritize scope for future state

journey mapping sessions to define service del - s which
the Resident’s experience when Zilie Rl D S = i
PHASE 3 engaging lhe-Town of Apex areas are most critical and when

ACTIVITIES

Develop applicable future state Develop internal & external

business process maps aligned with communication & adoption plan for
resident’s journey CSS execution

@ APEX .

MORTH CARQLINA

CONSULTING GRGUF

Page 22 of 30

- Page 125 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS-SLIDE 17]

CUSTOMER JOURNEY MAPS

To help identify future state needs for Resident services, customer journey maps were prepared
and reviewed to provide insight into the digital resident experience...

8 L;...—. Stevens, Townof Apex Resident J

Fat g v ey

Uses Tawn of Apex

il
LGN 310 ST e ERRY Sg,

for st Selec the b

smargency”

Community fverts

o home e, Gt ebeyeplerort oot s it
L T e ]
RN NTOS DO N RRR TS AT AT

T T

A
|®APEX P ANORAMA

MQRTH GARGLINA CONSULTING GROUP
40

3 [CSS-SLIDE 18]

I —
Future state process flows were developed and reviewed
for several service request types.

-

1.0
Deliver Town of Apex Services to Residents

S

2z 23
11 16
Reporting! Feporting) 14 E 137
LiEes 'I‘f","y Mznzging Power Maraging Water Permitting Zoning Compiaint Ek"’:'n'm” Patiokes
FUTURE STATE il el == >

PROCESS FLOWS —— - IR

Strest LightsjAraa =2 Ordarad/Missed “¥a  Wasts Bos, ' r i
- TafficLights Skreets, Sigrs, [Pusic Safety (Pubiic Satesy)
J

Lighzs TrashjRecycle Bulk Fickup P et
4\ !
r e 3
a7
1% 136 LUtilites; Leaks, £k 1L.0C 138 11w
Parks& Recrzztion Fecoids Request Ocor, Mem s, Utlities; Meter Test Backlw Test Communiy Events Stormwarer
Seumr
J
-
120 in 122
ionck Foss | |Busirecs e i s Alart

#N
I@APEX FANORAMDGSA

NORTH CAROLINA CONSULTING GROUP

Page 23 of 30

- Page 126 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS - SLIDE 19]

[~ Future State: 1.8 Streetlights/Area Lights
FUTURE E PROCESS FLO — TRAINING ASSET APEX  gusinessprocess : .

The process maps contain necessary information to
align, automate and measure process steps that
enhances an agent's ability to cross-train across
service types

Maps outline the business process by channel

Onding Form / Email

Helpful tips including best practices as well as the technology
required to capture the data in included in all maps

Service Level Agreement (SLAs) are noted within the maps to
identify applicable measures

Additionally, metrics are pointed out when data needs to be
captured and measures

Maps are color-coded to better identify impacts to residents &
more...

Ston L o
CweT e cai

R A MA

TING GROUP

# APEX

HORTH GARQLINA

3 [CSS - SLIDE 20]

FUTURE STATE PROCESS FLOWS — HARMONIZED PROCESSES

The maps made it possible to "harmonize” processes and develop consistency across service categories
& channels

2 Frsture State: 1,11 Vard Waste Bios/ldk Pidkup
APEX  pusinsn Procees

1| M fubees state: 112 Sisewaes s, Struets, Sipes, Aevenal il
APEX  Business Prooess

pr——

Futare State: 14 Streetiights/Area Lights
Business Process

i
:

7 APEX

HORTH CARQLINA . GONGULTING GROUP

NO

Page 24 of 30

- Page 127 -




DRAFT MINUTES

1 [CSS - SLIDE 21]

Future state standard operating procedures (SOPs)
topics were identified to aide in the development of the
new operating model

.

2.0
Manage the Internal Service Center
. -
o o S —, ~ —
L Content EForms | | Request Managenent ) \_sw.ﬂ Dependencies | L Standards & Pofces | L Technology | | MetdcsE Repoting |
Y g z VNS J L J
e SR N N - N
FUTURE STATE 50 " 253
Maintain Webste Manage Service MenagingWark PPy Maintsin ACD/IVR Define & Maintzin Agertt
STA N DA R D Contert/Pages Requests Requests ne s Mexs aging Dastnards
S Sk S S 4L PN J
OPERATING ( Y ) () \ ¢ .
211 [ éb — Maintain Access Rights. 41 2812 26.2
Meitain Calendars/Due e ?bﬁfi?;r_'nn . and Roke for Meiritain After Hours Manage Alter-hours Call | | Manage & Analyze KPIs
PROCED U RES Dates st Binas ey Depertrments Qutside Support Poliey Tree B Measures
| || Serviee Requests )
8 J U S J J A
P N N \ N \
213 222 2132
: e 242 253 263
M"“;:;::‘m‘"" ;“:g‘:‘::;‘n:: c':'ﬂ:::l:’_"ﬂ‘::’s Maintain Performante Manage Technology! Maintain Operational
rapt Suppes . Garas Listy Oueue Assignmments Contact Details Revieus Tool User Guides Resparting & Scamcands
\ 4 ks AN A \ A 4
s n 2 2 e =
213 223 264
Define & Maintain Define Standard ‘o
Internal Krowledge Base Contert for Oriine it A Mot ke T
0 Farrme (Service: & Measures
< 4 Category) and Emai . J
Convesions
.
7 APEX
- PANORAMA

3 [CSS - SLIDE 22]

CHANGE MANAGEMENT, COMMUNICATIONS & TRAINING

A change strategy has been built to support the implementation of the centralized model and includes...

OCM Plan
The 3-stage organizational change plan outlines the recommended actions to
enable the Town of Apex employee’s to adopt the new operating model

Training & Knowledge Transfer Templates
A template/checklist to aide the development of training for new operations as well as
knowledge transfer for departmental cross-training

|~ -
——

Communication Matrix
A template to document the types of communications the project will deploy during implementation

7 APEX

NORTH CARQLINA

Page 25 of 30

- Page 128 -




1

3

NSO

DRAFT MINUTES

[CSS - SLIDE 23]

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT & METRICS

Outline the most crucial metrics for initial implementation
that will provide insight and guidance through the
“phased” implementation approach

= Customer Satisfaction (CSAT) - calculated using a post-call
survey guestion: “On a scale of one to ten, how satisfied are you with
our service today?” in addition to annual surveys, etc.

= First Contact Resolution (FCR) — the percentage of incorning
service calls/digital requests that are resolved during the first
interaction with the resident

= Average Speed of Answer (ASA) - the amount of time it takes
to answer a typical call/digital request once it has been routed to a
gueue

= Average Handling Time - the amount of time it takes to help a
resident with their request starting from when the customer call begins
to hold time & after-call work is completed

@ APEX

NQRTH GARQLINA

[CSS - SLIDE 24]

@

NEXT STEPS TO
IMPLEMENT

THE CSS

SOLUTION .

APEX

NORTH GARQLINA

Customer Service Standards:

Industry benchmarks
First Contact Resolution (FCR)
= 65-75% of requests are resolved on the first contact

Average Speed of Answer (ASA)

= Phone: 80% of calls answered within 20 seconds
(Government/Public — 9 seconds)

= Email: 100% of emails answered within 24 hours

= Live Chat: 80% of chats answered within 20 seconds

Average Handlling Time

= Current industry standard is between 6.46 & 6.73 minutes
with Government/Public Sector averages at ~7 minutes

PANORAMA
CONSULTING GRGUR

1.  Buildout the Detailed Project Plan, Timeline and Activities with the correct staff
2. Develop the Detailed Project Cost Estimate (include consultants or just staff)

3. Launch CSS Implementation Project in coordination with CRM System

Customer Relations Manager (CRM) System tasks:
+ Confirm, validate & prioritize CRM requirements.

Develop a demonstration script.

+ Engage Infor CRM vendor personnel and prepare them for the system
demonstration.

+ Collaborate and evaluate to ensure if Infor CRM will adequately support the
organization's needs.

+ Assist Client in contracting activities, as needed.

PANORAMA
CONEULTING GRGUP

Page 26 of 30

- Page 129 -




w N

i

a U

00 N

10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19

20
21

DRAFT MINUTES

[CSS - SLIDE 25]

Q
APEX

NORTH CAROLINA

CSS PROJECT TIMELINE OF EVENTS PHASE 1 \/

5

up/

+Assembled core
team

_-Scheduled &
conducted current
state discovery

*Documented &
mapped current
state processes &

*Updated &
finalized current
state process

+*Phase 2-Strategic
Roadmap, prepped
& conducted

+Scheduled & sessions with APEX pain-points documentation workshop with town
Conducted project SMEs from all deliverable administration to
kickoff departments +APEX SMEs define goals and
reviewed, adjusted *Began work on objectives for a
*Preformed & validated current ERP & CSS successful citizen
benchmarking call state process maps integrated process engagement
with the town of maps process

Cary

October 22’

April 22°

May-June 22’ August 22’

QAPEX

NORTH GARQLINA

Councilmember Mahaffey asked how far behind Cary and Holly Springs the town is.
Director Sacco said that would be discussed soon.

Councilmember Gantt asked if most of the issues staff describes with customers are
things that occur repeatedly, or if issues are more isolated.

Director Sacco said she’s only able to speak to what data says, and some things are
trash-related problems, but that the same customer has different issues or different
customers have the same issue, and not the same exact problem instance recurring. She said
the goal is to have a centralized location for people to be able to submit requests for
assistance and report problems.

Assistant Town Manager John said a lot of times residents will complain about
numbers leading to no answers and a “black hole” being created. She said centralizing the
phone number should help with this.

Town Manager Crosby said GFL was the biggest call the town got, and that created a
challenge because they were a vendor, so the town could not fully track the problem
resolution. She said Public Works Director John Mullis has done a great job ensuring staff are
able to track issues to resolution through a good relationship with GFL. She said he is also
looking at ways in which the town could respond quicker to those kinds of issues.

Councilmember Gantt said he has felt that relying on vendors created a situation
where some of these problems were unsolvable to a degree.

Page 27 of 30

- Page 130 -




u b W N

O 0o U )}

10

11
12

13
14

15
16
17

18
19

20
21

DRAFT MINUTES

Assistant Town Manager Stone said they service so many properties that there is a
large chance of making some mistake in any week, but that the complaint rate was about
0.4%. He said it is inevitable to get a certain number of complaints as the town grows
because of the scale of the services provided. He said the town still has to be responsible for
tracking these and doing what they can to make things better.

Mayor Gilbert asked how soon the old main phone number would go away with the
new system.

Director Sacco said the new number could be whatever the town chooses, and it
could be the one that is most well-known.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he felt a 311 system was cool.

Town Manager Crosby said they had some conversations about seeing if that could
be done.

Director Sacco said it was a lot of work to set a system like that up for landlines, and a
completely different task if it was to be set up for cellular as well.

Councilmember Mahaffey said he was excited that there would be a CRM for the
town and things were centralized and tracked. He said he thinks the issue is that people feel
like they can't get connected with the right place for help with their complaint easily.

[CSS - SLIDE 26]

Q
APEX

MORTH CAROLINA

€SS PROJECT TIMELINE OF EVENTS PHASE2 \/

5

@

- Prepped and Conducted
Workshop with Town
Administration to Define
Goals and Objectives for
Customer Service Standards
Project

Recap Oct. 22°

*Developed and provide
roadmap framework for
review and validation

-Developed Service
Delivery Business Process
Inventory

- Determined Resident
Experience Intake/Survey
"Approach”

APEX

MORTH GARQLINA

-Conducted Resident
Journey Sessions

«Conducted resident
Feedback & Quantitative
Data Collection

«Conducted Future State
Design Sessions

November 22°

December 22’

Page 28 of 30

- Page 131 -

-Continued research for
best practices for citizen
engagement

-Documented Future
State Processes &
Finalize Roadmap
Planning

+Presented Operating
Model Suggestions

Dec 22°-Jan23° )

+Developed
Communications Strategy

-Developed and Document
KPI's

+Deliverad Final Strategic
Roadmap, Future State
Process Flows, Measurement
Plan, & Action RoadMap

January 23’ /



1

O 0O N O ULV B W N

B
o

11
12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19

20
21

22

[CSS - SLIDE 27]

DRAFT MINUTES

CSS PROJECT ACTION PLAN PROPOSED IMPLEMENTATION

Q
APEX

NORTH CAROLINA

5

- Project Initiation:
-Confirm operating model
-Build Team, charter, and
plan

-Confirm training plan
-Budget Approval

-Project Planning:
-Define resources
-Determine scope

-1D technical dependencies
-Define functional regs.

Months 1 & 2

NORTH GARQLINA

-Development:

-Conduct readiness
assessment

-Create physical space if
desired

-Harmonize processes and
align documentation

-ID KPI measurement
capability/collection
-Approve CRM

7 APEX

Months 3 to 5

-Execution:

-Go live with technology
-Move resources to
physical model

-Train staff and execute
-Execute KPI measures &
continues improvements

Months 5 to 8

__«Planning:
-Confirm additional
comms and training
-Develop external
communication plans to
residents
-Development:
-Make any additional
physical space
-Build any additional
tech as needed
-ID additional
measurements and data

captures

Months 9 to 12

Months 12+ /

+Execution & Ongoing

ement impr
-Move any remaining resources
to physical model

-Training and execute where
needed

-Go live with any new tech
changes

-Continue ongoing project
governance and management

Assistant Town Manager John discussed the implementation of this program, as
shown above. She said the community engagement position, CSS manager, and customer
service ambassadors in the next several months, after the next fiscal year begins. She said this
group will coordinate the beginning of this rollout. She said she hopes there would be at
least a soft launch of the program by the Spring of 2024. She added that training and
onboarding was critical, and Panorama could help with that.

Councilmember Gantt asked how many employees this would require to keep things
centralized as the town grows.

Town Manager Crosby said there may need to be more than just the original core
team for the CSS eventually, but that they would often work with someone from a specific
department to resolves matters, even if each department doesn't have a position specifically
made for that customer service purpose.

Assistant Town Manager John said Panorama presented three options, and that
they recommended the centralized model for the town. She said a decentralized option was
on the table, but keeping it in-house and centralized was what they chose, and that
departments would continue to field calls as CSS staff get up to speed with each
department’s normal calls.

Mayor Gilbert said he appreciated all the work that went into these programs. He
said he wanted to ask for a motion to go into closed session to discuss a personnel matter.

Page 29 of 30

- Page 132 -




OO UL WN -

DRAFT MINUTES

[CLOSED SESSION] - Added

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth, seconded by
Councilmember Gray, to enter into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6) -

Personnel.

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (4-0), with Councilmember Zegerman absent.

Council moved into closed session at 4:48 p.m.
Council returned to open session at 5:27 p.m.
[ADJOURNEMENT]

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 5:27 p.m.

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Apex, Town Clerk

Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.

Minutes approved on of ,2023.

Page 30 of 30

- Page 133 -

Jacques K. Gilbert
Apex, Mayor



|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Antwan Morrison, Director
Department(s): Finance

Requested Motion

Motion to adopt ordinances which establish Debt Service Funds for General Government, Electric, and Water
and Sewer; and approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 22 associated with this new fund structure.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
This action establishes separate debt service funds for the General Government, Electric and Water and
Sewer funds. The establishment of these funds will allow the town to provide funds for the extinguishment
of debt principal and interest, as well as other debt related expenditures for current and future debt service

needs.

Attachments

CN8-A1: Ordinance Establishing General Government Debt Service Fund

CNB8-A2: Ordinance Establishing Electric Debt Services Fund

CNB8-A3: Ordinance Establishing Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund

CNB8-A4: Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 22 - General, Electric, and Water & Sewer Funds

- Page 134 -




Town of Apex
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING GENERAL GOVERNMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by by the Town Council of the Town of Apex:

SECTION I: Creation and purpose of a General Government Debt Service Fund. There is hereby established the General
Government Debt Service Fund to receive and disburse funds for repayment of borrowed funds.

SECTION II: Appropriations. The Town Council of the Town of Apex may authorize the expenditure of funds from the
General Government Debt Service Fund by appropriations made in the same manner as other funds that are
appropriated upon making a finding that the proposed use of the funds is consistent with the intent of the fund.

SECTION IlI: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage.

SECTION IV: To the General Government Debt Service Fund is appropriated to be apportioned as follows:

Revenues:
Transfer In - General Fund $ 3,600,000

Expenditures:
General Government Debt Service Expenditures $ 3,600,000

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.
Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

- Page 135 -




Town of Apex
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING ELECTRIC DEBT SERVICE FUND

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by by the Town Council of the Town of Apex:

SECTION I: Creation and purpose of a Electric Debt Service Fund. There is hereby established the Electric Debt Service
Fund to receive and disburse funds for repayment of borrowed funds.

SECTION II: Appropriations. The Town Council of the Town of Apex may authorize the expenditure of funds from the
Electric Debt Service Fund by appropriations made in the same manner as other funds that are appropriated upon
making a finding that the proposed use of the funds is consistent with the intent of the fund.

SECTION IlI: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage.

SECTION IV: To the Electric Debt Service Fund is appropriated to be apportioned as follows:

Revenues:
Transfer In - Electric Fund $ 50,000

Expenditures:
General Government Debt Service Expenditures $ 50,000

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.
Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

- Page 136 -




Town of Apex
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING WATER & SEWER DEBT SERVICE FUND

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by by the Town Council of the Town of Apex:

SECTION I: Creation and purpose of a Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund. There is hereby established the
Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund to receive and disburse funds for repayment of borrowed funds.

SECTION II: Appropriations. The Town Council of the Town of Apex may authorize the expenditure of funds
from the Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund by appropriations made in the same manner as other funds that
are appropriated upon making a finding that the proposed use of the funds is consistent with the intent of
the fund.

SECTION Ill: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage.

SECTION IV: To the Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund is appropriated to be apportioned as follows:

Revenues:
Transfer In - Water & Sewer Fund $ 250,000

Expenditures:
Water & Sewer Debt Service Expenditures $ 250,000

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.
Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

- Page 137 -




Town of Apex

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 22

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the Fiscal

Year 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

General Fund

Section 1. Revenues:

Section 2. Expenditures:

Electric Utility Fund

Section 3. Revenues:

Section 4. Expenditures:

Water & Sewer Fund

Section 5. Revenues:

Section 6. Expenditures:

10-0000-39902: Appropriated Fund Balance 3,600,000
Total Revenues $3,600,000
10-9030-49701: Transfer to Debt Service Fund 3,600,000
Total Expenditures $3,600,000
30-0000-39902: Appropriated Fund Balance 50,000
Total Revenues $50,000
30-9030-49701: Transfer to Debt Service Fund 50,000
Total Expenditures $50,000
32-0000-39902: Appropriated Fund Balance 250,000
Total Revenues $250,000
32-9030-49701: Transfer to Debt Service Fund 250,000
Total Expenditures $250,000

Section 7. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance

Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

Town Clerk

- Page 138 -

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC



|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Real Estate/Utilities Acquisition Specialist
Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development

Requested Motion

Motion to approve an Encroachment Agreement between the Town of Apex and Apex Industrial Owner 3,
LLC to maintain a pre-existing industrial structure, located at 1251 Burma Drive, Apex, North Carolina, which
encroaches 24 square feet into the Public Right-of-Way on Burma Drive and authorize the Town Manager to
execute on behalf of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town of Apex and Apex Industrial Owner 3, LLC.
(Grantee) for the property described as a commercial lot known as Wake County PIN #0751-13-2324, NEW
TRACT B, Book of Maps 2021, Page 2111, lot is also known as 1251 Burma Drive, Apex, NC 27539.

Grantee has installed certain commercial structures more particularly described as a Pre-existing Industrial
Structure onto the Public Right of Way, all as shown on the attached Exhibit A. Grantee desires to make

certain agreements and covenants regarding the encroachment, as noted in the first attachment.

Attachments

e CN9-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 1251 Burma Drive
e CN9-A2: Exhibit A- 1251 Burma Drive

- Page 139 -




After Recording Mail To: Development Services
Town of Apex
PO Box 250
Apex, NC 27502

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT
COUNTY OF WAKE
THIS ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, being made this day of , 2023, byand

between Apex Industrial Owner 3, LLC, Inc hereinafter referred to as “Grantee,” and the Town of Apex,

hereinafter referred to as the “Town.”

WHEREAS, the Grantee is the owner of a certain industrial lot of land in the County of Wake, State
of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0751-13-2324 by the Wake County Revenue Department
and more particularly described as NEW TRACT B as shown on that certain plat recorded in Book of Maps
2021, Page 2111, Wake County Registry (hereinafter the “Subdivision Plat”). The industrial lot is also
known as 1251 Burma Drive, Apex, NC 27539. The industrial lot described in this paragraph is hereinafter

referred to as the “Industrial Lot."

WHEREAS, the Town is the owner of a 60’ Public Right of Way known as Burma Drive as shown on
that certain plat recorded in Book of Maps 2021, Page 0493, Wake County Registry, hereinafter referred to
as the “Public Right of Way.”

WHEREAS, Grantee has installed certain commercial structures more particularly described as a
Pre-existing Industrial Structure onto the Public Right of Way, hereinafter referred to as the
“Encroachment”, all as shown on the attached Exhibit A. Grantee desires to make certain agreements

and covenants regarding the Encroachment.

WHEREAS, the Town, under the terms and conditions herein set forth, is willing to allow the above-

- Page 140 -




described Encroachment upon the Public Right of Way.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and other consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantee and the Town hereby covenant and agree:

1. Subject to the terms herein, the Town agrees to allow Grantee, and Grantees’ successors and
assigns at Grantee sole risk and expense, to encroach into the Public Right of Way of the Town as shown

in the attached Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

2. The Encroachment shall not be enlarged or increased beyond the Encroachment shown in
Exhibit A and described in this Encroachment Agreement. Grantee is responsible for any and all
expenditures of labor or materials required for the installation, erection, repair, removal, or maintenance
of the above-referenced Encroachment and shall be allowed to maintain the Encroachment and to
perform all necessary repairs, maintenance, and replacement of the Encroachment as may be necessary

from time to time.

3. The Town shall not be held responsible for any and all property damage or injury or death of
any person which results from any and all negligence, omission, defect in design, maintenance, or
workmanship created by the Encroachment described herein, or any cause of action arising out of the

installation, maintenance, removal, destruction, or location of said Encroachment.

4. Grantee agrees to and does hereby hold the Town, its officers, council members and employees
harmless from any and all liability arising out of such negligence, omission, defect or other cause of action;
that it will defend the Town, its officers, council members and employees, and pay all attorney fees in any
and all actions brought as a result of such; and that it will indemnify the Town, its officers, council
members, and employees against any and all loss sustained by reason of such negligence, omission,
defect, or other cause of action, claim, cost, or expense arising out of the installation, maintenance,
removal, or location of said Encroachment; provided that, Grantee shall not be obligated hereunder to
indemnify the Town for any negligent acts or omissions of the Town, its contractor(s) (including sub-

contractors) and their respective officers, agents and employees.

5. Sections 3 and 4 shall survive the termination of this Encroachment Agreement for anyreason.

- Page 141 -




6. All notices required herein shall be deemed given by depositing such in the United States mail,
first class, and addressed to:

To Town: Town Manager
Town of Apex
PO Box 250
Apex, NC 27502

To Grantee: Apex Industrial Owner 3, LLC
Woodlawn Hall at Old Parkland
3953 Maple Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, TX 75219-3228

7. Inthe event there is a dispute between the parties concerning the interpretation of the terms
of this Encroachment Agreement or their respective rights and obligations hereunder, such dispute or

controversy shall be adjudged pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina.

8. Grantee agrees to abide by all applicable laws, regulations, statutes and ordinances.

9. This Encroachment Agreement shall not divest the Town of any rights or interest in said Public

Right of Way.

10. If the Town deems, within its sole discretion, that removal of all or a portion of the
Encroachment is necessary in order to operate, protect, maintain, modify, replace, add-to or improve its
facilities located within the Public Right of Way, then Grantee shall cause such removal to be made at
Grantee’s sole expense within 30 days after receipt of notice from the Town and shall be completed in a
manner that will allow the Town complete and safe access to the Public Right of Way. In the event that
the Grantee fails to timely remove the Encroachment or in the event of an emergency associated with the
condition of the Public Right of Way, the Town is authorized to remove all or such portion of the
Encroachment as the Town determines in its sole discretion to be reasonably necessary, convenient or
advisable to operate, protect, maintain, modify, replace, add-to or improve its facilities located within the
Public Right of Way. The Town shall have the sole discretion to determine the existence of an emergency

associated with the condition of the Public Right of Way

11. Grantee agrees to pay and reimburse the Town the entire expense and cost of removal of the

- Page 142 -




Encroachment in the event that the Town removes the Encroachment as provided in the Paragraph 10 or
if Grantee fails to remove the Encroachment within the time limit after receiving notice under Paragraph

9.

12. Grantees, if not self-performing the installations that are the subject of this Agreement, agree
to purchase or cause to be procured from a responsible insurance carrier or carriers authorized under the
laws of the State of North Carolina, valid general liability insurance in the minimum amount of $500,000
and provide a certificate of such insurance naming the Town of Apex as additional insured by endorsement
to the policy. Where the Grantees are self-performing the installations, Grantees shall show proof of
insurance with personal liability coverage in a minimum amount of at least $300,000. Grantees shall
provide notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material change in coverage to the Town of Apex within

10 days of their receipt of notice from the insurance company.

13. Notwithstanding Section 14 below, Grantee shall be released from its obligation under this
Encroachment Agreement only upon the assumption of said obligations either by a successor in title to
the Industrial Lot, or by assumption of said obligations by an incorporated party approved by the Town.
The Town’s consent to such assumption and release shall be required but shall not be withheld,
conditioned or delayed if, as reasonably determined by the Town, the party assuming Grantee’s
obligations possesses adequate financial resources and ownership interest, and Grantee’s delegate and
proposed assignee assume and agree to fulfill, in writing, all of Grantee’s duties set forth in this

Encroachment Agreement.

14. The right to encroach is appurtenant to and runs with the land hereinabove referred to and shall
forever by subject to the conditions above agreed on between the parties. This Encroachment Agreement
is binding upon the heirs, assigns, transferees, and successors in interest of the Grantee and shall, upon

execution, be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County, North Carolina.

- Page 143 -




In testimony whereof, said Grantee and said Town have here unto set their hands and seals, the day and

year first above written.

GRANTEE

Apex Industrial Owner 3, LLC

By: (SEAL)
President
NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF [county in which acknowledgement taken]
l, , a Notary Public of County, North
Carolina, certify that , personally appeared before

me this day and acknowledged that he is the President for Apex Industrial Owner 3, LLC,
Grantee herein, and that by authority duly given as President for the company, the foregoing
instrument was signed and sealed by him on behalf of the company and acknowledged said
writing to be the act and deed of said company.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this day of ,2023.

[Signature of Notary Public]

My Commission Expires:

(SEAL)

- Page 144 -




TOWN OF APEX

Catherine Crosby
Town Manager
(Corporate Seal)

ATTEST:

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF [county in which acknowledgement taken]

l, , @ Notary Public for

County, North Carolina, certify that Allen Coleman personally came before me this day and
acknowledged that he is Town Clerk for the Town of Apex, a North Carolina Municipal Corporation, and that
by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by
its Town Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by him as its Town Clerk.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this day of ,2023.

[Signature of Notary Public]

My Commission Expires:

(SEAL)

- Page 145 -




VICINITY MAP - 1" = 1,000'

EXHIBIT "A"

E / NC GRID (NAD '83/2011)

NOTE:

3| B
’ ’ TRACT 2
’ ’ BIN - BD1201 LLC
PIN: 0751143089
’ \ DB. 18555 PG. 1712
BM. 2021 PG. 524
| l
l
N 88°36'33" W | CP
CPY ™~ wmvim A___CP
O0(TE) = S 88°36'35" E 1,453.23' v
- cP
/
/
/
TRACTA
APEX INDUSTRIAL OWNER 3 LLC
PIN: 0751043020 \ BUILDING ENCROACHES
DB. 19072 PG. 2369 24 SQUARE FEET(SF)
BM. 2021 PG. 2111 ) INTO BURMA DRIVE RW
/
/
/
/
/R EXISTING BUILDING
/ é
/ Lo
S
;o QES
/ < TRACTB
g APEX INDUSTRIAL OWNER 3 LLC
/ & ¢ PIN: 0751132324
/ S & DB. 19072 PG. 2389
- BM. 2021 PG. 2111
/ 940,324 SF OR 21.5869 AC
/
/
/
/
|
l LINE TABLE
, cP LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 N02°1112"E__ |426.66'
| L2 N29°2347"E__ |21.87
l _ L3 N29°2405"E__ |79.59'
| hr L4 N03°26'39"E _ [15.94'
T CURVE TABLE
ep | cp CURVE RADIUS LENGTH | CHORD DIRECTION | CHORD
e i 170.00 80.70' N 15°48'07" E 79.94'
= c2 55.00' 143.64' N 18°38'45" E 106.16'
o
. »o ’ 1. AREAS BY COORDINATE GEOMETRY UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE.
S C A L E . w - 6 O 2. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES. PIN 0751132324
— —— 3. ALL STREETS ARE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE. LOT NUMBER .
4.  OTHER INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD MAY AFFECT THIS PROPERTY.
0 30 60 120 5. NO TITLE SEARCH PERFORMED FOR THIS SURVEY. SUBDIVISION
6. NONCGS MONUMENT WITHIN 2,000 FEET OF PROPERTY.
7.  NO FEMA FLOOD HAZARD AREAS PER FIRM NUMBER 3720075100K DATED JULY 19, 2022. BOOK OF MAPS 2021 PAGE 2111

DEED BOOK 19072 PAGE 2389

THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED
SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED
BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY
APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN
REVIEWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH
RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR
PLATS.

BUILDING ENCROACHMENT EXHIBIT

LEGEND PROPERTY OF
e zp-exsmeroners | APEX INDUSTRIAL OWNER 3 LLC
° giggé\k&\lfLLATED POINT WHITE OAK TWNSHP. WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY
[(XXQJDENOTES ADDRESS BASS, NIXON & KENNEDY, INC. ~ JDATE:  6-16-2023
CONSULTING ENGINEERS - P
* Bl R
1251 BURMA DRIVE ° IELEPI:S';; (gggggm_uzz OR (800)354-1879 SURV'D BY:
PROJECT NO. 21001 FIC}ATléN NUMBERS: NCBELS (C-0110); NCBLA (C-0267) DRAWN BY: cWwe

R:\2021\21001 - 2100 Production Drive\SURVEY\21001CARLSON\dwg\21001 BUILDING ENCROACHMENT EXHIBIT.dwg, BUILDING ENCROACHMENT EXHIBIT, 6/16/202

- Page 146 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Chris Johnson, P.E., MPA, Director
Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development

Requested Motion

Motion to approve an Encroachment Agreement between the Town of Apex and Swigart Construction, Inc.
to install a driveway located at, 2218 Winston Circle, that will encroach 199 square feet (SF) onto the Town of
Apex 30" Public Utility Easement (Sewer) and authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on

behalf of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town of Apex and Swigart Construction, Inc.
(Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0731-19-8193, Book
of Maps 2020, Page 01808, lot is also known as 2218 Winston Circle, Apex, NC 27502. Grantee wishes to
install certain improvements, more particularly described as a driveway that will encroach 199 square feet

(SF) onto the Town of Apex 30’ Public Utility Easement (Sewer).

Attachments

e CN9-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 2210 Winston Circle, Lot 3
e (CN9-A2: Exhibit A - 2210 Winston Circle, Lot 3

- Page 147 -




After Recording Mail To: Development Services
Town of Apex
PO Box 250
Apex, NC 27502

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT
COUNTY OF WAKE
THIS ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, being made this day of , 2023, by and

between Swigart Construction, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “Grantee,” and the Town of Apex,

hereinafter referred to as the “Town.”

WHEREAS, the Grantee is the owner of a certain residential lot of land in the County of Wake,
State of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0731-19-8193 by the Wake County Revenue
Department and more particularly described as Lot 3 of the subdivision known as Winston as shown on
that certain plat recorded in Book of Maps 2020, Page 01808, Wake County Registry (hereinafter the
“Subdivision Plat”). The residential lot is also known as 2218 Winston Circle, Apex, NC 27502. The

residential lot described in this paragraph is hereinafter referred to as the “Residential Lot."

WHEREAS, the Town is the owner of a Town of Apex Public Utility Easement (Sewer) as shown on

the Subdivision Plat hereinafter referred to as the “Public Sewer Utility Easement.”

WHEREAS, Grantee wishes to install certain improvements more particularly described as a
driveway that will encroach 199 square feet (SF) onto the Public Sewer Utility Easement, which serves
the Residential Lot, hereinafter referred to as the “Encroachment”, all as shown on the attached Exhibit

A. Grantee desires to make certain agreements and covenants regarding the Encroachment.

- Page 148 -




WHEREAS, the Town, under the terms and conditions herein set forth, is willing to allow the above-

described Encroachment upon the Public Sewer Utility Easement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and other consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantee and the Town hereby covenant and agree:

1. Subject to the terms herein, the Town agrees to allow Grantee, and Grantees’ successors and
assigns at Grantee sole risk and expense, to encroach into the Public Sewer Utility Easement of the Town

as shown in the attached Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

2. The Encroachment shall not be enlarged or increased beyond the Encroachment shown in
Exhibit A and described in this Encroachment Agreement. Grantee is responsible for any and all
expenditures of labor or materials required for the installation, erection, repair, removal, or maintenance
of the above-referenced Encroachment and shall be allowed to maintain the Encroachment and to
perform all necessary repairs, maintenance, and replacement of the Encroachment as may be necessary

from time to time.

3. The Town shall not be held responsible for any and all property damage or injury or death of
any person which results from any and all negligence, omission, defect in design, maintenance, or
workmanship created by the Encroachment described herein, or any cause of action arising out of the

installation, maintenance, removal, destruction, or location of said Encroachment.

4. Grantee agrees to and does hereby hold the Town, its officers, council members and employees
harmless from any and all liability arising out of such negligence, omission, defect or other cause of action;
that it will defend the Town, its officers, council members and employees, and pay all attorney fees in any
and all actions brought as a result of such; and that it will indemnify the Town, its officers, council
members, and employees against any and all loss sustained by reason of such negligence, omission,
defect, or other cause of action, claim, cost, or expense arising out of the installation, maintenance,
removal, or location of said Encroachment; provided that, Grantee shall not be obligated hereunder to
indemnify the Town for any negligent acts or omissions of the Town, its contractor(s) (including sub-

contractors) and their respective officers, agents and employees.

5. Sections 3 and 4 shall survive the termination of this Encroachment Agreement for anyreason.

- Page 149 -




6. All notices required herein shall be deemed given by depositing such in the United States mail,
first class, and addressed to:

To Town: Town Manager
Town of Apex
PO Box 250
Apex, NC 27502

To Grantee: Swigart Construction, Inc.
602 Bladestone Court
Apex, NC 27502

7. Inthe event there is a dispute between the parties concerning the interpretation of the terms
of this Encroachment Agreement or their respective rights and obligations hereunder, such dispute or

controversy shall be adjudged pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina.

8. Grantee agrees to abide by all applicable laws, regulations, statutes and ordinances.

9. This Encroachment Agreement shall not divest the Town of any rights or interest in said Public

Sewer Utility Easement.

10. If the Town deems, within its sole discretion, that removal of all or apportion of the
Encroachment is necessary in order to operate, protect, maintain, modify, replace, add-to or improve its
facilities located within the Public Sewer Utility Easement, then Grantee shall cause such removal to be
made at Grantee’s sole expense within 30 days after receipt of notice from the Town and shall be
completed in a manner that will allow the Town complete and safe access to the Public Sewer Utility
Easement. In the event that the Grantee fails to timely remove the Encroachment or in the event of an
emergency associated with the condition of the Public Sewer Utility Easement, the Town is authorized to
remove all or such portion of the Encroachment as the Town determines in its sole discretion to be
reasonably necessary, convenient or advisable to operate, protect, maintain, modify, replace, add-to or
improve its facilities located within the Public Sewer Utility Easement. The Town shall have the sole
discretion to determine the existence of an emergency associated with the condition of the Public Sewer

Utility Easement.

- Page 150 -




11. Grantee agrees to pay and reimburse the Town the entire expense and cost of removal of the
Encroachment in the event that the Town removes the Encroachment as provided in the Paragraph 10 or
if Grantee fails to remove the Encroachment within the time limit after receiving notice under Paragraph
9.

12. Grantee, during the life of this Encroachment Agreement, agrees to procure or cause to be
procured from a responsible insurance carrier or carriers authorized under the laws of the State of North
Carolina, insurance in the minimum amounts of $300,000/$500,000/$300,000 covering full liability for
any and all personal injury, property damage or wrongful death caused by the construction, maintenance,
location, repair or visual obstruction of said Encroachment. Grantee shall furnish the Town, without
demand, each July a certification from the insurance carrier or carriers with whom the insurance herein
mentioned is carried, stating that such compensation is covered by such carrier or carriers and showing
such insurance to be in full force and effect. Both Grantee and the Town shall be named as insured parties
by endorsement of the policy. In the event of any change in the insurance policy, Grantee shall give the
Town thirty (30) days’ notice of such change. Should Grantee fail to pay premiums upon said insurance
or to perform any of the agreement, terms or conditions herein contained, the Town, at its option, by
written notice may declare this Encroachment Agreement canceled and terminated and all rights acquired

hereunder by Grantee shall thereupon terminate.

13. Notwithstanding Section 14 below, Grantee shall be released from its obligation under this
Encroachment Agreement only upon the assumption of said obligations either by a successor in title to
the Residential Lot, or by assumption of said obligations by an incorporated party approved by the Town.
The Town’s consent to such assumption and release shall be required but shall not be withheld,
conditioned or delayed if, as reasonably determined by the Town, the party assuming Grantee’s
obligations possesses adequate financial resources and ownership interest, and Grantee’s delegate and
proposed assignee assume and agree to fulfill, in writing, all of Grantee’s duties set forth in this

Encroachment Agreement.

14. The right to encroach is appurtenant to and runs with the land hereinabove referred to and shall
forever by subject to the conditions above agreed on between the parties. This Encroachment Agreement
is binding upon the heirs, assigns, transferees, and successors in interest of the Grantee and shall, upon

execution, be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County, North Carolina.

- Page 151 -




In testimony whereof, said Grantee and said Town have here unto set their hands and seals, the day and

year first above written.
GRANTEE

Swigart Constr ctlon,

! A~
By: / / /(SEAL)

/]’ames Rfvwgart
President

NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF :DMW [county in which acknowledgement taken]

|, 2ss0ndira Tﬂj',‘} 24 , a Notary Public of Dorham County, North
Carolina, certify that James R Swigart, personally appeared before me this day and
acknowledged that he is the President for Swigart Construction, Inc., Grantee herein, and
that by authority duly given as President for the company, the foregoing instrument was
signed and sealed by him on behalf of the company and acknowledged said writing to be
the act and deed of said company.

b
Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this ? day of SMC/ , 2023.

Ctpre B Jom 2 _

[Signature of Notary Public]

My Commission Expires: Cra 3, 2224 Cassandra R Taggart
7 Notary Public

Durham County
" Carolina
y Commission Expires Oct. 3, 2024

- Page 152 -




TOWN OF APEX

Catherine Crosby
Town Manager
(Corporate Seal)

ATTEST:

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF [county in which acknowledgement taken]

I, , a Notary Public for

County, North Carolina, certify that Allen Coleman personally came before me this day and
acknowledged that he is Town Clerk for the Town of Apex, a North Carolina Municipal Corporation, and that
by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by
its Town Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by him as its Town Clerk.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this day of ,2023.

[Signature of Notary Public]

My Commission Expires:

(SEAL)

- Page 153 -




OLIVE CHAPEL RD

EXHIBIT A

NOTE:

THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE
WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS.

VICINITY MAP (NOT 70 SCALE)

LOT 3 ~ WINSTON SUBDIVISION

REFERENCES: B.M. 2020, PGS. 1807 & 1808
D.B. 18846, PG, 652

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 2218 WINSTON CIRCLE
APEX, NC 27502

ALL DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE U.S. SURVEY
FOOT UNIT HORIZONTAL GROUND MEASUREMENTS.

AREA DETERMINED BY COORDINATE GEOMETRY METHOD.
7

7
/

_~ PGS,

7
7

109;6§" £

§ 119

INI
M o

/
/
/
— Q
O-

\
\

/ \

\

COMMON AREA

B.M. 2020, \
1807 & 1808 \\

”_D\NG

L|NE/

9

B
uM
MTBAcK
/

0.5057 AC.

22,028 SF.

U.S. SURVEY FEET
1 inch = 30 ft.

RETAINING
WALL

\

—
\ CONCRETE
]

DWELLING

\ '
’ 7.5

5
12 T

YT
H\VA D
Hvac []
\
nvac I
M

“
c

~
B.M. 2020,
PGS. 1807 & 1808

CONCRETE
ORIVEWA Y

NOTES:

(a) THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, RIGHTS OF
WAY, AND EASEMENTS OF RECORD AFFECTING THE SAME.

(b) NO TITLE SEARCH HAS BEEN PERFORMED BY THIS
FIRM DURING THE COURSE OF THIS SURVEY.
(c) THIS SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE EXISTENCE
OR NON—EXISTENCE OF ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES,
BURIAL GROUNDS, OR ANY SUBSURFACE FEATURES
THAT MAY OR MAY NOT BE PRESENT ON THIS SITE.
THIS MAP DOES NOT MEET NCGS 47-30
REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDATION.

(@)

[S))

-,
o
>
]
<
™

LEGEND
EIP — @ — Existing Iron Pipe
EMN — @ — Existing Magnetic Nail
R/W — Right Of Way
WM — Water Meter
R — Radius
CH — Chord
CO — Cleanout
HVAC — Heating, Ventilation,
and Air Conditioning

PMT — Padmount Transformer
UB — Utility Box
EM — Electric Meter
GM — Gas Meter B.M. 2020,
TP — Telephone Pedestal PGS. 1807 & 1808
TOA PUE — Town Of Apex Public Utility Easemnent
Surveyed Line
Surveyed Line
—— Line Not Surveyed
— —— —— — Minimum Building Setback Line (not surveyed)
Approximate Right Of Way Line (not surveyed,
Easemnent (not surveyed)

/

WINSTON CIRCLE
65’ PUBLIC R/W

EIP

2
EMN S 32-22,43_
CH=q3 27

RETAINING

/ 1 WALL
’

15”&4
N 754

. Sewer Line

N ETA
s/

()
~ 7
B.M. 2020,
PGS. 1807 & 1808

/

(M/N/MUM BUILDING SETBACK. Sx

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

FRONT 25’
REAR 20’
SIDE (MINIMUM) 6’
SIDE (CORNER)

SIDE (AGGREGATE)

BUILDING HEIGHT (mAximum) 40°

N /
B.M. 2020, PGS. 1807 & 1808

Driveway will encroach
199 Square Feet (SF)
onto the TOA Public
Sewer Utility Easement

w
LISTED OWNER
(NOT A TITLE VERIFICATION)

SWIGART CONSTRUCTION, INC.
602 BLADESTONE COURT
APEX, NC 27502

AS BUILT SURVEY FOR

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SOLUTIONS INC.

TOWN OF APEX, BUCKHORN TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY, NC

Smith & Smith,

N.C. 27502
362-7111

FIELD DATE
JUNE 5, 2023

SCALE 17" = 30’

Surveyors, P.A.

PIN (0731-19-8193

FIRM LICENSE No. C-0155

PROJECT No. 2021-36



jweatherman
Text Box
NOTE:
THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 

jweatherman
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

jweatherman
PolyLine

jweatherman
Callout
Sewer Line

jweatherman
Polygon

jweatherman
Callout
Driveway will encroach 199 Square Feet (SF) onto the TOA Public Sewer Utility Easement


|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager
Department(s): Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a fee-in-lieu for Humie Olive Place with the original 4 lots for a total of 8 duplex units
paying a fee of $2,157.44 per each unit and 2 additional lots with a total of 4 duplex units paying a fee of
$2,705.23 per each unit.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
[tem Details

Per the Unified Land Development Ordinance, Article 14, the Humie Olive Place Master Subdivision was
exempt from review by the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission as it has less than
45 single family attached dwelling units. Humie Olive place was rezoned in case No. 22CZ18 to Medium
Density -Conditional Use for 6 residential lots. The Humie Olive Place Master Subdivision Plan is being
updated to provide a total of 12 duplex units. As a result of amending the previously approved Master
Subdivision plan Parks, Recreation and Cultural resources staff is recommending a fee-in-lieu of dedication
for this project with the original 4 lots with a total of 8 duplex units paying a fee of $2,157.44 per each and 2
additional lots with a total of 4 duplex units paying a fee of $2705.23 per each. Staff recommends approval
of a fee-in-lieu of dedication based on the total number of duplex units at the Single family Attached rate at

the time of the approval of the Master Subdivision Plan as noted.

Attachments

e N/A

- Page 155 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): John Mullis, Director
Department(s): Public Works

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between Central Pines Regional Council (formerly
Triangle J Council of Governments (TJCOG) and Town of Apex, effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024,
forthe purpose of participating in the Solid Waste Consortium and to authorize the Town Manager to execute
the agreement on behalf of the Town.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
The Triangle Regional Solid Waste Consortium is a newly formed partnership of city and county solid waste
departments aimed at developing strategies and regional approaches in the areas of solid waste collection
and disposal, recycling, biosolids, composting, yard waste, and household hazardous materials. The scope
of work can be found on the front page of the agreement. The total cost of services for this agreement is
$1993.02.
Attachment A is broad overview of surrounding municipalities budget.

Attachment B is the work plan for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

Attachments

e CN12-A1: Memorandum of Agreement - Triangle Region Solid Waste Consortium
e CN12-A2: Attachment A: Budget - Triangle Region Solid Waste Consortium
e CN12-A3: Attachment B: Work Plan - Triangle Region Solid Waste Consortium

- Page 156 -




Memorandum of Agreement

Triangle Region Solid Waste Consortium

THIS AGREEMENT, made by and between Triangle J Council of Governments,
hereinafter called the “Council”, and the Town of Apex, hereinafter called the “Town.” The Council and
the Town shall collectively be referred to as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Council operates to provide planning and technical assistance to local governments and
for region-wide projects in Region J as empowered by the North Carolina General Statutes and by its
Charter Resolution, adopted by all member governments of the Council; and

WHEREAS, the Town requests that the Council provide such technical assistance, as detailed in the
following Scope of Work and further outlined in a yearly work plan; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council and the Town mutually agree to the following:

1. Scope of Work
The Town hereby agrees to engage the Council and the Council agrees to performin a

satisfactory and proper manner the work below:

a) Provide staff to convene the Triangle Regional Solid Waste Consortium (“Consortium”)
and to facilitate communication and meetings among the Consortium members.

b) Provide staff to work with Consortium members to develop governance structure and
appropriate governance documents.

c) Provide staff to conduct analysis and provide recommendations on behalf of the
Consortium.

d) Provide staff to work with the Consortium to develop a strategy on regional approaches
in the areas of solid waste collection and disposal, recycling, biosolids, composting, yard
waste, household hazardous waste, and other services that the Consortium determines
is appropriate to study and/or develop strategies around.

e) Provide staff to develop regional outreach and education related to recycling and solid
waste issues.

f) Provide staff to work with the Consortium to implement priority needs.

g) Provide staff to develop Interlocal agreements and joint contracts and to, maintain,
administer, evaluate, and monitor agreements and contracts for the provision of
services or when any of these activities are deemed beneficial to the Consortium
members.

h) Develop a yearly work plan and budget, which will be approved by Consortium members
each year.

2. Responsibility of the Town
a. Town will provide appropriate representation to the Consortium and will actively
participate in the Consortium’s activities.

- Page 157 -




Length of Contract
The Council shall ensure that all services required herein shall be provided during the period

beginning on July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.

Assignability

The Council shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any interest in
the same, whether by assignment or substitution, without the prior written consent of the Town
or unless specifically contained in the Scope of Work set forth in Section 1 above.

Compensation and Method of Payment

The Town will pay the Council for the services provided hereunder as stipulated in the yearly
work plan attached hereto. Inclusive in the amount are associated travel costs and expenses
directly related to the project. The total cost of this Agreement is $1993.02. Payment will be
invoiced in July of each year. The “Effective Date” is that date upon which the last Party
executes this Agreement.

Termination of Memorandum of Agreement for Cause

If, for any cause, the Council shall fail to fulfil in a timely and proper manner its obligations
under this Agreement, or if the Council shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or
stipulations of this Agreement, the Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by
giving written notice to the Council of its intent to terminate at least thirty (30) days before the
termination is effective. During the thirty-day notification period, the Council shall have the
opportunity to remedy any failure or violations to avoid termination of the Agreement. If
termination occurs, the Council shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for
all satisfactory work completed.

Changes
The Town may request changes in the Scope of Work to be performed by the Council

hereunder. However, suggested changes must be agreed upon by a majority of the then-active
Consortium members. The changes that are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated as
written amendments to this Agreement.

Records

The Council shall maintain financial records pertaining to this Agreement for (3) three years
after termination of the Consortium or until disposal of records is allowed by the State of North
Carolina Records Retention Schedule for Councils of Governments, whichever is longer.

Access to Records
The Council shall have access to appropriate records on file at the Town which are necessary for
Council staff to fulfil the terms of this Agreement.

- Page 158 -




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Interest of Contractor

The Council covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire an interest, direct
or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services
performed under this Agreement. The Council further covenants that in the performance of this

Agreement, no person having any such interest shall knowingly be employed.

Findings Confidential

Any reports, information, data, etc., given to, or prepared or assembled by, the Council under
this Agreement that the Town requests to be kept confidential shall not be made available to
any individual or organization other than the Town, as required by law.

Complete Agreement
This Agreement contains the complete agreement of the Parties and may not be modified in any
respect except by written amendment hereto.

Applicable Laws
The Parties agree that this Agreement is to be governed, construed, and enforced in accordance

with all of the laws of the State of North Carolina.

Indemnification

To the extent allowed by law, the Council agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the
Town as well as its directors, officers, employees, and agents against all claims for personal
injury or property damage or both, including reasonable attorney’s fees and the cost of defense

resulting or alleged to result from any act or omission of the Council or its employees or agents
in performing or failing to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement.

To the extent allowed by law, the Town agree to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the
Council as well as its director, officers, employees and agents against all claims for personal
injury or property damage or both including reasonable attorney’s fees and the cost of defense
resulting or alleges to result from any act or omission of Town or its employee or agents in
performing or failing to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, each party has caused this Agreement to be duly executed under seal on
the day and year first above written.

Town of Apex Triangle J Council of Governments
By: By:
Title: Title:

- Page 159 -




Attachment A: Budget

Member 2020 ACS | Percent of Base Amount Dues Based on | Total
Government 5-year Total Population
Estimate Population

Raleigh 469,698 20% S S

1,500.00 4,193.63 S 5,693.63
Wake County 1,091,662 | 46% S S
(Entire County) 1,500.00 9,746.75 $11,246.75
Durham 276,341 12% S S

1,500.00 2,467.27 S 3,967.27
Durham County 41,324 2% S S
(Unincorporated) 1,500.00 368.96 S 1,868.96
Holly Springs 36,595 2% S S

1,500.00 326.73 $ 1,826.73
Orange County 146,354 6% S S
(Entire County) 1,500.00 1,306.70 S 2,806.70
Chatham County 60,081 3% S S
(Unincorporated) 1,500.00 536.05 S 2,036.05
Cary 169,177 7% S S

1,500.00 1,510.47 $ 3,010.47
Apex 55,220 2% S S

1,500.00 493.02 $ 1,993.02
Total 2,346,452
Total Contract Cost | S S S S 34,449.58

34,449.58 13,500.00 20,949.58

- Page 160 -




Attachment B: Work plan for FY 24

Organizational Items

1. Work with local governments who intend to continue as or become Consortium members to
secure executed Memoranda of Agreements by or around June 30, 2023.

2. Convene the members of the Consortium no fewer than six (6) times during the fiscal year. Staff
will develop agendas, develop meeting notes, etc. Staff will work with the consortium to
develop topics for 6+ meetings based on related topics of interest.

3. Collect Material Recovery Facility (MRF) contracts executed by consortium members in 2023,
summarize and upload to Microsoft Teams Website.

4. Continually update Microsoft Teams Website to house documents that will be relevant to
consortium members including but not limited to contracts, RFPs, public messaging documents,
etc. relevant to the goals of the consortium.

5. Work with the Consortium to develop governance documents as needed.

5-Year Strategy Development with Measurable Outcomes

1. Organize meetings around the following topics (subject to change and/or be expanded on) that
are of important relevance to consortium members:

i. Composting
1. Food Waste
2. Yard Waste

ii. Electric Vehicles
1. Purchasing
2. Lessons learned

iii. Landfills
1. Waste Diversion
2. Waste to Energy
3. Future landfills

iv. Recycling
1. Strategies for obtaining uniform MRF contract rates
2. Joint efforts on hard to-recycle or unique items
3. Joint messaging and promotion efforts

2. Asneeded, create working groups that convene around the following topics in addition to
regularly scheduled bi — monthly meetings. The intention of working groups is to help develop
and execute action items that are of both short term and long-term interest for the consortium.

3. Continued review of successful regional solid waste efforts and formal long-term strategy
development and arranged presentations as needed.

- Page 161 -




Additional Solid Waste Work Plan Items

1.

Continued monitoring of trends and local, state, and federal policies that will affect consortium
members’ operations.

As needed, identify areas where technical assistance and information on best practices can be
provided (ex. Green-building procurement laws, LCID permitting, PFAS regulations)

Research grants and funding opportunities that can be jointly pursued, with particular emphasis
on 2024 “Solid Waste Infrastructure for Recycling” and “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle Education and
Outreach” grants offered by EPA.

Develop Fiscal Year 2024-25 Work plan and Budget for the Consortium’s consideration by
January 30, 2024, and approval by March 31, 2024.

- Page 162 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney
Department(s): Legal Services Department

Requested Motion

Motion to approve an Ordinance Amendment to incorporate local acts into the Town Charter.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

[tem Details
This ordinance incorporates local acts into the Town Charter that have not yet been incorporated. This
enhances the ability of Town officials, Town staff, and citizens to research and be knowledgeable of the

authority invested in the Town by the General Assembly.

Attachments

e CN13-A1: Ordinance 2023-XXX - Incorporating Local Acts into Charter

- Page 163 -




ORDINANCE NO. 2023- -

AN ORDINANCE TO INCORPORATE LOCAL ACTS INTO
THE CHARTER OF THE TOWN OF APEX

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 160A-496 authorizes the Town Council to
incorporate local acts into the Town’s Charter and prescribes a process by which such
incorporation may be accomplished;

WHEREAS, pursuant to NCGS 160A-496 the Town Attorney may recommend to Town Council
to adopt an ordinance to incorporate local acts into the Town Charter and the Town Attorney may
suggest a provision of catchlines or other modifications in arrangement or form that do not change
the provisions themselves as necessary to effect an orderly incorporation of local laws into the
Town Charter;

WHEREAS, when Council adopts an ordinance amending the Town Charter to incorporate local
acts, the Town Clerk shall file a certified true copy of the ordinance with the Secretary of State
and the Legislative Library;

WHEREAS, the Town Attorney recommends incorporating local acts into the Town Charter so
that Council, staff, citizens, and other interested parties may more easily access the laws applicable
to living and conducting business in the Town of Apex; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to act according to the advice and guidance provided by
the Town Attorney.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as
follows:

Section 1. Upon recommendation of the Town Attorney pursuant to NCGS 160A-
496, Article VI of the Charter of the Town of Apex is hereby amended to read as follows,
with additions shown as bold underlined text:

Sec. 6.8 — Procedure for permanently closing streets and alleys limited to corporate limits.

(a) _When the Town of Apex proposes to permanently close any street or public
alley, the Council shall first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to close the
street or alley and calling a public hearing on the guestion. The resolution shall
be published once a week for four successive weeks prior to the hearing, a copy
thereof shall be sent by reqistered or certified mail to all owners of property
adjoining the street or alley as shown on the county tax records, and a notice of
the closing and public hearing shall be prominently posted in at least two places
along the street or alley. If the street or alley is under the authority and control
of the Department of Transportation, a copy of the resolution shall be mailed to
the Department of Transportation. At the hearing, any person may be heard on

- Page 164 -




the question of whether or not the closing would be detrimental to the public
interest, or the property rights of any individual. If it appears to the satisfaction
of the Council after the hearing that closing the street or alley is not contrary to
the public interest, and that no individual owning property in the vicinity of the
street or alley or in the subdivision in which it is located would thereby be
deprived of reasonable means of ingress and eqress to his property, the Council
may adopt an order closing the street or alley. A certified copy of the order (or
judgment of the court) shall be filed in the office of the register of deeds of the
county in which the street, or any portion thereof, is located.

(b) Any person aggrieved by the closing of any street or alley including the
Department of Transportation if the street or alley is under its authority and
control, may appeal the Council's order to the General Court of Justice within
30 days after its adoption. The court shall hear the matter de novo, and shall
have full jurisdiction to try the issues arising and to order the street or alley
closed upon proper findings of fact by the jury. No cause of action or defense
founded upon the invalidity of any proceedings taken in closing any street or
alley may be asserted, nor shall the validity of the order be open to question in
any court upon any ground whatever, except in an action or proceeding begun
within 30 days after the order is adopted.

(c) _Upon the closing of a street or alley in accordance with this section, subject to
the provisions of subsection (f) of this section, all right, title, and interest in the
right-of-way shall be conclusively presumed to be vested in those persons
owning lots or parcels of land adjacent to the street or alley, and the title of
such adjoining landowners, for the width of the abutting land owned by them,
shall extend to the centerline of the street or alley.

(d) This section shall apply to any street or public alley within the city that has
been irrevocably dedicated to the public, without regard to whether it has
actually been opened.

(e) No street or alley under the control of the Department of Transportation may
be closed unless the Department of Transportation consents thereto.

(f) The Town of Apex may reserve its right, title, and interest in any utility
improvement or easement within a street closed pursuant to this section. Such
reservation shall be stated in the order of closing.

(S.L. 1989, Ch. 279)

Sec. 6.9 — Compliance with Swift Creek Management Plan.

(a) _The Town of Apex shall not adopt any ordinance authorized by Chapter 160D
of the General Statutes, or under any local Act or Charter provision relating to
the subject of that Chapter, nor grant any permit or approval pursuant to those
ordinances, that would be inconsistent with the standards and provisions of the
Swift Creek Management Plan.

- Page 165 -




(b)

This section applies to any zoning map amendment and to any other zoning

(c)

amendment, modification, repeal, or changes in zoning regulations and
restrictions or zone boundaries relating to the area set forth in the Swift Creek
Management Plan, but shall not be construed to prevent the Town of Apex
from adopting zoning ordinance text changes.

This section shall not affect any valid and unexpired vested right of any

(d)

landowner arising by law pursuant to G.S. 153A-344.1 or G.S. 160A-385.1, nor
shall this section affect the right of any person to protest zoning changes or
otherwise appeal planning, subdivision, or zoning actions as provided by Article
18 of Chapter 153A of the General Statutes (G.S. 153A-320 et seq.), or Article
19 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes (G.S. 160A-360 et seq.), or by local
ordinance.

If the Town of Apex has an ordinance to effectuate the recommended minimum

(e)

performance standards for the Swift Creek watershed and the other specific
features set forth in the Swift Creek Management Plan, then the Town of Apex
may modify its zoning ordinance to further meet or exceed the requirements of
the Swift Creek Management Plan. The Swift Creek Management Plan may be
modified by interlocal agreement pursuant to Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the
General Statutes entered into by all of the affected jurisdictions.

The Town of Apex may extend utilities unilaterally to any portion of its

jurisdiction subject to the Swift Creek Management Plan provided that, prior

to October 22, 1998, the Town of Apex zoned or rezoned the subject area in
anticipation of providing utilities to the area.

(S.L. 1998, Ch. 192)

Sec. 6.10 — Standing of Town to enforce Swift Creek Management Plan.

(a

The Town of Apex, as a party to the Swift Creek Management Plan, shall have

(b)

standing to contest an action of another party to the Swift Creek Management
Plan that the Town Council for the Town of Apex believes is inconsistent with

the standards and provisions of the Swift Creek Management Plan in violation
of the provisions of subsections (a) through (c) of Sec. 6.9 of this Charter.

Any person who resides in the Town of Apex and who also resides in the Swift

(©

Creek watershed shall have standing to contest an action of any party to the
Swift Creek Management Plan that the person believes is inconsistent with the
standards and provisions of the Swift Creek Management Plan in violation of
the provisions of subsections (a) through (c) of Sec. 6.9 of this Charter, provided
that the person has a specific personal or legal interest in the action and is
adversely affected thereby.

The Town of Apex or person who has standing under subsection (a) or (b) of

this section may file a petition in the superior court of Wake County seeking
review of the action of a local government that the Town of Apex or person
believes to be inconsistent with the standards and provisions of the Swift Creek

- Page 166 -




(d)

Management Plan in violation of the provisions of subsections (a) through (c) of
Sec. 6.9 of this Charter. A petition under this section shall be filed no later than
sixty (60) days after the adoption, amendment, or repeal of the ordinance, the
grant of the permit or approval, an extension of any utility, or other action the
local government or person believes to be inconsistent with the standards and
provisions of the Swift Creek Management Plan in violation of the provisions of
subsections (a) through (c) of Sec. 6.9 of this Charter.

A petition filed under this section shall state with specificity what exceptions

(e)

are taken to the action of the respondent local government and what relief the
petitioner seeks. Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the copy of the petition
for review, or within such additional time as the court may allow, the
respondent local government shall transmit to the court a copy of the
ordinance, permit, or approval and any other minutes or documents that
constitute the record of the challenged action.

The court may hear oral arguments, receive written briefs, and take evidence

()

on the question of whether or not there has been a violation of subsections (a)
through (c) of Sec. 6.9 of this Charter.

If the court determines that there has been a violation of subsections (a) through

(@

(c) of Sec. 6.9 of this Charter, it shall declare the ordinance, permit, approval,
or other action void and may order any additional relief that appears

appropriate.

This section shall not be construed to preclude a judicial determination, based

on common-law principles, statutory provisions, or other law, that standing
exists in a particular case for a person to bring an action to challenge an alleged
violation of the Swift Creek Management Plan and the provisions of subsections
(a) through (c) of Sec. 6.9 of this Charter.

(S.L. 2005, Ch. 89)

Sec. 6.11 — Ordinances regulating trees and shrubs generally.

()

(b)

In order to preserve and enhance one of the most valuable natural resources of
the community and to protect the safety and welfare of its citizens, the Town of
Apex may adopt ordinances to regulate the planting, removal, and preservation
of trees and shrubs on public and private property within the Town. Any
ordinance adopted pursuant to this section shall exclude property to be
developed for single-family or duplex residential uses and shall exclude normal
forestry activities conducted pursuant to a forestry management plan prepared
or approved by a forester registered pursuant to Chapter 89B of the General
Statutes.

Prior to adopting an ordinance authorized by subsection (a) of this section, a

public hearing shall be held before the Town Council for the Town of Apex.
Notice of the hearing shall be given in accordance with G.S. 160D-601.

- Page 167 -




(S.L. 2000, Ch. 108)

Sec. 6.12 — Electronic notice for certain public hearings.

The Town Council for the Town of Apex may adopt ordinances providing that
notice of public hearings may be given through electronic means, including, but not limited
to, the Town of Apex Internet site. Ordinances adopted pursuant to this section shall not
supersede any North Carolina law that requires notice by mail to certain classes of people
or the posting of signs on certain property and shall not alter the publication schedule for
any public notice.

(S.L. 2007, Ch. 86)

Sec. 6.13 — Standards for annexation of noncontiguous areas; Removes limitation of
satellite corporate limits to ten percent of area within the primary corporate limits.

A noncontiguous area proposed for annexation must meet all of the following
standards:

(2) The nearest point on the proposed satellite corporate limits must be not more
than three miles from the primary corporate limits of the Town of Apex.

(b) _No point on the proposed satellite corporate limits may be closer to the primary
corporate limits of another city than to the primary corporate limits of the
annexing city, except as set forth in subsection (b2) of North Carolina General
Statutes Chapter 160A-58.1.

(c) The area must be so situated that the Town of Apex will be able to provide the
same services within the proposed satellite corporate limits that it provides
within its primary corporate limits.

(d) If the area proposed for annexation, or any portion thereof, is subject to
subdivision requlation as described in G.S. 160D-802, all of the subdivision must
be included.

(S.L.2009, Ch. 53)

Sec. 6.14 — Authority to use wheel locks.

The Apex Town Council of the Town of Apex may provide, by ordinance, for the
use of wheel locks on illegally parked vehicles for which there are three or more unpaid
parking tickets which are at least 90 days overdue. The ordinance shall provide for notice
or warning to be affixed to the vehicle, immobilization, towing, impoundment, appeal
hearing, an immobilization fee not to exceed fifty ($50.00) dollars, and charges for towing
and storage. The Town of Apex shall not be responsible for any damage to an immobilized
illegally parked vehicle resulting from unauthorized attempts to free or move that vehicle.

- Page 168 -




(S.L. 2009, Ch. 152)

Section 2. Itis the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained that the
provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Charter and the sections of
this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such intention.

Section 3. Severability, Conflict of Laws. If this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or
applications of the ordinance which can be given separate effect and to the end the provisions of
this ordinance are declared to be severable. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with
this ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 4. Filing of the Ordinance. The Town Clerk shall file a true copy of this
ordinance with the North Carolina Secretary of State and the North Carolina General Assembly
Legislative Library.

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption.

Introduced by Council Member:

Seconded by Council Member:

This the day of , 2023.
Attest: TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC Jacques K. Gilbert
Town Clerk Mayor

Approved As To Form:

Laurie L. Hohe,
Town Attorney

- Page 169 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Mary Beth Manville, Human Resources Director
Department(s): Human Resources

Requested Motion

Motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2024 Position Authorization List and the Fiscal Year 2024 Job Title and
Market Range Inventory for the Town of Apex.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
[tem Details
The attached FY24 Position Authorization List includes all authorized, classified Town positions, including all

new positions proposed in the FY24 annual budget.

This motion also includes a request for approval of the attached FY24 Job Title and Market Range

Inventory, which includes a list of all job titles and associated salary ranges. The FY24 salary ranges have
been increased by 2% to make necessary market adjustments so that the Town can remain competitive in
recruitment and retention efforts. All Town employees will receive a 2% market adjustment increase as a

result of the salary range adjustment, to avoid salary compression and salary inequities.

The new position authorizations and 2% market range adjustments and associated salary increases were
presented and approved at the joint Personnel and Finance Committee meeting on March 23, 2023, and

have been included in the proposed FY24 annual budget.

Attachments

e CN14-A1: FY24 Position Authorization List
e CN14-A2: FY24 Job Title and Market Range Inventory

- Page 170 -




Full Time
Equivalent

Administration

Budget & Performance Management
Communications

Community Development and Neighborhood Connections
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

Economic Development

Electric

Finance

Fire

Human Resources

Information Technology

Building Inspections & Permits

Legal

Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Planning

Police & Emergency Communications

Public Works

Town Clerk

Transportation & Infrastructure Development
Water Resources

By Fund

TOTAL FTEs
638.75

O General O Electric B Water & Sewer

- Page 171 -




Administration

Town Manager

Deputy Town Manager

Assistant Town Manager

Management Analyst

Senior Executive Assistant (Town Administration)
Administrative Assistant

Receptionist

Budget, Performance, & Strategy

Budget & Performance Director
Lead Budget & Performance Analyst
Budget & Performance Analyst
Sustainability Program Coordinator
Sustainability Specialist

Communications

Communications Director
Communications Coordinator
Public Information Officer
Digital Media Specialist
Multimedia Specialist

Community Development & Neighborhood Connections

PT FTE
Community Development and Neighborhood Connections Direci
Housing Program Manager
311 Manager
Senior Housing Specialist
Community Engagement Coordinator
Neighborhood Improvement Specialist
Housing Technician

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Director
DEI Coordinator

- Page 172 -




Economic Development

Economic Development Director
Small Business Manager

Small Business Specialist
Economic Development Specialist

Electric 44

Grade
SL302
MO07
MO05
E6/E8/E9/E10/E11
E7
E7
E6
E14
E14
E14
E12
E12
E12
E10/E11
E11
E11
E9/E10

!
= T
—

Electric Utilities Director

—
-

Electric Programs & Tech Coordinator

—
=Y

Program Support Specialist

-
~
-
~

Electric Line Technician Apprentice/I/1l/lll/Journey
Utility Locate Technician - Lead
Powerline Right of Way Technician
Utility Locate Technician

Senior Electrical Engineer

Electric Technical Services Manager
Electric Operations Manager

Electric Crew Field Supervisor

Electric Engineering Assistant

Electric Operations Assistant

Electric Technical Services Specialist I/11
Electric Utilities Specialist

Powerline Forester

N = = N = N A = @ = W DA =
N = = N =2 N D = - W A =

Powerline Trainee/Arborist

Finance 23.25

Grade
SL302
M15
M12
M11
M11
M10
M10
M08
MO07
MO07
Mo06
Mo06
MO05
MO05
MO05
Mo04

-n
—

Finance Director

Assistant Finance Director
Accounting Manager

Purchasing and Contracts Manager
Customer Service & Billing Manager
Finance & Utility Accountant
Assistant Customer Service Manager

L e . T T W Gty

Payroll Administrator

(%]

Accounting Specialist

Buyer

Purchasing Agent

Senior Utility Customer Service Specialist
Accounts Payable Technician

Utility Customer Service Specialist

N W = Ul = = = = sl o= oed osd o =d o=d =
=y

Inventory & Warehouse Specialist
Utility Billing Clerk

VN W= = aay

(=]
(=]

- Page 173 -




Fire & Rescue 115

Grade
Fire Chief SL303
Assistant Fire Chief M14
Admin Logistics Coordinator MO07
Fire Battalion Chief F109
Fire Marshal F109
Fire Lieutenant/Captain F104/107
Deputy Fire Marshal 1 1 F107
Fire Training Coordinator F107
Emergency Management Coordinator 1 F107
Fire Engineer F103
Cadet/Firefighter/Senior Firefighter F102
Community Risk Reduction Coordinator 17
Fire Inspector F101
Program Support Specialist MO05

Human Resources 12

-n
—

Human Resources Director

Assistant Human Resources Director
Compensation & Benefits Manager

Safety & Risk Manager

Senior Training & Development Consultant
Human Resources Data & Systems Administrator
Senior Talent Acquisition Consultant

Talent Acquisition Consultant

Human Resources Consultant

Executive Assistant

-— ek N e e el e e e el el
- ek N e e e e e el el e

Human Resources Technician

Information Technology

-n
—

Information Technology Director
Information Technology Manager
GIS Administrator

Information Technology Supervisor
IT Security & Compliance Analyst
Information Technology Analyst
Information Technology Specialist
GIS Analyst

GIS Specialist

GIS Technician

- = N U1 U1 = W oem m -
- e N Ul Ul = W = ed wa

- Page 174 -




Building Inspections & Permits 24

Grade
Inspections & Permits Director 1 SL301
Building Code Supervisor M12
Plans and Permits Supervisor 1 M12
Building Code Official I/1I/1l Mo08/M10/M11
Senior Plans Examiner M11
Plans Examiner M08
Permit Specialist Mo06
Senior Program Support Specialist MO06

Legal Services

Town Attorney

Deputy Town Attorney
Assistant Town Attorney
Legal Assistant

Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources

-n
—

Parks, Rec and CR Director

Assistant Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Director
Park Manager

Parks Operations Manager

Parks Planning & Project Manager

PRCR Center Manager (Community, Senior, Cultural Arts)
Parks Operations Supervisor

Special Events Coordinator

Athletics & Grounds Supervisor

Recreation Program Supervisor

Parks & Greenways Planning Tech

Cultural Arts Specialist

Recreation Program Specialist

Executive Assistant

Athletics & Grounds Team Leader

Cultural Arts Marketing and Event Specialist

Parks Operations Team Leader

1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
3 3
1 1
1 1
1 1
4 4
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
3 3
1 1
4 4
1 1

Marketing & Programs Coordinator
Camp Director (PT30)
Volunteer Coordinator

-
(%)}

Recreation Customer Service Specialist
Athletic and Grounds Technician

Parks Operations Worker /11

Parks Attendant

Facility Attendant

Athletics & Grounds Worker

o
Ul 0 N = 00 =

- Page 175 -




Planning

Planning Director

Planning Manager

Long Range Planning Manager
Planner/Planner Il/Senior Planner
Senior GIS Analyst

Zoning Compliance Supervisor

Sr Zoning Compl. Officer-Lndscpg
Lead Planning Technician

GIS Specialist

Zoning Compliance Officer/Senior Zoning Compliance Officer

Planning Technician
GIS Technician

Police

Police Chief

Deputy Police Chief

Police Captain

Police Lieutenant

Police Sergeant

Police Corporal

Police Officers (I/1l/Master/Senior)
Compliance Manager
Communications Center Manager
Compliance Specialist

Digital Forensics Technician
Accreditation Specialist

Police Records Supervisor

Police Crisis Counselor

Crime Analyst

Victim Advocate

Executive Assistant
Administrative Coordinator
Communications Shift Supervisor
Telecommunicator |, Il, Senior
Evidence Tech/Quartermaster
Police Records Technician

Public Works

Public Works Director

Fleet Services Manager

Public Works Operations Manager
Facilities & Grounds Manager
Solid Waste Operations Supervisor
Facility Services Supervisor

- Page 176 -

-n
—

L e e e e e e T . )

(=]

W N oAy

-_ N W = e e e e N e e

[ S S e ™ S . T e Y

(%]

21

Grade
SL302
M13
M13
M09/M10/M12
M11
M11
M10
M09
M09
M08/M09
M08
M08

132.75

Grade
SL303
M16
P207
P206
P205
P204
P200/P201/P202/P203
M12
M12
M10
M09
M08
M08
M08
M08
M08
MO07
MO07
MO07
M06/MO07
MO06
MO05

54.5

Grade
SL301
M13
M12
M11
M10
M10




Public Works (cont'd)

Fleet Services Supervisor M10
M10
M10
M08
M08
Mo7
Mo7
Mo7
Mo7
MO06
MO06
MO06

M06/M07
Mo05
Mo05

M04/M05
Mo04
Mo04
Mo04

Streets Operations Supervisor

PW Data Operations Analyst

Grounds Maintenance Supervisor

PW Data Operations Specialist

Fleet Crew Leader

Street Maintenance Field Crew Supervisor
Solid Waste Field Crew Supv.

Senior Facility Maintenance Mechanic
Facility Maintenance Mechanic
Senior Program Support Specialist
Street Signs Technician

Fleet Services Mechanic I/Senior

- W = m AN =S W e e e e e
- W = = AN = W e e ) e e -

Program Support Specialist
Solid Waste Equipment Operator

—
N
—
© N

Street Maintenance Worker/Senior
General Maintenance Worker
Street Signs Worker

Public Works Attendant

- = n©

Town Clerk

Town Clerk

Deputy Town Clerk

Legislative Assistant

Legislative Procedures and Policy Coordinator

Transportation & Infrastructure

-n
—

Transportation & Infrastructure Development Director
Transportation Engineering Mgr

Traffic Engineering Manager

Senior Capital Projects manager

Professional Engineer/Traffic Safety Engineer
Development Services Manager
Infrastructure Inspections Manager

Utilities Acquisition Specialist

Engineering Projects Coordinator
Infrastructure Inspector/Senior

Engineering Specialist

Development Specialist

Development Technician

Senior Program Support Specialist

Program Support Specialist

N = = = = o= U] = = = = N = omd =l o=
N = = = = o=l U1 = =) md = N = omd =l =

Capital Projects Inspector

- Page 177 -




Water Resources

-n
—

Water Resources Director
M14
M14
M13
M13
M13
M12
M11
M11
M11
M11
M11

M09/M10
M10
M10
M10
M10
M09
M09
M09
M09
M09
M09

MO07/M08/M09
MO07
Mo7
MO07
MO06
MO06

MO05/M06
MO06
MO05
Mo04

Stormwater Engineering Mgr
Utilities Engineering Manager
Senior Engineer

Utilities Operations Manager
WRF Manager

Stormwater Field Services Supervisor
WRF Supervisor

Utilities Specialist

Water Quality Supervisor

Utility Engineer Intern

Water Resources Specialist
Stormwater Specialist I/11
Collections System Supervisor
Laboratory Supervisor

Utility Maintenance Supervisor
Pump Maintenance Supervisor
Water Resources Program Coordinator
Water Field Crew Supervisor
Utility Field Crew Supervisor

GIS Specialist

Stormwater Utility Coordinator
Meter Services Supervisor

WRF Operator/Mechanic I/11/111/IV
Heavy Equipment Operator
Pump Maintenance Mechanic
Senior Laboratory Analyst
Grounds Maintenance Team Lead

N = = W N D = @ @ D 2w e omd oemdomd W = N = N = e e oemd oed oed oed o=
N = = W N D = md md D m omd e emd md md W m N = N o e e el e oed oed

Senior Meter Technician

N
o
N
(=]

Utility Maintenance Worker/Senior/Technician

N
N

Senior Program Support Specialist

N
[\S]

Meter Technician

N
N

Grounds Maintenance Technician

- Page 178 -




Administration
Administration
Administration
Administration
Administration
Administration

Budget & Performance
Budget & Performance
Budget & Performance
Budget & Performance
Budget & Performance
Communications
Communications
Communications
Communications
Communications

Receptionist

Senior Executive Assistant to Town Administrator
Management Analyst

Assistant Town Manager

Deputy Town Manager
Administrative Assistant
Sustainability Specialist
Sustainability Program Coordinator
Budget & Performance Analyst

Lead Budget & Performance Analyst
Budget & Performance Director
Digital Media Specialist

Multimedia Specialist
Communications Coordinator
Communications Director

Public Information Officer

Community Development and Neighborhooc Housing Technician

Community Development and Neighborhooc Neighborhood Improvement Specialist
Community Development and Neighborhooc Community Engagement Coordinator

Community Development and Neighborhooc Senior Housing Specialist
Community Development and Neighborhooc Housing Program Manager

Community Development and Neighborhooc Community Development and Neighborhood Conne
Community Development and Neighborhooc 311 Manager

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
Economic Development
Economic Development
Economic Development
Economic Development
Electric

Electric

Electric

Electric

Diversity Coordinator

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Director
Economic Development Specialist
Small Business Specialist

Small Business Manager

Economic Development Director
Electric Line Technician IlI

Electric Technical Services Specialist |
Powerline Arborist

Electric Line Technician Journey

- Page 179 -

MO05
M09
M10
SL304
SL305
MO05
M08
M09
M10
M11
SL301
M08
M08
M10
SL301
M11
M08
M08
M10
M12
M13
SL302
M11
M10
SL301
MO05
MO07
M10
SL301
E10
E10
E10
E11

$44,429
$62,714
$68,358
$144,382
$152,875
$44,429
$57,535
$62,714
$68,358
$74,511
$118,903
$57,535
$57,535
$68,358
$118,903
$74,511
$57,535
$57,535
$68,358
$81,589
$89,340
$127,396
$74,511
$68,358
$118,903
$44,429
$52,785
$68,358
$118,903
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$74,511

$54,425
$76,824
$83,739
$176,868
$187,272
$54,425
$70,481
$76,824
$83,739
$91,276
$145,656
$70,481
$70,481
$83,739
$145,656
$91,276
$70,481
$70,481
$83,739
$99,947
$109,442
$156,060
$91,276
$83,739
$145,656
$54,425
$64,662
$83,739
$145,656
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$91,276

$68,864
$97,206
$105,955
$223,792
$236,956
$68,864
$89,180
$97,206
$105,955
$115,492
$184,299
$89,180
$89,180
$105,955
$184,299
$115,492
$89,180
$89,180
$105,955
$126,463
$138,478
$197,464
$115,492
$105,955
$184,299
$68,864
$81,817
$105,955
$184,299
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$115,492



Department Position Title Grade Minimum \ET G Maximum

Electric Electric Technical Services Specialist Il E11 $74,511 $91,276 $115,492
Electric Electric Utilities Specialist E11 $74,511 $91,276 $115,492
Electric Powerline Forester E11 $74,511 $91,276 $115,492
Electric Electric Crew Field Supervisor E12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Electric Electric Engineering Assistant E12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Electric Electric Operations Assistant E12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Electric Senior Electrical Engineer E14 $97,828 $119,839 $151,633
Electric Electric Technical Services Manager E14 $97,828 $119,839 $151,633
Electric Electric Operations Manager E14 $97,828 $119,839 $151,633
Electric Electric Line Tech Apprentice E6 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Electric Utility Locate Technician E6 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Electric Utility Locate Technician - Lead E7 $52,785 $64,662 $81,817
Electric Powerline Right of Way Technician E7 $52,785 $64,662 581,817
Electric Electric Line Technician | ES $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Electric Electric Line Technician Il E9 $62,714 $76,824 $97,206
Electric Powerline Arborist Trainee E9 $62,714 $76,824 $97,206
Electric Electric Programs & Tech Coordinator MO07 $52,785 $64,662 581,817
Electric Electric Utilities Director SL302 $127,396 $156,060 $197,464
Finance Accounts Payable Technician MO05 S44,429 $54,425 $68,864
Finance Utility Customer Service Specialist MO05 S44,429 $54,425 $68,864
Finance Inventory & Warehouse Specialist MO5 S44,429 $54,425 $68,864
Finance Senior Utility Customer Service Specialist MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Finance Accounting Specialist MO07 $52,785 $64,662 581,817
Finance Buyer MO07 $52,785 $64,662 $81,817
Finance Payroll Administrator M08 $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Finance Finance & Utility Accountant M10 $68,358 $83,739 $105,955
Finance Assistant Customer Service Manager M10 $68,358 $83,739 $105,955
Finance Purchasing and Contracts Manager M11 $74,511 $91,276 $115,492
Finance Customer Service & Billing Manager M11 $74,511 $91,276 $115,492
Finance Accounting Manager M12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Finance Finance Director SL302 $127,396 $156,060 $197,464
Finance Utility Billing Clerk Mo04 $40,760 $49,931 $63,178
Finance Purchasing Agent MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062

- Page 180 -




Finance

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Fire & Rescue

Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Human Resources
Information Technology
Information Technology
Information Technology
Information Technology
Information Technology

Assistant Finance Director

Firefighter

Fire Inspector

Senior Firefighter

Community Risk Reduction Coordinator
Fire Engineer

Fire Lieutenant

Fire Captain

Deputy Fire Marshal

Fire Training Coordinator

Emergency Management Coordinator
Fire Battalion Chief

Fire Marshal

Admin Logistics Coordinator
Assistant Fire Chief

Deputy Fire Chief

Fire Chief

Executive Assistant

Human Resources Technician

Talent Acquisition Consultant

Human Resources Consultant

Human Resources Data & Systems Administrator
Senior Talent Acquisition Consultant
Senior Training & Development Consultant
Safety & Risk Manager

Compensation & Benefits Manager
Assistant Human Resources Director
Human Resources Director

IT Technician

Information Technology Specialist

IT Network Specialist

IT Security & Compliance Analyst
Information Technology Analyst

- Page 181 -

M15
F100
F101
F102
F102
F103
F104
F107
F107
F107
F107
F109
F109
MO07
M14
M15
SL303
MO07
MO07
M09
M09
M10
M12
M12
M13
M13
M15
SL302
M08
M10
M10
M11
M11

$107,121
$52,457
$57,921
$60,338
$60,338
$63,702
$66,702
$74,384
$74,384
$74,384
$74,384
$93,369
$93,369
$52,785
$97,828
$107,121
$135,889
$52,785
$52,785
$62,714
$62,714
$68,358
$81,589
$81,589
$89,340
$89,340
$107,121
$127,396
$57,535
$68,358
$68,358
$74,511
$74,511

$131,223
$64,260
$70,953
$73,915
$73,914
$78,035
$81,710
$91,121
$91,121
$91,121
$91,121
$114,377
$114,377
$64,662
$119,839
$131,223
$166,464
$64,662
$64,662
$76,824
$76,824
$83,739
$99,947
$99,947
$109,442
$109,442
$131,223
$156,060
$70,481
$83,739
$83,739
$91,276
$91,276

$166,037
$81,309
$89,778
$93,525
$93,525
$98,739
$103,388
$115,296
$115,296
$115,296
$115,296
$144,722
$144,722
$81,817
$151,633
$166,037
$210,628
$81,817
$81,817
$97,206
$97,206
$105,955
$126,463
$126,463
$138,478
$138,478
$166,037
$197,464
$89,180
$105,955
$105,955
$115,492
$115,492



Information Technology

Information Technology

Information Technology

Information Technology

Information Technology

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Inspections

Legal Services

Legal Services

Legal Services

MULTIPLE

MULTIPLE

Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources

GIS Administrator

Information Technology Supervisor
Business Process Supervisor
Information Technology Manager
Information Technology Director
Permit Specialist

Senior Program Support Specialist
Building Code Official |

Plans Examiner

Building Code Official Il

Building Code Official IlI

Senior Plans Examiner

Building Code Supervisor

Plans and Permits Supervisor
Inspections & Permits Director
Legal Assistant

Assistant Town Attorney

Deputy Town Attorney

Senior Program Support Specialist
GIS Specialist

Parks Attendant

Facility Attendant

Athletics & Grounds Worker
Athletic and Grounds Technician
Parks Operations Worker
Recreation Customer Service Specialist
Executive Assistant

Athletics & Grounds Team Leader
Cultural Arts Marketing and Event Specialist
Parks Operations Team Leader
Marketing & Programs Coordinator
Camp Director (PT30)

Volunteer Coordinator

- Page 182 -

M12
M12
M12
M13
SL302
MO06
MO06
M08
M08
M10
M11
M11
M12
M12
SL301
MO07
M14
M16
MO06
M09
Mo04
M04
Mo04
MO05
MO05
MO06
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07

$81,589
$81,589
$81,589
$89,340
$127,396
$48,427
$48,427
$57,535
$57,535
$68,358
$74,511
$74,511
$81,589
$81,589
$118,903
$52,785
$97,828
$117,298
$48,427
$62,714
$40,760
$40,760
$40,760
$44,429
$44,429
$48,427
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785

$99,947
$99,947
$99,947
$109,442
$156,060
$59,323
$59,323
$70,481
$70,481
$83,739
$91,276
$91,276
$99,947
$99,947
$145,656
$64,662
$119,839
$143,689
$59,323
$76,824
$49,931
$49,931
$49,931
$54,425
$54,425
$59,323
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662

$126,463
$126,463
$126,463
$138,478
$197,464
$75,062
$75,062
$89,180
$89,180
$105,955
$115,492
$115,492
$126,463
$126,463
$184,299
$81,817
$151,633
$181,811
$75,062
$97,206
$63,178
$63,178
$63,178
$68,864
$68,864
$75,062
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817



Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Planning

Police

Police

Parks & Greenways Planning Tech
Cultural Arts Specialist

Recreation Program Specialist
Special Events Coordinator
Athletics & Grounds Supervisor
Recreation Program Supervisor
Parks Operations Supervisor
PRCR Center Manager (Community, Senior, Cultural
Park Manager

Parks Operations Manager

Parks Planning & Project Manager
Recreation Program Manager
Assistant Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources
Parks, Rec and CR Director
Planning Technician

GIS Technician

Zoning Compliance Officer

Lead Planning Technician

GIS Specialist

Senior Zoning Compliance Officer
Planner |

GIS Analyst

Planner Il

Sr Zoning Compl. Officer-Lndscpg
Sr. GIS Analyst

Zoning Compliance Supervisor
Senior Planner

Sr. Planner - Long Range Transit
Planning Manager

Long Range Planning Manager
Planning Director

Police Records Technician
Evidence Tech/Quartermaster

- Page 183 -

M08
M08
M08
M09
M09
M09
M10
M11
M12
M12
M12
M12
M15
SL301
M08
M08
M08
M09
M09
M09
M09
M10
M10
M10
M11
M11
M12
M12
M13
M13
SL302
MO05
MO06

$57,535
$57,535
$57,535
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$68,358
$74,511
$81,589
$81,589
$81,589
$81,589
$107,121
$118,903
$57,535
$57,535
$57,535
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$74,511
$74,511
$81,589
$81,589
$89,340
$89,340
$127,396
$44,429
$48,427

$70,481
$70,481
$70,481
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$83,739
$91,276
$99,947
$99,947
$99,947
$99,947
$131,223
$145,656
$70,481
$70,481
$70,481
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$91,276
$91,276
$99,947
$99,947
$109,442
$109,442
$156,060
$54,425
$59,323

$89,180
$89,180
$89,180
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$105,955
$115,492
$126,463
$126,463
$126,463
$126,463
$166,037
$184,299
$89,180
$89,180
$89,180
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$115,492
$115,492
$126,463
$126,463
$138,478
$138,478
$197,464
$68,864
$75,062



Department Position Title Grade Minimum \ET G Maximum

Police Telecommunicator | MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Police Telecommunicator I MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Police Executive Assistant MO07 $52,785 $64,662 581,817
Police Communications Shift Supervisor MO07 $52,785 $64,662 $81,817
Police Senior Telecommunicator MO07 $52,785 $64,662 581,817
Police Accreditation Specialist M08 $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Police Police Records Supervisor M08 $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Police Police Crisis Counselor M08 $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Police Crime Analyst M08 $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Police Victim Advocate M08 $57,535 $70,481 $89,180
Police Digital Forensics Technician M09 $62,714 $76,824 $97,206
Police Compliance Specialist M10 $68,358 $83,739 $105,955
Police Compliance Manager M12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Police Communications Center Manager M12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Police Deputy Police Chief M16 $117,298 $143,689 $181,811
Police Police Officer | P200 $60,090 $73,610 $93,139
Police Police Officer Il P201 $62,090 $76,061 $96,240
Police Master Police Officer P202 $66,091 $80,962 $102,441
Police Senior Police Officer P203 $68,789 $84,267 $106,623
Police Police Corporal P204 $73,479 $90,012 $113,893
Police Police Sergeant P205 $79,362 $97,219 $123,012
Police Police Lieutenant P206 $88,480 $108,388 $137,144
Police Police Captain P207 $96,229 $117,880 $149,155
Police Police Chief SL303 $135,889 $166,464 $210,628
Public Works General Maintenance Worker MO04 $40,760 $49,931 $63,178
Public Works Street Signs Worker M04 $40,760 $49,931 $63,178
Public Works Street Maintenance Worker MO04 $40,760 $49,931 $63,178
Public Works Senior Street Maintenance Worker MO05 S44,429 $54,425 $68,864
Public Works Solid Waste Equipment Operator MO5 S44,429 $54,425 $68,864
Public Works Program Support Specialist MO5 $44,429 $54,425 $68,864
Public Works Facility Maintenance Mechanic MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Public Works Senior Program Support Specialist MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062
Public Works Street Signs Technician MO06 $48,427 $59,323 $75,062

- Page 184 -




Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Public Works

Town Clerk

Town Clerk

Town Clerk

Town Clerk

Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure

Fleet Services Mechanic I/1l

Senior Fleet Services Mechanic
Fleet Crew Leader

Street Maintenance Field Crew Supervisor
Senior Facility Maint. Mechanic
Solid Waste Field Crew Supv.
Grounds Maintenance Supervisor
PW Data Operations Specialist
Solid Waste Supervisor

Facility Services Supervisor

Fleet Services Supervisor

Streets Operations Supervisor

PW Data Operations Analyst
Facilities & Grounds Manager
Public Works Operations Manager
Fleet Services Manager

Public Works Director

Legislative Assistant

Deputy Town Clerk

Legislative Policy and Procedures Coordinator

Town Clerk

Development Technician
Development Specialist
Infrastructure Inspector
Engineering Projects Coordinator
Senior Infrastructure Inspector
Engineering Specialist

Utilities Acquisition Specialist
Professional Engineer/Traffic Engineer
Development Services Manager
Infrastructure Field Svs Manager
Senior Capital Projects manager
Transportation Engineering Mgr

- Page 185 -

MO06
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07
M08
M08
M10
M10
M10
M10
M10
M11
M12
M13
SL301
MO07
M09
TBD
SL300
MO06
M09
M09
M10
M10
M10
M11
M12
M12
M12
M13
M14

$48,427
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$57,535
$57,535
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$74,511
$81,589
$89,340
$118,903
$52,785
$62,714

$110,410
$48,427
$62,714
$62,714
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$74,511
$81,589
$81,589
$81,589
$89,340
$97,828

$59,323
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$70,481
$70,481
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$91,276
$99,947
$109,442
$145,656
$64,662
$76,824

$135,252
$59,323
$76,824
$76,824
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$91,276
$99,947
$99,947
$99,947
$109,442
$119,839

$75,062
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$89,180
$89,180
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$115,492
$126,463
$138,478
$184,299
$81,817
$97,206

$171,135
$75,062
$97,206
$97,206
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$115,492
$126,463
$126,463
$126,463
$138,478
$151,633



Transportation & Infrastructure
Transportation & Infrastructure
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources
Water Resources

Traffic Engineering Manager
Transportation & Infrastructure Development Direc
Grounds Maintenance Technician
Meter Technician

Utility Maintenance Worker
Grounds Maintenance Team Lead
Senior Meter Technician

Senior Utility Maintenance Worker
Utility Technician

Heavy Equipment Operator
Pump Maintenance Mechanic
Senior Laboratory Analyst

WRF Operator/Mechanic I/l

WRF Operator/ Mechanic Il
Water Resources Program Coordinator
Water Field Crew Supervisor
Utility Field Crew Supervisor
Stormwater Specialist
Stormwater Utility Coordinator
Meter Services Supervisor

WRF Operator/ Mechanic IV
Stormwater Specialist Il
Collections System Supervisor
Laboratory Supervisor

Utility Maintenance Supervisor
Pump Maintenance Supervisor
Capital Projects Inspector

WRF Supervisor

Utilities Specialist

Water Quality Supervisor

Utility Engineer Intern

Water Resources Specialist
Stormwater Field Svs Supv

- Page 186 -

M14
SL302
Mo04
MO05
MO05
MO06
MO06
MO06
MO06
MO07
MO07
MO07
MO07
M08
M09
M09
M09
M09
M09
M09
M09
M10
M10
M10
M10
M10
M11
M11
M11
M11
M11
M11
M12

$97,828
$127,396
$40,760
$44,429
$44,429
$48,427
$48,427
$48,427
$48,427
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$52,785
$57,535
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$62,714
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$68,358
$74,511
$74,511
$74,511
$74,511
$74,511
$74,511
$81,589

$119,839
$156,060
$49,931
$54,425
$54,425
$59,323
$59,323
$59,323
$59,323
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$64,662
$70,481
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$76,824
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$83,739
$91,276
$91,276
$91,276
$91,276
$91,276
$91,276
$99,947

$151,633
$197,464
$63,178
$68,864
$68,864
$75,062
$75,062
$75,062
$75,062
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$81,817
$89,180
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$97,206
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$105,955
$115,492
$115,492
$115,492
$115,492
$115,492
$115,492
$126,463



Department Position Title Grade Minimum \ET G Maximum

Water Resources Stormwater Engineer M12 $81,589 $99,947 $126,463
Water Resources Senior Engineer M13 $89,340 $109,442 $138,478
Water Resources Utilities Operations Manager M13 $89,340 $109,442 $138,478
Water Resources WRF Manager M13 $89,340 $109,442 $138,478
Water Resources Stormwater Engineering Mgr M14 $97,828 $119,839 $151,633
Water Resources Utilities Engineering Manager M14 $97,828 $119,839 $151,633
Water Resources Water Resources Director SL303 $135,889 $166,464 $210,628

- Page 187 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: June 27,2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Real Estate/Utilities Acquisition Specialist
Department(s): Transportation and Infrastructure Development

Requested Motion

Motion to approve a resolution entitled “A Resolution to Abandon Portions of Existing Public Utility

Easements”, located in the Reams Gove Subdivision.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

[tem Details
Lennar Carolinas, LLC is the owner of certain tracts of lane in the Town of Apex which is described in the
deed recorded in Deed Book 18750, Page 0035, Wake County Registry.
The abandoned portions of utility easements shown on the survey plat map are as follows:
AREA A - EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (740 S.F.)
AREA B - EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (255 S.F.)
AREA C - EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (588 S.F.)
AREA D - EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (911 S.F.)
Attachments

e CN15-A1: Resolution No. 23-XX - Public Utility Easement Abandonment
e CN15-A2: Survey Plat Map - Public Utility Easement Abandonment

- Page 188 -




RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A Resolution to Abandon Portions of Existing Public Utility Easements

WHEREAS, Lennar Carolinas, LLC (the “Owner”) is the owner of certain tracts of land
in or near the Town of Apex which are described in the deed recorded in Deed Book 18750,
Page 0035, Wake County Registry (the “Subject Property”);

WHEREAS, as part of the Reams Grove development, public utility easement interests
across the Subject Property were conveyed to the Town by an instrument recorded in Book of
Maps 2022, Pages 2213-2221, Wake County Registry;

WHEREAS, the Owner desires the Town to abandon those portions of public utility
easement interests in those certain areas designated as "EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED™ as shown on that certain survey plat entitled
“EASEMENT ABANDONMENT EXHIBIT REAMS GROVE SUBDIVISION” prepared by
WithersRavenel, dated May 22, 2023, said survey being attached hereto as Exhibit A; (the
"Abandoned Portions of Easements");

WHEREAS, the Abandoned Portions of Easements are further labeled and identified on
Exhibit A as follows:

AREA A — EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (740
iEI%A B — EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (255
igéA C — EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (588
iE%A D — EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED (911
S.F.

WHEREAS, the Town has no need for the Abandoned Portions of Easements and they
have no market value; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council considers it advisable to abandon the Abandoned
Portions of Easement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council as follows:

1. The Town Council of the Town of Apex hereby abandons the Abandoned
Portions of Easements as shown as easement areas A through D on Exhibit A attached
hereto in accordance with Paragraph (2) below, provided however, the Town specifically
retains any and all property interest it may have in the property not specifically identified
as abandoned herein.

2. The Abandoned Portions of Easements shall be abandoned effective upon,

- Page 189 -




and only upon, the recording of instruments at the Wake County Register of Deeds that
convey to the Town of Apex the areas labeled “PROPOSED PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT TO BE DEDICATED” as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto.

3. That the Town Manager or Assistant Town Manager is hereby authorized
to make, execute, and deliver to the owners of the Subject Property an instrument, in a
form suitable for recording, releasing whatever interest the Town might have in and to
the public utility easement.

Upon motion duly made by Council Member , and duly seconded
by Council Member , the above Resolution was duly adopted by the
Apex Town Council at the meeting held on the ___ day of 2023, in the Town Hall.

Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative:

and the following Council Members voted in the negative:

This the day of 2023.

TOWN OF APEX

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

ATTEST:

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, CMC, NCCCC

- Page 190 -




THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT
AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN
REVIEWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. EX. 90' TCE

\

i \
EX. 10' TYPE B BUFFER } \ \
:/' ’ A \

EX. BMP ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE

. EX. 20' TCE . EASEMENT (CROSS HATCH)
‘ EX. 10' TYPE B BUFFER T - \
\ N _ A EXISTING HOA .
. =  EXOPENSPACE — | / ___ MAINTENANCEAND _ |
= —"T\ - B A\ ex. 1070 soT L AcCEss i
EX. 10'x70' SDT )(\4 \ e — T T { //' EASEMENTS - .
~__\ -— " \/j \ | ! EXISTING HOA MAINTENANCE N NN
V \ \ . \ AND ACCESS EASEMENTS /" RETAINING WALL
- b=y 9
LILAC BLOOM LANE EX PSE SRR | 2 | s |
50' PUBLIC RW EX. 5' PUE \ \ | @ \ \
-— \ \ RETAINING WALL | 1 N
—1 _ = EX. 10'x70' SDT ' : |
— ) Zt] N \ EX10PUE | -
Ex.PDE\)(, S S } Lﬂ-ﬂﬂ\ 24— EX A0X70'SDT | \ \ \ \ R \ \ :
I R ~~~~J'”’”\ 1\\ \ . ol i —— g——— Z_UTILITY EASEMENTTOBE ;| ¢
Exsion [ | \ \ \ L e K\ 7 /// ABANDONED (255 S.F.) (
EASEMENT \ ‘\ - \ 5 \ ‘é \1 AREA C - EXISTING PUBLIC EX.5'PUE /o~ /L8 py W
\ ' g\ 5 &' 2§ L uTLTYEASEMENT TOBE ¥y PROPOSED PUBLIC VICINITY MAP
scomosor—A -\ |1 g | B @ | ABANDONED (558 S.F.) oo K UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE
\! \ EX. 10 PUE 1 L14 EX. 5' PUE o EX_PDE N DEDICATED (245 S.F.) ] NO SCALE
\ - T e B L6 (TIE TO FRONT N <1
\ \|'_112~” - L10 (TIE TO COMMON CORNER OF LOTS 26 & 31) - -39~~~ \\ T\L TS~ ) CORNER OF LoT 19120 PN \\ : II
@//W_j % AT —— /-@1/ | [z ‘ - e s g \ -
\\ \\_, — 4T "JCEX'ZO‘DE - EX. 20' PDE ( \ \@JMM%"”T'MM\ | \\ ‘\ // //”\\\\\[%\Q\%EX-*"'PUE ® //&\ \\ |
‘ . QA —r—" EX.PDE | | Ly /T7 / / BN A N A Oz AN 50' NEUSE RIVER |
PROPOSED PUBLIC —| | | \ \ o oarsor 1 1 \ \ g 1 / : % VAN \ \ 3 IPARIAN BUFFER
UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE \ LOT 31 L \ X b \ \ 5 5 | | |/ 2/ / N \ s & s > 5 “ZONE2.  (FROMTOP OF |
DEDICATED (558 S.F ‘ RN 5|1 &1 2l 3 g,/ 3 N RO Y : T BANKBOTH SIDES) 1
( .F.) | [ ' 5 | S | S - S | =< |/ & / / // / \ N %
SO0, \ J{’ —— T TR b |\ S g 2 ° | sl 8 3 N A NPt e S AN / l
Q§s° < oogo’ﬁoﬁ (:00% \ \ ‘ LOT 32 \ \ \ \’ \ \ | & \ \\ .. l\ \ //I [ / /// /8 // § / / \\ v 7 \9,\ / gl l
$° o) o°°°°(¢ESS/O°°°°° 2 %% \ \ _ —’\ i 4 \ \ | EX. 10' PUE ’1J /— I A// / / / N / RS v [
S§S5E %, %Y %\ EX OPENSPACE \_ i_- _ = | L L _ - 3l /l S~ EX. 10' PUE // / Y \>\/ S f l
s §< “% g ' Voo L T - / p S |
3 H SEAL 3 2 \ \ LOT 33 \ | [ [ 1 — / ~ \/L / / 7 }} \ / N\ \
g 35 L4695 S 20 \ - m | e———— A pl ~~_/ S ST AN GO S , . |
) S 7 A8 S \ _— | \ s - / / -\ — // il \<\ N/ \ : . |
%//\S/oo SUR\‘Q’ °05§ \ \ LOT 34 \\ \ ' RETAINING WALL et . \//f” ~ -~ 7 L7 ,\cg\ \ /\ :
%55 %o, AN \ \ - / =~ s AN y : —
90000@4 oomooooom@%gQQ \ o P\UE)A = \  EX HOAMAINTENANCE \ EX_ OPEN SPACE ~ NS 7/ ) \%\ \ e ! ) ‘ |
”oaooos M. GR Gev""DocuSigned by N \,. *’ —_ \ \ \ \  ANDACCESS EASEMENT [ AN \ A P SAa o s K |
0000000000° AN \ \ % \\ \ \(\/ v _ -~ ‘ [ \ \/ \ N / 0\ Ve \\ \ \ o . \ R l
6/6/2023 ﬂ—-»l»—\\ \ \ \ LoT \Al SN — A ! - \( v 7 /\\ \ N _— i )( |
DA7576C70B0048D. \ \ \,~~~~'~~”:~;;—/ \ ‘\ \\ \\/ 5 P AREAMS GROVE SUBDIVISION \< N / /\9«@// \\\/\<\>( EX.5'PUE T . : N~ . \/ EXWOTYPEBBUFFERW
Ao — — EENA o \ N \
LINE TABLE \ \r\\ ) T AN s YA BM 2022, PG.2213-2221 \\/% _r //\\\ \ \ . /\ |
\ ~ Cd : \ \ T IN N
LINE BEARING DISTANCE \ \ \)( _ //// \\ /\/\Y @ \\ \\/ \‘0—‘ [\ - \\ \ \\\ \\\\\ N \\ 7 \Q/ yd \\\ )\\ \ \\ \\( - 0‘ AL ),\ )\ \\ ~—— ... & REFERENCES
\ \e 7 o 2 TA N S \ \ S g \_—EX. PSE " —~ S
e RS N A0 NN e P :
L1 | Sr32808W | 10.08 \ _ 7 0@ 2 < \ NP < \ o EX.10'PUE N N < NN . VR~ \ \L1 (TIE TO REAR CORNER OF LOT 11) : 20 61
\ \ N . . A N R A N e o ' B \ LOTS 6-11, 19, 26-30, 61-62 AND OPEN SPACES
L2 | S10°4050°E | 3042 \\ \\ T g /\/ ‘\ 2% \ \/ \ P \ \\\\ \\\ \<<3F é\\/ —EXA0PUE " EX.OPENSPACE \  EX.5PUE % - ot - \ T0CB C%%ﬁiggooggi%|LI§I\';II%EZCI§C§OZL2|;\I3/-\§§|2_;_C
)( ~ \ A X % \ 0. \ S \ \ - \ , . , . -
L3 | SO1°1313'E | 120.91' \ \( RS OB L g o ) NN % o \ ) o
' A \ ~ 03 /\/\\ -éy Vo v o =) [EX RCA] Cc2 VB L~ PIN TABLE
L4 | S36°54'30"W 8.10' \ \ X o N \\\ “ N - =T \ \ \~ " "EX OPENSPACE OPEN SPACE 0733-10-4312
NS \< \ ~ AN ‘ 4 \ o REAR CORNER OF LOT 62 \ = - = -1 LOT6 0732-19-4928
L5 | NOT°1313'W | 166.28 NN o L) BREPETTAN ///// A< N T Lore2 \ %&7 s @ - LOT7  0733-10-4021
R\ X w7 : 7~ "\ EX. 8 PUBLIC AREA D - EXISTING PUBLIC | [Raglt \ \ | LT \ ot 0736104025
0 | SOTASE | B% \ \ < T ACCESS EASEMENT UTILITY EASEMENT TOBE . — — — — — =l - OT10 0133104028
9 N N Gt 7 \ T VRIS AREA A - EXISTING PUBLIC k T gt
17 | Naoe2720E 56.70" ??“ \ 3\“ \ o // < \ ABANDONED (911 S.F.) \\ LOT 63 \ |\ UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE —— \ LOT 11 0733-10-4113
> e ' - LOT 19 0733-10-2347
L8 | S10°3111"W 10.95' A'Zp¢( \\ \) - EX. 10"PUE \ ) V== “ ﬂ ABANDONED (740 S.F.) \ LOT 26 0733-00-8336
%‘%\ \ N7 { l P \’ \ LoT 64 \ @\\ | £x PDE IR, ~ q LOT 27 0733-00-8306
L9 | S41°5626"W |  47.34' EAS . \ | N & \ IRt = | PROPOSED PUBLIC LoT28  0733-00-7336
EX R \ \ _—EX.PSE o~ g —_—— Y ! \ | Lote UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE oTB e T
L10 | N05°42'38'W | 14.02 'S:% %’ \\ \ \ \ | / A \ \\ \ \1 LOT 65 R | \?j: ————— DEDICATED (764 S.F.) LOT 61 0733-10-2155
L11 | S84°1501"W | 111.66' Y 2 ‘\ \\ \\ EX.5' PUE v Ny \ \\\ [ , / | | | ’r y EXSPUE—- ! LOT7 { (LJSTEEIZSPACE g;gﬂggggg
X A = AV Y I p—— ‘<) e -
L12 | NO5°4459"W | 500 %% \\ \ N %\\'T” //>< \>\ \ : /o \L —— = ' }—’r —i— ) .
(¢) ~ _— AB
: \ e | \l A \ . EX. PSE i |
L13 | Ne4*1501E | 11167 TN ~ \/\ TN\« W\ EXI0PUE o L / )| EXADPUE [ gl Lore EX. OPEN SPACE
3\ \ R AN 2 / / e s | [ 18] B | > LEGEND
L | SOAZRE | % ' EX SPEN SPACE \ \ o N R s '/7/ N T e ‘j e S — .
' . 3 s - T - =T = [0000] ADDRESS
L15 | N38°2537"W | 567 \ \ \ \\ X \\ = \\ “\ \ /,//////,, ¢ EX 10 PUE ‘}:"/ // R ST / I ‘E;:\:\::E:: =7 \ -
A N NN A\ N ! ! LOT 65 i @ ' PR ecope ! e COMPUTED POINT
°08'56" - N 27 |
L16 | N85°0856"E | 92.38 \ DN \\ B \ \ \ e I I II L TN N II / Lors | / /
\ \ \ - ST —— < i | DE  EXISTING PRIVATE DRAINAGE EASEMENT
L17 | S85°08%56"W |  91.44' ~ N \\ \- P g A | P — — E /'I I’ = 7/ }
. \ o ! T PDE  EXISTING PUBLIC DRAINAGE EASEMENT
L18 | No4°51'04'W | 527 AN So W /EX// s I E} § LLL@ | LoT4 | /
\\ N\ Lo - , ol S | / ! PSE  EXISTING PUBLIC SIDEWALK EASEMENT
. < - | w2 | — —
CURVE TABLE N — -Fk,/// ’/// F ,_%' 5 ! 5 ! LoT3 II\] / PUE  EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
N -T \ / > [TIL — —_— _ |
I / — /
CURVE | LENGTH | RaDIUS | BEARING | CHORD X\ A < ', //, / ors | _ EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ABANDONED
~ / | EX. 10' PUE ST
o1 100 | 2500 | NageoTos"w | 4.4 \\// - /-7._ —— / ,’ |______, EXISTING RESOURCE CONSERVATION AREA
~ " | — —
C2 10.24 300.00 S17°16'22“E 10.24' / \ EX.5'PUE ﬁ\/’ /I LOT1 | /‘\ </\ \\\\\ SDT EXISTING SIGHT DISTANCE TRIANGLE
N \ N I’ | ! TCE  EXISTING TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
EX. PDE T
\ T~ / — 1] | O LOTCORNER
—— EX. 15 TYPEBBUFFER __
3 THE PURPOSE OF THIS EASEMENT ABANDONMENT EXHIBIT IS TO ABANDON PORTIONS OF || = ~ YW///7777/) ProPOSED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE DEDICATED
S EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS RECORDED IN BM 2022, PG. 2213-2221 ON LOTS 6-11 \\/ W EX. ACCESS AND — ... ——  RIPARIAN BUFFER
S T~ — EX. 10%70' SDT LT~ UTILITY EASEMENT
2 & ADJACENT OPEN SPACE, LOT 19, LOTS 26-30, AND LOTS 61-62 & ADJACENT OPEN SPACE. - T T~ Ly - - _
= — = — JENKS ROAD S.R. 1601 ——co TOCB  TOP OF CREEK BANK
a - 70" Tt e— e i
% VARIABLE WIDTH PAVED PUBLIC RIW EX.10%70°SDT T [EEERREN WETLAND AREA
Q ALL LOTS, RIGHTS OF WAY, OPEN SPACES, EASEMENTS, AND NATURAL
FEATURES ARE AS SHOWN IN BM 2022, PG. 2213-2221. REFER TO THE .
! DATE: 05/22/2023 EASEMENT ABANDONMENT EXHIBIT
—N— RECORDED PLAT FOR GRID TIES, BOUNDARY DATA, AREAS, SITE SPECIFIC SCALE 150
NOTES, SETBACKS, FLOOD CERTIFICATION, AND OTHER INFORMATION ' REAMS GROVE SUBDIVISION .
RELATED TO THIS SUBDIVISION. SURVEYED BY: JOM BM 2022, PG.2213-2221 W| th ers Ra vene l
DRAWN BY: TMG PROPERTY OF I_EN NAR CAROL'NAS, I_I_C Engineers | Planners | Surveyors
50 - . 50 100 REVISIONS CHECK & CLOSURE BY: TMG
- TOWNSHIP: WHITE OAK WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA 115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: F-1479
— ADD PROP. EASE. AREAS, 06/06/2023 CAD FILE: RGSUB_ABANDON wWww.withersravenel com
SCALE: 1" =50" PROJECT NO: 02181110.10 ' (4 (#ZOCZOZL) PIN: 0732-19-4928 et. al. SHEET: 1 OF 1
- Page 191 -



* 3 “The Peak of Good Lizing”

=2y TOWN OF APEX

@WWMM@

Parks and Recreation Month 2023
from the Office of the Mayor

WHEREAS, The Town of Apex’s Parks and Recreation program is a vital component of our
community, and serves as a means for residents to enjoy nature, participate in healthy activities,
and socialize with one another; and,

WHEREAS, Our Parks and Recreation program contributes to the economic health of our
town through improved property values, increased tourism, and the attraction of business, as
well as the physical health of our residents through the lifelong benefits derived from being
outdoors and participating in physical activity; and,

WHEREAS, Spending time in green spaces is associated with higher cognitive functioning
and decreased prevalence of anxiety and depression, and connection with nature is considered to
be beneficial to overall human development; and,

WHEREAS, Parks and natural recreation areas improve water quality, protect groundwater,
prevent flooding, improve the quality of the air we breathe, provide vegetative buffers to
development, and produce habitat for wildlife; and,

WHEREAS, Apex’s public parks include Apex Community Park, Apex Jaycee Park, Hunter
Street Park, Kelly Road Park, Apex Nature Park, and Salem Pond Park, and later this year, we are
excited to welcome the entire community to our newest addition, Pleasant Park; and,

WHEREAS, Apex’s recreation services include athletics for youth and adults, open gyms,
trails for walking, jogging, and biking, specialized recreation opportunities for residents with
disabilities, and fishing in several of our town ponds; and,

WHEREAS, Parks and Recreation Month is celebrated nationally throughout the month of
July, and the Town of Apex is proud is join in this celebration.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of Apex, North Carolina, do hereby
proclaim, The Month of July, 2023 as “Parks and Recreation Month”, in The Town of Apex, and
invite residents to utilize the natural spaces and recreation opportunities Apex offers to all
people, as a way to get in touch with nature and invest in their physical and mental health.

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the Town of Apex,
North Carolina, to be affixed this the 27th day of June 2023

T—@b

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor

- Page 192 -




OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK
“The Peak of Good Living”

TOWN OF ARERX

Media Contact:
Allen Coleman, Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
PUBLIC NOTICE — PUBLIC HEARING

APEX, N.C. (June 16, 2023) — The Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has scheduled a
Public Hearing to be held at 6:00 p.m. at Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street, on the 27" day of
June, 2023, on the question of annexation of the following property requested by petition filed
pursuant to G.S. 160A-31:

Annexation Petition No. 757
Alderwood Pond — 0.67 acres

Apex Town Hall . P.O. Box er Street . Apex, NC 27502

- Page 193 -




OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK
“The Peak of Good Living”

Residents may submit written comments to the Town Council with attention marked to the
Town Clerk Allen Coleman; P.O. Box 250; Apex, NC 27502 or by email at public
public.hearing@apexnc.org. Please use subject line “Annexation Petition No. 757 and include
your first and last name, your address, and your phone number in your written statements.
Written comments will be accepted until 3:00 PM on Tuesday, June 27, 2023.

Members of the public can access and view the meeting on the Town’s YouTube Channel
https:// www.youtube.com/c/TownofApexGov or attend in-person.

Anyone needing special accommodations to attend this meeting and/or if this information is
needed in an alternative format, please contact the Town Clerk’s Office. The Town Clerk is
located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex Town Hall on the 2™ Floor, (email)
allen.coleman@apexnc.org or (phone) 919-249-1260. We request at least 48 hours’ notice prior

to the meeting to make the appropriate arrangements.
Questions should be directed to the Town Clerk’s Office.

HiHt

Apex Town Hall . P.O. Box er Street . Apex, NC 27502

- Page 194 -



mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/TownofApexGov
mailto:allen.coleman@apexnc.org

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

Municipality No. 333

After recording, please return to: Town Clerk, Town of Apex, P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. 757
ALDERWOOD POND - 0.67 acres

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA
P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina 27502

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-31, as
amended, to annex the area described herein; and

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a public
hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 6:00 p.m. on
June 27, 2023, after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex website,
http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition meets
the requirements of G.S.§160A-31, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina:

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-31, as amended, the
territory described in the attached property description and also shown as “Annexation
Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and made part of the Town
of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance on June 27, 2023.
The survey plat that describes the annexed territory is that certain survey plat entitled
“Annexation Map for the Town of Apex 0 Jenks Road, Wake County, North Carolina,
Land Surveyor dated March 1, 2023" and recorded in Book of Maps book number 2023
and page number , Wake County Registry.

- Page 195 -



http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads

Page 2 of 3

Section 2. Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and
regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled to the
same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex. Said territory shall be
subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended.

Section 3. The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be recorded
in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office of the Secretary
of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake County Board of
Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 hereof,
together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 2023.

Jacques K. Gilbert
Mayor
ATTEST:

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Laurie L. Hohe
Town Attorney

Legal Description

POND ANNEXATION AREA

Commencing at an iron pipe being the northeast property corner of Lot 2 as shown in
Book of Maps 2022, Page 736 of the Wake County Registry, thence South 09°41'58" East
a distance of 21.06 feet to the Point of Beginning, thence South 09°41'58" East a distance
of 305.75 feet to a point; thence South 79°51'43" West a distance of 100.96 feet to a
point; thence North 04°38'25" West a distance of 93.33 feet to a point; thence North
09°49'58" West a distance of 187.40 feet to a point; thence North 62°21'21" West a
distance of 10.07 feet to a point; thence North 31°29'19" West a distance of 2.05 feet to
a point; thence North 04°08'37" East a distance of 10.30 feet to a point; thence South
66°40'13" East a distance of 9.19 feet to a point; thence North 47°45'30" East a distance
of 36.06 feet to a point; thence North 86°06'28" East a distance of 61.68 feet to the Point
of Beginning, containing 28,989 square feet, or 0.67 acres.

- Page 196 -




Page 3 of 3

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WAKE
CLERK'S CERTIFICATION

|, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do hereby certify the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance No. 2023- ,
adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 27th day of June, 2023, the original
of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of Apex, North Carolina.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of the
Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 27th day of June, 2023.

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk
(SEAL)

- Page 197 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: PUBLIC HEARING
Meeting Date: June 27, 2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk
Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office

Requested Motion

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town
Council’s intent to annex 0.67 acres, Alderwood Pond, Annexation No. 757 into the Towns Corporate Limits.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

[tem Details

The annexation has been certified and a public hearing has been posted as required.

Attachments
e PH1-A1: Annexation Ordinance - Annexation No. 757
e PH1-A2: Public Hearing Notice - Annexation No. 757
e PH1-A3: Legal Description - Annexation No. 757
e PH1-A4: Aerial Map - Annexation No. 757
e PH1-A5: Plat Map - Annexation No. 757
e PH1-Ab6: Annexation Petition - Annexation No. 757

- Page 198 -




POND ANNEXATION AREA

Commencing at an iron pipe being the northeast property corner of Lot 2 as shown in Book of
Maps 2022, Page 736 of the Wake County Registry, thence South 09°41'58" East a distance of
21.06 feet to the Point of Beginning, thence South 09°41'58" East a distance of 305.75 feet to a
point; thence South 79°51'43" West a distance of 100.96 feet to a point; thence North 04°38"25"
West a distance of 93.33 feet to a point; thence North 09°49'58" West a distance of 187.40 feet to
a point; thence North 62°2121" West a distance of 10.07 feet to a point; thence North 31°29'19"
West a distance of 2.05 feet to a point; thence North 04°08'37" East a distance of 10.30 feet to a
point; thence South 66°40'13" East a distance of 9.19 feet to a point; thence North 47°45'30" East
a distance of 36.06 feet to a point; thence North 86°06'28" East a distance of 61.68 feet to the
Point of Beginning, containing 28,989 square feet, or 0.67 acres.

- Page 199 -




’Preparedby:Town of Apex Plannmg Degartment

S0 N ] b S B 3 i
Public Hearing Sign Posted By

? W R R ; ‘\.‘,a- " 7 /V A 1
: 5 Westford o =
%(% V%/ZWJ ?3 Apartments Za g %
g s el

Signature Date R N

- Page 200 -




M:\Projects\TMH\2020110080\02-Geomatics\Survey\Plats\2020110080-22.dwg, 3/3/2023 12:33:13 PM, Katie Martin

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

JAY B. TAYLOR, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR L-5472

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

I, JAY B. TAYLOR, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION AR EA O F
(DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN BOOK AND PAGE AS SHOWN); THAT THE AN N EXATI O N
BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM
INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE AS SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION OR POSITIONAL ACCURACY AS CALCULATED IS +; O 67 AC RES + /—
THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS 2
AMENDED. “““"","
20,
| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS OF THE FOLLOWING TYPE: G.S. \‘%\ CAR ( -’«
47-30 (F)(11)(D). THIS SURVEY IS OF ANOTHER CATEGORY, SUCH AS THE R )
RECOMBINATION OF EXISTING PARCELS, A COURT—ORDERED SURVEY, OR &
OTHER EXCEPTION TO THE DEFINITION OF SUBDIVISION. H
WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS ==
DAY OF , AD., % ©
., & &
. % b..ﬁgﬁ..[* \:g
0""' ““‘
(TP

,]_,L_l__l__-

' }, TOWN OF APEX CORPORATE LIMITS BM 2015, PG. 216

GENERAL NOTES

1. THIS IS AN ANNEXATION PLAT.

2. BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY ARE BASED ON NC GRID NAD 83(2011).

3. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES.

4. AREA BY COORDINATE GEOMETRY.

5. FLOOD NOTE: THIS PROPERTY IS PARTIALLY NOT IN A SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD ZONE. IT IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X” AS DEFINED BY F.E.M.A
F..R.M COMMUNITY PANEL 3720072200J DATED 5/2/2006.

6. REFERENCES: AS SHOWN

7. UTILITY STATEMENT

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD
SURVEY INFORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE SURVEYOR MAKES
NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE
ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.
THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE
DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE
FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY
LOCATED THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

8. THIS SURVEY PERFORMED AND MAP PREPARED WITHOUT BENEFIT OF A
TITLE REPORT. THIS SURVEY SUBJECT TO ANY FACTS AND EASEMENTS
WHICH MAY BE DISCLOSED BY A FULL AND ACCURATE TITLE SEARCH.

9. NO GRID MONUMENTS FOUND WITHIN 2000’ OF SITE.

10. ELEVATIONS FOR THIS SURVEY ARE BASED ON NAVD 88

11. TREE LOCATIONS PROVIDED BY SOIL & ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS,
PA; PROJECT NO. 14889.W1

12. ZONING DISTRICT PUD—CZ (#21CZ09)

| N 88'00'38" E 195.61
- S X \ \ 4‘ 21.06" -
\ L \ 8610628 * pos
\\ \ T—— )
% 61.68
’ ” - /
N 040837 , \316%76'45 30"EN NC GRID (NADS3)
S 31°29'19" E 66'40'13" E 2
2.05' 19’ >
N 62'21'21" W o
N/F m
LOT 8A o
TRISHA HINESLEY, ET.AL. S
PIN: 0722687241 @
1533 WIMBERLY RD .
D.B. 14798, PG. 1865
' POND AREA
P.B. 1987, PG. 1291 28,989 SF.
0.67 AC.
o - LOT 1
N 2 TAYLOR MORRISON OF CAROLINAS INC
o 2 PIN:0722785157
o 0 JENKS RD
- @ D.B. 18998, PG. 1702
=y P.B. 2022, PG. 736
8 \ 2\ 38
o R
o, 50’ DRAINAGE \ 2 Do
= BUFFER \ 21 52
s B.M. 1987, \ 2\ o
= PG. 1048 \ - X Z o)
m ‘/O_‘/—— C
9 TR g
o ol »
Qo o
N |
(J\= |
=
& 43 W 10098 S 10°37'25" E
g s 7990 e X 17.37°
AT LMTS 7.78 S 530745 E
lor 5  OUTSDE 0 32.93’
COLUMBIA INVESTMENTS LLC
PIN:0722689065
0 JENKS RD
D.B. 19165, PG. 2155
P.B. 2022, PG. 736
—
—
-~ —_— —
LEGEND o ;/ _—
O  EXISTING IRON PIPE : - —
B EXISTING CONCRETE MONUMENT \ DB, U%%%,Eécs;.wfgg - .=
A EXISTING NAIL \ 30° CP&L UTILITY - —
® IRON PIPE SET EASEMENT -
(o] CONCRETE MONUMENT SET D.B. 5389, PG. 111
A CALCULATED POINT
XXXX] ADDRESS .
ANNEXATION \\¢

CERTIFICATE OF ANNEXATION:

ANNEXATION # _________
I, DONNA B. HOSCH, MMC, NCCMC, TOWN CLERK, APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

CERTIFY THIS A TRUE AND EXACT MAP OF ANNEXATION ADOPTED THE _______
DAY OF 20 BY THE TOWN COUNCIL. | SET MY
HAND AND SEAL OF THE TOWN OF APEX,

DAY/MONTH/YEAR

DONNA B. HOSCH, MMC, NCCMC, TOWN CLERK

GRAPHIC SCALE

0 30 60 120

1inch =60 ft.

MCADAMS

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.
2905 Meridian Parkway
Durham, NC 27713

phone 919. 361. 5000
fax 919. 361. 2269
license number: C-0293, C-187

www.mcadamsco.com

CLIENT

TAYLOR MORRISON HOMES
15501 WEST PARKWAY SUITE 100
CARY, NORTH CAROLINA 27513
MARK ALTMAN

PHONE: 919.407.1232

ALDERWOOD
ANNEXATION MAP FOR

THE TOWN OF APEX
0 JENKS ROAD
WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

- Page 201 -

REVISIONS

NO. DATE

PLAN INFORMATION

PROJECT NO. 2020110080

FILENAME 2020110080-22

SURVEYED BY  RTF

DRAWN BY KMM

SCALE 1"=60'

DATE 03.01.2023

SHEET
ANNEXATION

1-1



PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

Town of Apex, North Carolina

ANNEXATION PETITION SUBMISSION: Applications are due by 12:00 pm on the first business day of each month.
See the “Annexation Petition Schedule” on the website for details.

ANNEXATION FEE: $200.00

VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION: Upon receipt of a valid petition signed by all of the owners of real property in the area described
therein, the Town may annex an area either contiguous or not contiguous to its primary corporate limits when the area meets
the standards set out under North Carolina General Statutes 160A-31 and 160A-58.1. A petition submitted pursuant to North
Carolina General Statute 160A-58.1 need not be signed by the owners of real property that is wholly exempt from property
taxation under the Constitution and laws of North Carolina, nor by railroad companies, public utilities as defined in G.S.
62-3(23), or electric or telephone membership corporations.

HARD COPY SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: ELECTRONIC SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: [DT Plans

e Town of Apex Petition for Annexation with e Town of Apex Petition for Annexation
original wet ink signatures. No photocopies or e  Written Metes and Bounds Legal Description: Submit original
scanned images. PDF. Scanned documents will not be accepted.

e Petition Fee e Electronic plat submittal (18” x 24”)

REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS:

e SuBMITTAL: Submit hard copy application with original wet signatures (no photo copies or scanned images) and fee to
the Department of Planning and Community Development and upload an electronic copy of the application, legal
description and Annexation Plat via IDT Plans.

e Review BY STAFF: The Planning and Community Development Department and Development Services Department
review the annexation submission. Comments will be sent to the applicant via email.

o DESIGNATION OF ANNEXATION NUMBER: The application is assigned an annexation number once the annexation petition
is received.

e ANNEXATION PLAT SuBMmissiON: After the map and legal description are deemed sufficient by the Town of Apex, the
applicant is required to submit three (3) Mylar annexation plats to the Department of Planning and Community
Development by the due date on the attached Annexation Schedule.

e 1 Town CounciL MeeTING: This Town Council Meeting is typically held the second Tuesday of each month. The Town
Council will pass a resolution directing the Town Clerk to investigate the annexation petition. The Town Clerk will
present to the Town Council a Certificate of Sufficiency indicating that the annexation petition is complete. A
resolution setting the date of the public hearing is then approved.

e LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT: A legal advertisement will be published on the Town of Apex’s website no more than 25 days
and no less than 10 days prior to the date of the public hearing.

e 2"° TowN CounciL. MeeTING/PuBLIC HEARING: This Town Council Meeting is typically held the fourth Tuesday of each
month. The Town Council will either adopt or deny an ordinance to extend the corporate limits of the Town of Apex.

e REeCORDATION: If the annexation is approved by the Town Council, the Town Clerk will have the Annexation Plats
recorded at the Wake County or Chatham County Register of Deeds, as appropriate. Wake County or Chatham County
will keep one of the recorded plats, one copy will be returned to the Department of Planning and Community
Development, and the surveying company is given the remaining recorded Annexation Plat.

FOR WELL AND/OR SEPTIC FAILURES:

If the purpose of the petition is to connect to public water and/or sewer, contact Water Resources Director Michael Deaton
at 919-249-3413 or michael.deaton@apexnc.org to confirm that public water and/or sewer is available to the property. In
order to receive public water and/or sewer services from the Town of Apex, refer to the checklist of items below to assist
with obtaining one or both of these services:

e Apply for a plumbing permit with the Building Inspections and Permitting Department.

e The plumbing permit and associated costs for water and/or sewer will be included with the permit.

Please refer to the Town of Apex Fee Schedule for the list of current fees.

Page1of5 Petition for| . page 202 - pn Last Updated: June 8, 2022




PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties.

Application #: Submittal Date:
Fee Paid $ Check #

To THE TOWN COUNCIL APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 below be annexed
to the Town of Apex, [ Wake County, [J Chatham County, North Carolina.

2. The area to be annexed is B contiguous, [J non-contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Apex, North Carolina and the
boundaries are as contained in the metes and bounds description attached hereto.

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads, and other areas as stated in
G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.

Columbia Investments LLC P/O 0722689065
Owner Name (Please Print) Property PIN or Deed Book & Page #
Ll 49 |l v CLM\KCSZQMW I M ;rl-(
Phone E-mail Address ¢
AI\/(}\ . M- A AR AV A
Owner Name (Please Print) Property PIN or Deed Book & Page #
Phone E-mail Address
Owner Name (Please Print) Property PIN or Deed Book & Page #
Phone E-mail Address

SURVEYOR INFORMATION

Surveyor: McAdams
Phone: _919-361-5000 Fax: 919-361-2269

E-mail Address: martin@mcadamsco.com

ANNEXATION SUMMARY CHART

Property Information Reason(s) for annexation (select all that apply)
Total Acreage to be annexed: 0.67 acres Need water service due to well failure O
Population of acreage to be annexed: 0 Need sewer service due to septic system failure (M|
Existing # of housing units: 0 Water service (new construction)
Proposed # of housing units: 0 Sewer service (new construction)
Zoning District*: PUD-CZ Receive Town Services

*If the property to be annexed is not within the Town of Apex’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, the applicant must also submit
arezoning application with the petition for voluntary annexation to establish an Apex zoning designation. Please contact
the Department of Planning and Community Development with questions.

Page 2 of 5 Petition for| _ Page 203 - Pn Last Updated: June 8, 2022




PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

Application #: Submittal Date:

COMPLETE IF IN A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

N Lee
In witness whereof, e) \ 2. ¥ AI< a limited liability company, caused this {nstrument to be executed in
its name by a member/manager pursuant to authority duly given, this the 3/ day of ¥ {r,? rq pof! ’, 20(9

Name of Limited Liability Company 2 L (S TA [W V=T ETC 2L,

By:x A“MU" “wa

Signature of Member/Manager i

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WAKE

this the ,202.9.

Sworn and subscribed beforg me, [ Z Q A BC[J_(Q_L 2 », @ Notary Public for the above State and County,
ﬁ %\\mm{ ¢

» BROW, 7, .
Notary Public

In witness whereof, , a partnership, caused this instrument to be executed in its

name by a member/manager pursuant to authority duly given, this the day of ,20

Name of Partnership

By:

Signature of General Partner
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WAKE
Sworn and subscribed before me, , a Notary Public for the above State and County,
this the day of .20

Notary Public

SEAL

My Commission Expires:

Page 4 of 5 Petitionfor| _ page 204 - Pn Last Updated: June 8, 2022




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: PUBLIC HEARING
Meeting Date: June 27, 2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Amanda Grogan, Director
Department(s): Budget & Performance Management

Requested Motion

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual Budget Ordinance and
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Fee Schedule.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
[tem Details

The proposed Budget is summarized as follows:

General Fund 102,072,200
Electric Fund 51,837,800
Water/Sewer Fund 28,974,200
Stormwater 2,671,900
Other/Special Funds 27,854,400
TOTAL 213,410,500

The proposed Budget as presented includes an increase of $.03 in the ad valorem tax rate to $0.44 per
$100 valuation. There are proposed changes to the electric, water, sewer and solid waste rates.

Attachments
e PH2-A1: Budget Ordinance Fiscal Year 2023-2024 - Annual Operating Budget and Fee Schedule
Adoption
e PH2-A2: Fee Schedule Fiscal Year 2023-2024 - Annual Operating Budget and Fee Schedule
Adoption

e PH2-A3: New Position Recommendations - Fiscal Year 2023-2024 - Annual Operating Budget and
Fee Schedule Adoption

e PH2-A4: Budget Message - Fiscal Year 2023-2024 - Annual Operating Budget and Fee Schedule
Adoption

- Page 205 -




Budget Ordinance
Town of Apex, North Carolina
FY 2023 - 2024 Annual Budget

Budget Ordinance

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina that the following anticipated fund revenues and
departmental expenditures, together with certain fees and schedules, and with certain restrictions and authorizations, are
hereby appropriated and approved for the operation of the Town government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning
July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.

Section 1: General Fund

General Fund Revenues

Ad Valorem Taxes $54,294,000
Other Taxes and Licenses $21,078,500
Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenues $4,330,000
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenues $3,960,800
Permits and Fees $2,514,000
Sales and Services $7,803,400
Investment Earnings $1,200,000
Miscellaneous Revenues $191,500
Other Financing Sources $2,025,000
Fund Balance Appropriation $4,675,000

Total Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

$102,072,200

Governing Body $524,200
Clerk $527,200
Administration $1,549,900
Human Resources $2,856,700
Information Technology $3,483,100
Legal Services $629,200
Economic Development $761,100
Communications $712,900
Budget & Performance Management $900,600
Finance $1,251,800
Community & Neighborhood Connections $819,200
Planning $3,922,000
Facility Services $1,992,900
Police $19,139,300
911 Communications $1,690,100
Fire $16,640,100
Transportation & Infrastructure Development $3,152,000
Streets $4,551,400
Solid Waste $6,841,800
Fleet Services $724,800
Inspections & Permitting $3,200,900
Parks, Recreation, & Cultural Resources $10,028,000
Cemetery $25,000
Special Appropriations $77,000
Other Uses $6,508,000
Debt Service $9,463,000
Contingency $100,000

Total Expenditures

- Page 206 -

$102,072,200



Budget Ordinance
As required by General Statutes Chapter 158-7.1(a), the appropriations made for the purpose of economic development in
Section | of the Ordinance have been determined by the Town Council to increase employment opportunities and add value to
the tax base for the Town of Apex through industry recruitment, retention, and other support activities.

Section 2: Electric Fund

Electric Fund Revenues

Investment Earnings $160,000
Miscellaneous Revenues $95,800
Charges for Service $44,969,700
Other Operating Revenues $4,802,300
Other Financing Sources $10,000
Fund Balance Appropriated $1,800,000
Total Revenues $51,837,800

Electric Fund Expenditures
Electric Operations $51,837,800
Total Expenditures $51,837,800

Section 3: Water & Sewer Fund

Water & Sewer Revenues

Charges for Service $23,846,200
Investment Earnings $475,000
Miscellaneous Revenues $40,000
Other Operating Revenues $513,000
Fund Balance Appropriated $4,100,000
Other Financing Sources $0
Total Revenues $28,974,200

Water & Sewer Expenditures
Water & Sewer Operations $28,974,200
Total Expenditures $28,974,200

Section 4: Stormwater Fund

Stormwater Fund Revenues

Stormwater Fees $2,511,900
Erosion & Site Inspection Fees $150,000
Other Financing Sources $0
Miscellaneous Revenues $0
Investment Earnings $10,000
Fund Balance Appropriated $0
Total Revenues $2,671,900

Stormwater Fund Expenditures
Stormwater Operations $2,671,900
Total Expenditures $2,671,900

Section 5: Police State Funds

Police - State Funds Revenues

Investment Earnings $100
Miscellaneous Revenues $1,500
Total Revenues $1,600

Police - State Funds Expenditures

Reserved for Future Expenditures $1,600
- Page 207 -

Total Expenditures $1,600




Budget Ordinance
Section 6: Police Federal Funds

Police - Federal Funds Revenues

Investment Earnings $100
Police Revenues $500
Miscellaneous Revenues $0
Total Revenues $600

Police - Federal Funds Expenditures
Police Operations $600
Total Expenditures $600

Section 7: Police - Donations

Police - Donations Revenues

Investment Earnings $100
Police Contributions $5,000
Other Revenues $0
Total Revenues $5,100

Police - Donations Expenditures
Police Operations $5,100
Total Expenditures $5,100

Section 8: Fire - Donations

Fire - Donations Revenues

Investment Earnings $100
Miscellaneous Revenues $1,000
Total Revenues $1,100

Fire - Donations Expenditures
Fire Operations $1,100
Total Expenditures $1,100

Section 9: Affordable Housing Fund

Affordable Housing Fund Revenues

Investment Earnings $15,000
Transfer from General Fund $1,233,000
Fund Balance Appropriated $0
Total Revenues $1,248,000

Affordable Housing Fund Expenditures

Contracted Services $250,000
Capital Outlay - Improvements $0
Affordable Housing Grant $0
Affordable Housing Loan $0
Reserved for Future Expenditures $998,000
Total Expenditures $1,248,000

- Page 208 -




Budget Ordinance
Section 10: Health & Dental Fund,
Health & Dental Fund Revenues

Health Premiums $6,258,100
Spouse/Dependent Health $1,199,000
Retiree Contribution $35,000
Dental Premiums $357,500
Spouse/Dependent Dental $175,000
Vision Premiums $78,100
Total Revenues $8,102,700

Health & Dental Fund Expenditures

Health Claims $6,173,400
Dental Claims $509,700
Admin Fees - Health $809,600
Health Claims - Retirees $22,800
Dental Claims - Retirees $464,700
Medicare Premiums/Retiree Prescription Plan $0
Admin Fees - Retirees $44,400
Vision $78,100
Total Expenditures $8,102,700

1. In accordance with NCGS 159-13.1, the Town adopts the Financial Plan for the Health and Dental Fund to provide health and
dental coverage to employees and retirees. Payments to the fund are included in the annual budget of the other funds.

Section 11: Cemetery Fund
Cemetery Fund Revenues

Sales & Services $0
Investment Earnings $8,000
Fund Balance Appropriated $0
Total Revenues $8,000

Cemetery Fund Expenditures

Transfer to General Capital Projects $0
Reserved for Future Expenditures $8,000
Total Expenditures $8,000

Section 12: Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund

Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Revenues

Capital Reimbursement Fees - Water $0
Capital Reimbursement Fees - Sewer $0
Investment Earnings $12,200
Fund Balance Appropriated $277,800
Total Revenues $290,000

Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures

Transfer to Water & Sewer Project Fund $290,000
Reserved for Future Expenditures
Total Expenditures $290,000

- Page 209 -




Budget Ordinance
Section 13: Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund (HB463)

Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Revenues

Capital Reimbursement Fees - Water $1,000,000
Capital Reimbursement Fees - Sewer $2,000,000
Investment Earnings $0
Fund Balance Appropriated $20,000,000
Total Revenues $23,000,000

Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures

Transfer to Water & Sewer Fund $0
Transfer to Water & Sewer Project Fund $20,620,000
Reserved for Future Expenditures $2,380,000
Total Expenditures $23,000,000

Section 14: Perry Library Trust Fund
Perry Library Trust Fund Revenues

Investment Earnings $0
Fund Balance Appropriated $400,000
Transfer from General Fund $200,000
Total Revenues $600,000

Perry Library Trust Fund Expenditures

Building Maintenance and Repair $0
Capital Outlay - Improvements $600,000
Reserved for Future Expenditures $0
Total Expenditures $600,000

Section 15: Recreation Capital Reserve Fund

Recreation Capital Reserve Fund Revenues

Subdivision Recreation Fees $1,300,000
Investment Earning $0
Transfer from General Fund $0
Total Revenues $1,300,000

Recreation Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures

Transfer to General Fund $0
Transfer to Recreation Project $0
Reserved for Future Expenditures $1,300,000
Total Expenditures $1,300,000

Section 16: Transportation Capital Reserve Fund

Transportation Capital Reserve Fund Revenues

Motor Vehicle Licenses $1,400,000
Investment Earnings $0
Fund Balance Appropriated $0
Total Revenues $1,400,000

Transportation Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures

Transfer to General Fund $650,000
Transfer to Street Project Fund $750,000
Reserved for Future Expenditures $0

- Page 210 -
Total Expenditures $1,400,000




Budget Ordinance
Section 17: Levy of Taxes
There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of forty four cents ($0.44) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of property as listed
for taxes as of January 1, 2023, for the purpose of raising the revenue listed Ad Valorem Taxes 2023-2024 in Section 1: General
Fund of this ordinance. This rate is based on a valuation of property for purposes of taxation of $12,379,559,000 and an
estimated rate of collection of 99.7%.

Section 18: Fees & Charges

There is hereby established, for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, various fees and charges as contained in the Fee Schedule attached to
this document. All mileage reimbursements for the use of personal vehicles shall be the same as the allowable IRS rate in
effect on the date of travel. All daily and monthly subsistence schedules previously adopted shall remain in effect.

Section 19: Elected Official Compensation
Pursuant to NCGS 160A-64 and acceptance by each member, elected officical annual compensation shall be amended as
follows:
Mayor - increase of $/%____ from $10,834to $__
Mayor Pro-Tem - increase of $/%____ from $8,621to $_
Council Member - increase of $/%__ from $8,621to $_
Monthly stipend shall be set as follows:
Mayor/$150, Mayor Pro Tem/$100, Council Member/$70

Section 20: Special Authorization of the Budget Officer

a) The Budget Officer shall be authorized to reallocate fund appropriations among the various objects of expenditure as they
deem necessary, provided such reallocations do not increase or decrease the total budget for any fund.

b) The Budget Officer shall be authorized to amend this budget as necessary to fulfill all obligations evidenced by a purchase
order outstanding on June 30, 2023.

Section 21: Use of the Budget and the Budget Ordinance

This Ordinance and the budget document shall be the basis for the financial plan of the Town of Apex for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024. The Budget Officer shall administer the budget and the Finance Director shall establish records which are in agreement
with the budget, this ordinance, and the appropriate statutes of the State of North Carolina.

Section 22: Distribution

Copies of this ordinance shall be furnished to the Budget Officer and the Finance Director of the Town of Apex so that they
may keep this ordinance on file for their direction and disbursement of funds.

Adopted this the 27th of June, 2023.
Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen Coleman, Town Clerk

Approved as to form:

Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney

- Page 211 -




Fee Schedule

Town of Apex, North Carolina
Fee Schedule - Effective 7/1/2023

Schedule subject to change upon approval by Town Council

TAXES & FEES
DOCUMENT / COPY FEES
Copying up to 11" x 17" (black and white) $0.10/sheet Document Recording / E-Recording At cost
Copying and maps up to 11" x 17" (color) $0.40/sheet 3 ring or spiral bound documents/plans $35
Copying larger than 11" x 17" (black and white) ~ $5/sheet Unified Development Ordinance $40
Copying larger than 11" x 17" (color) $20/sheet Design and Development Manual $15
Printed 24" x 36" $20/sheet DVD Copy $0.50/disc
Printed 36" x 48" maps $40/sheet
MISCELLANEOUS

Rain Barrel $88.00 Cemetery Resident Non - Resident Military Rate*

~ Cemetery Plots $800 $1200 $9284(?u§;e-5::§32m)

— Columbarium Niches $800 $800 $640

*20% cemetery discount-Military rate applies to current and retired military personnel only

Development Fees

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY CLOSURE

Submit request and fees to Administration
Right-of-Way Closure Application Fee $100 Right-of-Way Closure Processing Fee $600
Due with request/application/non-refundable Due prior to Council considering request; refundable if request is withdrawn prior to
advertising.
DEVELOPMENT SUBMITTAL FEES
For Zoning/Subdivision/Site Activity - Calculated and collected by the Planning Department

Administrative Adjustment $150 Sign, Master Plan $150
Administrative Approval (small Town Character Overlay) No Charge Sign, Permanent $75+$5/add sign
Annexation Petition $200 Sign, Temporary $25
Appeal (Board of Adjustment) $650 Site Inspections (Non-residential lot), $500

Site Inspections (Residential lot)s $35
Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC)4 $100 Site Plan, Major $1,100+$5/acre
Consultant Fees As required Site Plan, Minor $800
Development Name Change $500 Special Use Permit $700
Exempt Site Plan — enlargement of a structure $250 Temporary Use Permits (Non - Event): $100
Exempt Site Plan — all other exempt site plans ~ $150 Temporary Use Permits (Event):
Home Occupation $50 For Profit ~ $50 For Profit Express Review $75
Late Fee — site Plans/Master Subdivision $300 Non-Profit $0 Non-Profit Express Review $25
Plan/PUD/Rezoning/Conditional Zoning (and resubmittals)
Master Subdivision Plans Residential & Non-Residential $750 + $10/Iot Text Amendments (UDO) $600
Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) $1,600+$10/acre Transportation Impact Analysis Review,
PUD-CZ not requiring full TRC Review $600 Sites & Subdivisions  $500 PUD  $1,000
Plat, Easement & Exempt $200 Revised Sites & Subdivisions  $250 PUD $500
Plat, Master Subdivision Final $300 + $10/lot Tree Protection Fencing Inspection (Site Plan):
Plat, Recombination $200 - less than 2 acres: ~ $50 -2-15acres:  $75
Plat, Site Plan Final $300 -15up to 25 acres:  $150 -25+ acre:  $200
Pond Drainage Plan $500 Tree Protection Fencing Inspection (Master Subdivision Plan):
Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing- Town Council Only ~ $500 -uptol5acres.  $75  -15-50acres:  $150
Re-submittal Fees — Site Plans: 3™ submittal; Master %2 Original Fee -51+acres:  $300
Subdivision Plans; 4™ submittal Tree Removal Plan $500
Rezoning/Conditional Zoning $700/$1000 Variance Permit $650
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning ~ $1,600+$10/acre Zoning Verification Letter $125
(SD-CZ)
1. No charge for the first tenant in a new building 2. Charged at Site Plan Final Plat 3. Charged at permit 4. Projects inactive for one year require new TIA and full submittal fee

- Page 212 -




Fee Schedule

RECREATION FEES;

For New Residential Developments Assessed after 1/1/2023 - Collected by the Planning Department

Housing Type Fee Per Unit Acreage Per Unit Decimal Multiplier
Single Family Detached $4,016.66 1/30 acre 0.0333
Single Family Attached $2,705.23 1/45 acre 0.0223
Multi-Family Attached $2,381.87 1/51 acre 0.01964

Existing Town ordinances require either the dedication of open space for public recreation or the payment of a fee in lieu per unit. The requirement regarding land
dedication or fee in lieu will be based, in large part, on the Town’s adopted Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Master Plan. Recommendations regarding
the acceptance of land or fee in lieu are made to the Town Council by the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission.

1. Annually on January 1, the fee amount shall be automatically adjusted in accordance with UDO §14.7.1(B).

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT

Submit to Development Services
Encroachment agreement preparation and recording $250 + eRecording Fee at Cost

CONSTRUCTION FEES/BONDS

Calculated and collected by Development Services

Bond Administration Fee: - Cash/check: $100 - Surety Bond/Letter of Credit $300 - Reduction/Amendment $100
Fee in Lieu Administration Fee: $100
Construction Plan Submittal Fees (Subdivisions) $700 + $10/Lot
Construction Plan Submittal Fees (Sites, Utility Extensions, etc.) $700 + $15/Sheet
Re-submittal Fees — Construction Plans (3™ submittal and every other subsequent submittal (3¢, 5%, 7™, etc.) %2 Original Fee
Late Fee — Construction Plan Submittal and Resubmittal $300
Construction Plan Revisions (after initial approval) $75/sheet
Water Extension Permit Application $200
Sewer Extension Permit Application $480
Water and/or Sewer Extension Permit Amendment $100 each
Infrastructure Extension Record Drawing Review (15t & 2" reviews) $200
Infrastructure Extension Record Drawing Review (3, 5%, 7t etc. reviews) $100
Infrastructure Extension Record Drawing Review (after initial approval/field changes) $100
Construction Inspection Fees:
Water Lines $1.50 per linear foot Fire Lanes $1.75 per linear foot
Sewer Lines $1.50 per linear foot Sidewalks/Greenways $1.50 per linear foot
New Streets (public) $1.75 per linear foot per lane Infill/Outparcel Lots $350 per lot
Curb & Gutter (All New/replaced $0.50 per linear foot Driveway, residential Per Building Permit Schedule
public)
Storm Drains (public) $1.50 per linear foot Driveway, not ready Per Building Permit Schedule
Pump Station Review and Inspection $2,500 each Driveway, reinspection Per Building Permit Schedule
Warranty Bonds 25% of cost of installed and approved Infrastructure
Performance Bonds 125% of cost of uninstalled Improvements

*Repairs to damages water/sewer lines caused by construction shall be billed to the responsible party and include the cost of materials + 10% and current
equipment and labor rates.

STORMWATER PLAN REVIEW FEES/BONDS

Submit to Development Services

Project Size (disturbed acres) Stormwater Plan Review Fee

< 1acre $0

1 -5 acres $500

5- 50 acres $500 + $50 per additional disturbed acre

$500 base review fee for projects disturbing up to 5 acres. Add $50 per additional disturbed acre beyond 5 acres. Development projects that disturb less than 1 acre of land are
not subject to the stormwater plan review fees since they are exempt from stormwater controls. The stormwater plan review fee will be limited to a maximum of 50 acres.

SCM Maintenance Bond 25% of cost of installed and approved Infrastructure
SCM Performance Bond 125% of cost of uninstalled Improvements
SCM As-Built Review Fee: $200 per SCM

SOIL AND EROSION CONTROL FEES/GUARANTEES

Submit to Development Services

Application for S&E Plan Approval $500 per disturbed acre
Future Lot Grading* $50 per acre of remaining building lot acreage
S&E Performance Guarantee** $2,500 per disturbed acre

*The future lot grading fee provides coverage under an erosion control permit and ensures compliance with NPDES stormwater regulations. Only the
additional land disturbance associated with future building lots needs to be included.
**Performance guarantee must be in the form of a certified check, cash, or irrevocable letter of credit approved by the Town. The performance guarantee

is due prior to the Town issuing a Letter of S&E Plan Approval and m| d after the issuance of the certificate of completion.
- Page 213 -




Fee Schedule

COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT FEES

Calculated and collected by Building Inspections and Permitting

NEW STRUCTURES, ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS (Base Fee) 1,2,3

Total Gross Building Floor . ) - . L
Area of Construction Fee Computation 1. Alterations to existing §tructures, Wlth, no footprint increase, are charged at a
rate of .60 of the Permit Fee or the minimum per trade fee based upon the
0 - 500 Per Trade (see schedule below) Single Trade Fee Schedule, whichever is greater.
501 - 5,000 A x B = Permit Fees 2. Permits for “shell” buildings are charged at a rate of .60 of the Permit Fee,
. based upon a Business Occupancy, or the minimum per trade fee based upon
5,001 - 10,000 (AxBX.80) + (1,000 X B) = Permit Fee the Single Trade Fee Schedule, whichever is greater. Area within the building
10,001 - 15,000 (A x B X.70) + (3,000 X B) = Permit Fee shell, which is intended to be occupied, will have the permit fees for the
15,001 - 20,000 (AXBX.60)+(4,300XB)= Perm?t Fee 3. /ci;iiuifi:)e:afafsz;rllx:zds E:;;OIittzztz:lvif)\?v\illle‘be added to the permit fees
20,001 - above (A x B X.50) + (6,500 X B) = Permit Fee as applicable.
A=Total Gross Building Floor Area  B= Fee Per Square Foot Based Upon Occupanc
quare Foot of Floor Area Based on Occupanc
Building/Pool/Hot Tub Building $150 | Occupancy Fee Occupancy Fee Occupancy Fee
Electrical/Pool/Hot Tub Electrical $75 Assembly 0.55 Factory/Industrial 0.40 Mercantile 0.50
Mechanical/Pool/Hot Tub Mechanical ~ $75 Business 0.60 Hazardous 0.50 Residential 0.55
Plumbing/Pool/Hot Tub Plumbing $75 | Educational 0.60 Institutional 0.60 Storage/Utility 0.30
Grading $75
MISCELLANEOUS FEES
Change of General Contractor $50
Conditional Electrical Power Inspection (Apex and Duke) Optional Inspection
Conditional Mechanical Systems Inspection Optional Inspection
Demolition (All Trades) $120
Dumpster Enclosure $150 (Single Trade Building)
Electric Vehicle Parking $75 per site (No fee when at an existing development)
Elevator $50 per elevator
Fire Alarm $75
Fire Pumps, each $250
Fire Sprinkler System $0.03 per square feet
Fire Suppression $50
Grease/Oil Interceptor $50
Hood Suppression $75
Irrigation System See Irrigation Meters (pg 5) + Capital Reimbursement Fees (pg 6)
Refrigeration $75
Retaining Wall Permit $1 per linear foot
Sales/Construction Trailer/Modular Classroom Per Single Trade Fee Schedule
Sign — New $150 + $75 if electrical needed
Site Lighting $75
Solar PV System No Fee
Spray Paint Booth, each $150
Storage Tank, each $50 Plus Associated Single Trade Fees
Temporary Power (Town of Apex) $125
Water and Sewer Capital Reimbursement Fees and Water Meters Refer to Capital Reimbursement Fee Schedule (pg 6)
Work Without a Permit Double Permit Fees
Stop Work Order $150 (May Require Extra Trip Fee)
Expired Permit /2 Cost of Original Permit Fee
Per Trade (Not applied toward cost of permit) $100 (no fee for Electric Vehicle Parking at an existing development)
Plan Modification (Not applied toward cost of permit) 2 Review Fee or 2 per trade fee for single trade modifications
Re-review fee (Not applied toward cost of permit) 1/, Review Fee @ 3, 51 7t etc.
Re-stamp Plans, Per Trade $75
Retaining Wall, per submitted grouping (at least one per project/subdivision) ~ $100
EXPRESS PLAN REVIEW (2 hr. min) * ADMINSTRATIVE FEES
First Hour $1,000 Duplicate Building Record Card $10
Each additional 15 minutes $250 General Records Research, Archive Files $3/page
Cancellation Fee (3 days prior notice) $200 General Records Research, Current Files over 10 pages ~ $0.50/page
*when service is available

- Page 214 -




Fee Schedule

INSPECTION FEES

Water Resources Certificate of Occupancy - $100 Job not ready for inspection or installation of tap, $150
Water/Sewer Final meter, etc.

Standard re-inspection fee (Building, Electrical, $75 Cancelled Inspection fee (not cancelled by 8:00 am of ~ $75
Mechanical, Plumbing, Driveway, Water, and/or Sewer) scheduled day)

Previous violations not corrected (all trades) $150

ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLING PERMIT FEES

NEW STRUCTURES (Single Family/Duplex/Townhomes) $/5Q. FT. MIN/$/UNIT
3,000 Gross SF and Less 0.35 $500
>3,000 Gross SF:(3000SFx $0.35/SF)+(Additional SF x $0.35/SF x.75) = Permit Fee Per Formula
ADDITIONS/ALTERATIONS ADDITIONS/ALTERATION
800 SQUARE FEET AND GREATER LESS THAN 800 SQUARE FEET
$/SQ. FT. MIN/$/UNIT MIN/$/UNIT
Building $0.19 $150 Building $150
Electrical $0.09 $75 Electrical $75
Plumbing $0.09 $75 Plumbing $75
Mechanical $0.09 $75 Mechanical $75
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES MIN/$/UNIT SINGLE TRADE FEE SCHEDULE
Decks, Sheds, Roof Additions & Detached Garages, 400 sq. ft. or less ~ $75 Building/Pool/Hot Tub Building $150
Decks, Sheds, Roof Additions & Detached Garages > 400 sq. ft. $150 Electrical/Pool/Hot Tub Electrical $75
Trellis (Attached to a structure) $40 Mechanical/Pool/Hot Tub Mechanical $75
Retaining Wall Plan Review $100 Plumbing/Pool/Hot Tub Plumbing $75
Retaining Wall $1 per linear foot | Grading $75
Change of General Contractor $50
Change of Lot $50
Demolition (All Trades) $150
Driveway $100/lot
House Moved $375
Irrigation See Irrigation Meters (pg 5) + Capital Reimbursement Fees (pg 6)
Mobile Home (All Trades) $150
Modular Home (All Trades) $375
Solar PV System No Fee
Temporary Power (Town of Apex Only) $125
Work Without Permit Double Permit Fees
Expired Permit /2 Cost of Original Permit Fee
Initial Fee for New Single Family and Townhome Construction (Not applied to cost of permit) $110
Initial Fee All Other Construction (Not applied toward cost of permit) $100
Plan Modification Fee (Not applied toward cost of permit) /2 Review Fee
Re-review Fee (Not applied toward cost of permit) /> Review Fee @ 3™, 5t, 7t, etc.
Re-stamp Plans
Water Resources Certificate of Occupancy - Water/Sewer Final $100
Standard re-inspection fee (Building, Electrical, Mechanical, Plumbing, Water, and/or Sewer) $75
Job not ready for inspection or installation of tap, meter, etc. $150
Previous Building, Electrical, Mechanical, Plumbing violations not corrected $150
First Hour $600 + $150 each additional 15 minutes
Cancellation Fee without (3 days prior notice) $200

- Page 215 -




Fee Schedule

ELECTRICAL UNDERGROUND AND SERVICE LATERAL FEES

Calculated by the Electric Department
Primary Facilities: Service Laterals:
Collected by Electric Department Collected by Building Inspections Permitting
Based on cost difference of normal overhead facilities Charges are for the first 100 feet of service length. An excess footage charge, if applicable, is
and the requested underground facilities. billed separately by the Electric Utilities Division at $4.25/foot over 100 feet.
Single-Family $526.75$2,722/lot Single-Family $561$776/service lateral
Townhomes $526:75%1,914/unit Townhomes $561$776/service lateral
Apartments $526.75%1,914 point of delivery | Apartments Apartments are typically served with multiple meter bases at approved
EV Chargers @ cost determined at submittal locations; service laterals are usually installed in conjunction with the
request primary facilities and service lateral charges do not apply

WATER TAPS AND METER FEES**

Submit Tap fees to Water Resources and Water Meter fees to Building Inspections and Permitting
Fees are based on 60 foot right-of-way roads and lateral lengths less than 100 feet. Special cases, wider rights-of-way, special or complex boring and items
not shown shall be at cost.

Size Base Cost Add Bore Add Street Cut Meter Only*
% inch $2:000$2,300 $550 $800$1,000 $215$315
1inch $2:200$2,600 $550 $800%$1,000 $325$450
1% inch N/A N/A N/A $650$785

2 inch N/A N/A N/A $830$960
3inch N/A N/A N/A $3,255

4 inch N/A N/A N/A $4,265

*If meter setter is not readily accessible or not functional when town staff arrives onsite, the meter will not be installed. Owner will be required to
reschedule and pay fee as noted under “Inspection Fees” section (pgs 3 and 4) of this document. The Town will reschedule work within 7 days of receipt of

the "Insiection Fees".

Size Base Cost Add Bore Add Street Cut
4 inch $2,100 Not available $800$1,000
**The Town of Apex does not install water or sewer taps for commercial development or new residential construction.

WATER BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLE FEE
Samples collected by Water Resources Department. Fees collected by Development Services $100%175

SEWER AND STORMWATER RE-INSPECTION FEES
Submit to Water Resources Department
Sewer and Storm drain re-inspection fee $325 remobilization fee plus $0.25 per linear foot over 1,000

IRRIGATION METERS
Submit to Building Inspections & Permitting (Irrigation meter required for ALL irrigation systems)

Single-Family Residential Multi-Family and Commercial
(Includes duplex and townhomes)
Permit Fee $75 $75
Meter Fee Based on meter size; see "Water Meter Fees” (pg 6) Based on meter size; see "Water Meter Fees,” (pg 6)
Meter Tap $800 (See condition 7 below) See condition 6 below
Capital Reimbursement Based on meter size; see “Capital Reimbursement Fees” Based on meter size; see “Capital Reimbursement Fees” (pg
Fees (pg 6) 6)

. Allirrigation meters will require payment of capital reimbursement fees.

NCGS requires a second meter for in-ground irrigation systems and that systems be protected by an approved backflow preventer.

A plumbing permit is required for installation of the system from the meter to the backflow preventer.

All associated fees will be collected by the Building Inspections & Permitting Department prior to issuance of a permit.

All other non-single family customers (subdivision entrances and commercial sites) require a second meter.

The Water Resources — Water & Sewer Utility Operations Division will only install the tap for meters for existing single-family customers; all
other taps must be installed by a private contractor and inspected by Water Resources Infrastructure Inspections Division.

7.  Single family Meter Tap Fee includes installing a split tap at an existing meter. If the split tap is already installed, see “Meter Only” fees under
the "Water Taps & Meter Fees.”

oUh WP

- Page 216 -




Fee Schedule

WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL REIMBURSEMENT FEES
Calculated and collected by Inspections and Permitting & Planning
The purpose of Capital Reimbursement Fees are one-time capital charges assessed against new development as a way to provide
or cover a proportional share of the costs of capital facilities. These treatment facilities provide the system capacity that each new
development will demand when connected to the water and sewer systems. Additional fee assessments shall be required of
nonresidential customers who, after paying a Capital Reimbursement Fees fee, expand their service requirements. A 75% grant may
be available in the Central Business District.

Meter Size (inches) Water Fee Sewer Fee Total Fees
3/4 $1,783 $1,788 $3,675-$4,290 $5.458-$6,078
1 $2.972 $2,980 $6,124-$7,150 $9,096-$10,130
1.5 $5,943-$5,960 $12249-$14,300 $18:192-$20,260
2 $9.509-$9,536 $19.598 22,880 $29.107-$32,416
3 $19.019-$19,072 $39.195 $45,760 $58.214-$64,832
4 $29.717-$29,800 $61,243 $71,500 $90.960-$101,300
6 $59,433-$59,600 $122,486- $143,000 $181,919-$202,600
8 $95,093-$95,360 $195,977- $228,800 $291.070-$324,160
10 $249:620-$250,320 $514,439- $600,600 $764,059-$850,920
12 $314,997-$315,880 $649173- $757,900 $964,170-$1,073,780

Utility Rates & Fees

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Residential Electric Deposit $200 Commercial Deposit 2 times monthly average for service location or
Residential Water Deposit $50 minimum of $200*

*NCGS 160A-314 (a); North Carolina Utilities Commission Guidelines: R8-33

Application/Service Initiation Fee $15 Pretreatment Program Charges
Returned Check/Draft Fee $25 - Permitted Flow (per 1,000 gallons) $0.33
Non-Payment Service Fee $25 Surcharge Rates (quarterly)
After Hours Service Fee $75 - BOD $0.278 per Ib.
Late Fee for Charges Unpaid by Due Date 1% of unpaid balance - COD $0.278 per Ib.
Extension Fee $0 - TSS $0.051 per Ib.
Reconnect Disconnected Meter $25 Analytical Testing Charges
Backflow Testing At cost - BOD $20
Meter Testing Fees - TSS $12
— Meter Test Fee (one test per year at no cost; additional ~ $50 - Ammonia $12

reads are charged only if the meter read is correct)
— Meter Test (under 2 inch meter) $50 - COD $20
— Meter Test (2+ inch meter) At cost + 10 % - Cyanide $25
Damaged Water Meter* $53 + cost of meter - Oil & Grease $30
Damaged ERT Holder Replacement Fee* $16.25 - Total Phosphorus $16
Pedestal Replacement (Electric) $149 + cost of pedestal - Total Nitrogen $40
Septic Tank Pump Fee At cost - Arsenic, Cadmium, Chromium, $13 each

(per 1991 annexation agreements; only available in certain locations) Copper, Lead, Mercury, Molybdenum,
Nickel, Selenium, Silver, Zinc

* fees would only be applied to active building permits that require a replacement meter, ERT holder or pedestal due to contractor damage

SOLID WASTE FEES

Yard Waste Collection $7.83/month Dumpster Service

Residential Roll-Out Cart $9:61$9.85/month - 4 CY Dumpster $14118$145.86/month
Commercial Roll-Out Cart $20-12$20.62/month - 6 CY Dumpster $169.09$173.32/month
Recycling (Per Bin or Cart) $4.55$5.24/month - 8 CY Dumpster $194.00$198.85/month
Bulk items $11/each Bulk Items - Half Load $22

White Goods $18/each Bulk Items - Full Load $40

STREET SIGN FEES

Replacement sign costs

- Street sign only (1 blade) $37 - Street sign replacement + install $152
- Street sign only (2 blades) §74 - Stop sign replacement + install $105.75
- Stop Sign only $28 - Street/Stop sign combination + install $180

* Original installation of all safety, regulatory, and street signs is the responsibility of the developer prior to plat.

- Page 217 -




Fee Schedule

STORMWATER FEES

Stormwater fees are effective January 2022. (Tier 5 effective January 1, 2024). Stormwater utility fees are based on the total amount of
impervious surface on an individual lot or parcel.
Residential - Detached single-family homes, a duplex, or a manufactured home located on an individual lot or parcel.

Tier 1: 400-1,500ft? $1.50

Tier 2: 1,501-3,000ft? $5.00

Tier 3: 3,001-4,000ft? $7.50

Tier 4: 4,001ft? -5,400ft? $10.00

Tier 5: >5,400ft? $5.00 per ERU (Total Impervious Area/$2,700ft> * §5)

Non-Residential - Parcels that contain more than two residential units, public/private
institutional buildings, commercial buildings, parking lots, churches, etc.

*ERU (Equivalent Residential Unit) is the GIS analysis of average impervious surface (rooftops, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots) per residential
property. Approximately 2,700 ft*

*Properties with less than 400ft? of impervious surface are exempt.

$5.00 per ERU (Total Impervious Area/$2,700ft? * $5)

WATER & SEWER RATES

Water Rates Inside Town Limits Outside Town Limits
Water Base Charge $6.00 $12.00
Water Volumetric Rates (per 1,000 gallons)
Commercial $4.25 $4.42 $8.50 $8.84
Residential Tier 1: 0 - 6,000 gal $4:25 $4.42 $8.50 $8.84
Tier 2: 6,001 - 12,000 gal $4-89 $5.09 $9-78 $10.18
Tier 3: > 12,000 gal $6:59 $6.85 $13-18 §13.70

*Farmpond Area: Per Interlocal Agreements with the Town of Cary, the Apex special published rate shall be based on the Cary published residential
base rate and per thousand gallons plus an Apex charge of $2 per thousand gallons.”

Wholesale Water Base Charge $5.45 Wholesale Water Volumetric Rates (per 1,000 gallons) $4.09
Sewer Rates Inside Town Limits Outside Town Limits
Sewer Base Charge $1075 $11.18 $21.50 $22.36
Sewer Volumetric Rates (per 1,000 gallons)
Commercial & Residential $745 $7.75 $14.90 $15.50
Colvin Park/White Oak * $12.55 N/A

*Per the Alternative Sewer Agreement, “the Apex special published rate shall be based on the Cary published residential rate per thousand gallons plus
an Apex charge of $2 per thousand gallons.”

Wholesale Sewer Base Charge $10.75 $11.18 Wholesale Sewer Volumetric Rates (per 1,000 gallons) $745 $7.75
Flat Rate Sewer $40.00/month

Irrigation Rates Inside Town Limits Outside Town Limits
Irrigation Base Charge $6.00 $6.00
Irrigation Volumetric Rates (per 1,000 gallons) $6.59 $13.18

Bulk Water
Hook Up Fee (per connection) $12 Hydrant meter
Volumetric Rates (per 1,000 gallons) $7.20 - Set up/Relocate/Pickup $50/event
- Rental Fee $12/day

- Hydrant Meter replacement and/or repair At cost + 10%

ELECTRIC RATES

Service Base Charge Energy Charge (per kWh) All
Residential $25.00 $26.38 $06:0942 $.0994

Service Base Charge Energy Charge (per kWh) ALL
Small General Service $27.00 $28.50 $6:8966 $0.1019

Energy Charge (per kW)
Service Base Charge Bilateral Credit Bilateral Credit
On Peak Off Peak On Peak Off Peak

Residential-Time of Use-TOU $25.00 $26.38 $0-195 $0.2057 $0.0518 $0.0546 $0.1303 $0.1375 $0.031 $0.0327
Small General Service-TOU $27.00 $28.50 $0-195 $0.2048 $0.0537 $0.0564 $0.1303 $0.1368 $0.031 $0.0326

Service Base Charge Energy Charge (per kWh) ALL Demand Charge (per kW) ALL
Medium General Service $90'00 $0.0731 $0.0780 $7.75 $8.20
Medium General Service-TOU $90.00 $0.07 $0.0739 $14.50 $12.25
Large General Service $175.00 $0.0593 $0.0622 $10:32 $11.00
Large General Service-TOU $175.00 £00579 $0.0607 $114.86 $12.75

- Page 218 -




Fee Schedule

Demand Charge (per kW)
Service Base Charge Energy Charge (per kWh) ALL All Coincident All Excess Demand
Demand
Large General Service-Coincident Peak $350.00 $0.0451 $0.0476 $20.18 $21.00 $3.93 $4.19

Outdoor Lighting
Standard Lighting Service Basic Rate The basic rate does not include the monthly charges for additional facilities, outdoor lighting poles,
underground service, or any contribution required under this Schedule.

Sodium Vapor Units* Obsolete — no longer installed Wattage Monthly Charge Monthly kWh
5,800 lumen-semi 70 $8.230/Fixture 29/Fixture
9,500 lumen-semi 100 $9.15/Fixture 46/Fixture
9,500 lumen-enclosed/post/flood 100 $10.42/Fixture 46/Fixture
27,500 lumen-enclosed 250 $18.67/Fixture 99/Fixture
27,500 lumen flood 250 $19.86/Fixture 109/Fixture
50,000 lumen-enclosed 400 $25.17/Fixture 152/Fixture
50,000 lumen flood 400 $27.55/Fixture 168/Fixture
LED Units
Acorn Fixture (Obsolete, no new installs) 51 $19.36/Fixture 29/Fixture
Shoebox — 1 61 $12.17/Fixture 29/Fixture
Shoebox - 2 151 $19.57/Fixture 29/Fixture
Area Light 51 $8.71/Fixture 29/Fixture
Cobrahead - 1 51 $11.38/Fixture 29/Fixture
Cobrahead - 2 151 $17.51/Fixture 29/Fixture
Lantern — 1 w/ Lens (Obsolete, no new installs) 51 $15.19/Fixture 29/Fixture
Lantern — 2 w/o Lens 51 $18.29/Fixture 29/Fixture
Special Contract Lights . . .-

(residential dedic::ed public streets oulgide corporate limits) Monthly charge Special Area Lighting Pole Monthly Charge

aTa IRy HDS anclacad minaire on-anproved wood

..... osed-lu aire-on-approved-wood . .
pole $2.29/customer  Wood $ 2.51/pole
Eiberglasspole-orpostw/approved 100-watt HPS ) Metal 18’ Fiberglass erpest $ 3.51/pole
tuminaire ) Decorative-Square metal $13.01/pole

. Decorative shroud-w/standard
Prisrmatic serfesclassic or colony-top - :
$3.63/Fixture $41-74/post
P . . . | v $436/Fi c I 18,53
. . 2 42/F Prermivrn Twi . 48

*Maintenance only; no new installs
Underground (UG) Service: For Underground service, the monthly bill will be increased by $3.50 per pole or, in lieu thereof, a one-time contribution of
$175.17 per pole. The monthly UG charge, if selected, may be terminated at any time upon payment by Customer of the one-time contribution. The UG
charge will be waived if the lighting facilities are installed during the installation of the main electric facilities. The monthly pole charge defined below will
also be applicable to underground service.
Additional Facilities

1. Multiple area lighting fixtures may be installed per pole subject to town review and approval. The monthly charge for each additional fixture will be the
charge in accordance with the Monthly Rate for that fixture.

VENDOR FEES

Obtain Permit from the Town of Apex Police Department
Solicitor/Peddler/Park Concessioner* Transient/Mobile Food Vendors
30-day Permit $50 Annual Permit $150
90-day Permit $100 *Anyone selling anything, including food, in a Town of Apex Park
180-day Permit (Park Concessions Only) $175 must obtain a Park Concessions Permit.
Solicitor - Anyone going door-to-door to take orders for products, share information or seek donations.
Peddler — Anyone transporting goods door-to-door for sale (i.e. ice cream truck).
Park Concessioner — Anyone selling merchandise, food, and or beverages in a town park.
Transient Vendor - Anyone selling goods or services from a temporary business location (i.e. parking or vacant lot).
Mobile Food Vendor - Anyone selling food and/or beverages from a readily movable food unit

- Page 219 -




Fee Schedule

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES

Submit request and fees to Customer Service
Inspection Fees $0 False Alarm Fines (per Calendar Year)
Reinspection (charged for 2nd and all subsequent reinspections)  $75 4 false alarms $150
Fire Inspections Violation Fines: 5 false alarms $200
Imminent hazard violation $250 6 + false alarms $250 each
Hazardous Materials Consumable Items At Cost  Fire Flows $75

PARKS & RECREATION

Fees are paid to Parks & Recreation
Withdrawal+
- Less than 7 business days prior to rental No credit or refund in any amount excluding rental deposits
- 7-59 business days prior to rental 50% refund:
- 60 or more business days prior to rental 90% refund:
Date Change Request
- Less than 7 business days prior to rental No date change requests accepted:
- 7 or more business days prior to rentals All fees and deposits may be transferreds
v No- rnf“nrlr are-issyed-when-the-gmount-is-less than gc_nn_ No- rnfunrlt are-issuyed-when n f dable-d D [Es Adraissi fnnt r ctc agre pn.‘rl in ad k} the Town-
1 Including rentals made within 7 business days of the rental date
2. Issued upon written request
3. Reschedule dates may occur no later than 30 calendar days from original.
4 Subject to room availability and the availability of required staff.
Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident
Fishing Licenses Senior Exercise Membership $0 for unlimited $10 for 20 visits
(55+)
— 12 years & under $0 $10/year Splash Pad Session Pass (2 hours) $2 $4
— 13-54 years old $0 $25/year Open Gym Pass - Basketball/Volleyball/Senior Pickleball (for 10 visits)
- 55+ $0 $6/year - Age 0-7 $0 $5
- Guest Pass $0 $5/visit - Age 8-17 $5 $20
Dog Park Passes - Age 18-54 $10 $30
- Single Dog $30 $60 - Age 55+ $0 $20
- Multiple Dogs $50 $100 Vessel Permits (Jan — Dec) $5/year $40/year
— Additional Passes $10/pass $10/pass
Facility Rentals
All reservations for 100 persons or more require Director approval and may require additional attendants, police and other requirements as deemed necessary by APRCR
Resident Non-Resident Halle Cultural Arts Center Resident Non-Resident
Facility Deposit (Refundable) $250 $250 - Auditorium $100/hour $150/hour
Amphitheater Deposit $200 $200 - Sound/Light $50/hour $75/hour
(Refundable) Booth
After Hours Attendant Fee $40/hour $40/hour - Overnight Storage $50/night $75/night
Rentalsz
Community Center - Studio Gallery $50/hour $75/hour
- Summit Room $35/hour $52.50/hour - Studio A $35/hour $52.50/hour
- Summit Room Projector Fee $15/hour $15/hour - Piano (separate $200 deposit required) $25/hour $37.50/hour
- Pinnacle Room $35/hour $52.50/hour —AttendantFees{(afterhours) $20/hour $20/hour
- Zenith Room $35/hour $52.50/hour - 4 Hour Auditorium Package $600 $900
- Catering Kitchens $21/hour $31.50/hour - 4 Hour Gallery Package $400 $600
- Arts & Crafts Room $21/hour $31.50/hour - Portable Projector Fee $15/hour $15/hour
Senior Centers Field & Gym Rentalss
- Salem Meeting Room (#108) $100/hour $150/hour Athletic Field — natural turf (no lights) $40/hour $60$40/hour
- Saunders Meeting Room (#110) ~ $100/hour $150/hour Athletic Field — natural turf (w/ lights) $60/hour $80$60/hour
- Seaboard Meeting Room (#112) ~ $100/hour $150/hour Athletic Field — synthetic turf (no lights)* ~ $70$75/hour $105$75/hour
- Projector Fee (#108,110 or 112) $15/hour $15/hour Athletic Field — synthetic turf (w/ lights)*  $90$95/hour $125%$95/hour
- Large Projector (#108,110 & 112)  $30/hour $30/hour Gym - Whole $65$75/hour $97.50$75/hour
- Kitchen Room (#120) $30/hour $45/hour * Synthetic Tof-Fi e iti g ge-Deposi
- Chatham Classroom (#131) $35/hour $52.50/hour * Natural Turf Fields-require-additional $100-Damage
- Friendship Classroom (#133) $35/hour $52.50/hour Shelter Rentals
- Arts & Crafts Room (#202) $35/hour $52.50/hour Refundable Deposit(Shelter) $100 $100
- Hunter Exercise Room (#210) $30/hour $45/hour Apex Community Park — small $17.50$20/hour $26.25$30/hour
- Hughes Exercise Room (#215) $30/hour $45/hour Apex Community Park — large $22.50$30/hour $33.75%40/hour
- Salem, Saunders & Seaboards $1,200/4 hours $1,500/4 hours  Hunter Street Park — small $17.50$20/hour $26.25$30/hour
Pleasant Park Jaycee Park — small $17.50$20/hour $26:25$30/hour
- Pleasant Park Meeting Room $35/hour $52.50/hour Kelly Road Park — small $147:50$20/hour $26:25$30/hour
Other Amenity Rentals - Page 220 - k — small $4750$20/hour $26:25$30/hour
- Tennis Courts 2-mirfdmax) $15/hour/court $22.50/hour, k - large $17.50$30/hour $26.25$40/hour




Fee Schedule

Other Amenity Rentals Cont. Resident Non-Resident  Shelter Rentals Cont. Resident Non-Resident
- Tennis Courts 2-minrfd-max) $15/hour/court $22.50/hour/court  Pleasant Park Amenity Shelter - large ~ $30/hour $40/hour
- Pickleball Courts $15/hour/court $22.50/hour/court  Pleasant Park Shelter - large $30/hour $40/hour
- Sand Volleyball Court $15/hour/court $22.50/hour/court  Seagroves Farm Park - small $17.50$20/hour $26.25$30/hour
- Disc Golf Course $45/hour $67.50/hour
- Disc Golf Course (1/2 day) $125 $190 Pleasant Park Tournament Packages Package Cost
- Disc Golf Course (full day) $250 $375 Full Day Event (cost per field) $650/day
- Amphitheater (1/2 day) $125 $187.50$190 Additional field preparation $100/field
- Amphitheater (whole day) $250 $375 Use of Scoreboard (cost per field) $100/day
- Extra Table Fee $3/table $3/table Use of Team Rooms (cost per room) $100/day
Attendant-Fee (100+Guests) $20/hour $20/hour Use of Referee Room $50/day
Signature Field 4-Hr Game Package $400

Pickleball Event all-day Rental (6 courts)

- Page 221 -




Town of Apex, North Carolina
FY 2023 - 2024 Annual Budget

New Position Recommendations

General Fund

. FY23-24 Operating &
Department Position ) Total Costs
Personnel Cost| Capital Costs
Administration Admin Assistant 11% 42,543 | $ 4,525 | $ 47,068
IT Specialist (Jr Operations Specialist) 1% 56,646 | $ 3575 | % 60,221
Information Technology |IT Process Analyst (Business/Data) 1% 131,489 | $ 4275 | $ 135,764 | ERP transitions
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analyst 1% 60,999 | $ 37,775 | $ 98,774 | Combine PW/PRCR request
Communications Public Safety PIO (Public Information Officer) 19 60,999 ' $ 7,600 ' $ 68,599
Finance Assistant Finance Director 1% 181,793 | § 9,075 | $ 190,868 | Accounitng capacity; no Asst. BC Superv.
Purchasing/Contracting Specialist 1194 91,253 | $ 5075 | $ 96,328
Community Development & |Neighborhood Improvement Specialist 194 52,652 | $ 4,925 | $ 57,577
Neighborhood Connections |311 Manager 11% 121,999 | $ 4,925 | $ 126,924
Facilities Facilities Maintenance Technician 11% 48,988 | $ 58,900 | $ 107,888 | FY 23 authorization Vacant
Police Officer 3% 245,797 | $ 327,150 | $ 572,947 | Phase, plan has 4 FY 24
Police Police Officer-Directed Patrol 1 219 163,865 | $ 218,300 | $ 382,165
School Resource Officer 194 81,932  $ 109,150 | $ 191,082 | Council Request
Fire Emergency Management Coordinator 1% 71,204 | $ 14,500 | $ 85,704
Fleet Fleet Services Manager 194 113,291 | § 3,100 | $ 116,391
Volunteer Coordinator 1% 48988 | $ 8375 § 57,363
Recreation Customer Service Specialist 1% 45,627 | $ 1,025 | § 46,652 | PT to FT; Senior Center
Parks & Recreation 30-hr. Camp Director w/ Benefits 219 155,239 | $ 9,940 | $ 165,179 | TO Camp Expansion
Recreation Program Specialist 1% 105,304 | $ 254,370 | $ 359,674 | TO Camp Expansion
Pleasant Park Operations Worker 1% 85,085 | $ 2,534 | $ 87,619
Fund Total 24 | $ 1,965,692 | $ 1,198,244 $ 3,163,936
Sewer Maintenance Utility Crew Field Supervisor 19 113,335 | $ 92,355 | $ 205,690
Stormwater Stormwater Engineer 1% 142,451 | $ 4,675 | $ 147,126
Electric Electric Line Tech 219 105,349 | $ 58,600 | $ 163,949
Fund Total 4|93 361,135 | $ 155,630 | $ 516,765

- Page 222 -




Budget Message

Town of Apex, North Carolina
FY 2023 - 2024 Annual Budget

Budget Message

The Honorable Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor
Members of the Apex Town Council

Dear Mayor Gilbert and Apex Town Council:

In accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and NC General Statute 159-11, | am pleased to
present the proposed Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for your consideration.

Multiple factors influence the annual budget process, including the condition of the national, state, and local economies
and the needs identified in our community by elected officials, staff, advisory boards, and residents. While our most recent
resident survey responses were overwhelmingly positive, and the Town continues to receive AAA bond ratings from Standard
& Poor's Corporation and Aaa with Moody's Investors Service, we will continue to strive to provide outstanding services by
looking for opportunities for improvement. Considering the external effects of the economy, the needs identified for our
community, and feedback from the residents’ survey, the proposed budget represents a significant amount of careful
consideration and study in order for the town to meet its obligations, fulfill its goals, and remain fiscally healthy.

In November 2022, we celebrated Town Council’s formal adoption of our strategic plan, Game Plan Apex. The strategic goals
and framework of the plan, which will incorporate departmental plans, provided guidance for staff in the development of a
proactive budget that will balance improving current town programs and services with development of new programs and
projects. The budget will highlight Town Council’s strategic goals throughout and present elements from Game Plan Apex
and selected performance indicators. Town Council's strategic goals are:

Welcoming Community: Create a safe and welcoming environment fostering community connections
and high-quality recreational and cultural experiences supporting a sense of belonging.

High Performing Government: Deliver exceptional service valuing an engaged workforce with an emphasis
on efficiency, collaboration, innovation, and inclusion.

Environmental Leadership: Commit to sustaining natural resources and environmental well-being.

Responsible Development: Encourage equitable and sustainable development that provides accessibility
and connectivity throughout the community.

Economic Vitality: Improve and sustain an environment that invites and retains a diversity of residents,
employment opportunities, and businesses.

- Page 223 -




Budget Message

FY23-24 Budget Highlights

General Fund Expenditures $102,072,200
Electric Fund Expenditures $ 51,837,800
Water & Sewer Fund Expenditures $ 28,974,200
Stormwater Fund Expenditures $ 2,671,900
Non-major & Capital Fund Expenditures $ 27,854,400
Total Budget $213,410,500

Property Tax Rate $0.44 per $100 valuation
Property tax rate is $.03 more than FY22-23

Electric Rates Residential: $26.38 base charge, $0.0994 per kWh energy charge
Base rate increase of $1.38, kWh charge increase of 5.5%

Water Rates $6.00 base charge, $4.42 - $6.85 per 1000 gal. consumption (tiered)
Sewer Rates $11.18 base charge, $7.75 per 1000 gal. consumption
Water base rate does not change, volumetric rate increase of 4%
Sewer base rate increase of $0.43, volumetric increase of 4%

Recommended Budget

The FY23-24 Recommended Budget totals $213,410,500 for all town operations, capital improvements, and debt service
requirements. This is $13,025,651 (6.5 percent) more than the FY22-23 Amended Budget as of April 1, 2023. Following Town
Council's direction, the budget is balanced with a tax rate of $0.44, an increase of $.03 from the current tax rate. The budget
includes a $1.38 base rate increase and a five and one half percent energy charge increase in electric rates, a four percent
volumetric increase in water rates, a four percent base rate and volumetric increase in sewer rates, and use of $4,675,000 in
fund balance from the General Fund.

Town Revenue & Expenditure Trends
$250,000,000

$200,000,000 P Fad

-~
$150,000,000 /‘vd

s
o
[t
$100,000,000 -
$50,000,000
$0 T T T T T T T T T T 1
Al ) Ao A Ad A9 2N B n » bk
QW T T 1T @ T 0T YT T @

=—¢=—=Revenues ==@=Expenditures

- Page 224 -




Budget Message
General Fund

The General Fund accounts for resources not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
another fund. The General Fund includes services that cannot be operated as a business enterprise and rely on tax dollars
as their primary source of revenue. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget for the General Fund totals $102,072,200, which is
3.98 percent less than the FY22-23 Amended Budget of $106,300,732 as of April 1, 2023.

General Fund Expenditures

Apex’s population continues to grow, but the pace of growth is beginning to slow. While the five-year average remains high
at 7.8 percent, the rate dropped to four percent in FY21-22 and is on pace for between four and five percent in FY22-23.
That is still a healthy growth rate but the slowing pace affects the rate of revenue growth and has to be considered when
preparing the budget. Growth brings about increasing demands on town services. To keep pace with this demand and
provide new services, the Town must provide necessary resources in the budget. These resources include personnel, supplies,
equipment, and investment in facilities and infrastructure. The Town of Apex is dedicated to sound financial management
and diligently evaluates all expenditures to maintain a responsible budget and demonstrate good stewardship of public
funds. The Town’s 22 General Fund departments and divisions can be grouped into six primary function areas. More than
one-third of every dollar spent in the General Fund goes toward public safety, which includes police, fire, and emergency
communications.

Transportation En;;gz:;;r:\tal Debt Service
General Fund Function per Dollar $0.09 §0.07 $0.09

PO A FEDE AL BRI SE SV NOTH |

WNE K 03040506

\-\ WA Grox iy

2 B

=5 'g‘
3
-

KO03040506H

General Government Public Safety Economic & Physical  Cultural & Recreation
$0.16 $0.37 Development $0.11
$0.12

Comparing the FY23-24 Recommended Budget to the FY22-23 Amended Budget reveals operating expenses and capital
expenditures are down from FY22-23 while increases in personnel costs and debt service drive the year-over-year increase.
The combination of 24 new positions, compensation adjustments, health and dental insurance increases, and retirement
rate increases all contribute to the 8.21 percent increase in personnel costs. Included in the 24 new positions for General
Fund are five police officers, a school resource officer, an emergency management coordinator, and a public safety public
information officer in response to Town Council’s request to enhance public safety. New positions also include three
positions for a new summer and track-out camp program in the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department in
response to the community’s request for additional youth services. Within the 8.05 percent debt service increase are
payments for the 2015 and 2021 transportation bonds to be sold in FY23-24.

1

- Page 225 -




Budget Message

General Fund Expenditures by Type

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent

Type Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change

Personnel 39,126,492 52,751,120 48,485,172 57,083,500 8.21%
Operating 16,895,806 27,024,792 23,242,632 25,282,400 -6.45%
Capital 10,769,127 17,767,120 17,933,727 10,243,300 -42.35%
Debt Service 7,322,038 8,757,700 8,757,700 9,463,000 8.05%
Total $74,113,463 $106,300,732 $98,419,231 $102,072,200 -3.98%

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent FY23-24
Department/Division Actual Budget Budget Change Variance

Governing Body 301,540 238,700 524,200 119.61% 285,500
Clerk 198,066 290,100 527,200 81.73% 237,100
Administration 1,805,941 1,542,813 1,549,900 0.46% 7,087
Human Resources 1,544,492 2,464,038 2,856,700 15.94% 392,662
Information Technology 2,052,886 3,497,005 3,483,100 -0.40% (13,905)
Legal Services 483,041 606,040 629,200 3.82% 23,160
Economic Development 486,788 693,838 761,100 9.69% 67,262
Communications - 584,200 712,900 22.03% 128,700
Budget & Performance Management - 879,950 900,600 2.35% 20,650
Finance 815,386 1,191,203 1,251,800 5.09% 60,597
Community & Neighborhood Connections - 470,750 819,200 74.02% 348,450
Planning 2,455,329 4,398,734 3,922,000 -10.84% (476,734)
Facility Services 1,612,206 4,558,215 1,992900 -56.28% (2,565,315)
Police 12,937,848 17,554,301 19,139,300 9.03% 1,584,999
911 Communications 1,067,462 1,616,125 1,690,100 4.58% 73,975
Fire 11,447,418 17,388,646 16,640,100 -4.30% (748,546)
Transportation & Infrastructure Dev. 1,230,589 3,331,934 3,152,000 -5.40% (179,934)
Streets 4,585,258 7,105,515 4,551,400 -35.95% (2,554,115)
Solid Waste 5,919,537 6,342,082 6,841,800 7.88% 499,718
Fleet Services 524,348 754,368 724,800 -3.92% (29,568)
Inspections & Permitting 2,694,081 3,222,414 3,200,900 -0.67% (21,514)
Parks, Recreation, & Cultural Resources 5,769,366 8,942,144 10,028,000 12.14% 1,085,856
Cemetery 25,000 51,001 25,000 -50.98% (26,001)
Special Appropriations 215,004 113,816 77,000 -32.35% (36,816)
Other Uses 8,619,841 9,555,100 6,508,000  -31.89% (3,047,100)
Debt Service 7,322,038 8,757,700 9,463,000 8.05% 705,300
Contingency - 150,000 100,000  -33.33% (50,000)
Total $74,113,463 $106,300,732 $102,072,200 -3.98% (4,228,532)

- Page 226 -




Budget Message
General Fund Capital Highlights

The Town intends to maintain outstanding services to the community through our infrastructure and other capital
investments during FY23-24. General Fund capital expenditures are noticeably less for FY23-24 at 9.3 percent as opposed
to 15.9 percent in FY22-23 and 11.4 percent FY21-22. The FY22-23 capital spending percentage is skewed due to budget
amendments that increased capital spending by $9.9 million during the fiscal year. The original adopted budget included
capital spending at nine percent. Council has set a goal to increase capital spending to a level comparable to past years at
12 percent of the overall General Fund budget. Analysis and projections to achieve this goal along with more information
about capital projects, including project descriptions, expected funding sources, debt and operating impacts, and schedules,
is located in the Capital Improvement Plan section of the budget document. Highlighted below are some of the significant
capital projects included in the FY23-24 Recommended Budget. These projects are all related to General Fund activities and
may be included in the General Fund budget or a corresponding capital project fund.

Annual Pavement Management — Street Resurfacing ($2,200,000)

The Town is responsible for maintaining over 220 miles of municipal streets with the annual resurfacing
contract providing for most of the pavement maintenance needs. Street mileage is growing annually with
ongoing development. This annual program addresses deficiencies in pavement condition throughout Apex
to prevent issues such as potholes, alligator cracking, and rutting in order to provide a safe and reliable
transportation system. The Powell Bill program provides an annual funding allocation from the state based
on public centerline miles of road accepted and maintained by the Town. Current and future resurfacing
costs continue to exceed Powell Bill allocations.

Justice Heights Street Extension ($750,000)

This project includes extending Justice Heights Street from its existing stub west of South Salem Street to
intersect with the Apex Peakway and includes sidewalk on the north side of the street. The project would
improve local connectivity for traffic flow south of NC 55 and pedestrian connectivity between Salem Street
and Apex Peakway through the Justice Heights neighborhood.

Felton Grove High School Road Improvements Cost Share ($825,000)

This project will contribute funds toward offsite intersection improvements as part of the construction of
proposed Felton Grove High School that are beyond the required improvements for Wake County Public
School System (WCPSS). This project addresses capacity and safety issues at multiple access points to the
school. Funding is being prioritized ahead of construction in order to enter into an agreement with the
school with full payment in 2025.

Safe Routes to School ($1,000,000)

The Town annually budgets for Safe Routes to School (SRTS) projects to improve and add to existing town
infrastructure related to pedestrian and bicycle traffic to and from schools. A portion of the 2021
transportation bonds are dedicated to SRTS projects. The FY23-24 Budget includes funding for Apex Safe
Routes to School projects that will provide connections for Baucom Elementary School, Laurel Park
Elementary School, Apex Middle School, and Thales Academy as well as connections to the Town's transit
route.

Tingen Road Pedestrian Bridge ($500,000)

This allocation is for the study of a pedestrian bridge over the railroad crossing of Tingen Road. The current
at-grade railroad crossing will be closed as part of the Apex Peakway Southwest Connector project per the
agreement with CSX. A pedestrian bridge will provide members of the community a safe way to cross the
railroad tracks on Tingen Road to access downtown Apex, multi-family residential developments, multiple
churches, and Apex Elementary School. A feasibility study will determine more accurate scope and cost. The
study is funded through the Federal Community Project Funding Program.

- Page 227 -




Budget Message

General Fund Revenues

The Town of Apex continues to experience growth in its primary revenue sources — ad valorem taxes and sales tax. Population
growth, steady development, and increasing property values have naturally contributed to a growing tax base that helps
Apex retain a modest tax rate while providing exceptional services. Apex’s tax base is still growing but recent trends indicate
a much slower pace of growth. The Town issued 1,012 residential certificates of occupancy (COs) in 2022. This corresponds
to approximately 3,000 new people in Apex and $250 billion in additional property value but it was the third straight year
that new COs and additional property value declined. The Town's assessed value increased by 8.1 percent from 2021 to 2022
and 6.3 percent from 2022 to 2023. The increase from 2023 to 2024 is only 3.9 percent. This decline in growth rate affects
property tax revenues, creating difficult decisions about what new projects and programs receive funding. The FY23-24 tax
base for Apex is projected to grow by $462,218,261 (3.9 percent) to $12,367,243,902 and each penny on the tax rate is
equivalent to $1,236,462 in revenue. Excluding property tax and sales tax revenues and use of fund balance, all other General
Fund revenues collectively represent a modest 7.29 percent increase from the FY22-23 Amended Budget. Overall, the FY23-
24 Budget reflects a 3.98 percent decrease in revenues when compared to the FY22-23 Amended Budget. Adjusting the
amended budget for purchase order carryovers from FY21-22, the difference between FY22-23 and the FY23-24
Recommended Budget would be an increase of 2.59 percent.

Ad Valorem Tax

Property taxes represent 53.2 percent of General Fund
revenues. For FY23-24, the ad valorem tax base is an
estimated $12.38 billion, which will generate $54.29 14 o1 1238
million in property tax revenue with a tax rate of $0.44 12 e -“J_
per $100 valuation at a 99.9 percent collection rate. 10
This represents an increase in ad valorem revenue of
$5.61 million (11.52 percent). The tax rate is $.03 more
than the FY22-23 tax rate. The FY23-24 tax rate
includes a $.03 increase for new public safety positions,
equipment, and programs; a new summer and track-
out camp program; and several new Town Council AN
initiatives, including expansion of the historical marker <<~L'\°>'

program and neighborhood grant program.

Assessed Value by Year

$Billions

o N M OO

Q
q :-L

Ao AD 2
QT :

X
o >

<

Local Option Sales Tax

Sales tax represents the Town's second largest revenue source in the General Fund at $20.7 million (20.31 percent). The State
of North Carolina collects sales tax and distributes it to the local units. Sales tax revenues are distributed on a proportional
population basis in Wake County. The population growth in Apex has allowed the Town to increase its share of sales tax
revenues. For FY22-23, the Town did not realize its full share of sales tax due to an error in the 2020 Census that has reduced
the State's official population for Apex, which is used to calculate sales tax distribution. The 2020 Census did not include
2,200 households that had been annexed into the Town. The Census has acknowledged the error but has not certified the
revised population estimate, which would add approximately 6,200 people to the Town’'s population. The error reduced
Apex’s share of the sales tax in FY22-23 by an estimated $1.2 to $1.8 million. The revised numbers have yet to be certified
as of April 2023 and the additional sales tax revenue is not included in the FY23-24 Budget. Sales tax revenues increased
significantly the past several years as the economy rebounded from the pandemic and with the natural growth in Wake
County. The impacts of inflation, international instability, and the lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
economy temper sales tax projections for the coming year. The Town, however, has continued to see a positive trend during
FY22-23 with sales tax revenues being up 12.7 percent over the previous year through the January collections. The FY23-24
sale tax estimates reflect this positive trend, albeit with a more modest growth rate of six percent over the current end of
year projections.

- Page 228 -




Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste Fees

The Town currently contracts with a private hauler for solid waste
and recycling collections. The solid waste and recycling fees offset

Budget Message

Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste
Monthly Charges

the Town'’s contract cost. Solid waste fees will generate $2,979,300 FY22-23 FY23-24
and recycling fees will generate $1,470,000 in FY23-24. The Town vard Waste Collection $7.83 $7.83
conducts its own yard waste collection and covers the cost with a | o i1ontial Roll-Out Cart $9.61 $9.85
monthly yard waste fee. The yard waste fee will generate Commercial Roll-Out Cart $20.12 $20.62
$2,131,000. Solid waste and recycling fees will increase in Recycling (per Bin or Cart) $4.55 $5.24
accordance with our service contract in FY?3-24. Solid waste | , ~y Dumpster Service $141.18  $145.86
fees include the standard adjustment for inflation of 2.50 percent 6-CY Dumpster Service $169.09 $173.32
included in the service contract. Recycling fee increases include the 8-CY Dumpster Service $194.00 $198.85

same inflationary adjustment as well as a processing fee increase
from $0.75 per unit to $1.34.

Fund Balance Appropriation

Fund balance is, simply explained, the amount of assets in excess of liabilities in a given fund. These funds enable the Town
to meet financial obligations without interruptions due to cash flow, generate investment income, eliminate the need for
short-term borrowing, and provide a reserve of funds to respond to emergencies or opportunities. Occasionally, the Town
will use money from fund balance to cover one-time expenses such as specific capital items. The Town evaluates any decision
to use fund balance carefully and often plans the use in advance to ensure adherence to the Town'’s fund balance policy.
The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes a fund balance allocation of $4,675,000, including $200,000 for Eva Perry
Library repairs, $825,000 for street improvements associated with Felton Grove High School, $300,000 for study and design
of the Salem Street Bicycle Connection, $300,000 for design of the Environmental Education Center, $300,000 for greenway
studies, $250,000 for street hockey courts, and $1,000,000 for Safe Routes to School projects. An additional $1,500,000 is
from restricted fund balance to be transferred to the Debt Service Fund for financing associated with the Mason Street
Municipal Building for Building Inspections and Permitting.

General Fund Revenues by Source

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent

Source Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change

Ad Valorem Taxes 43,601,374 48,684,400 48,595,000 54,294,400 11.52%
Other Taxes & Licenses 18,056,631 19,670,000 19,861,000 21,078,500 7.16%
Unrestricted Intergovernmental 4,040,632 4,130,000 4,242,000 4,330,000 4.84%
Restricted Intergovernmental 5,787,220 3,632,400 3,622,628 3,960,800 9.04%
Permits & Fees 3,683,870 3,537,000 2,993,690 2,514,000 -28.92%
Sales & Services 7,064,026 7,058,200 6,981,341 7,803,400 10.56%
Investment Earnings 95,093 25,000 1,500,000 1,200,000 4700.00%
Miscellaneous 256,220 94,500 202,900 191,500  102.65%
Other Financing Sources 600,000 750,000 750,000 2,025,000 170.00%
Fund Balance - 18,719,232 6,003,620 4,675,000 -75.03%
Total $83,185,066 $106,300,732  $94,652,180 $102,072,200 -3.98%

- Page 229 -




Budget Message

General Fund Revenues by Source FY23-24

Other Taxes & Licenses
20.7%

Unrestricted
Intergovernmental
4.2%

Ad Valorem Taxes

53.2%

Restricted
Intergovernmental

3.9%
Permits & Fees

2.5%
Sales & Services
7.6%

Investment

Fund Balance Earnings...

4.6% . . Miscellaneous
Other Financing Sources 02%

2.0%
Enterprise Funds
The Town of Apex operates three major funds as enterprises — the Electric Fund, the Water & Sewer Fund, and the Stormwater

Fund. Enterprise funds provide governmental services that can operate similar to a business and are self-sustaining with
user rates that generate all revenues to cover expenditures. The Stormwater Fund is a new fund beginning in FY23-24.

Electric Fund

The Electric Fund comprises all revenues and expenditures that result from the Town'’s electric utility operations. Customer
charges and fees generate revenue to support the fund completely. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget for the Electric
Fund totals $51,837,800, a 6.83 percent increase from the FY22-23 Amended Budget of $48,524,268 as of April 1, 2023.

Electric Fund Expenditures

The increase in the FY23-24 Electric Fund Budget is primarily due to increases in capital costs. Personnel cost increases reflect
two new positions. The increase in capital costs is influenced by the inflationary impact on materials and also includes $1.8
million in preparation for expanding capacity of the East Williams Street substation.

Electric Fund Expenditures by Type

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent

Type Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change
Personnel 5,211,381 6,872,900 5,043,400 7,147,900 4.00%
Operating 1,950,633 2,486,089 2,331,900 2,631,300 5.84%
Sales Tax 2,994,204 3,040,000 2,198,021 3,054,300 0.47%
Purchase for Resale 30,535,256 30,400,000 31,400,300 32,150,000 5.76%
Capital 4,397,709 4,476,479 4,870,000 5,604,500 25.20%
Debt Service 1,239,686 1,248,800 1,248,800 1,249,800 0.08%
Total $46,328,869 $48,524,268  $47,092,421 $51,837,800 6.83%

- Page 230 -




Budget Message

Electric Capital Highlights

Similar to the General Fund, the Town accounts for large capital projects associated with the electric utility system in a capital
project fund. The Electric Fund capital budget includes $3.3 million for annual system expansion, $1.8 million to expand
capacity of the East Williams Street substation, and $250,000 for LED street light replacement.

Electric Fund Revenues

Electric Fund revenues for FY23-24 are up 6.83 percent from FY22-23. The Electric Fund generates charges for service through
a base rate to cover fixed costs and an energy/demand rate to cover variable costs. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget
includes $45.1 million in revenue from charges for service with a $1.38 increase in the electric base charge coupled with
an increase of five and one half percent in the energy charge. The rate change will increase the residential base charge
to $26.38 per month. Even with the rate increase, Apex electric rates are lower than other local electric utilities. The average
residential electric customer can expect an increase of $7.36 per month on their electric bill.

Electric Fund Revenues by Source

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent

Source Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change
Charges for Service 42,641,278 43,795,100 43,994,457 44,969,700 2.68%
Other Operating Revenues 3,981,605 3,840,700 3,876,187 4,802,300 25.04%
Other Financing Sources - 10,000 - 10,000 0.00%
Miscellaneous 57,605 36,022 101,877 95,800 165.95%
Investment Earnings 13,643 5,200 169,199 160,000 2976.92%
Fund Balance - 837,246 - 1,800,000 114.99%
Total $46,694,131 $48,524,268  $48,141,720 $51,837,800 6.83%

Electric Fund Revenues by Source FY23-24

Charges for Service

86.75% Other Operating

Revenues
9.26%

Miscellaneous
0.18%

Investment Earnings
0.31%

Fund Balance
3.47%

- Page 231 -




Budget Message

Water & Sewer Fund

The Water & Sewer Fund comprises all revenues and expenditures that result from the Town's water and sewer utility
operations. Customer charges and fees generate enough revenue to support the fund completely. The FY23-24
Recommended Budget for the Water & Sewer Fund totals $28,974,200, a 3.32 percent increase from the FY22-23 Amended
Budget of $28,042,367 as of April 1, 2023.

Water & Sewer Fund Expenditures

The FY23-24 Water & Sewer Fund Budget reflects an increase in all expenditure categories except operating. The transition
of accounting for stormwater personnel and operations in the Stormwater Fund minimizes the overall increase in water and
sewer expenditures in FY23-24. The Water & Sewer Fund budget includes one new position for FY23-24 in the Sewer
Maintenance Division. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes $135,000 as part of the Town's continued annual
commitment to watershed protection.

Water & Sewer Fund Expenditures by Type

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent
Type Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change
Personnel 6,508,355 8,534,000 7,858,600 8,640,400 1.25%
Operating 3,708,217 6,786,225 4,656,536 5826500 -14.14%
Purchase for Resale 4,502,867 4,600,000 4,881,000 5,614,600 22.06%
Capital 2,114,059 4,369,742 4,497,364 5,116,000 17.08%
Debt Service 3,666,963 3,752,400 3,752,400 3,776,700 0.65%
Total $20,500,461 $28,042,367 $25,645,900 $28,974,200 3.32%
FY21-22 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent FY23-24
Department/Division Actual Budget Budget Change Variance
Water-Sewer Admin. 3,659,134 5,607,733 5,404,200 -3.63% (203,533)
Water Treatment 2,617,197 2,801,720 3,466,300 23.72% 664,580
Water Maintenance 2,639,520 4,954,646 3,989,000 -19.49% (965,646)
Sewer Treatment 4,129,901 4,283,925 4,418,500 3.14% 134,575
Sewer Maintenance 2,587,746 5,141,943 3,719,500 -27.66% (1,422,443)
Debt Service 3,666,963 3,752,400 3,776,700 0.65% 24,300
Other Financing Uses 1,200,000 1,400,000 4,100,000 192.86% 2,700,000
Special Appropriation - - - - -
Contingency - 100,000 100,000 0.00% -
Total $20,500,461  $28,042,367 $28,974,200 3.32% $931,833

Water & Sewer Capital Highlights

Similar to the General Fund, the Town accounts for large capital projects associated with the water and sewer utility system
in a capital project fund as well as within the operating fund itself. The Water & Sewer Capital Project Fund for FY23-24
includes the Big Branch Pump Station and Force Main project ($20 million), advanced metering infrastructure (AMI)
implementation ($4.1 million), NC-55 pump station upgrades ($450,000), and the Roberts Road water line connection
($250,000). Of this list, coverage for the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) project will come from the Water & Sewer
operating fund. The Water & Sewer operating budget includes additional capital expenditures totaling $1,016,00 for a valve
truck, miscellaneous water meter installations and water main connections, and various vehicle and equipment
replacements.

- Page 232 -




Budget Message

Water & Sewer Fund Revenues

Projections for Water & Sewer Fund revenues rely on many of the same variables as the Electric Fund, thus the similar theme
of fixed-cost recovery through base rate charges. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes $28,974,200 in revenues
from water and sewer charges, an increase of 3.32 percent. New customer growth has averaged just over four percent the
past three years. The continued customer growth rate and an increase in water and sewer fees account for the increase in
charges for service.

Water & Sewer Fund Revenues by Source

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent

Source Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change
Charges for Service 22,137,984 23,646,500 22,126,800 23,846,200 0.84%
Other Operating Revenues 629,841 627,000 519,300 513,000 -18.18%
Other Financing Sources 388,250 977,882 977,882 - -100.00%
Miscellaneous 33,773 35,000 40,000 40,000 14.29%
Interest Earned 40,859 20,000 520,000 475,000 2275.00%
Fund Balance Appropriated - 2,735,985 1,520,085 4,100,000 49.85%
Total $23,230,707 $28,042,367 $25,704,067 $28,974,200 3.32%

Water & Sewer Fund Revenues by Source FY23-24

Other Operating
Revenues

Charges for Service 18%

82.3%

Miscellaneous
0.1%

Interest Earned
1.6%

Fund Balance
Appropriated
14.2%

Water & Sewer Rates

In 2022, the Town performed a new rate study to evaluate existing rates and rates structure. The resulting study and model
found that the sewer utility was generating a deficit while the water utility was generating a surplus. Using the rate model,
staff reviews water and sewer rates annually and recommends adjustments that ensure the utilities remain self-sufficient
while avoiding the need for a significant increase in any one year.

The budget includes a recommendation to maintain the water base rate while increasing the volumetric water rate,
sewer base rate, and the sewer volumetric rate by four percent. The increases in the base rate are to recover fixed costs
and minimize the need for larger changes in the volumetric rates in the future. Water and sewer rates are double for
customers outside the town limits.

- Page 233 -




Budget Message

Water & Sewer Monthly Rates

Water Rates FY22-23 FY23-24 Sewer Rates FY22-23 FY23-24
Inside Base Charge $6.00 $6.00 Inside Base Charge $10.75 $11.18
Tier 1: < 6,000 gallons $4.25 $4.42 Outside Base Charge $21.50 $22.36
Tier 2: 6,000-12,000 gallons $4.89 $5.09 Inside Volumetric $7.45 $7.75
Tier 3: > 12,000 gallons $6.59 $6.85 Outside Volumetric $14.90 $15.50

It is important to note that the volumetric rate increases effect households based on their usage while the base rate changes
affect all households the same. For example, an average family of four or five that uses 5,000 gallons a month will see an
increase of $2.78 on their monthly water and sewer bill. Additionally, when comparing Apex to other utility systems in the
area, the Town's rates are consistently in the lowest quartile while still providing adequate cost recovery and providing for
future capital needs. It is important for the Town to continue to evaluate rates annually to ensure the financial sustainability
of the water & sewer utilities.

Stormwater Fund

Beginning January 1, 2022, the Town began operating its stormwater activities as a self-supporting utility and incorporated
stormwater expenses as a distinct division within the Water & Sewer Fund. The Stormwater Fund will be a separate fund
beginning in FY23-24. The Stormwater Fund comprises all revenues and expenditures that result from the Town's stormwater
operations. Stormwater fees generate enough revenue to support the fund completely. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget
for the Stormwater Fund totals $2,671,900, a 36.57 percent increase from the FY22-23 Amended Budget of $1,956,400 as of
April 1, 2023.

Stormwater Fund Expenditures

The FY23-24 Stormwater Fund Budget reflects an increase in personnel and capital expenditures. A new stormwater engineer
position along with compensation and benefit increases and insurance costs represent the increase in the stormwater
personnel costs. The primary reason for the increase in capital costs is a grant match of $333,600 for the streambank
restoration project at the Nature Park.

Stormwater Fund Expenditures by Type

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent

Type Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change
Personnel 361,263 974,800 885,100 1,120,900 14.99%
Operating 244,037 761,600 460,150 707,400 -7.12%
Capital 485,286 220,000 - 843,600  283.45%
Total $1,090,586 $1,956,400 $1,345,250 $2,671,900 36.57%

Stormwater Capital Highlights

The Town does not have a separate capital project fund for stormwater and projects are accounted for in the operating fund
itself. The Stormwater Fund capital budget includes $843,600 in FY23-24 for streambank restoration at the Nature Park
($333,600), Lake Pine spillway repairs ($150,000), a skid steer ($215,000), miscellaneous dam repairs, and various equipment
replacements.

- Page 234 -




Stormwater Fund Revenues

Budget Message

The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes $2,511,900 in revenues from stormwater fees, an increase of 29.77 percent.
Stormwater fees are the primary revenue source for the fund, making up 94 percent of revenues. Erosion and site inspection
fees were previously part of the General Fund but will be accounted for in the Stormwater Fund moving forward.

Stormwater Fund Revenues by Source

FY21-22 FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 Percent
Source Actual Budget Estimate Budget Change
Stormwater Fees 1,257,067 1,935,600 2,549,700 2,511,900 29.77%
Erosion & Site Inspection Fees - - - 150,000 -
Other Financing Sources - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Interest Earned - - 5,000 10,000 -
Fund Balance Appropriated - 20,800 25,734 - -100.00%
Total 1,257,067 $1,956,400 $2,580,434 $2,671,900 36.57%
Stormwater Revenues by Source FY23-24
Erosion & Site
Inspection Fees
5.6%
Other Financing
Stormwater Fees Sources
94.0% 0.0%

Stormwater Utility Fee

The stormwater fee structure uses impervious
surface area based on equivalent residential units
(ERU). The average ERU for Apex residential
properties is 2,700 square feet of impervious
surfaces such as rooftops, driveways, sidewalks,
and parking lots per property. The FY23-24
Recommended Budget includes an additional
tier to the stormwater fee structure to begin
January 1, 2024. The fifth tier will apply to
residences with over 5,400 square feet (2 ERU) of
impervious surface. Fees for the fifth tier will be
calculated at $5.00 per ERU rather than the flat
rates in other tiers. The table below includes the

Interest Earned
0.4%

Stormwater Rates

Residential - Detached single-family homes, a duplex, or a
manufactured home located on an individual lot or parcel.

Tier 1: 400-1,500ft2 $1.50
Tier 2: 1,501-3,000ft? $5.00
Tier 3: 3,001-4,000ft? $7.50
Tier 4: 4,001-5,400ft? $10.00
Same as Non-
H . 2
Tier 5: >5,400ft Residential

Non-Residential - Parcels that contain more
than two residential units, public/private
institutional buildings, commercial
buildings, parking lots, churches, etc.

$5.00 per ERU (Total
Impervious
Area/$2,700ft? * $5)

- Page 235 -




Budget Message

breakdown for each tier. Note that properties with less than 400 square feet are exempt from the monthly fee due to minimal
stormwater impacts.

Organization Review

During FY22-23, the Town adopted its first strategic plan, Game Plan Apex, and began to implement recommendations from
an organizational assessment to align departments to perform at an even higher level and ensure Apex remains “the peak
of good living". Town departments are currently finalizing their departmental strategic plans to correspond with Game Plan
Apex and begin performance management in FY23-24. The Town intends to continue implementation of staffing
recommendations from the organizational assessment over multiple fiscal years. Details regarding changes in organizational
structure, reassignment of positions, and new positions are located in the Community and Organizational Profile section of
the budget as well as in department-specific budget sections.

Core Values

Our Peak Principles, which represent our core values, are our foundation for how we interact with one another and the public
as we serve our community.

Peak Pledge: We will perform at the highest level by empowering our peers, remaining accountable to each other and those
we serve, and continuing the pursuit of knowledge.

Performance: Being stewards of public resources and trust, we will maintain a culture that values exceptional
customer service through efficiency and focus on our work.

Empowerment: Knowing that good ideas come from employees at all levels across all departments and divisions, we
will maintain a culture that empowers everyone to express their thoughts and provides opportunities to become
part of real solutions.

Accountability: Knowing that we are entrusted to be stewards of the public's resources, we will maintain an
atmosphere of openness and transparency to one another and to those we serve.

Knowledge: A workforce that pursues knowledge is one that will be better able to anticipate new challenges and
respond to those presented.

Personnel

Employee Performance Evaluation and Compensation: The Town's performance evaluation and compensation system is
structured around Game Plan Apex, the Town's Peak Principles, and the establishment of clear performance goals and
objectives for each employee. The Town awards merit pay in October following the annual employee performance reviews
conducted between July 1 and August 31. Employees do not receive other pay increases during the year unless they qualify
for a pay adjustment for position reclassification or receive a promotion with greater responsibility. For FY23-24, the Town
plans to provide two compensation adjustments. The first will be a two percent market adjustment provided to all employees
as of the first pay period in July. The second will be the merit-based practice previously described. The FY23-24
Recommended Budget includes merit adjustments ranging from three to five percent depending on each employee's
performance evaluation. The total estimated cost for FY23-24 is $2.28 million across all funds.

Beginning in FY20-21, the Town implemented a $15.00 living wage as a baseline for the Town’'s compensation plan. The
Town'’s policy is to annually review changes in the area living wage and for the Town Manager to recommend a minimum
living wage as part of the annual budget approval process. The Town's current lowest hourly rate is $19.21, which will
increase to $19.59 as of July 2024 with the two percent cost of labor adjustment.

- Page 236 -




Budget Message

Employer Retirement Contribution: The North Carolina Local Government Retirement System has notified local governments
that the Annual Contribution Rate (ACR) will increase in FY23-24. The employer contribution will increase from 12.13 to 12.85
percent for regular employees and from 13.04 to 14.04 percent for law enforcement officers. Local government employees
currently contribute six percent of their salary. The Town's retirement contributions represent $6,646,500 in FY23-24, an
increase of $1,063,990 (19.06 percent).

401(k) Contribution: The Town provides a five percent 401(k) contribution for all full-time employees. North Carolina General
Statutes mandate 401(k) contributions for sworn law enforcement at five percent, a cost of $479,800 in the FY23-24 Budget.
Contributions for all other employees represent $2,057,800 in FY23-24.

Health Insurance: While the Town has been able to contain rate increases the past few years, substantial claims have resulted
in increases in both health and dental premiums. The Town will experience a 7.4 percent increase for healthcare premiums
in FY23-24. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes $7,606,700 for healthcare premiums across all funds. The Town’s
self-funded dental plan will experience a 10.9 percent increase in insurance premiums for FY23-24.

Retiree Medical Insurance: The Town offers qualifying retired employees a medical insurance benefit until they qualify for
the Federal Medicare Insurance Program. The cost for the retiree insurance is classified as other post-employment benefits
(OPEB). In addition to the annual retiree medical insurance cost, the Recommended Budget includes additional funds for an
OPEB trust fund. To prevent long-term financial stress and follow sound financial practices, the Town allocates additional
funds for long-term OPEB costs annually. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes $350,000 for long-term OPEB
expenditures - $266,000 in General Fund, $49,000 in the Electric Fund, and $35,000 in the Water & Sewer Fund. The FY23-
24 Budget includes a total of $178,000 to cover pay-as-go Retiree Medical Insurance and long-term OPEB costs in all funds.
As of July 1, 2020, the Town no longer offers the retiree medical insurance benefit to new employees. The purpose of
eliminating this benefit is to reduce the Town's long-term liability, which currently stands at $31.8 million.

Police Special Separation Allowance: North Carolina General Statutes provide for special compensation to retired law
enforcement officers meeting specified criteria. The statutes require the Town to compensate the officer until they reach
age 62. The Special Separation Allowance budget in FY23-24 is $243,100.

Position Reclassifications: In FY22-23, the Town reviewed all positions as part of the organizational assessment. For FY23-24,
the Town will return to its normal practice to study approximately one-third of the Town’s positions each year to determine
if the positions are correctly classified and if the salary ranges assigned to the positions are appropriate based on the area
labor market.

Additional Positions: The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes 24 new full-time positions in the General Fund, two new
full-time positions in the Electric Fund, one new full-time position in the Water and Sewer Fund, and one new full-time
position in the Stormwater Fund. With assistance from the organizational assessment conducted in 2022, staff has developed
a four-year staffing plan to manage the addition of new positions over the next several years. All new positions will bring
the total approved full-time positions to 633 and increase personnel costs by $2,996,407 for FY23-24. A breakdown of the
recommended positions with costs is located in the Supplemental Section of the budget document.

Additional Benefits: As part of the Town's goal to be an employer of choice, the Town is committed to offering flexible
programs and benefits that support holistic wellbeing for employees. In FY23-24, the Town will offer two new benefits and
will revise its existing longevity program. The Peak Lifestyle Reimbursement program will provide employees with the
flexibility to pursue physical, emotional, and financial wellness with a reimbursement up to $1,200 per fiscal year. Examples
of reimbursable expenses include gym passes and memberships, mindfulness and meditation classes, child care services,
and financial counseling sessions. The total estimated cost for the addition of the Peak Lifestyle Reimbursement program
for FY23-24 is $720,00 across all funds. To assist in balancing both a fulfilling work and personal life, the Town will offer 80
hours of paid leave through a new Peak Paid Time Off program in addition to the Town'’s establish Sick Leave and Vacation
Leave programs. The additional paid time off is not eligible for rollover, payout or conversion to any other types of leave.
The FY23-24 Recommended Budget includes proposed increases in the two highest tiers of the Town's longevity pay

- Page 237 -




Budget Message

program which awards employees with additional pay determined by tenure with the Town. Longevity pay for employees
will 15-19 years of tenure will increase from $600 to $700 and the benefit for 20-years or greater will increase from $700 to
$1000. The total estimated cost for the change to the longevity pay program for FY23-24 is $172,400 across all funds, an
increase of $22,200.

Fund Balance

The North Carolina Local Government Commission recommends that local governments maintain a minimum unassigned
fund balance of no less than eight percent of expenditures. The Town of Apex has adopted a formal fund balance policy of
maintaining a fund balance for the General Fund of at least 25 percent of expenditures. The Town of Apex’s estimated non-
committed or non-restricted fund balance as of June 30, 2023, is $42.66 million or 44.53 percent of FY23-24 expenditures.
The recommended budget does include use of fund balance to cover some capital costs. The Town does not use reserves
for operating costs and carefully evaluates the use of fund balance for unanticipated opportunities and capital expenses.
The use of $4,675,000 in FY23-24 will still keep the available fund balance above 25 percent.

The North Carolina Local Government Commission does not have a specific recommendation regarding how much fund
balance or retained earnings a local government enterprise operation should maintain. The Town has a target of 90 days
cash on hand for the Electric Fund and Water and Sewer Fund. The Town seeks to ensure both funds are financially stable
and contain healthy reserves and is currently working to increase days cash on hand in the Electric Fund over the next three
years. The Town of Apex’s estimated days cash on hand as of June 30, 2023, for the Electric Fund is 64.6 days ($8.48 million).
The estimated days cash on hand for the Water & Sewer Fund is 482.4 days ($38.99 million). The FY23-24 Recommended
Budget does include use of reserves in the Electric Fund ($1.8 million) and the Water & Sewer Fund ($4.1 million).

In summary, the Recommended Budget is a balanced budget in accordance with state statutes, and it attempts to address
the priorities set by Town Council for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year. While it is typically difficult to fund all the requests made
by departments or external agencies, the budget team did an excellent job in preparation of this budget to include as many
requests as possible and ensure alignment with Town Council's strategic goals. The Town has benefited from growth, and it
is in a solid financial position going into FY23-24, but we must be mindful of the shifting trends in growth rates. Smaller
increases in revenues and increasing costs of service delivery will make budgeting for new programs and projects
progressively more difficult. The FY23-24 Recommended Budget is fiscally sound and addresses the top priority needs of
the Town. The Town’s sound financial practices and conservative budgeting approach have positioned it to continue
delivering high-level services for Apex residents. This budget reflects our commitment to maintaining and improving our
community and positioning Apex to be financially sound in the future.

| wish to extend my sincere appreciation to the Budget and Performance Management Department, Finance Department,

and other Town team members who helped to prepare this budget. | recommend this proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 to the Apex Town Council.

Respectfully submitted,

Catherine H. Crosby
Town Manager

- Page 238 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: PUBLIC HEARING
Meeting Date: June 27, 2023

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Amanda Grogan, Director
Department(s): Budget & Performance Management

Requested Motion

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2023-2024/2027-2028 Capital Improvement
Plan and associated capital project ordinances

Approval Recommended?

Yes

[tem Details
The CIP is a multi-year plan for major capital expenditures such as the acquisition of land; construction or
significant renovation of public facilities; construction of new transportation infrastructure; expansion or
significant renovation of water, wastewater, electric, or stormwater infrastructure; capital equipment to
support operations; or any combination of the above with an asset value of greater than $100,000 and a

useful life of greater than three years.

Once adopted by the Town Council, the CIP becomes a statement of town policy regarding the need,
priority, timing, and funding of future capital projects. As a plan, projects and funding mechanisms are
subject to change based on new or shifting service needs, special financing opportunities, emergency
needs, or other directives or priorities established by the Town Council. Adoption of the CIP does not

guarantee funding or project approval.

Attachments

PH3-A1: FY2023-2024/2027-2028 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

PH3-A2: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2023-9 - Street Improvement Project Fund
PH3-A3: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2023-10 - Water-Sewer Capital Project Fund
PH3-A4: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2023-11 - Electric Capital Project Fund
PH3-A5: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2023-12 - Recreation Capital Project Fund
PH3-A6: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2023-13 - General Capital Project Fund

- Page 239 -




Table of Contents

Section 1: Overview of the Capital Improvement Plan...................ccooooviiiiiniinieeeeeee e 1

Relationship to the Annual Operating Budget

CIP StrUCTUIE ...t

Capital Improvement FUNAING.......coovvomrvrnrrnnrrnnrinnrinneissseenens

TIE CIP PIOCESS ..ot eeeeeeee s seeseseeeseeesseeseseeenseaes

Resident Budget Priorities Survey.........

CIP PraACTICES ..o eeee e e eee e e ees e ees e s e e eeeseeesneens

Planning BY FUNG ...

Section 2: General Fund...................nieeeeees

Transportation Element Projects .......ovenecnecennecenneeereeeeneens

Parks, Recreation, & Cultural Resources Element Projects.......

Public Safety Element Projects .........cooworeeneeeennreeenneeeinsseeessseeeseesesseseenne

Public Facilities Element Projects...... s

Public Works & Environmental Services Element Projects................

General FUNA SUMMANY ......ninieeieeissiesiseesssesssesssesssesssssnsenns

Section 3: CIP Financial Impact Analysis on General Fund..........

Projections and ESIMAteS ........coocverurereneceneeeeeeireeneeesseeeseeeseeesee e sesesienee

DEbt RAtiOS......oieeeeieeeeeeeee e

Tax Rate ANalYSiS.....coreernriereeireeineeeeeiseeeseeesseseseeeeseees

Section 4: Electric Utility..........ccccoooovnvnevnrrrerri,

Electric Utility Element Projects.......cecennecenecenenee.

Electric Fund SUMMary ...

Section 5: Water & Sewer Utility ...
Water & Sewer Element Projects......cooeeeneenneeeneeenecineeessecesseceseeens

Water & Sewer FUN SUMMATY........cooionrinnrinsiesssisssesssssssssssssssssssssens

Section 6: Stormwater Utility...........ccccoooovervnrnrrvrrcrcnnrsrnrinsies

Stormwater Element Projects........nnrinnsinnsinssinssinnnens

Stormwater Fund SUMMaAry ........ccconmecenecenecenecenecenene

Section 7: Project Funding Detail ...

- Page 240 -

50
51
52
54
55



Section 1: Overview of the Capital Improvement Plan

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is the planning mechanism by which the Town Council allocates limited financial
resources to implement long-term goals as defined in the Town’s Strategic Plan, Advance Apex: The 2045 Transportation
Plan, the Downtown Master Plan, the Parks and Recreation Master Plan, and other similar planning documents. The purpose
of the CIP is to forecast and match projected revenues and major capital needs over a five-year period. Capital planning is
an important management tool that strengthens the linkage between community infrastructure needs and the financial
capacity of the Town.

The CIP is a multi-year plan for major capital expenditures such as the acquisition of land, construction or significant
renovation of public facilities (i.e. buildings/parks), construction of new transportation infrastructure (i.e. roads, sidewalks,
multi-use paths), expansion or significant renovation of water, wastewater, electric, or stormwater infrastructure, capital
equipment to support operations, or any combination of the above. Projects eligible for inclusion in the CIP are those with
an asset value of greater than $100,000 and a useful life of greater than three years.

When identifying new projects, staff looks to the long-term priorities and direction set by Town Council and submits formal
requests through the CIP process. A formal request includes a description of the project, an explanation of how the project
implements an established goal, the estimated cost of the project, and an estimate of the recurring costs associated with a
completed project (i.e. additional staff, additional utilities, etc.). The formal request also includes an analysis of alternative
solutions, if any, and a statement on the effect on services and/or programs if the project is not funded.

Once adopted by the Town Council, the CIP becomes a statement of town policy regarding the need, priority, timing, and
funding of future capital projects. The Capital Improvement Plan is simply that — a plan. As such, projects and funding
mechanisms are subject to change based on new or shifting service needs, special financing opportunities, emergency needs,
or other directives or priorities established by the Town Council. Future needs and financial constraints may result in changes
in priority over the five-year period; and because priorities can change, projects included in outward planning years are not
guaranteed for funding. The CIP represents the best judgment of Town Administration and Town Council at the time the
Plan is adopted. Priorities established in the CIP subsequently guide decisions made by Town Administration and the various
boards and commissions appointed by Town Council.

The Town of Apex CIP achieves five major objectives as a component of the Town's budget and financial planning process:

1. Helps the Town rationally and intelligently plan for the repair, replacement, and acquisition of capital items that are
necessary in providing high-quality services to the residents of Apex.

2. Assists in fiscal planning by forecasting capital demands together with future revenues and expenditures.

Ensures better coordination, evaluation, and planning of projects to serve the community and its needs.

4. Serves, together with the annual budget and other financial plans, as a guide to decision-making for the Town
Council, Town Manager, and staff.

5. Serves as a systematic and comprehensive analysis of capital needs, increasing the probability of making rational
budgetary judgments since improvements are identified, prioritized, and matched to the projected fiscal resources
of the Town.

w

Relationship to the Annual Operating Budget

Some CIP projects are funded through annual operating funds, such as the General Fund, Electric Fund, and the Water and
Sewer Fund. In these cases, the CIP and the Annual Operating Budget are directly linked as CIP projects become authorized
through the adoption of the Annual Operating Budget. Projects funded through debt financing also impact the operating
budget through ongoing debt service expense. Finally, some completed CIP projects will directly impact the operating
budget as they will require ongoing expenses for staff and other operating costs.

- Page 241 -




CIP Structure

The CIP is organized into seven functional categories, called “elements,” in order to group projects with similar items.

1. Transportation Element: funds the construction of new roadways, improvements to existing roadways, sidewalks,
bicycle and pedestrian facilities, transit projects, and railroad crossing improvements. Implementation of Advance
Apex: The 2045 Transportation Plan, Bike Apex, and the Downtown Master Plan and Parking Study are funded in this

element.

2. Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Element: funds the acquisition of land for new park and greenway
facilities, the construction of park and recreation amenities, and major maintenance of current facilities.

Implementation of the Parks and Recreation Master Plan is funded in this element.

3. Public Safety Element: funds the acquisition of capital equipment to support the operations of the three public safety
departments in the Town (Fire, Police, and Emergency Communications). Public safety facilities are considered in the

public facilities element.

4. Public Facilities Element: funds the construction and major maintenance of general government and public safety
facilities and infrastructure. This element also funds improvements to communications and technology infrastructure.

5. Public Works & Environmental Services Element: funds projects designed to manage and mitigate the effects of
stormwater runoff, manage the collection and disposal of solid waste, and maintain streets. These projects include
structural improvements, Stormwater Control Measure (SCM) construction, and the major maintenance of this

infrastructure. They also include equipment needed to manage solid waste collection and maintain Town streets.

6. Electric Utility Element: funds the construction, maintenance, and improvement of electric distribution infrastructure.
These projects include substation additions and upgrades, distribution line extensions, major maintenance of

infrastructure, and the equipment necessary to maintain the system.

7. Water & Sewer Utility Element: funds the construction and improvement of water and sewer infrastructure. These
projects include main additions and replacements, water/wastewater treatment plant renovations/expansions, filter
rehabilitation, pump station additions, major maintenance of infrastructure, and the equipment necessary to maintain

the system.

Capital Improvement Funding

The sources of funding used to execute the Plan are as important as the capital projects contained in the Plan. Capital
Improvements for the Town of Apex are funded using a variety of sources that are broadly categorized as cash or debt

financing.

Cash, or pay-as-you-go (paygo), funds come from sources such as tax revenue, development related fees (recreation,
transportation, and capacity fees), program fees, State revenue, and interest earnings. Some of these sources, such as State
revenue from the Powell Bill, Town recreation fees, and certain others, may only be spent to meet certain needs. Other
revenue sources come with no restriction on the needs they may be used to address. Major funding sources for the CIP are

described below:

General Fund: General Fund revenue, such as ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, utility taxes, and other similar revenues are
used to fund Town operations and may be used to fund capital projects such as facility improvements, transportation
system improvements, and other similar projects. Compared to other sources, General Fund resources are a flexible

revenue source without restrictions on their use.

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise funds, such as the water/sewer fund and the electric fund, collect user fees as part of their
operations, then invest a portion of that revenue into capital projects. The Town uses these funds only for corresponding

- Page 242 -

2



enterprise projects. For instance, the electric fund only pays for projects related to the electric system, and not for
projects related to water/sewer or any General Fund related project.

Water/Sewer Capital Reimbursement Fees: These fees are charged, based upon a Town Council-approved Development
Fee Schedule, to developers of land within the Town of Apex to pay for the capital facility burden created by new
development. Revenue from these fees is restricted to be used for capital improvements to the water/sewer system or
to fund payment of debt service for improvements to these systems.

Debt Financing: For debt financing, the Town uses several types of debt mechanisms, including general obligation
bonds, revenue bonds, and traditional lease-purchase or installment financing. The mechanism selected varies
depending on the level of funding needed, the term of the need, and current debt market conditions. General obligation
bonds are approved by voters and are backed by the Town's taxing authority to repay the bonds. Revenue bonds pledge
the revenue generated by specific enterprise (water, sewer, electric) charges.

Recreation Subdivision Fee-in-Lieu of Dedication: These fees are charged, based upon a Town Council-approved
Development Fee Schedule, to developers of land within the Town of Apex and its Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).
Revenue from these fees is restricted to be used for park and recreation system expansion/improvements or to fund
payment of related debt service.

Reserve from Prior Years: As capital projects are completed, any unspent budgeted amounts accumulate into capital
reserves, which are available to fund future projects. Capital reserves can also build up when the Town collects revenue
in excess of the amount budgeted for development fees described above.

The CIP Process

The process for developing the CIP, as illustrated below, begins shortly after the beginning of a new fiscal year (July 1) as
staff considers unmet capital needs in the recently adopted budget and other emerging needs. For each project, staff in the
requesting department complete a CIP project request form and compile supporting documentation. All CIP project requests
are due by mid-October of each year.

July - September

Staff evaluates, adds new
projects, and considers the
prioritization of
unapproved projects

May October - December

Budget Public Hearing is
held, where the public
contributes their input

March - May

Town Council approved
CIP is used as the basis for
developing the upcoming

fiscal year budget

February

Survey and rating results
reviewed and discussed by
Town Council at their
annual retreat

- Page 243 -

Draft CIP is completed and
staff committee scores
each project against the
evaluation matrix

December - January

CIP project survey tool is
compiled and distributed
to Town Council




Following an evaluation of current projects and needs, new projects are Legal Mandate

proposed to the 5-year plan. Using these proposals alongside pre- | electallthatapply Points Possible
.. . . . . . Project mandated by State and/or 10 points

existing projects, a selection of senior staff representing the various

) . - . Project mandated by Town Council 7 points
departments are tasked with using an evaluation matrix to score the [prgject mandated by legal settlement,

. . . . . 5 point
projects across eight categories, including public health and safety, legal |contracual obligation or regulation points
mandates (as illustrated in the table to the right), economic development |Project corrects a violation of Town or 2 points
capacity, funding/budget impact, and other technical factors. State code that would result in fines .
Not Applicable 0 points

In preparation for the Town Council Annual Retreat in February, the Mayor and Town Council Members are provided with a
survey tool to rank a selection of General Fund projects. The ranking excludes projects that are considered necessary for
operations, such as replacement leaf trucks and radio replacements for public safety.

While the staff ratings focused on technical factors, the Mayor and Town Council rank the projects while keeping in mind
how well they addressed each of the Town Council's five strategic goals:

A Welcoming Community: Create a safe and welcoming environment fostering community connections
and high quality recreational and cultural experiences supporting a sense of belonging.

High Performing Government: Deliver exceptional service valuing an engaged workforce with an
emphasis on efficiency, collaboration, innovation, and inclusion.

Environmental Leadership: Commit to sustaining natural resources and environmental well-being.

Responsible Development: Encourage equitable and sustainable development that provides
accessibility and connectivity throughout the community.

Economic Vitality: Improve and sustain an environment that invites and retains a diversity of residents,
employment opportunities, and businesses.

The ranked responses from the Mayor and Town Council members for each proposal are averaged to create a project
prioritization order. This order reveals which projects the Mayor and Town Council determine are most critical to achieving
the Town's strategic goals and, accordingly, have the most pressing need for immediate funding.

Using the prioritization list created with the averages of the Mayor and Town Council's rankings for each project and a
measure of dispersion (standard deviation), the results are then used to assign projects into quartiles based on average
ranking and agreement. This helps illustrate projects where the Town Council is in agreement on ranking (high or low) and
is used as the basis for further discussion on projects that have higher than average disagreement.

- Page 244 -




1. Above Average Score, Above Average Agreement

Environmental Education Center Apex Peakway Southeast Connector
GoApex Transit Program Beaver Creek Extension Phase | & Phase I
Humie Olive Road at Blazing Trail Traffic Signal (+1) Land Purchase for Affordable Housing
Jessie Drive Phase | and Phase Il Tingen Road Pedestrian Bridge

Justice Heights Street Extension Vision Zero - Bike & Pedestrian

Pleasant Park Baseball & Softball Complex

Pristine Water Drive Connector

Ragan Road Sidepath

Salem Street Downtown Streetscape and Resurfacing
South Salem Street Bicycle Connection

4: Below Average Score, Above Average Agreement

Jaycee Park Expansion Big Branch Greenway

Production Drive Extension Davis Drive at Salem Church Road Realignment
Reedy Branch Greenway Hunter Street Park Renovation

Repurpose Depot Parking Lot KidsTowne Playground Renovation

Station 1 Rebuild Olive Farm Park Design

Town-Wide Traffic Signal System Vision Zero - Signal Upgrades

The chart above reflects the project distribution. Quartile 1, the green block, contains projects with above average rankings
and general agreement. These projects are considered the highest relative priority by the Town Council. Quartile 4, the red
block, represents projects with below average rankings and general agreement. Quartile 2 and 3, the yellow and orange
blocks, represent the middle ground where there is more disagreement. The Town Council focuses discussion on many of
these projects in the 2" and 3™ quartiles.

Following Town Council input and approval, the CIP is used as a basis for budgeting in the coming fiscal year and in

formulating financial forecasts prepared as part of the budget process. Public input is solicited through two public hearings
held during the budget process.

Resident Budget Priorities Survey

The Town of Apex resident budget priorities survey invites Apex residents to share their input on budgetary decisions. The
online survey presents residents with two different ranking tools. First, residents are given the opportunity to indicate the
importance they place on the following broad budgeting categories, which staff developed according to the priorities
highlighted by the Town'’s strategic goals and ongoing plans, such as the Downtown Plan, Affordable Housing Plan, and
others. Staff present the categories with the following brief descriptions prior to the ranking:

Recreation and Cultural Opportunities: Construction of new parks, greenways and facilities; maintenance
and improvements to existing parks, greenways, and facilities; and athletic and cultural arts programming.

Transportation and Infrastructure: Construction and improvement of roadways, sidewalks, and bicycle
lanes; public transit projects; and railroad crossing improvements.

Environmental Sustainability: Stormwater management; sanitation and recycling services; and initiatives
to decrease the Town's carbon footprint, such as renewable energy improvements to Town facilities.

Economic Stability and Growth: Identifying and purchasing new development sites; recruiting new business
and industry; and launching marketing initiatives for downtown businesses.

- Page 245 -




Housing Affordability: Programs to assist with home rehabilitation for low-income homeowners; emergency
rental assistance; down-payment assistance for new homebuyers; construction of affordable housing units;
and homeownership counseling.

Public Safety: Resources to support the operations of the three public safety departments within the Town:
Fire, Police, and Emergency Communications.

Vibrant and Accessible Downtown: Repurposing unused or underused spaces for public enjoyment;
landscaping; and improving parking, sidewalks, and pedestrian crossings.
The survey provides a slider bar for each category, which represent a scale from “not at all important” to “very important.”
By dragging and dropping a pin in the appropriate spot, residents communicate how important they feel each given
category is.

The next section of the survey uses a simple drag-and-drop tool to rank specific initiatives within each category. By moving
these items into their preferred order, residents indicate which items within the broader categories they feel are most and
least important to fund. Residents are also given the option to indicate that none of the items listed are important to them.

To analyze the results, Town budget staff calculate the average score of each broad budgeting category. Residents rated
Transportation & Infrastructure as being most important, while Housing Affordability was least important.

Importance of the Budget Priorities
(sliding scale 1-100, Average Score)

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%
Housing Economic Environmental Vibrant & Recreation & Public Safety Transportation &
Affordability Stability & Sustainability Accessible Cultural Infrastructure
Growth Downtown Opportunities
m0-25 26-50 m51-75 m76-100

The average rankings for the items within each budgeting category reveals the initiatives residents feel are most important
for the Town to address in the FY 23-24 budget. Below is a breakdown of the results within each broad budget category:

- Page 246 -




Transportation & Infrastructure

None of these are important to me
1% —

Construction of new roadwag/

9%

Increased public transit options/

(e.g. GoApex bus route)
9%
Construction of new sidewalks /
side paths and improvement o Maintenance of existing roadways (e.g.
pedestrian crossings py — road resurfacing, pothole repair)
20% 23%

Recreation & Cultural Opportunities

Improvements to existing roadways (e.g.
road widening, traffic signal
improvements, addition of new turn lanes)

N 38%

Additional / enhanced
cultural arts programming__——
6%
Additional / enhanced
athletic programming

New park and greenway
construction and completion of
_——— existing greenway connection